KINGSBURY

| GENERAL INPROVEMERT RISIRICT

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING NOTICE
AGENDA
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2025

A meeting of the Kingsbury General Improvement District Board of Trustees shall be
held Tuesday December 16, 2025, at the district office (160 Pine Ridge Drive, Stateline,
NV, 89449), commencing at 5:00 p.m. The agenda and supporting material are
available on the district website (www.kgid.org), News & Notices. Copies of this agenda
were posted 3 business days prior to the meeting at: The District Office, Stateline Post
Office, Zephyr Cove Post Office, and Douglas County Lake Tahoe Administration
Building.

Electronic copies of the agenda and supporting materials are also available at the
following website: * State of Nevada Public Notices website: https://notice.nv.gov/

Remote attendance is welcomed. To offer public comment prior to the meeting,
individuals may submit comments using the drop box located at the district office entrance,
or email to the District Secretary.

e To provide public comment or attend the meeting by phone, (669) 900-9128 - ID
code 775-588-3548 passcode 5883548. Although the phone line accommodates
multiple callers, should you receive a busy signal, please call back.

e Public comment is limited to three minutes and occurs at the beginning and end
of the meeting and invited during the Board’s consideration of each action item,
as well as before action is taken.

Join the meeting using the link below via Zoom:

https://usOZweb.zoom.us/i/7755883548?Dwd=UnF2Yszb05YaODiWiRCNUNI_EI\_/I
UFVZz09&0mn=89822436221
Meeting ID: 775 588 3548 Passcode: 5883548

MISSION STATEMENT
As a team, our employees and the Board of Trustees provide water and sewer service,
maintain roads and drainage systems for the benefit of our customers using modern
business systems in an efficient courteous, and accountable manner which surpass
standards set for public health, safety, and the environment.



Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and
require special assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify
the district by calling 775-588-3548 at least one day in advance of the meeting.

ALL MATTERS ON THE BOARD AGENDA ARE SCHEDULED WITH POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION

AGENDA

5:00 P.M.

hoON=

6.

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Public Comment

This is the public’s opportunity to speak on any topic pertinent to the district and
not listed on this agenda. Public comments will also be invited during the
Board’s consideration of each action item, and before action is taken. Please
limit your comments to three minutes. Nevada Open Meeting Law (NRS
241.034) prohibits action on items not listed on the agenda.

Approval of Agenda: For Possible Action: Items on the agenda may be taken
out of order; two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration; and
items may be removed from the agenda or discussion relating thereto delayed at
any time.

Approval of Minutes: For Possible Action: Approval of the minutes for the
Board of Trustees meeting, November 18, 2025.

NEW BUSINESS

7.

8.

9.

Discussion and Possible Action: Appointment of a Qualified Elector to Fill a
Vacancy on the Board of Trustees

Discussion and Possible Action: Receive Audit Report and Accept the FY
2025 Financial Statement

Discussion and Possible Action: 510 Laurel Lane Easement Request and
Related Alternatives

10.Discussion and Possible Action: Approve DOWL Task Order Number 73

KGID — TDFPD Operations Yard Storage

11.For Discussion and Possible Action: Review and Receive Financial

Statements, Quarterly-July/August/September 2025

12.Discussion and Possible Action: Approve list of Claims, November 2025
13.Discussion and Possible Action: Trustee Training and Development
14.Discussion and Possible Action: Timing of Board Packet Distribution

ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN ON ANY REPORTS OR CORRESPONDENCE:

NoOOhAWON =

Board Member Reports

Engineering Report

Management Report

Attorney Report

Correspondence

Announcements and Final Public Comment
For Possible Action; Adjournment



KINGSBURY

Kingsbury General Improvement District
Board of Trustees

Ed Johns, Chair
Cindy Trigg, Secretary/Treasurer
Greg Felton, Trustee
Sara Nelson, Trustee

MEETING MINUTES
ADJOURNED MEETING OF THE KGID BOARD OF TRUSTEES

HELD AT 160 PINE RIDGE DR. STATELINE, NV ON NOVEMBER 18, 2025
https:/ikgid.org

The Meeting of the Kingsbury General Improvement District
Board of Trustees was called to order at 5:01 p.m.

1. Callto Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance
Chair Johns led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. RollCall

Trustee Sara Nelson, Chair Ed Johns, Secretary/Treasurer Cindy Trigg and General
Counsel Chuck Zumpft, were all present in person. Trustee Greg Felton was present on
Zoom.

Paul Corbani, Cynthia Mehiudin, Tahoe Chamber, Candice Michael, Patty Page and
Jessica Grime where all present on Zoom.

Andrew Wilson, Bob Keller, Howard Steidtmann, Charlena Manchester, John Shearer,
Jason Torres, Tobi Tyler, Jaime Lopez and Sara Lopez were all present in person.

4. Public Comment
Initial Public Comments can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings

Media Timestamp (07:36-8:50)

Media Timestamp (07:49-8:45)
Public Comments provided by Sandy Parks are as follows:



Sandy Parks noted that she has been serving on this board for seven years. Once
she sold her house on Pine Drive, she moved to Lake Village which Kingsbury GID
provides water but doesn’t provide sewer. Sandy has been told she will not be
allowed to serve on the board anymore, so she thanked everyone and let them
know, it’s been a pleasure working with them.

. Approval of Agenda: For Possible Action:

The full discussion related to item 5 can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings

Media Timestamp (11:11 - 12:57)

The board outlined the agenda adjustments, including removing ltem #10 and Item
#11.

M-11-18-25-1: To approve the agenda as submitted/posted for Kingsbury GID Board
of Trustees Meeting November 18, 2025.

Moved by Nelson Seconded by Trigg
YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Felton, and Nelson 4
NAYS: None 0

Motion Passed

. Approval of Minutes: For Possible Action:

The full discussion related to item 6 can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings
Media Timestamp (13:02 - 16:25)

The minutes for September 16, 2025, had the incorrect spelling of Byran’s name.
The minutes for October 21, 2025, Felton noted the issue of being paid for being
present at a board meeting wasn’t due to fairness as indicated in the minutes it was
more to do with that we should be paid when only performing our duties.

M-11-18-25-2: To approve the minutes after the corrections for September 16, 2025,
and October 21, 2025.

Moved by Trigg Seconded by Nelson
YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Felton, and Nelson 4
NAYS: None 0

Motion Passed



NEW BUSINESS FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

7. For Discussion and Possible Action: Election of Chair of the Board of Trustees.
The full discussion related to item 7 can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings
Media Timestamp (16:29 - 23:45)

Under the opinion of Counsel Zumpft he believes we need all our board positions
filled. The appropriate way to do this is to have someone nominate a slate and pick
them. You can have a vacant position temporarily until January although he doesn’t
understand the function of the wait. Trigg said that she is interested in filling the Vice
Chair for one meeting until January so she can learn from the Chair Johns which
would leave the Secretary/Treasurer position open. There was no interestin filling
the open position of Secretary/Treasurer by other board members. Felton expressed
he would be in favor of waiting until January to have the vacant seat filled.

M-11-18-25-3: To Approve election of Johns to be Chair of the Board of Trustees to
complete the term until January 1, 2026.

Moved by Nelson Seconded by Felton
YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Felton, and Nelson 4
NAYS: None 0

Motion Passed

8. For Discussion and Possible Action: Approve list of Claims, October 2025
The full discussion related to item 8 can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings
Media Timestamp (24:04 - 26:15)

M-11-18-25-4: Approve the list of claims starting with check # 65789 through check
# 65875 for a total of $773,672.55.

Moved by Nelson Seconded by Trigg
YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Felton, and Nelson 4
NAYS: None 0

Motion Passed



9. For Discussion and Possible Action: Appointment of a qualified elector to fill a
vacancy on the Kingsbury GID Board of Trustees.
The full discussion related to item 9 can be heard at:
https://kaid.ora/board-meeting-recordings

Media Timestamp (26.24 - 49.25)

Nelson asked a couple of colleagues about one of the applicants which stated
Crimes is an amazing community advocate and she comes from a place of logic not
emotion and we would be lucky to have her serve on the Board. Felton asked what
the process is to let the community know that there is an opening on the Board.
Dornbrook explained that we sent a mass email and posted at the facilities where
we post our agenda. Trigg asked if there was any possibility of having a committee
to interview the candidates. The committee interviewing the candidates to be made
up of Johns and Nelson then will bring their recommendations back to the board at
the December 16" meeting.

John Shearer - Long time local and would love to be an active member on the
board.
Currently runs (5) businesses and is a hard worker.

Robert Keller — In Tahoe for six years now. Doesn’t have any conflicts that would
interfere with his duties. Lots of experience with public contracts and dealing with
all the details, coming up with cost effective solutions and would love to help
Kingsbury GID.

Staci Baker - In Tahoe for over three decades and am very concerned about
sustainability and community cohesiveness. My ability to combine sound science
(as | do have a doctorate) with ethical reasoning allows me to address complex
scenarios. I’'m ready to make a meaningful impact by being on the Board and
serving the community that | care deeply about.

Jessica Grime - Works for the Tahoe Chamber as the membership director. Works
very closely with officials, public safety people, and elected officials in Douglas
County, El Dorado and the City of South Lake Tahoe. Advocates to get information
to the community since she moved to Lake Tahoe in 2016. She wants to be
someone of service to have insight into any Kingsbury GID topics or balance and
being an advocate for the community.

M-11-18-25-5: Motion was made to include Nelson and Johns to be the
committee to interview and bring suggestions for a qualified elector to fill the
vacant Trustee position to the next board meeting on December 16, 2025, to be
discussed by the board.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Moved by Johns Seconded by Nelson

YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Felton, and Nelson 4

NAYS: None 0
Motion Passed

For Discussion and Possible Action: Recognition of Service — Trustee and Board
Chair Sandy Parks (DELETED FROM AGENDA).

For Discussion and Possible Action: 510 Laurel Lane Easement Request and
Related Alternatives (DELETED FROM AGENDA).

For Discussion and Possible Action: Amendment to Trustee Compensation
Policy

The full discussion related to item 12 can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings

Media Timestamp (49.30 - 1:01:20)

Felton raised concerns about the existing trustee compensation policy, arguing that
trustees should not receive payment for missed meetings. Kingsbury GID clarified
that the law requires equal compensation for all trustees, regardless of attendance,
and offered to conduct further research if the Board desired. The discussion
highlighted differing opinions on whether trustees should be compensated at all.

M-11-18-25-6: Motion was made to adopt resolution 2025-03.

Moved by Nelson  Seconded by Trigg

YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Felton, and Nelson 4
NAYS: None 0
Passed Motion

For Discussion and Possible Action: Approve 2026 Calendar of Board Meetings
and District Holidays

The full discussion related to item 13 can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings

Media Timestamp (1:01:35- 1:15:20)

Felton expressed a desire for the Board to receive the board packet earlier to
facilitate better preparation for meetings. Kingsbury GID noted that while there isno
legal requirement for packet timing, they could consider agendizing a discussion on



establishing a policy for earlier distribution. The group also discussed the potential
impact of changing the meeting date without the challenges of overlapping with
other community meetings.

M-11-18-25-7: Approved 2026 Board of Trustee Meetings and District Holiday
Calendar as recommended.

Moved by Nelson Seconded by Trigg

YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Felton, and Nelson 4
NAYS: None 0
Passed Motion

14. For Discussion and Possible Action: Conduct the Six-Month Performance
Evaluation of District General Manager Derek Dornbrook
The full discussion related to item 14 can be heard at:
https://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings
Media Timestamp (0:00:06- 0:36:20)

The six-month performance evaluation of District General Manager Derek
Dornbrook was conducted, with Dornbrook presenting a self-evaluation that
acknowledged both achievements and challenges. The Board discussed the N.A.
designations in the evaluation, clarifying that they indicated a lack of information
rather than negative assessments.

Board members recognized Dornbrook’s efforts during a challenging transition and
encouraged him to adopt a more assertive leadership style, emphasizing the need
for data-driven decision-making and effective management of personnel. The Board
expressed optimism for Dornbrook’s continued growth and leadership in the future.

M-11-18-25-7: Approved 2026 Board of Trustee Meetings and District Holiday
Calendar as recommended.

Moved by Trigg Seconded by Nelson

YEAS: Johns, Trigg, Felton, and Nelson 4
NAYS: None 0
Passed Motion

BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE - (not for possible action) Updates are intended to
inform the Board and/or the public. The Board of Trustees will not deliberate or take
action with respect to any of the reported items.

The full discussion related to ltems 1-6 can be heard at:

hitps://kgid.org/board-meeting-recordings




1.

Media Timestamp (36:32 - 55.54)

Board Member Reports

Nelson mentioned that the sewer authority is losing a long-time employee and are
looking for a replacement. Felton made a proposal last month regarding
expressing his interest in having a semi-formal introduction to all the Kingsbury
GID employees.

Engineering Report

Dowl is closing out some of the road and water main projects by the end of this
month. The rate analysis and Market Street preliminary reports will be distributed
soon. Dowl will be present at the December 16" meeting and will provide more
detail on the above items.

Management Reports

Dornbrook: Announced we have officially hired Byran Moss as an Operations
Superintendent. Currently transitioning to a new IT company. Continuing the
public records request and updating by-laws in a more cohesive form. With the
assistance of STPUD looking at grants and filling out applications.

Moss: Completion of Tramway Drive and Tina Court water line replacement
project and made a punch list, sent to Dowl. Completed State and miscellaneous
reports. Annual service has been performed on all districts fire extinguishers. The
road crew trimmed trees and bushes along roadways.

Attorney Report
Counsel reported the litigation has not been resolved. Presently the matter is
proceeding through discovery. Whether it will be resolved prior to trial will be seen

Correspondence
None

Long Range Calendar
No changes as of now

Announcements and Final Public Comments

Charlena Manchester: F&B feels Kingsbury GID needs to do some research into
the ongoing litigation regarding the fire hydrant that was hit. The Kingbury GID
lawyers are blocking everything and it’s just hanging out there preventing the case
from being settled. Johns suggested that Charlena come to the office and speak
to staff regarding the situation as the board can’t respond to public comments.
Patty Page: Stated that Johns mentioned at the last meeting that slurry seal on the
road was ripped up by snow removal and was wondering if that has been
corrected. Nelson responded that unfortunately the board can’t engage or debate
on a public comment according to the NRS open meeting laws, but she is



welcome to engage with the district staff as they can answer that question, just
not in a meeting.

7. ADJOURNMENT (for possible action)
The meeting of the Kingsbury GID Board of Trustees adjourned at 7:11 PM.

Respectfully submitted, Attest:

Ed Johns, Chair Cindy Trigg, Secretary



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #7

TITLE: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING APPOINTMENT OF A
QUALIFIED ELECTOR TO FILL A VACANCY ON THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MEETING DATE: 16 December 2025
PREPARED BY: Derek Dormbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees review the two finalists selected by the Trustee Selection
Committee and appoint one candidate to fill the vacant Trustee position in accordance with NRS
318.090. The finalists are Jessica Grime and John Shearer.

BACKGROUND:

Trustee Sandy Parks vacated her position on the Kingsbury General Improvement District (KGID)
Board of Trustees effective November 10, 2025 due to relocation outside district boundaries. In
accordance with NRS 318.090(5), a vacancy on the board must be filled by a qualified elector of the
district chosen by the remaining members of the board.

The General Manager publicly noticed the vacancy and solicited letters of interest from qualified
electors within the district, establishing a submission deadline of November 21, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. A
total of seven qualified electors submitted letters of interest and were interviewed in the following order
based on their stated availability:

o Jessica Grime

+ John Shearer

+ Robert Keller

e Martin Crawford
o Staci Baker

o Brian Rippet

¢ Anthony Cruz

The Trustee Selection Committee, consisting of Trustees Sara Nelson and Ed Johns, conducted
interviews with all seven candidates on December 2, 2025. After careful consideration and deliberation,
the Trustee Selection Committee identified Jessica Grime and John Shearer as the two finalists
recommended for Board review and appointment.

INCLUDED:
A. Letters of Interest from Qualified Electors
B. Interview Questions



Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (X') Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund 0 Sewer Fund
(O General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



Jessica Lynn Grime

305 Andria Dr, Stateline, NV
jessica.L.albee@gmail.com
650-270-8999

November 13, 2025

Kingsbury General improvement District
Board of Trustess

160 Pine Ridge Dr.

Stateline, NV 89449

Re: mmm-wmmmmxmn Board of Trustoees
Dear Members of the Kingsbury General Improvement District Board of Trustees,

| am writing to express my interest in being considered for the vacent Trustee position on
the Kingsbury General Improvement District Board. As a long-time community advocate,
Stateline resident, and regional chamber leader, | am deeply committed to supporting the
responsible governance, operational integrity, and long-term sustainability of the Kingsbury
service area. My professional experience, collaborative leadership style, and personal
commitment to public service atign strongly with the expectations and responsibilities of a
Trustee.

In my role as the Membership Director for the Tahoe Chamber—serving Douglas County, El
Dorado County, and the City of South Lake Tahoe— | consistently work at the point where
ment, community needs, and business interests intersect. | engage daity with
elacted officials, agency partners, and organizational leaders on issues related to
infrastructure, transportation, public safety, economic development, and regional
planning. Acting 88 & convener and advocate, | help ensure that conversations across
jurisdictions remain collaborative, productive, and aligned with the needs of residents and
businesses. This exposure provides a broad, well-rounded understanding of government
affairs across both Nevada and California and how policy decisions impact the South Shore

community.

- TWW’W%@WWMWWﬂWWﬁ

governance. From 2021 to 2024, | served on the Board of Directors for Vista Rise Collective
{formerly Live Violence Free), where | participated in revising and approving bylaws,
strengthening procedural frameworks, and supporting responsible and ethical eadership
practices. Working closety with fellow board members and executive \eadership heiped
refine my ability to balance transparency, strategic direction, and accountability—skills
essential for contributing effectively to a public board such as KGID. Within the Tahoe
Chamber, | continue to play an active rola in shaping program policies, evaluating
organizational processes, and participating in decision-making.

Financlal oversight is a substantial part of my current work, and | approach it with diligence
and long-term thinking. | manage budgets, program revenues, contracts, and operational
costs acyoss muttiple Chamber initistives to ensure financial stability and responsible




resource use. Additionally, as a former smalt business owner from 2022-2025, | gained
firsthand experience with financiel decision-making, sustainability planning, and the
realities of managing limited resources to meet long-term goals. This combination of
nonprofit and entreprensurial experience strengthiens my ability to review financial reports,
833633 axpenditures, and contribute thoughtfully to the fiscal stewardship required of a
Trustoee.

My leadership experience spans both established organizations and early-stage
environments where | helped build systems, develop team culture, and strengthen
operational workflows. At the Tahoe Chamber, | help ensure that programs, events,
membership services, and dally functions operate smoothly and effectively. | regularty
collaborate with executive leadership, volunteers, and community partners to achieve
shared objectives while maintaining the professionalism, clarity, and responsiveness
expected of a public-facing organization. | believe this background prepares me to work
constructively and respectfully with KGID’s General Manager and staff.

Commusnity service is at the heart of my personal life as well. Since moving to South Lake
Tahoe, | have been an active volunteer and contributor to community initiatives—from
supportting Vista Rise Collective, to helping launch Whittell High School’s first swim team
for the 2026 Spring season, to building partnerships and programs through the Tahoe
Chamber. | am passionate about ensuﬁng that the community’s needs, concems, and
overall wellbeing remain a top priority for me both personally and professionally.

My work also frequently involvas coordinating with operational partners and public
agencies through event planning, community coordination and partnerships. Navigating
permitting processes, understanding infrastructure impacts, and working within regulatory
frameworks are familiar aspects of my job. These experiences have helped me develop a
practical understanding of how essential services—water, wastewater, roads, and
drainage—affect daily life and how important clear communication and thoughtful planning
are to successful community operations.

I would be honored to bring my experience, perspective, and commitment to the Kingsbury
General Improvement District Board of Trustees. | am confident in my ability to contribute
constructively, collaborate effectively, and support the District’s mission of serving
residents with professionalism, transparency, and long-term vision. Thank you for

to serve our community in this important upqcny.

—considering my interest.| welcome the-opportunity to discuss myqualifications furtherend-— -



Derek Dornbrook

From: John Shearer <johnshearer3498@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, November 17, 2025 6:46 PM

To: Derek Dornbrook

Subject: Subject: Letter of Interest — KGID Board Seat (John Shearer)

Dear Chair Parks and Members of the Board,

Please accept my letter of interest for the open Board seat on the Kingsbury General Improvement
District (KGID). As a long-time Lake Tahoe resident and active member of the community, | would be
honored to contribute my business, construction, and environmental experience to the Board.

| have spent decades owning and operating several Tahoe-based businesses, including Tahoe Sport
Fishing, Tahoe Snowmobiles NV, Lake Tahoe Boat Company, and WinterWonderland SkiShop. My
responsibility in these operations includes budgeting, capital planning, equipment and fleet
maintenance, regulatory compliance, staffing, and customer relations.

| am also the founder of Marine Research and Education Inc. (established in 1997), a nonprofit focused
on environmental education and stewardship within the Tahoe Basin.

"My construction and property rehabilitation work includes renovating and upgrading both residential
homes and commercial buildings across the Tahoe region. These projects have strengthened my
understanding of infrastructure, utilities, drainage systems, water service needs, permitting challenges,
and long-term maintenance — all areas that relate directly to KGID’s responsibilities.

| would welcome the opportunity to support:

e Fiscal responsibility and long-range planning
« Infrastructure reliability and proactive maintenance

* Environmental stewardship



* Transparent, effective community engagement

Thank you for your consideration. Please feel free to contact me at 530-308-8600 or
JohnShearer9498@gmail.com.

Respectfully,
John Shearer
146 Palisades Dr.

Stateline, NV 89449



Robert B. Keller, P.E.
295 East Peak Loop #2 / PO Box 4453
Stateline, NV 89449
bkelleroe@gmail.com / (503) 553-9592

November 17, 2025

Kingsbury General Improvement District
PO Box 2220

Stateline, NV 89449

derek@kgpid.org.

Re: Letter of interest for Kingsbury GID Board

Dear Kingsbury GID Board Members:

I am submitting this letter and attached resume, seeking to fill the vacancy on the KGID
Board of Trustees. Iam qualified to serve as a Trustee as I am a homeowner and fulltime
resident of this District. I am a Professional Engineer with more than 35 of years of experience.
My background provides me the basis to serve as a Trustee in order to make our community a
better place.

I am a licensed Professional Engineer in Nevada and California. I have been licensed
since 1991, and I have held licenses in 24 states over the course of my career. | have also worked
on projects in Canada and Australia.

My experience includes working on a bridge project where we reinforced the existing sub
structure and preassembled the new bridge prior to removing the old bridge. This allowed for
the old bridge to be removed and the new one installed in one day. This planning and execution
reduced the full closure of the road to one day. The goal is to minimize impact on the local

.

residents. This takes a team devoted to best practices and fiscal responsibility.

1 moved to Tahoe Village in August of 2019. Because my career has often been tied to
civil engineering and public projects, I can bring an analytical ability to understanding the
district's needs. I am enthusiastic at the prospect of using my experience to serve my
community to make it a better place to live and work.

Sincerely,

S Fecd~

Robert B. Keller, P.E.







Robert B. Keller, P.E.
295 East Peak Loop #2 / PO Box 4453
Stateline, NV 89449
bkellerpe@gamail.com / (503) 553-9592

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
« Licensed professional engineer since 1991, currently licensed in Nevada and

California.
« Past Member of AF&PA NDS Subcommittee, and AITC Structural Subcommittee

EXPERIENCE
« Wood Research and Development Jefferson, Oregon (2/2012 - 12/2019)

As a senior engineer for this small company, | designed vehicle and pedestrian
bridges. Our specialty was rehabilitation of wood piling and beams with high strength
fibers. | also designed steel building components, concrete footings and abutments. |

am proficient with the structural analysis program MultiFrame, and other software

including Word, and Excel.

« Chinook Ventures, Inc. Longview, Washington (1/2009 - 9/2010)

As the engineer for this private port facility, | was responsible for design calculations
and permit packages for conveyors, trusses, and a 2.1 million gallon storage tank. The
projects included inspection and analysis of existing structures along with designing

new components.

. Western Wood Structures, Inc. Tualatin, Oregon (12/2002 - 11/2008)

As a senior engineer for this small integrated company, | was responsible for
designing timber trusses, vehicular and pedestrian bridges. As with my WRD position |
also designed steel building components, concrete footings and abutments. 1used the
finite element program SAP2000, and other software including Lpile, Woodworks, and

Excel.



Robert B. Keller, P.E.

Resume Page 2

« Willamette Industries, Inc. Woodburn, Oregon (10/1987 to 11/2002)
| worked with a variety of engineered lumber products, including I-joists, laminated
veneer lumber, and Glu-Lam beams.
- Duties included:
Chair software task group for engineered wood products design.
Research and develop engineered wood products design properties.
Investigate damaged wood products.
Assess field problems and design solutions to maintain or regain structural integrity.
Lead Engineer for technical support team that supports a nationwide distribution
network.
Manage the shop drawing department.
Obtain evaluation reports from national code agencies.

» TMI Structural Systems, Inc. Tualatin, Oregon (4/1986 — 10/1987)
Designed I-joists in commercial buildings until the company was purchased by
Willamette Industries in 1987.

+ Raymond R. Beckwith, AIA Oregon City, Oregon (8/1984 to 11/1985)
| designed and detailed large custom homes. The designs included gravity, wind,

and seismic calculations, emphasizing accurate structural details.

EDUCATION

Oregon Institute of Technology Klamath Falls, Oregon
BS Civil Engineering Technology, May 1984
Minor in Structural Engineering Technology



Derek Dornbrook
e e———

From: martin.crawford managementmc.com <martin.crawford@managementmc.com>
Sent: Tuesday, November 18, 2025 3:59 PM

To: Derek Dornbrook

Subject: Empty KGID board position

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Derek,

This is Martin Crawford. | am interested in the open position. | know Sandy well and Darya. | have been in
the water and wastewater business for over 30 years. | owned a company that sold products to
wastewater facilities. | have visited and worked at over 100 water and wastewater treatment plants.

| was part of the disinfectant by-laws and help develop UV disinfection for crypto and giardia in
activation.

| have a degree in chemistry and an MBA.

Let know if you need anything else.

Martin Crawford
MC Management
PO Box 4859
Stateline, NV 89449
707-290-7913






Education:

Professional
Experience:

MARTIN J. CRAWFORD
P.O. Box 4859 — 114 Cypress Way
Stateline, NV 89449
Phone: 775-588-4171
Fax: 775-586-8501

1976 — 1980 Central State University Edmond, OK
Bachelor of Science — Chemistry

1980 — 1983 Oklahoma State Universitv ~ Stillwater, OK
Worked on Master of Science — Chemistry did not complete

1979 — 1984 Central State University Edmond, OK
Worked on Bachelor of Science — Computer Science did not complete

1989 — 1991 Golden Gate University San Francisco, CA
Master of Business Administration

1980 — 1987 Kerr McGee Corporation Various locations

i. Head Chemist — Crescent, OK — Worked on a DOE funded research
project testing coal liquefication processes.
a. Developed and performed testing methods to support
research needs.
ii. Analytical Chemist — Edmond, OK — Worked in corporate technology
center.
a. Supported all of the companies’ analytical needs and
worked on special projects.
iii. Plant Chemist — Trona, CA — Worked for at large soda products
manufacturing plant.
a. Supported analytical needs and performed chemical
engineering assignments for manufacturing plant.
iv. Sales Representative — Pleasant Hills, CA — N. California and Pacific
N.W. sales representative for soda products division.
a. Responsible for $100M in sales for territory
b. Increased sales and margin every year
c¢. Developed new distribution channel to increase profit and
sales



1987 — 1990 General Chemical Suisun City, CA

Market Development Engineer — Worked out of home office for newly
formed water chemicals group for the West coast.

a. Responsible for introduction of new water treatment
chemicals (polyaluminum chloride and alum blends) for
paper mills, and the municipal and wastewater markets.

b. Increase yearly sales from $0 to $1M

c. Introduced three new products to marketplace

1990 — 1993 Simplot Lathrop, CA

Product Manager — Worked as a product manager for industrial chemical
markets for the Minerals & Chemicals Division.
a. Responsible for product manufacturing, raw material
purchases, inventory and production scheduling.
b. Developed packaging and introduced product line into
retail locations.

1993 — 2000 Solarchem/Calgon Carbon  Suisun City, CA

i. Sales Engineer — Worked for Toronto based UV company.
a. Responsible for selling UV/Oxidation equipment on West
coast to remediation and drinking water markets.
b. Top salesmen all three years.
ii. Sales Manager — Worked for Toronto based UV company until sold to

Calgon Carbon.
a. Responsible for five salesmen located throughout the U.S.
and Canada.

b. Increase market share every year.
iii. Sales Manager — Worked for Calgon Carbon as sales manager for
remediation and municipal markets.
a. Responsible for six salesmen located regionally throughout
the U.S.
b. Marketed and sold carbon, carbon equipment,
UV/Oxidation and ion exchange technologies.
iv. Director of Perchlorate Sales — Headed new market group for the
perchlorate/nitrate removal for municipal market.
a. Developed new product for perchlorate/nitrate treatment.
b. Responsible for $2M R&D budget, marketing group and
sales team.
c. Developed strategic and marketing plans to capture 80%
market share of $110M market.
d. Realized sales of $30M in two years.
v. Director of Municipal Sales — Headed up sales for all of Calgon’s
products into the municipal market.



a. Responsible for five regional salesmen and a network of 18
product agencies.

b. Worked on the development of UV disinfection for
drinking water market (Sentinel) and wastewater market
(Aurora).

c. Developed real-time computer based forecasting system.

d. Responsible for $20M in annual sales.

2000 — 2001 Cameron Environmental Vacaville, CA

Director of Marketing and Business Development — Headed new position to look
at increasing existing product sales while developing new products and business
opportunities.
a. Responsible for development of two new products in three
months.
b. Increase sales by 30% from previous year.
c. Developed sales into the municipal market.

2001 — 2011 Bay Products. Inc. Stateline, NV

President — Started and operated company that sells air treatment equipment into
the municipal wastewater market.

a. Designed and sold odor control equipment for municipal
wastewater operations.

b. Performed site installation support, system startup, airflow
balancing, and performance testing.

c. Managed complete operations of the company including
administration, financial, marketing, sales, production and

installation.
Sold Company in 2010
2011 — Present MC Management Stateline, NV

President — Providing consulting, site service and inspection in the municipal
water and wastewater market.
a. Provide engineering consulting services for design of odor
control systems and air extraction ductwork.
b. Performed site installation support, system startup, airflow
balancing, and performance testing.






QUALIFICATIONS

Martin Crawford is founder and former president of Bay Products. After receiving a
Bachelor of Science degree from Central State University in 1980, Mr. Crawford has held
Applications Engineering, Sales, as well as Product Development and Management
positions at several Water and Wastewater Treatment Equipment Manufacturing

companies.

Martin Crawford has been performing seminars, papers, training, and instruction on odor
control systems for over the last 25 years. He has also been involved with the start-up and

servicing of many of the current installations.

List of projects worked on (design/built/started up/performance tested):



City of Tulsa
Tulsa, OK

Chicago Metro Water Reclamation District
Stickney Plant
Cicero, IL

Chicago Metro Water Reclamation District
North Side Plant
Skokie, IL

Burbank Public Works
Burbank, CA

Georgia Public Works
Fayetteville, GA

Alexandria Sanitation Authority
Alexandria, VA

Central Avenue Sewage Treatment Plant
Burlington, NJ

Windsor WWTP
Windsor, CA

Water Authority of Dickson County
Dickson, TN

Roseburg WWTP
Roseburg, OR

McKinney WWTP
McKinney, TX

Fort Wayne Utilities
Fort Wayne, IN

Southwest Bremerton
Residential Sewer Extension

Bremerton, WA

NYCDEP Sewage Infrastructure Program &
Roxbury, NY

Pumping Station



Cedar Hill, TX

Sewer & Water System (Improvements)
Roxbury, NY

East Lift Station
Gardner, KS

Southside Sanitary System
Heath, TX

Bay Point Water and WW System Imp.
Key West, FL

West Sacramento Force Main
Waest Sacramento, CA

Denver Metro WW Reclamation District
Central WWTP
Denver, CO

Sewage Pump Station 2A
Gig Harbor, WA

Town of Essex, MA Pump Stations
Various locations

Fort Worth Water Department
Greenway Lift Station
Fort Worth, TX

Mineral Point WWTP
Mineral Point, MO

Qak Point Lift Station
Qak Point, TX

Pump Station 11
Acton, MA

Arlington WWTP
US Hwy 70
Arlington, TN

Panorama West Pump Station
Bonney Lake, WA

Fishers WWTP



Fishers, IN

CSO Equalization Facilities
Greensburg, PA

Winter Street Pump Station
Upper Providence, PA

Greenwood Drive LS
Twinsburg, OH

Raceway Sewer Pump Station
Vista, CA

OSHU Block 25 WWTP
Portland, OR

Douglas WWTP
Pikeville, KY

Colorado Drive Lift Station
Irving, TX

Stoutland Sanitary Sewer System
Stoutland, MO

City of Bellevue
Bellevue, WA

San Diego Pump Station 50, 59, & 49
El Cajon, CA

Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District
Lake Elsinore, CA

Peaceful Place Lift Station
Phoenix, AZ

East Lift Station
Gardner, KS

Sarival Lift Station
Tempe, AZ

Palmetto WWTP
Palmetto, GA

Postville WWTF



Postville, IA

River Forest Pump Station
Chicago, IL 60804

Pump Station #12
Bellevue, WA

Saw Creek WWTP
Bushkill, PA

Vista Grande HS
Casa Grande, AZ

Eagle Mountain Water Reclamation Facility
Eagle Mountain, UT

Concord Wastewater Treatment Plant
Concord, MA

Wastewater Treatment Plant
Greene County, NY

Hinsdale Combined Sewer Overflow
Hinsdale, IL

Air Ejector Replacement Project
James City, VA

Waverly Beach Park Lift Station
Kirkland, WA

Cottages at Governor’s Landing
Knoxville, TN

Wastewater Pump Station
Lenoir City, TN

Edgemore Sanitary Sewer
Lake Worth, TX

Chopticon High School Wastewater Treatment Plant
Morganza, MD

Chevron Albugquerque Asphalt Terminal
Albugquerque, NM

Harding Street Siphon



Indianapolis, IN

LaGrange WWTP
LaGrange, IN

Steuben Lakes RSD
Angola, IN

Rainbow Valley WRF
Goodyear, AZ

Soos Creek WSD
Kent, WA

Castle Rock WWTP
Castle Rock, WA

Rainbow Valley WRF — Phase 1
Goodyear, AZ

Win River Casino
Redding, CA

Skyridge WWTP
Tuscaloosa, AL

Lift Station (Jasmine Circle)
Waycross, GA

Kaiser Road Wastewater Pump Station Improvements
Olympia, WA

Wastewater System Improvements
Spring City, TN

Twinsburg Glenwood Drive Sewer Odor Control
Twinsburg, OH

Klineline Force Main — Segment 13
Vancouver, WA

Ashland City Wastewater Treatment Plant
Ashland City, TN

Carlton Oaks Siphon Replacement
Santee, CA

Pumping Station



Cedar Hill, TX

New York Creek Lift Station Expansion
El Dorado Hills, CA

Winding Creek & Smock Creek Lift Station
Fishers, IN

Wastewater Collection System
Highland, OH

Jackfish Bay Sanitary Sewer Collection System
International Falls, MN

Fairwood Interceptor Phase 2B Microtunneling
King County, WA

KUB-Ginnbrooke and Power Park Pump Station
Knoxville, TN

KUB-Kinley's Kanyon Pump Station
Knoxville, TN

KUB-Ellistown Road Pump Station
Knoxville, TN

Wastewater Pump Stations
Knoxville, TN

Riverview Park Apt, Lift Station
Clarkrange, TN

Wastewater Pump Station (Washington Pike/Roberts Rd.)
Knoxville, TN

Pump Station Upgrade (Hog Mountain)
Lawrenceville, GA

City of Leander Texas Offsite Utilities Odor Control
Leander, TX

Aeration Basin Inlet Channel Odor Control Project
Longmont, CO

Wastewater Treatment Facility Upgrade
Middletown, VA

OHSU Block 25 WWTP



Portland, OR

Winter Street Pump Station
Upper Providence Twp, PA

Greenwood Pump Station
Shawnee County, KS

Metropolitan Syracuse WWTP
Syracuse, NY

Pump Station {Part A)
Topeka, KS

2006 Vernonia Wastewater Treatment Plant
Phase | (Upgrade)
Vernonia, OR

Clinton River Pump Station 21-1 Rehabiliation
Waterford, Ml

Ellis Pump Station
Knoxville, TN

Forks of the River
Knoxville, TN

Wastewater Treatment Plant & PS
Pine Grove, PA

Armonk WWTP
Town of North Castle, NY

Kearny Point Pump Station
Kearny, NJ

Larkspur Landing B Pump Station 10
Larkspur, CA

English Landing Grit Chamber
English Landing
Parkville, MO

Four Mile Creek Pump Station
Richmond, VA

Mallard Bay Lift Station
Sammamish Plateau Water and Sewer District



Jamestown Settlement Pump Station
Williamsburg, VA

Sewer Extension
Billerica, MA

Stanwood WWTP
Stanwood, WA

Gillies Creek Sewage PS & Flow Equalization Basin
Glen Allen, VA

Larkspur Pump Station
Larkspur, CA

Carmel WWTP
Carmel, IN

Del Valle WW Improvements
Austin, TX

Charlotte County Lift Station
Rotonda West, FL

Pirate Harbor Lift Station
Punta Gorda, FL (Charlotte County)

The Home Depot at Crown Plaza
Charlotte County, FL

Water Pollution Control Facilities
Crescent City, CA

Force Main & Lift Station (Extension)
Desoto, FL

No Business Creek Tunnel & Lift Station
Lawrenceville, GA

Washington Ave Lift Station
Lake Elsinore, CA

Beaver Dam Regional Pump Station
Millville, DE

Morenci — Copper Verde Lift Station



Morenci, AZ

Pine Street Lift Station
Marquette, Ml

Kentfield Pump Station
Kentfield, CA

Palisades Terrace Sanitary LS
Lake Oswego, OR

Sanitary Sewer
Lawrence, KS

New Lenox WWTP
New Lenox, IL

New Lenox WWTP
New Lenox, IL

Hayes Avenue Pump Station
Port Clinton, OH

Magruder Pump Station
Port Clinton, OH

Teton County
Jackson, WY

Millseat Pump Station
Churchville, NY

Goldcorp — Red Lake Mine
Balmerton, ON Canada

Cottage Grove WWTP
Cottage Grove, WA

North River WPCP Digester Reconstruction
New York, NY

Oakhurst WWTF
Qakhurst, CA

Sanitary Pump Station
Louisville, KY



Marion Pump Station
Marion, MA

Northwest WWTP
Rio Vista, CA

Sanitary Pump Station
Louisville, KY

Lift Station #7 Improvements
Sarasota, FL

Battle Ground Pump Station #1
Battle Ground, WA

Sewage Lift Station 10-4
Jamestown, VA

Lift Station #19 {Rehabilitation)
North Port, FL

Brooklyn Street Pump Station Replacement
Port Clinton, OH

Headworks Odor Control System
Smyrna, TN

Wastewater Treatment Plant (Upgrade)
Tillamook, OR

Boulevard Road Carbon Scrubber
Olympia, WA

Water & Sewer (Improvements) Lift Station
Callaway, FL

Tingle Road Pump Station
Georgetown, DE

ACWP-Barton Creek Wastewater Lift Station Relief Tunnel
Austin, TX

Harvard Avenue Trunk Sewer Diversion to MWRP
Irvine, CA

Winhill Meadows Pump Station
James City, VA



Kingston Wastewater Treatment Plant & Pump Station
Kingston, WA

Gillies Creek Sewage PS & Flow Equalization Basin
Glen Allen, VA

Master PS Polk County
Bartow, FL 33830

Hidden Lake & Boeing Creek PS
King County, WA

Juanita Bay Pump Station
Kirkland, WA

White Marsh Pumping Station
White Marsh, MD

Hyperion Treatment Plant
Los Angeles, CA

Henrico County WRF, Phase 4
Richmond, VA

Martin Way Pump Station
Lacey, WA

Fredericktown WWTP
Fredericktown, OH

Beach WWTP - Lee County
Ft. Myers, FL

Gold Canyon WWTP
Phoenix, AZ

Chambers Creek Regional WWTP
University Place, WA

Northwest Wastewater Treatment Expansion
Collierville, TN

Mid-Halton WWTP Expansion
Halton, Canada

Sewage Treatment Plant (Hopewell Hamlet)



Hopewell Junction, NY

Juanita Bay Pump Station Replacement
Kirkland, WA

Sludge Thickening Dewatering improvements
Little Ferry, NJ

Air Treatment Facility — North Central
Outfall Sewer
Los Angeles, CA

North Black Cat Lift Station
Meridian, ID

Wastewater Treatment Plant
Northport, FL

Wastewater Treatment Plant
Rogers, AR

Lift Station #16
Sarasota, FL

Lake City Regulator Station Odor Control Replacement
Seattle, WA

Water Reclamation Facility
Tampa, FL

West Side CSO Shafts
Portland, OR

Spokane LS
Spokane, WA

James River Force Main
SW WWTP
Springfield, MO

Lift Station 10B — Soos Creek WSD
Kent, WA

Well No. 16 WTP
Marysville, CA

Upper Blackstone WWTP
Millbury, MA



Quintero Golf & CC WWTP
Peoria, AZ

East Division Pump Station
Mercer Island, WA

Hannahville Wastewater System Improvements
Wilson, Ml

Vaccum Stations
Oak Island, NC

Port Hope STP Replacement
Port Hope, Canada

Capital Circle/Blaristone Road ARV Odor Control
Tallahassee, FL

Mason Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant
Chapel Hill, NC

Upper First Creek CSO
Knoxville, KY

Swift Creek Pump Station
Cary, NC

Mishawaka WWTP
Mishawaka, IN

Bedford County WWTP
Moneta, VA

Athens North Oconee Water Reclamation Facility
Athens, GA

Peninsula Lift Station I
Grand Prairie, TX

Nashua WWTP - Primary Clarifiers
Nashua, NH

Orange County Advanced WTF
Fountain Valley, CA

North River WPCP



New York, NY

Northwest WWTP
Springfield, MO

Bayfield WWTP
Bayfield, CO

Elklich Run Sewage Pumping Station
Chantilly, VA

Jones Ferry CSO Treatment Facility
Chicopee, MA

Water Pollution Control Facilities
Crescent City, CA

Stony Run Wastewater Pumping Station
& Force Main
Baltimore, MD

Orange County Trickling Filters
Huntington Beach, CA

No Business Creek Tunnel & Lift Station
Lawrenceville, GA

Water Reclamation Facility
Tampa, FL

Warrenton, WWTP
Warrenton, VA

Lower First Creek CSO
Knoxville, TN

Warren WWTP
Warren, Ml

Fenton WWTP
Fenton, Ml

Walker Springs CSOI
Knoxville, TN

Murphy Pump Station
Bend, OR



Lowell Wastewater CSO
Lowell, MA

Northeast & India Street Pump Station
Portland, ME

§109 Riverside Road Pump Station Upgrades
Rosewell, GA

Channel Pump Station Odor Control & Facility Improvements
San Francisco, CA

City of Santa Paula WRF
Santa Paula, CA

North Yonkers Pump Station Rehabilitation
Yonkers, NY

Water Reclamation Plant Expansion
Vail, CO

East Mesa Sewer Interceptor (Phase lll)
Mesa, AZ

Kearny Township WWTP
Kearny, NJ

Third Creek Wastewater Storage Facility
Knoxville, TN

Odor Control Improvements {(Pump Station/Brooks Road)
Lawrenceville, GA

Water Reclamation Facility Phase Il (Trickling Filter/Aeration)
Solon, OH

Ocotillo WRF
Chandler, AZ

Warrenton WWTP
Warrenton, VA

Sumner WWTP
Sumner, WA

Parkins Mill WWTP
Stephens Creek, VA



Fort Lee Pump Station
Richmond, VA

Little Falls WWTP
Little Falls, MN

North Shores Sanitary District
Zion, IL

Camden County MUA
Camden, NJ 08104

Surprise WWTP
Surprise, AZ

RL Sutton WWTP
Marietta, GA

Fitzgerald Creek
Woodstock, GA

East Side WWTP
High Point, NC

Parkins Mill WWTP
Stephens Creek, VA

Surprise WRF 8 MGD Expansion
Surprise, AZ

Department of Sewers
Cincinnati, OH 45204

Clarifier Odor Control
City of Dallas, TX

Pigeon Cover Pump Station
City of Rockport, MA

Everhart - Staples Lift Station
Corpus Christi, TX

Bubali WWTP
Aruba

Parkientenbos WWTP
Aruba



Zeewijk WWTP
Aruba

Iraq Sludge Drying Facility
Iraq

Texas Sludge Drying Facility
Brownville, TX

Los Angles County Sanitation
Carson, CA

Odor Control Facility Rehabilitation
Mesa, AZ

Pump Station Upérade
Saratoga County, NY

Sludge Blending Tanks
Longview, WA

Biosolids Processing
Longview, WA

Bradshaw Road Lift Station
Apopka, FL

Waste Receiving Station - East Bay MUD
Oakland, CA

Liberty Street Pump Station
South Charleston, WV

Hinesville WWTP
Hinesville, GA

Sludge Drying Facility
Sanford, FL

Sludge Drying Facility
Gallup, NM

Sludge Drying Facility
Fallbrook, CA

Madera Headworks Screens
Madera, CA



Sludge Drying Facility
Elkton, MD

Concord WWTP
Concord, MA

Greenfields by the Bay
Corpus Christi, TX

Montopolis Odor Contro! Improvements
Austin, TX

Port Jervis Wastewater Treatment Plant - NYDEP
Port Jervis, NY

Clear Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant
Redding, CA

Wastewater Treatment Plant
North Port, FL

Nanofiltration Water Treatment Plant
Jacksonville, NC

North Wastewater Treatment Plant
Kuna, ID

Union-Rome Township Subsewer District
Rome Township, OH

Lift Station/Force Main/Gravity Sewers
Riverside, MO

Sludge Drying Facility
Tulalip, WA

Odor Digest Odor Control System
Ventura, CA

Wastewater Treatment Plant
Northport, FL

Dallas WWTP — Central Plant
Dallas, TX

Mesa Pump Station
Mesa, AZ



Master Pump Station & Flow Equalization
Orlando, FL

Lift Station/Force Main/Gravity Sewers
Riverside, MO

Union — Rome Twp Subsewer District
WWTP Improvements
Rome Twp, OH

Liberty Street LS Odor Control
South Charleston, WV

Odor Digest Packed Odor Control System
North Bend, WA

Wilson Creek WWTP
Wylie, TX



Blaine Lighthouse Point
Blaine, WA

WWTP Odor Reduction Tower Rehab & Redundancy
Pleasanton, CA

Wastewater Detention Facilities
Cleveland, TN

Water Pollution Control Facility Exp Phase A
Everett, WA

WTP Clear Well Vent Modifications
County of Henrico, VA

St. Andrews WWTP Odor Control (Improvements)
Panama City, FL

Verrado WRF Ph 2 Expansion
Buckeye, AZ

Metropolitan Biosolids Center
San Diego, CA






STACI BAKER
246 Chimney Rock Rd. « Stateline, NV 89449

Email: tahoestaci@aol.com ¢ Phone: 530-318-5026

[Date]

Board of Trustees
Kingsbury General Improvement District
160 Pine Ridge Dr.

Stateline, NV 89449
Dear Members of the Kingsbury General Improvement District Board,

| am writing to express my interest in serving as a member of the Kingsbury General Improvement
District Board. As a resident and active member of this community for more than thirty years, | am
deeply committed to fostering cohesiveness, long-term sustainability, and responsible governance
within Kingsbury.

I earned my professional degree from the University of Tennessee and have been a long-standing
member—recognized with honors—of the American Veterinary Medical Association. My background
has allowed me to integrate scientific principles with ethical reasoning and to navigate complex
scenarios with clarity and balance. These skills translate directly to thoughtful policy analysis,
responsible resource management, and community-focused decision-making.

In addition to my scientific and professional experience, | have served as a conference moderator,
facilitating discussions among diverse groups with varying perspectives. This role strengthened my
ability to promote harmony, encourage respectful dialogue, and guide conversations toward productive
outcomes—quallities that are essential for an effective board member.

| believe that my combination of scientific expertise, ethical judgment, communication abilities, and
deep investment in this community uniquely positions me to contribute to the Kingsbury General
Improvement District. | am prepared to engage thoughtfully, collaborate openly, and work diligently to
support the continued well-being and stability of our district.

Thank you for your consideration. It would be an honor to serve the community that has been my home
for so many years.

Sincerely,



Staci Baker

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Dedicated Kingsbury community member with more than thirty years of involvement and a strong
commitment to sustainability, responsible governance, and collaborative problem-solving. Professional
degree holder from the University of Tennessee and long-standing AVMA member with honors. Skilled
conference moderator with a proven ability to facilitate constructive dialogue and build consensus.
Brings a strong foundation in science, ethics, and community engagement to support sound
decision-making for the Kingsbury General Improvement District.

EDUCATION

Doctor of Veterinary Medicine

University of Tennessee

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Veterinary Professional

- Extensive experience applying evidence-based scientific principles and ethical reasoning.

- Managed complex clinical, environmental, and community-related issues requiring careful judgment.
- Honored for long-term service and contribution as a member of the American Veterinary Medical
Association.

Conference Moderator / Facilitator

- Guided discussions involving professionals with diverse viewpoints.

- Promoted clear communication, respect, and productive outcomes.

- Recognized for maintaining harmony and facilitating thoughtful group decision-making.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
- Over 30-year resident and active participant in the Kingsbury community.
- Advocate for sustainability, infrastructure quality, and community cohesiveness.

- Engaged in local initiatives promoting environmental stewardship and community well-being.

SKILLS



- Ethical reasoning and policy analysis

- Evidence-based decision-making

- Consensus building and conflict resolution

- Public communication & stakeholder facilitation
- Systems thinking and long-term planning

- Community advocacy and engagement

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

- American Veterinary Medical Association — Member with honors






November 20, 2025

KGID Board of Trustees,

This letter is to express to you my interest in being appointed to the open position on the KGID board. |
have been a resident of the KGID service area for over 25 years and have a vested interest in the
reliable, safe and efficient delivery of services to our community.

My experience working with diverse constituencies and boards of directors will serve me well as a
member of the KGID Board of Directors. | have served on numerous governmental and
non-governmental boards and commissions. Highlights of this experience include the following:

Nevada Vision Stakeholders Group (NVSG) 2009-2011. Created by the Nevada Legislature in wake
of the Great Recession its mission: “to develop a long-term (5-, 10-, and 20-year) strategic vision for
Nevada's future by bringing together a broad cross-section of Nevada stakeholders.” | was appointed
by then Governor Jim Gibbons and served as an education expert. The group completed its work with
the publication of a final report to the NV Legislature in 2011.

Nevada Teachers and Leaders Council (TLC) 2016-2020. The Nevada TLC was formed to develop
and implement a statewide teacher evaluation system. As a council member, | reviewed educational
research and proposed policies to implement and improve an evaluation system that fostered student
learning and growth. | was appointed by then Governor Brian Sandoval.

Nevada State Education Association (NSEA) 2010-2022 NSEA is the largest school employee
association in Nevada. | served in the following roles:

e Board Member 2010-2013 regionally elected (rural Nevada representative)

e State Vice President 2013-2019 statewide election.

e State President 2019-2022 statewide election.
As a member of and then utimately President and chair of the NSEA board of driectors, | worked
closely with Governors Sandoval and Sisolak, elected legislators, parent groups and members to
further our goal of delivering great public schools for every student in Nevada.

| believe the fundamental function of government is the efficient and safe delivery of services to allow
for economic success and family security. As a member of the KGID board, | will be serving our
constituents at the most local level to achieve this. | have lived in Kingsbury Tahoe for nearly three
decades and raised four children here, all graduates of Whittell High School. My career as an educator,
coach, and volunteer in Douglas county as well as my outside experience with boards and
commissions is evidence of my commitment to the community. | believe | will be a valuable asset to the
organization and the Board of Directors. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Brian Rippet
BrianRippet@gmail.com
775-339-1309






Kingsbury General Improvement District (KGID) Board of Trustees

20 November 2025

Attn: Board of Trustees Candidate Review Committee
Stateline, Nevada

Dear Honorable Members of the Selection Committee,

| am writing to express my interest in serving on the Kingsbury General Improvement District
(KGID) Board of Trustees. As a long-time Quality, Compliance, and Operational Excellence
executive - and a full-time Stateline resident living just minutes from the Boulder Lodge - | am
passionate about serving the community | call home. | am committed to supporting KGID's
mission to deliver efficient, courteous, and accountable service while ensuring the safeguarding
of public health, safety, and environmental quality.

Throughout my 30-year career, | have led large organizations through complex operational,
regulatory, and financial oversight responsibilities. My experience includes developing
governance frameworks, overseeing multimillion-dollar budgets, strengthening compliance
programs, and guiding long-range strategic planning initiatives. These responsibilities directly
align with the KGID Board’s core functions: fiduciary stewardship, policy adoption, mission
oversight, and ensuring adherence to applicable laws and standards.

| have extensive experience collaborating with engineering teams, legal counsel, auditors, and
technical specialists to manage infrastructure, assess operational risks, and implement
sustainable solutions. | have also chaired governance committees, directed cross-functional
programs, and led policy development efforts aimed at increasing transparency, service quality,
and organizational accountability. These skills position me well to contribute to KGID’s ongoing
efforts to maintain and improve essential local services for our residents.

Equally important, | bring a community-centered leadership style grounded in teamwork, careful
deliberation, and thoughtful decision-making. | understand the importance of striking a balance
of fiscal responsibility with long-term planning to protect district assets and ensure high service
levels for years to come. As a resident who directly benefits from the district's services and
infrastructure, | am committed to helping ensure that KGID continues to operate efficiently,
responsibly, and in alignment with the needs of our community.

| would welcome the opportunity to contribute my experience, judgment, and dedication to the
Board of Trustees. Thank you for considering my application and for your continued service to
our district. | would be honored to support KGID'’s efforts to maintain the high standards our
community relies on.

Sincerely,
Anthony Cruz

630 Jeff Lane | Stateline | Nevada | 89449






ANTHONY CRUZ

630 Jeff Lane

Stateline, NV

89449

USPS Mail: PO Box 4605
Stateline, NV 89449

Board-Aligned Professional Summary

Experienced executive leader with over 30 years of governance, compliance, operational
oversight, and organizational leadership expertise. Proven ability to ensure fiduciary
responsibility, drive policy development, strengthen regulatory compliance, and elevate
service quality in complex, highly regulated environments. Adept at evaluating budgets,
monitoring financial controls, and supporting sustainable long-range planning. Recognized for
collaborative leadership, transparent decision-making, and strong commitment to public
health, safety, and environmentally responsible operations. Dedicated local resident with a
deep appreciation for community service and stewardship.

Education

Doctor of Veterinary Medicine

Experience Highlights

GOVERNANCE, POLICY, & COMPLIANCE LEADERSHIP

« Directed the creation and implementation of enterprise-level Quality Management Systems,
governance frameworks, policies, and operational standards across multiple organizations.

e Ensured compliance with federal and international regulatory requirements (FDA, EMA,
USDA, etc.), demonstrating a deep understanding of oversight, accountability, and
adherence to governing laws.

e Led cross-functional boards, steering committees, and governance forums responsible for
strategic policy decisions, risk evaluation, and operational alignment.

« Developed organizational policies related to safety, recordkeeping, training, and personnel
oversight.



FIDUCIARY OVERSIGHT & FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP

e Managed departmental and organizational budgets, including forecasting, cost controls,
and financial risk mitigation.

e Oversaw external audits, internal audit programs, and consultant engagements —
ensuring financial transparency and prudent resource management.

e Directed vendor oversight, contract evaluation, and purchasing decisions to ensure
efficiency and fiscal responsibility.

OPERATIONAL OVERSIGHT & MISSION ALIGNMENT

» Led large operational teams, ensuring programs met or exceeded performance standards,
safety requirements, and regulatory expectations.

» Designed operational processes that enhanced efficiency, minimized risk, and supported
long-term organizational health.

e Implemented systems to monitor service quality, operational responsiveness, and
stakeholder satisfaction.

STRATEGIC PLANNING & COMMUNITY-FOCUSED DECISION-MAKING

» Developed multi-year organizational strategies, including roadmaps to improve service
delivery, risk management, and infrastructure readiness.

e Guided continuous improvement initiatives that strengthened resilience, safety, and
organizational accountability.

e Partnered with executive leaders, operational teams, and community stakeholders to align
goals with mission-critical outcomes.

PERSONNEL LEADERSHIP & PROFESSIONAL SERVICES OVERSIGHT

» Supervised multidisciplinary teams including auditors, engineers, technical specialists,
trainers, and administrative staff.

» Managed relationships with professional service providers (engineering firms, legal
counsel, and audit partners) to ensure high-quality service delivery and regulatory
compliance.

e Led workforce development programs, training initiatives, and performance management
systems—driving excellence and accountability.

RELEVANT STRENGTHS FOR KGID BOARD SERVICE

« Financial Oversight: Skilled in reviewing budgets, tracking operational claims, and
ensuring responsible fiscal management.

« Governance & Policy: Extensive experience drafting, adopting, and enforcing policies
that guide safe, effective operations.

» Regulatory Adherence: Deep background ensuring compliance with federal, state, and
industry regulations.



Strategic Vision: Proven success in setting direction, prioritizing initiatives, and advancing

long-term organizational goals.
Operational Insight: Strong record of improving essential services, infrastructure

oversight, and performance standards.
Community Stewardship: Committed to public health, environmental protection, and

high-quality service for residents.
Leadership: Collaborative communicator experienced in leading boards, committees, and

cross-functional teams.

Social and Professional References provided as requested.

Intentionally Blank






Interview Questions — Board of Trustees Vacant Seat

1. What motivated you to apply for this Board vacancy?

2. What experience—professional, volunteer, or community-—do you have that is
relevant to serving on this Board?

3. What do you think the biggest value is that you would bring to the Board?

4. This vacancy expires in 1 year. Would you run in the election to retain the seat?

5. What services do we provide?
6. Are you able to commit to monthly meetings, committee work, and occasional

emergency/special sessions? Would you plan on attending in person or via Zoom?

7. How do you balance representing public sentiment with making decisions that may
be necessary but unpopular






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #8

TITLE: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO RECEIVE AUDIT REPORT AND
ACCEPT THE FY 2025 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

MEETING DATE: 16 December 2025
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Presentation of Audited Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025, and Accept the Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: N.R.S. Chapter 318.080 outlines the Duties of the Board
of Trustees. Paragraph 2 lists the fiduciary duties including: (b) Auditing practices and
procedures to be used by the district. As such, the district engages an outside auditor each year
which conducts the audit and provides a report to the Board of Trustees.

A Request for Qualifications was issued in 2023 and Eide Bailly was selected to serve as the auditor.
The current contract is for 3 years with optional renewal periods. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2025, Eide Bailly completed the audit and issued the required Communication With Those Charged
With Governance. This year’s audit identified no material weaknesses, no significant deficiencies,
and no disagreements with management. The auditors reported that management provided full
cooperation and that no difficulties were encountered during the audit process.

The governance letter includes a summary of uncorrected misstatements, which were not material to
the financial statements, as well as a list of audit adjusting and reclassifying journal entries posted to
ensure accurate financial reporting. These items primarily relate to timing differences, year-end
accruals, accounting estimates, and government-wide conversion entries.

Tiffany Williamson, Partner, Eide Bailly will present the Financial Statements and Auditor’s report
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. Attached are the audited financial statements and
accompanying notes.

INCLUDED:
A. Auditor’s Governance Letter
B. 2025 Final Financial Statement

Fund impacted by the above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






Eide
Bailly

November 26, 2025

To the Board of Trustees
Kingsbury General Improvement District
Stateline, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of Kingsbury General Improvement District (the “District”) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and have issued our report thereon dated November 26, 2025.
Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards

As communicated in our letter dated October 1, 2025, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express opinions about whether the financial statements that have been
prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of
the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the District solely for
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such

internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.

We have provided our comments regarding internal controls during our audit in our Independent
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements performed in Accordance with Government Auditing

Standards dated November 26, 2025.
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to
you.

eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 ¢ Reno, NV 89511-2094 e T775.689.9100 F 775.689.9299 ¢ EOE



Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards also require us to accumulate all known and
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us
to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.
Uncorrected misstatements or matters underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially
cause future-period financial statements to be materially misstated, even though the uncorrected
misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements currently under audit.

Misstatements that we identified as a result of our audit procedures are listed at the end of this letter
and were brought to the attention of, and corrected by, management.

The following summarizes uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects in the current
and prior period, as determined by management, are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate
to the financial statements taken as a whole and each applicable opinion unit.

General Fund:
» To pass on reclassifying debit balances in accounts payable — understatement
of assets and liabilities of $5,174.
Snow Removal Fund:
e To pass on reclassifying debit balances in accounts payable — understatement
of assets and liabilities of $4,024.
Water Utility Fund:
s To pass on reclassifying debit balances in accounts payable — understatement
of assets and liabilities of $11,498.
» To pass on writing off debt issuance costs — overstatement of assets of
$38,576, expenses of $9,246 and beginning net position of $47,822.
» To pass on the impact of not restating prior year for the implementation of
GASB 101 - understatement of expenses and beginning net position of $9,536.
o To pass on reversing effect of prior year passed entries — understatement of
expenses and beginning net position of $10,518.
Sewer Utility Fund:
s To pass on reclassifying debit balances in accounts payable — understatement
of assets and liabilities of $2,300.
¢ To pass on the impact of not restating prior year for the implementation of
GASB 101 — understatement of expenses and beginning net position of $2,540.
Government-Wide, Governmental Activities:
e To pass on reclassifying debit balances in accounts payable — understatement
of assets and liabilities of $9,198.
e To pass on the impact of not restating prior year for the implementation of
GASB 101 — understatement of expenses and beginning net position of $2,595.
Government-Wide, Business-Type Activities:
e To pass on reclassifying debit balances in accounts payable — understatement
of assets and liabilities of $13,798.



Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the District, we generally discuss a variety of
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, significant events or
transactions that occurred during the year, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and
operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters
discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the District’s auditors.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, and management of
the District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

@'MJ{L?‘Q

Reno, Nevada



Account Description

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 3

‘Conversion Entry - Lease Liability (FUND)
2498-20 EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion
2498-30 EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion
2499-20 EB Lease Liability - Current Portion
2499-30 EB Lease Liability - Current Portion
5700-20 INTEREST EXPENSE
5700-30 INTEREST EXPENSE
5810-10 EB Debt Service - principal expenditure
5810-60 EB Debt Service - principal expenditure
5815-10 EB Debt Service - interest expenditure
5815-60 EB Debt Service - interest expenditure
5915-20 EB Amortization of Lease Expense
5915-30 EB Amortization of Lease Expense
1828-20 EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases
1828-30 EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases
5440-10 EQUIPMENT RENTAL
5440-20 EQUIPMENT RENTAL
5440-30 EQUIPMENT RENTAL
5440-60 EQUIPMENT RENTAL

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
iConversion Entry: Accrued Vacation (FUND)
5010-10 PAYROLL - MANAGER
5010-60 PAYROLL - MANAGER
2120-10 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY
2120-60 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY
2121-10 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK
2121-60 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 5
iConversion Entry: Unavailable Revenue (FUND)

4100-60 USER FEES - RESIDENTIAL
2300-60 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE #5

iCorrect fixed assets (infrastructure) for amounts incorrectly disposed in PY.

1803-10 INFRASTRUCTURE
1825-10 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Debit Credit

2,459.00
1,230.00
173.00
86.00
73.00
37.00
219.00
219.00
6.00
6.00
2,583.00
1,291.00

2,583.00

1,291.00

225.00

2,705.00

1,353.00

225.00

8,382.00 8,382.00
3,714.00
3,958.00

2,627.00

2,802.00

1,087.00

1,156.00

7,672.00 7,672.00
1,533.00

1,533.00

1,533.00 1,533.00
222,224.00

222,224.00

222,224.00 222,224.00




Account

Description

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 4
‘Conversion Entry - Beg. Equity & Balances

1300-10
1300-60
1800-10
1801-10
1802-10
1803-10
1804-10
1820-10
1860-10
1860-60
2300-60
3010-60
1825-10
1828-10
1828-60
2120-10
2120-60
2121-10
2121-60
2136-10
2136-60
2300-10
2498-10
2498-60
2499-10
2499-60
2500-10
2500-60
3010-10
Total

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

EQUIPMENT

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

LAND

INFRASTRUCTURE

ciP

UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE

EB Intangible Asset - Leases

EB Intangible Asset - Leases
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
RETAINED EARNINGS
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases

EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases
ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY
ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY
ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK
ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK

OPEB PAYABLE

OPEB PAYABLE

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion
EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion
EB Lease Liability - Current Portion
EB Lease Liability - Current Portion
NET PENSION LIABILITY

NET PENSION LIABILITY

RETAINED EARNINGS

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 5
‘Conversion Entry: Accrued Vacation (GOV WIDE)

2120-10
2120-60
2121-10
2121-60
5010-10
5010-60

ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY
ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY
ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK
ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK
PAYROLL - MANAGER
PAYROLL - MANAGER

Debit Credit

83,054.00
70,203.00
1,445,812.00
28,471.00
126,482.00
11,277,517.00
298,629.00
1,615,701.00
9,409.00
©,409.00
11,882.00
141,326.00

8,874,668.00

8,995.00

8,995.00

8,252.00

8,079.00

2,431.00

2,398.00

48,027.00

38,421.00

32,753.00

205.00

205.00

219.00

219.00

224,530.00

174,503.00

5,684,995.00

15,117,895.00 15,117,895.00
2,627.00
2,802.00
1,087.00
1,156.00

3,714.00

3,958.00



Account Description Debit Credit

8000-10 DEPRECIATION 442,531.00
1825-10 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 442,531.00
Total 442,531.00 442,531.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 9
iTo record current year additions to capital assets in Governmental Funds for the Govt Wide
{F/IS.

1800-10 EQUIPMENT 2,568.00

1801-10 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 621.00

1804-10 CIP 367,248.00

1820-10 UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE 679.00

5800-10 CAPITAL OUTLAY 363,247.00

5800-60 CAPITAL OUTLAY 7,869.00
Total 371,116.00 371,116.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 10
{Conversion Entry: Unavailable Revenue (GOV WIDE)

2300-60 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 1,5633.00
4100-60 USER FEES - RESIDENTIAL 1,533.00
Total 1,533.00 1,533.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 11
{Correct compensated absences accrual in accordance w/ GASB 101,

2120-10 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY 495.00
2120-20 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY 4,951.00
2120-30 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY 776.00
2120-60 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY 465.00
2121-10 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK 1,268.00
2121-20 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK 12,158.00
2121-30 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK 2,061.00
2121-60 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK 1,172.00
5030-10 ACCRUED LEAVE EXPENSE 1,763.00
5030-20 ACCRUED LEAVE EXPENSE 17,109.00
5030-30 ACCRUED LEAVE EXPENSE 2,837.00
5030-60 ACCRUED LEAVE EXPENSE 1,637.00

Total 23,346.00 23,346.00




Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

Kingsbury General Improvement District

QElde

Bailly

| eidebailly.com



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Table of Contents
June 30, 2025

Independent AUILOr'S REPOTML......c.coiiiriieierer et eress e e e s ver e eee s e e s b e b e s e e ssabbess b e o bssanssnresansen 1
Management’s DiSCUSSION @Nd ANAIYSIS «ooveereeerririeere ettt et e s s 5

Basic Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

STALEMENT OF NET POSITION .cvvvieeeiieeeeeeetecerirtestecetireecebeeesbeeesssaeasssasesstasasteesstesbasesnbesaasbbesanseesasntesssbsnanntansnrensan 14
AT EMIENT OF AV IS 1 reereeeceeeriere e e re et rer e st e e ee e e csbe s e s s e s s s st e et e sereesaneesrasessbensaneaesannessnnennessanesenenssarnennsn 16
Fund Financial Statements

Balance Sheet — GOVErnMENtal FUNAS ......ccccvviricierii e r v cetr v v e rrsss e s esre e s s smr e e s e ssnsessssesaasaeseareasseevensenaess 17
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position — Governmental Funds............cccoueeeeee. 18
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds.............cc.c.c.... 19
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of
Activities — GOVErNMENTAl FUNGS .......ooiciiieer s e ceccrttee e ceter e s sree e s e e ssteeestessesmaeensasseasesasssassassssssssasessonnsassansen 20

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — General Fund... 21
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — Special Revenue

FUNG = SNOW REMOVAL ...ttt et st s e e s e s esn e e re s see s ame s sesensaneareesonessanesnessonnssansseneesressrnrenses 22
Statement of Net Position — ENtErpriSe@ FUNGS ....ccccceeiicririiniiernciernresnereseessrsesrnrsessessesserseases sasmmressonsesssessssasonen 23
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Enterprise FUunds .........cccceevvvreeviervinceneneenne 25
Statement of Cash FIows — ENterprise FUNAS ........ooveriicririmmeeninrerer et see st esnees s 26
Notes 10 FINANCIAl StatEMENTS ...ciicuiiieer ettt et ee s s st r e s e e smr e sanna s enn s 28

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension LIability .........ccooiieeioiiiiiieieereee et s ab s bt s e 55
Schedule of CONtrIBULIONS — PENSION........iiiieiieeieeiie et e et res s esie st ctesssesreessesessannessesasassannesseessnsannesornras 57
Schedule of FUNAING PrOGress — OPEB ..........coococieiiiieeecieeieeriecssesseeesiessseessessessnsseseesessannessessnssasnessesssnsannossensas 58
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ........cccevvvvrrrreerrerrcrnennrerrccreer e cccicsnene s 59
Supplementary Information
Schedule of Capital ASSES bY SOUTCES.......ocvrccricirier e e vt seeb et raas b e saesansesbeone 60
Capital Assets used in the Operations of Governmental Funds by Function and Activity .......c.cccevniniiniiiin, 61
Changes in Capital Assets used in the Operations of Governmental Funds by Function and Activity................ 62
Statement of Revenue and Expenses ~ Budget and Actual — Sewer Utility Fund ..., 63
Statement of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual — Sewer Utility Fund ..........coco et 64
Statement of Revenue and Expenses — Budget and Actual — Water Utility Fund ........c.ccccooiiiiniinininncnnenn. 65
Statement of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual = Water Utility FUNG .....cc.corermrcnninirnrrercne e 66

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
SEQNAAIAS ...ttt ettt erer e st s e s e s et e s et e eessee s s s s s s asasaesessessansentansssaesssassaneansearetaneereesensaasnnnreent 67

Schedule of FINAINGS aNnd RESPONSES ..vvieeieiiiiieeiei ettt e e e s e s saen e e sesensentessnnneesanes 69

AUAIEOIS COMMEIITS . veeeerrreeeeieivesrrerereeseeesessenbaartereeesserreeseesssestnsesassrssessesaassnsensesensanesssnseseaseesassessesasssbsssaasssnsans 70



Eide
QBallly

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees
Kingsbury General Improvement District
Stateline, Nevada

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities
and fund information of the Kingsbury General Improvement District (the “District”) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and
fund information of the District, as of June 30, 2025, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the
governmental funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the District has adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, for the
year ended June 30, 2025. As a result of implementing the standard, there was no effect on the
governmental activities, business-type activities, or fund information beginning fund balance and net
position as of July 1, 2024. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 o Reno, NV 89511-2094 « T775.689.9100 » F775.689.9299 ¢ EOE



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt that the District’s ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in net pension liability, schedule of contributions - pension,
schedule of funding progress - OPEB, and schedule of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The schedule of capital assets by sources,
capital assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity, changes in capital
assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity, statement of revenue and
expenses — budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of cash flows — budget and actual - sewer
utility fund, statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual — water utility fund, and statement
of cash flows — budget and actual — water utility fund, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the schedule of capital assets
by sources, capital assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity, changes
in capital assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity, statement of
revenue and expenses — budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of cash flows — budget and
actual - sewer utility fund, statement of revenue and expenses ~ budget and actual — water utility fund,
and statement of cash flows — budget and actual — water utility fund are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the District’s 2024 financial statements, and we expressed unmodified opinions on
the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and fund
information in our report dated November 25, 2024. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, is consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.



The statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of cash
flows — budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual
— water utility fund, and statement of cash flows — budget and actual — water utility fund for the year
ended June 30, 2024 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and related directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2024 financial
statements. The information was subjected to the audit procedures applied in the audit of the 2024 basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare those financial
statements or to those financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the,
statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of cash flows —
budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual — water
utility fund, and statement of cash flows — budget and actual — water utility fund is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year ended June 30,
2024.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 26,
2025, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

éff—xﬁ«@zu"

Reno, Nevada
November 26, 2025



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

As management of Kingsbury General Improvement District (the “District”), we offer readers of the District’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2025.

Financial Highlights

+ The assets and deferred outflows of the District exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close
of the current fiscal year by $64,589,790. Of this amount, $19,702,308 is unrestricted net position that
may be used to meet the District’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

+ The District’s total noncurrent liabilities and deferred inflows decreased by $1,471,376 or 10%. This net
decrease is mostly comprised of a $1,369,133 decrease in loans payable.

+ The District’s total net position increased by $4,487,213 during the current year. Net investment in
capital assets, a component of total net position, increased $2,486,588 primarily due to additions of
capital assets and payments made on related debt, net of depreciation. Restricted net position, a
component of total net position, also increased $709,636 due to the creation of a capital asset reserve
account as required by grants received.

+ At the end of the current year, the District’s governmental funds reported combined total ending fund
balances of $11,623,781, an increase of $1,939,769 in comparison with the prior year.

+ At the end of the current fiscal year, non-spendable fund balances totaled $4,175. The total committed
fund balance is $609,930. The total assigned fund balance for the general fund is $1,070,381 for the
fiscal year 2026 budget deficit. Unassigned fund balance is $9,939,295.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.
The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements;
2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains supplementary
and required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities,
and deferred inflows with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the District include streets, snow removal and erosion control
(including drainage). The business-type activities of the District include water (treatment and distribution) and
sewer (collection by the District and treatment paid for by the District but done by others).

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14-16 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

At year end, the District maintained three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, the special revenue fund (snow removal). There has been no
activity in the capital projects fund {Tahoe Bond Act erosion control) since the year ended June 30, 2004.

The District adopts annual appropriated budgets for its general fund and its special revenue fund (snow
removal). Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance
with the budgets.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-22 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The District maintains enterprise funds, a type of proprietary fund, to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The enterprise
funds account for the District’s water treatment and distribution activity and for its sewer collection activity and
its payment to others for sewage treatment.



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water utility fund
and the sewer utility fund.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-27 of this report.

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 28-54 of this report.

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
supplementary information including:

¢ schedule of capital assets by sources
+ capital assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity
+ changes in capital assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity

Additionally, supplementary information includes information individually for the sewer utility fund and for the
water utility fund as follows:

+ statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual
+ statement of cash flows — budget and actual

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the
District, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $64,589,790 at the close of
the current year.

The largest portion of the District’s net assets (68%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. property, plant,
equipment and infrastructure such as pipelines, roads and erosion control improvements), less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District’s investment in
its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities
A portion ($755,086) of the District’s net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions

on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position, $19,718,779, may be used to
meet the District’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

As noted earlier, the District’s total net position increased by $4,487,213 during the current year.

At June 30, 2025, the end of the current year, the District is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net position. The same situation was true the prior fiscal year.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the District’s net position by $1,888,453, thereby
contributing 3% to growth in net position of the District. Net investment in capital assets decreased by $71,407
and unrestricted net position increased by $1,959,860.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the District’s net position by $2,598,760, thereby
contributing 4% of growth in net position of the District. Net investment in capital assets increased by
$2,557,995 and unrestricted net position decreased $668,871.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balance of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s
financing requirements. In particular, assigned and unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At June 30, 2025, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $11,623,781, an
increase of $1,939,769 in comparison with the prior year. Of this amount, $4,175 is non-spendable. The fund
balance of the general fund increased $1,190,973 in the current year from $9,605,116 to $10,796,089. Fund
revenue was primarily from property taxes and state consolidated taxes. A large portion of the accumulating
fund balance of the general fund, excluding a prudent reserve, will be utilized in coming years for pavement
capital projects.

The fund balance of the snow removal special revenue fund increased from $78,896 to $827,692 at June 30,
2025. The increase of $748,796 in fund balance was due to revenues exceeding expenditures, and a transfer of
$550,000 from the general fund.

Proprietary funds. The District’s proprietary (enterprise) funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.



0TL'VoE'Y $ ETTL8Y'Y $ 092'865'C $ €5¥'888'T S NOILISQd 1IN NI IONVHD
Zr0'CT6'C SET SLB8'C 596 'S0 0L1°6917'C anuanal |esauas 1230}
0z0'cT 9r8'S - 9v8'S B8wodUl snoaue|@asIA
961°Tv0‘T vL6'768 S96°S0Y 60028V 30U 1S3ITRU|
966'TLL TES'66L - TES'66L SAXE) PAlEpIosuo)
0€8'v60°T ¥8r'9LT'T - ¥8¥'9LT'T S9Xe)} Walo|eA py
8L9'TYY'T 8L0'7T9'T S6L°T6T°T {£12'085) £T2296 S EPO'BTLL $ 8L1°890°L $
YILTS9'T 8v8 18T 878'T8T'C - €12'796 pSTC96'Y 6TS ZhL'E 191B M
L69'8TT LP6°0T L¥6°0T - - 805'048'T T95°658'T JaMas
saiAlae adAl-ssauisng
(08) (z1) - (z1) - - 43 CRIISEERLET
(y1€'6T) 98€TTT - 98€'12T - 696°€8L £85°299 |EAOLUR] MmOuS
(6£€'80€°T) $ (160'20.) S - $ (160°204) $ - $ TIV'T0T $ £E0S'€08 $ s1za.1s pue shemysiH
S$HIOM 2l|qnd
SIIHAIIE |[IUBLIUIBA0D
- I — SINVYO0¥d/SNOILINNA
|E30L |e101 SO0V SONIARDY SuonNQIIN0) ERINES Sesusaxy
adAj-ssauisng |ejuBILIBADD pue sjueln Joj sadsey)
|ende)
INUSAIY WEeIS0d
202 S202 SINIAIDY JO JUIWANEIS
LLST0T'09 $ 06L°685'79 S 9S9'E€LVLY S VETOTTLT S uolysod 3au [e30]
06L°LTH'8T 64L'81L'6T 79T 6%7 8 LT9°69Z'TT pajplisaIun
0Sy'St 980'SSL 980SSL - pajaLsay
LEE6TI'TY SZE'STT'vr 80v'69Z'8€ LT5'918'S sjosse [eydes Ul juawisanul 19N
uolysod 19N
SE8'V90'9T 2LL'69T 1T EVE SYY ET 6Tr'TCL SMOJJUI P3.I2J3p J2LI0 pue SaN|Ige]| [e10L
9TLTTLYT 0SE'TYT €T 0/5'€99°2T 08L°LLS SMOj4U) PRI SUIPN|DUI ‘S2I[IGEI| JUBLINJUON
PrY'8sT 9££°081 LYE'PLT 68€'9 sysodap Jowosnd pue 5334 pledaiq
S99'€60'T 989°LYL 9zr'019 092'LET saiHjigel| Jaylo pue 3jqeded s)unoddy
SMOJJUl P2J13J3p pue sall|igen
CTH'L9T'9L 795°652'8L 66612609 £95°L€8°LT SMOJJIN0 PaLIa)aP JAYI0 pue SIISSE |e10)
£0899T°€S 9/8'697 7S 6v6CTy 8y LT6'9¥8'S 19U ‘s19ssE Pasea| asn Jo 1ySu pue Jau ‘syasse jeyde)
S09°0TO'ET S 989'68¢VT $ 050°661'TT $ 9£9°066'TT S SMOIN0 PaLIz}ap SUIPN[IUL “1aY10 PUk JuaLn)
SMOJJIN0 PBLISJOP PUR 51255y
[exoL JE10L SAUANIY S9NIADY
adAy-ssauisng {BJUBWILIDA0D)
1UBWUIBA0Y AJBwlld
vmﬂ qz0z uonisod 32N JO JUsWAIEIS

ST0T ‘0g aunr
siIsAjeuy pue uoissndsiq s Juawaseuey

10143510 JwdwaAoldwy [esausn Aungssul)



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Taxes were the general fund's primary source of revenue (78%). This included property tax revenue of
$1,176,484 and state consolidated tax revenue of $799,831. Actual general fund revenue was 6% greater than
the budget. Expenditures were 71% less than the budget. The ending fund balance increased from $9,605,116 to
$10,796,089.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

At year end, the District’s net investment in capital assets from its governmental activities totaled $5,846,517.
The net investment in capital assets from its proprietary activities totaled $38,269,408.

There were no major capital asset events during the fiscal year.

In November 2007, the District obtained an additional low-interest, subsidized loan from the State of Nevada
State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $3,000,000. The loan is secured by a general
obligation bond of $3,000,000 issued to the Nevada State Treasurer; however, the liability for the loan is shown
strictly as the amount drawn to date and is recorded in the water utility fund. The loan provided 38.1% of the
cost of water system improvements and served as the required match to a state grant providing 61.9% of the
cost of those improvements. As of June 30, 2025, the District had outstanding $565,695 in loan proceeds, which
is the legal amount outstanding.

In June 2010, the District obtained an additional low-interest, subsidized loan from the State of Nevada State
Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $3,306,650. The loan is secured by a general obligation
bond of $3,306,650 issued to the Nevada State Treasurer; however, the liability for the loan is shown strictly as
the amount drawn to date and is recorded in the water utility fund. This loan provided 100% funding of the cost
of water meter installations. As of June 30, 2025, the District had outstanding $1,022,927 in loan proceeds,
which is the legal amount outstanding.

In March 2012, the District obtained a low-interest, subsidized loan from the State of Nevada State Revolving
Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000. On October 29, 2014, the loan amount was increased
to $11,000,000. The loan is secured by a general obligation bond of 511,000,000 issued to the Nevada State
Treasurer. This loan will provide 80% funding of the Water Treatment Plant improvements. As of June 30, 2025,
the District had drawn the full amount of loan proceeds and had outstanding 55,094,698 in loan proceeds, which
is the legal amount outstanding.

In January 2015, the District obtained an additional low interest subsidized loan from the State of Nevada State
Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $6,000,000. The loan is secured by a general obligation
bond of $6,000,000 issued to the Nevada State Treasurer and is recorded in the water utility fund. The loan,
which supplements the 2012 loan, will fund approximately 80% of the Water Treatment Plant improvements. As
of June 30, 2025, the District had drawn the full amount of loan proceeds and had outstanding $3,466,532 in
loan proceeds, which is the legal amount outstanding.

10



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 50% of the total
assessed valuation within the government’s boundaries. At June 30, 2025, the debt limitation of the District was
$168,020,369 which is significantly in excess of the District’s outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found under Note 7 — Loans Payable on pages
40-42.

Economic Factors

During fiscal year 2024-2025, the regional economy surrounding the Kingsbury General Improvement District
showed mixed but generally stabilizing performance. Employment conditions remained fairly resilient, with
Douglas County averaging 20,649 jobs in late 2024, even though this represented a modest 1.8% decrease from
the prior year. Despite the slight dip in employment, wages rose substantially, with the average weekly wage
increasing 9.8% year-over-year to $1,431, reflecting continued wage pressure in skilled trades, hospitality, and
technical professions. These trends influenced both public-sector recruitment and the cost structures facing
local contractors and developers.

Housing and development activity continued but with varied momentum across the Tahoe basin. County-level
building permit data showed 314 private housing units authorized in 2024, nearly flat compared to 312 in 2023,
while another regional dataset reported a decline from 246 to 190 “living-unit” permits year-over-year. This
mixed picture reflects ongoing constraints in land supply, construction labor availability, and elevated financing
costs. Major residential developments within KGID’s service boundaries—including the Summit and Tahoe Beach
Club—continued to advance, albeit at more measured pace due to cost pressures and longer construction
timelines. Remodels and additions remained a key driver of activity, consistent with county reports showing that
renovation and commercial valuation permits outpaced new single-family construction in several Tahoe-basin
jurisdictions.

Local business conditions mirrored the larger challenges of a tourism-driven mountain economy. Hospitality and
recreation sectors benefited from sustained visitor volume, supported by the Lake Tahoe region’s status as a
major destination with millions of annual visitor-days. However, tourism-based revenues fluctuated with
economic sentiment and seasonality, generating variability in consumer activity. The steady stream of visitors
continued to place operational pressure on essential KGID services, particularly water usage, snow removal, and
infrastructure maintenance. Businesses dependent on specialty contractors and technical service providers
continued to experience higher pricing, scheduling delays, and capacity limitations—conditions reflected in
statewide labor shortages in construction and engineering fields.

Overall, the regional economic landscape exerted both supportive and constraining influences on KGID’s
operations. Strong tourism and ongoing residential investment reinforced long-term service demand, while high
wages, elevated materials costs, and tight contractor availability increased operational and capital project
expenses. These economic conditions directly informed KGID's financial planning for FY 2024-2025 and shaped
expectations for revenue stability, rate adjustments, and resource allocation in the upcoming budget cycle.

11



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

The two large developments in the district are projected to move toward completion during the next 12 months.
Local development activity normalized during the year. The Sierra Colina development was officially closed out
in 2024, and the District anticipates more moderate progress on other planned developments moving forward.

Costs of goods and services have not had any relief, demand for essential goods, such as water meters, valves
and pipe remain very high. Prices remain very high, but availability has improved. Most of these items are now
available in six to eight weeks versus the six to eight months being experienced at the beginning of the fiscal
year. Fuel has been the exception to the trend, the costs for fuel have fallen from their previous highs

Engineering and technical service costs, which had seen increases in prior years, stabilized during 2024 and
remained steady throughout 2025, reducing pressure on contracted services budgets. Contractor availability
improved moderately as well.

The broader national economy entered 2025 with less volatility compared to the prior year. Earlier financial
market instability diminished, and consumer conditions strengthened, contributing to stable economic activity
across the District’s service area.

Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The District continues implementing its long-term water utility masterplan. By the end of 2025, major pipeline
replacement projects on Tina Court, Tramway Drive, and Bonnie Drive were completed, addressing aging
infrastructure and improving system reliability. While older lines installed under past construction methods are
reaching the end of their expected life, these replacement projects have strengthened system performance and
reduced operational risk.

The District’s snow removal fund and general operating reserves remained stable, and no rate increases were
proposed or approved for the upcoming fiscal year. Budget projections for FY 2026 include continued elevated
material costs but no major changes to operating or capital priorities. The District did not issue or refinance debt
during the year, and interest rates are expected to continue trending slightly downward.

The District completed several major facility initiatives during the fiscal year. Renovations at 160 Pine Ridge
were finalized, completing the modernization of the District’s administrative and operations buildings. With
these improvements in place, the District has eliminated its reliance on leased facilities, reducing long-term
expenses and consolidating operations efficiently. Construction of a planned equipment storage facility has not
yet begun but remains a future priority.

Staffing conditions improved with the appointment of a new General Manager in early 2025 following the
retirement of the previous General Manager at the end of 2024. The Operations Superintendent vacancy was

also filled during the year. Several operations positions remain open, consistent with regional labor constraints.

As is typical for the District, temporary summer labor was utilized during the year to support seasonal
operational needs.

The District owns an adjacent property at 298 Kingsbury, which has been listed for sale. The outcome of the sale
may affect parking availability and building-use planning beginning in FY 2026.

12



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those with an
interest in the District’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Business and Contracts Manager,
Kingsbury General Improvement District, P.O. Box 2220, Stateline, Nevada 89449.

13



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2025

Primary Government

Assets

Cash and investments

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Total

$ 11,513,443

$ 11,022,243

$ 22,535,686

Accounts receivable 56,115 431,868 487,983
Taxes receivable 183,810 ' - 183,810
Grants receivable - 19,346 19,346
Due from other governments - 89,126 89,126
Deposits and interest receivable 50,546 38,057 88,603
Prepaid expenses 4,175 21,608 25,783
Material inventory - 183,253 183,253
Cash and investments - restricted - 45,450 45,450
Bond issuance costs, net - 38,576 38,576

Property, plant and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation 5,846,529 48,419,398 54,265,927

Right of use leased assets, net of
accumulated amortization 398 3,551 3,949
Total assets 17,655,016 60,312,476 77,967,492
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions 176,499 570,766 747,265
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 6,048 38,757 44,805
Total deferred outflows of resources 182,547 609,523 792,070
Total assets and deferred outflows 17,837,563 60,921,999 78,759,562
See Notes to Financial Statements 14



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2025
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Liabilities
Accounts payable - trade S 130,084 S 487,077 S 617,161
Accrued expenses 7,176 - 7,176
Accrued interest payable - 123,349 123,349
Prepaid user fees and customer deposits 6,389 174,347 180,736
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Compensated absences 9,251 55,171 64,422
OPEB obligation 2,150 13,776 15,926
Loans payable - 1,403,827 1,403,827
Lease liability 410 3,689 4,099
Due in more than one year
Compensated absences 835 4,977 5,812
Net pension liability 380,160 1,541,741 1,921,901
OPEB obligation 54,928 351,941 406,869
Loans payable - 8,746,025 8,746,025
Total liabilities 591,383 12,905,920 13,497,303
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions 91,643 296,358 388,001
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 38,403 246,065 284,468
Total deferred inflows of resources 130,046 542,423 672,469
Total liabilities and deferred inflows 721,429 13,448,343 14,169,772
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 5,846,517 38,269,408 44,115,925
Restricted
Capital Asset Reserve - 709,636 709,636
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency - 45,450 45,450
Unrestricted 11,269,617 8,449,162 19,718,779

Total Net Position S 17,116,134

S 47,473,656

S 64,589,790

See Notes to Financial Statements

15



9T

$1USWIDLEIS [BIDURUI O) SRION 28§

06268579 S 959'€LV'Ly S PET'OTIT'LT S Jeaj JO puj ‘uoilsod 19N
LL5'T0T09 96878 VY 189°£TT'ST 1eaj 40 SuluuiSag ‘uoiiisod 19N
€T /(8Y'Y 09/'865°¢ €51'888'T UoKISO4 19N Ul 8uey)
SET'SL8T S96's0v 0LT'697'C anuanal [esauad |e10)
9¥8’s - 9¥g’s ALIO2UI SNOBUE|RISIA
v.6'768 59650V 600287 W02 152431U]
TE8'66L - T€8'66L $BXE) PIIEPIOSUOD
v8Y9LTT - v8Y9LT'T Saxe) WaJlojeA py
3NUSAJY |RJBUSD
8L0°CT9'T S6L'261°T (£12'089) €12°296 S EV0'8TLL S 8L1'890°L § wawuianod Atewnd (ejo)
S6L°26T'C S6LT6TT : €17'796 799'7€8'9 080°209°'s satuAllae adAl-ssauisng (3o
8¥8'T8T'C 8v8'181C - €T2'796 ¥ST'796't 6TSTVL'E Ja1e M
Ly6°0T LY6°0T - * 805°0L8T 1956587 Jamag
salyaoe adAj-ssaulsng
(£1£°089) - (£1£'089) - T8£°988 860°99%'T SBINAINOE [BIUDWILISAOS (10
(z1) - (z1) - - f43 321AJ95 1090
98€TT1 - 98¢e'12T - 696°€8L €85°799 |eAoWRl MoUS
(te0‘zos)  § - ) (teo‘zos)  § - S ZI¥'101 S £06'€08 S $39343s pue sAemysiyH
sydom olqnd
S3IUAIIIER |RIUBIUIBACG
|e10] SIAINDY SAIUAIIY suolnguuc) [FTYELS sasuadx3y sweJgold/suoioung
adA]-ssauisng jeluBWUIAN0D pue sjuels 4oy sadaey)
Uo1ISO4 19N Ul saSuey) pue SaNUIAY
anuaAay (asuadxl) 12N wesSoud

S70T '0€ dunf papu3 Jeaj
S2INAIIDY JO JUSWIRE]S

10143510 Iudwanosdw [esauan Aungsaury



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

June 30, 2025

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued expenses
Prepaid user fees and customer deposits

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue

Total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Prepaid expenses
Committed
Assigned for next year's budget deficit
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

See Notes to Financial Statements

General

Special
Revenue Fund

{Snow Removal)

Total
Governmental
Funds

$ 10,678,349 S 835,094 $ 11,513,443
24,352 31,763 56,115
183,810 - 183,810
46,635 3,911 50,546

203 3,972 4,175

$ 10,933,349 S 874,740 S 11,808,089

S 130,084 S - S 130,084
7,176 - 7,176

- 6,389 6,389

137,260 6,389 143,649

- 40,659 40,659

137,260 47,048 184,308

203 3,972 4,175

404,298 205,632 609,930
1,070,381 - 1,070,381
9,321,207 618,088 9,939,295
10,796,089 827,692 11,623,781
$ 10,933,349 S 874,740 $ 11,808,089

17



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position — Governmental Funds
June 30, 2025

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Total fund balances - total governmental funds $ 11,623,781

Capital assets and right-to-use leased assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund.

Capital assets, being depreciated $ 15,385,950
Right-to-use leased assets, being amortized 18,817
Less accumulated depreciation/amortization (9,557,840) 5,846,927

Unavailable revenue represents amounts that are not available to fund current
expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 40,659

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Compensated absences payable (10,086)
Net pension liability (380,160)
OPEB obligation (57,078)
Lease payable (410) (447,734)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and other post
employment benefits (OPEB), are applicable to future periods and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 176,499

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 6,048

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (91,643)

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (38,403) 52,501
Net position of governmental activities S 17,116,134

See Notes to Financial Statements 18



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Special Total
Revenue Fund Governmental
General (Snow Removal) Funds
Revenue
Ad valorem taxes $ 1,176,484 S - $ 1,176,484
Intergovernmental state shared revenue
Consolidated taxes 799,831 - 799,831
Miscellaneous
Charges for services - 782,436 782,436
Interest income 457,678 29,331 487,009
Rental income 101,412 - 101,412
Other revenue 833 5,013 5,846
Total revenue 2,536,238 816,780 3,353,018
Expenditures
Public works
Current
Salaries, wages and benefits 269,798 191,825 461,623
Services and supplies 161,995 418,065 580,060
Capital outlay 363,247 7,869 371,116
Debt service
Principal 219 219 438
Interest 6 6 12
Total expenditures 795,265 617,984 1,413,249
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over
(under) Expenditures 1,740,973 198,796 1,939,769
Other Financing Sources {(Uses)
Transfers in - 550,000 550,000
Transfers out {550,000) - (550,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (550,000) 550,000 -
Net Change in Fund Balance 1,190,973 748,796 1,939,769
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 9,605,116 78,896 9,684,012
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 10,796,089 S 827,692 $ 11,623,781

See Notes to Financial Statements

19



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of
Activities — Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds S 1,939,769
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated/

amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Capital outlay S 371,116
Depreciation and amortization expense (442,961) (71,845)

Debt service payments for long-term debt, including leases, are reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds, but are reported as a
reduction of long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Lease principal payments 438
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in governmental
funds.
Change in unavailable revenue 1,533
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in long-term compensated absences 11,074
Change in OPEB liability related amounts 4,361 15,435

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits
earned is reported as pension expense.

Pension expense 3,123

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities S 1,888,453

See Notes to Financial Statements 20



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Revenue
Ad valorem taxes
Intergovernmental state
shared revenue
Consolidated taxes
Miscellaneous
Interest income
Rental income
Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenditures
Public works
Highway and streets
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits

Services and supplies

Capital outlay

Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue

over (under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers out
Contingency

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
S 1,173,281 S 1,173,281 S 1,176,484 ) 3,203
796,808 796,808 799,831 3,023
311,520 311,520 457,678 146,158
107,167 107,167 101,412 (5,755)
8,800 8,800 833 (7,967)
2,397,576 2,397,576 2,536,238 138,662
236,365 236,365 179,183 57,182
128,976 131,974 90,615 41,359
253,847 253,847 161,995 91,852
2,138,000 2,138,000 363,247 1,774,753
- - 219 (219)
- - 6 (6)
2,757,188 2,760,186 795,265 1,964,921
(359,612) (362,610) 1,740,973 2,103,583
- {550,000} (550,000) -
(82,716) (82,806) - 82,806
(82,716) (632,806) (550,000) 82,806
(442,328) (995,416) 1,190,973 2,186,389
9,571,460 9,571,460 9,605,116 33,656
S 9,129,132 S 8,576,044 S 10,796,089 S 2,220,045
21



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — Special Revenue
Fund — Snow Removal

Year Ended June 30, 2025
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue
Charges for services S 758,920 S 789,664 S 782,436 S (7,228)
Interest income 8,419 8,419 29,331 20,912
Other revenue 55 55 5,013 4,958
Total revenue 767,394 798,138 816,780 18,642
Expenditures
Snow removal
Salaries and wages 154,723 154,723 122,182 32,541
Employee benefits 100,491 103,489 69,643 33,846
Services and supplies 954,233 954,233 418,065 536,168
Capital outlay 129,000 129,000 7,869 121,131
Debt service
Principal - - 219 (219)
Interest - - 6 (6)
Total expenditures 1,338,447 1,341,445 617,984 723,461
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
over (under) Expenditures (571,053) (543,307) 198,796 742,103
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - 550,000 550,000
Contingency (40,153) {40,243) - 40,243
Total other financing
sources (uses) (40,153) 509,757 550,000 40,243
Net Change in Fund Balance (611,206) (33,550) 748,796 782,346
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 42,907 42,907 78,896 35,989
Fund Balances, End of Year 5 (568,299) S 9,357 S 827,692 S 818,335

See Notes to Financial Statements 22



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Net Position — Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2025

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2024)

Assets
Current assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Due from other governments
Deposits and interest receivable
Prepaid expenses
Material inventory

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Right of use leased assets
Less accumulated amortization

Net property, plant and
equipment

Other assets
Cash and investments -
restricted
Bond issuance costs, net
Total other assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows related to pensions

Deferred outflows related to OPEB

Total deferred outflows
of resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

See Notes to Financial Statements

2025 2024
Sewer Water
Utility Fund Utility Fund Total Total

S 4,464,002 $ 6,558,241 $ 11,022,243 $ 10,260,951
93,944 337,924 431,868 480,495
- 19,346 19,346 1,276,045
89,126 - 89,126 46,779
19,320 18,737 38,057 52,395
3,416 18,192 21,608 22,558
976 182,277 183,253 178,940
4,670,784 7,134,717 11,805,501 12,318,163
8,485,211 66,236,366 74,721,577 71,984,678
(5,942,289) (20,359,890) (26,302,179) (24,754,068)
56,452 112,904 169,356 169,356
(55,268) (110,537) (165,805) {161,931)
2,544,106 45,878,843 48,422,949 47,238,035
- 45,450 45,450 45,450
- 38,576 38,576 47,822
- 84,026 84,026 93,272
7,214,890 53,097,586 60,312,476 59,649,470
119,375 451,391 570,766 543,823
5,825 32,932 38,757 90,433
125,200 484,323 609,523 634,256
S 7,340,090 $ 53,581,909 $ 60,921,999 $ 60,283,726
23



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Net Position — Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2025

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2024)

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued interest payable
Prepaid user fees and

customer deposits

Compensated absences
OPEB obligation
Lease liability
Loans payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Compensated absences, net
Net pension liability
OPEB obligation
Lease liability, less current portion
Loans payable, less current portion

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to OPEB

Total deferred inflows
of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows

Net Position

Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Restricted
Capital Asset Reserve
Tahoe Regional Planning

Agency for capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements

2025 2024
Sewer Water
Utility Fund Utility Fund Total Total

S 11,155 S 475,922 S 487,077 S 870,902
- 123,349 123,349 140,588
58,139 116,208 174,347 252,100
7,475 47,696 55,171 73,866
2,070 11,706 13,776 14,755
1,230 2,459 3,689 3,948
- 1,403,827 1,403,827 1,369,132
80,069 2,181,167 2,261,236 2,725,291
674 4,303 4,977 32,088
304,825 1,236,916 1,541,741 1,670,633
52,893 299,048 351,941 539,153
- - - 3,689
- 8,746,025 8,746,025 10,149,853
358,392 10,286,292 10,644,684 12,395,416
438,461 12,467,459 12,905,920 15,120,707
61,983 234,375 296,358 150,619
36,981 209,084 246,065 137,504
98,964 443,459 542,423 288,123
537,425 12,910,918 13,448,343 15,408,830
2,542,876 35,726,532 38,269,408 35,711,413
- 709,636 709,636 -
- 45,450 45,450 45,450
4,259,789 4,189,373 8,449,162 9,118,033
S 6,802,665 $ 40,670,991 S 47,473,656 S 44,874,896
24



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2025
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2024)

Operating Revenue
Charges for services

Operating Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits
Services and supplies
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Interest income
Loss on disposal of assets
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenue
(expense)

Income Before Capital Grants
Capital Grants

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2025 2024
Sewer Water

Utility Fund Utility Fund Total Total
$ 1,870,508 $ 4,962,154 S 6,832,662 S 6,812,799
224,873 904,956 1,129,829 1,239,838
1,534,865 1,052,762 2,587,627 2,284,920
99,786 1,466,222 1,566,008 1,488,876
1,859,524 3,423,940 5,283,464 5,013,634
10,984 1,538,214 1,549,198 1,799,165
185,727 220,238 405,965 589,388
- (53,889) (53,889) (5,715)
(37) (264,690) (264,727) (300,784)
185,690 (98,341) 87,349 282,889
196,674 1,439,873 1,636,547 2,082,054
- 962,213 962,213 1,277,745
196,674 2,402,086 2,598,760 3,359,799
6,605,991 38,268,905 44,874,896 41,515,097

$ 6,802,665

$ 40,670,991

$ 47,473,656

S 44,874,896

25



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Cash Flows — Enterprise Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2025

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2024)

2025 2024
Sewer Water
Utility Fund Utility Fund Total Total

Operating Activities

Cash received from customers S 1,883,630 S 4,934,244 S 6,817,874 S 6,734,904

Cash paid to employees and benefits (242,962) (970,723) (1,213,685) (1,160,626)

Cash paid to suppliers (1,637,572) (1,379,590) (3,017,162) (1,896,501)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 3,096 2,583,931 2,587,027 3,677,777
Capital and Related Financing Activities

Capital expenditures (24,230) {2,780,581) (2,804,811) (6,018,055)

Proceeds from capital grants - 2,218,912 2,218,912 -

Principal payments of long-term debt - (1,369,133) (1,369,133) (1,335,305)

Principal payments of lease liabilities (1,316) (2,632) (3,948) (39,401)

Interest/amortization paid on

long-term debt (37) (272,683) (272,720) (301,003)

Net Cash used for Capital and Related

Financing Activities (25,583) (2,206,117) (2,231,700) (7,693,764)
Investing Activities

Interest on investments 185,727 220,238 405,965 589,388
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 163,240 598,052 761,292 (3,426,599)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of

Year (Including Restricted Cash Held

in the Water Fund) 4,300,762 6,005,639 10,306,401 13,733,000
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of

Year (Including Restricted Cash Held

in the Water Fund) S 4,464,002 S 6,603,691 $ 11,067,693 $ 10,306,401

See Notes to Financial Statements

26



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Cash Flows — Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2025
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2024)

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash from Operating Activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile
operating income to net cash
from operating activities
Depreciation and
amortization
Changes in
Deferred outflows, inflows,
and net pension/OPEB

Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Deposits and interest

Material inventory
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable - trade
Compensated absences
Prepaid user fees and
customer deposits

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Non-Cash Capital and Related Financing

Activities

Loss on disposal of assets

See Notes to Financial Statements

Total adjustments

2025 2024
Sewer Water

Utility Fund Utility Fund Total Total
S 10,984 S 1,538,214 $ 1,549,198 S 1,799,165
99,786 1,466,222 1,566,008 1,488,876
(6,312) (31,738) (38,050) 88,416
24,049 24,578 48,627 (52,602)
(42,347) - (42,347) 34,739
{500) 14,838 14,338 1,968
(66) (4,247) (4,313) (33,711)
1,885 (935) 950 (8,110)
(62,179) (321,646) (383,825) 395,731
(11,777) (34,029) (45,806) (9,434)
(10,427) (67,326) {77,753) (27,261)
(7,888) 1,045,717 1,037,829 1,878,612
S 3,096 S 2,583,931 S 2,587,027 S 3,677,777

S 53,889

S 53,889

S 5,715

27



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Kingsbury General Improvement District (the “District”) was organized under the provisions of Nevada
Revised Statues Chapter 318. Under the Statute, the District has been granted authority to provide water,
sewer, and road maintenance services for the benefit of individuals residing within its geographical boundaries
and to provide water to portions of nearby properties outside of the District’s geographical boundaries.

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, as applied to government units.

Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order
to provide an understanding of changes in the District’s financial position and operations. However, comparative
(i.e., presentation of prior year totals for each governmental fund type) data has not been presented in each of
the statements since its inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read.

Financial Reporting Entity

The District is governed by an elected Board of Trustees. The financial statements of the District consist only of
the funds and account groups of the District for which the District is considered to be financially accountable.
The District is not financially accountable for any other governmental entity since no other entities are
considered to be controlled by or dependent on the District. Control or fiscal dependence is determined on the
basis of budget adopting authority, taxing authority, funding and appointment of the respective governing
board.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of position and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity
has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenue, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Expenses reported for functional activities include allocated indirect expenses. Program revenue
includes (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenue are reported instead as general revenue.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund

financial statements.

28



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenue is recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both measurable and
available. Revenue is considered to be available when it is collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenue to be
available if it is collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

Property taxes, intergovernmental revenue (consolidated taxes), and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received
by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Snow Removal Fund (Special Revenue Fund): Effective January 1, 1998, by Board resolution, the District created
the Snow Removal Fund to account for the snow removal fee revenue and snow removal related expenditures.
Fund balances are considered committed for use during a subsequent year. Interfund loans from the General
fund are authorized in years operational requirement results in a Fund balance deficit.

In addition, the government has the following governmental funds:

Tahoe Bond Act Erosion Control Capital Projects Fund (Capital Projects Fund): The Tahoe Bond Act Erosion
Control Capital Projects Fund was created August 11, 1998, to account for the receipt and disbursement of
erosion control grant funds under the Tahoe Bond Act and other grants funding erosion control capital projects.
There has been no activity in this fund since the year ended June 30, 2004.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds: The Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations of the water and
sewer departments. Enterprise Funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the Board has decided that the determination of
revenues earned, costs incurred, or net income is necessary or useful for management accountability. Long-term
liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds.

29



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the
government’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenue include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, and (2) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenue included all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenue and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the enterprise fund is
charges to customers for services. The District also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of connection
fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses.

All interest income is allocated between the General Fund, Enterprise Funds (Sewer Fund and Water Fund), and
Snow Removal Special Revenue Fund, based on a percentage for each fund as derived from the cash position of
those funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The District’s cash and cash equivalents include cash on deposit at one commercial bank and in the State
Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool. Cash equivalents also include highly liquid investments that are
available on demand and are, therefore, classified as cash equivalents on the Statements of Cash Flows.

Investments are recorded at fair value, which is the same as the value of the pool shares. The State of Nevada
Local Government Investment Pool is an unrated external investment pool that does not provide information on
realized or unrealized gain or loss activity. Accordingly, changes in the investment pool are reflected as net
investment income in the accompanying financial statements.

Restricted cash is held based on agreed upon reserve requirements from external parties.

Accounts Receivable

Exchange receivables due from customers are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal terms
requiring payment within 30 days from the invoice date. Exchange receivables are stated at the amount billed to
the customer. The Company charges interest on overdue customer account balances at a rate of 10%. Payments

of exchange receivables are allocated to the specific billings identified on the customer's billings summary, or, if
unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid billing.

30



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

The District considers receivables at June 30, 2025 to be fully collectible; therefore, no allowance for doubtful
accounts is required. Any accounts receivable which are subsequently deemed uncollectible will be expensed at
that time. The District makes no provision for estimated uncollectible and valorem taxes receivable. Adequate
legal remedies are presently available to enforce the collection of such taxes and any taxes which may prove
uncollectible should not be material in amount.

Due from Other Governments
Amounts due from other governments are for billing adjustments received by the District after year-end.
Material Inventory

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental funds
are recorded as expenditures when purchased.

Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, erosion
control improvements and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Infrastructure prior to July 1, 2003, is excluded from
these numbers. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Structure and improvements 27-35
Utility plant 3-50
Transmission and distribution mains 8-75
Equipment 3-35
Infrastructure 10-50

31



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Right to use leased assets are recognized at the lease commencement date and represent the District’s right to
use an underlying asset for the lease term. Right to use leased assets are measured at the initial value of the
lease liability plus any payments made to the lessor before commencement of the lease term, less any lease
incentives received from the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term, plus any initial direct
costs necessary to please the lease asset into service. Right to use leased assets are amortized over the shorter
of the lease term or useful lives of the underlying asset using the straight-line method. The amortization period
varies from 2 to 5 years.

Impairment

The District reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events and
circumstances indicated that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future
cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In case where undiscounted expected future
cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which the
carrying value exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in performing this
assessment include current operating results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the property is used,
and the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors. Based on this assessment,
there was no impairment at June 30, 2025.

Loans Payable

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements.

In the enterprise funds, compensated absences are recorded when the liabilities are incurred. In the
governmental funds, vested or accumulated compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental
fund that will pay it.

Vacation may be accumulated by employees up to certain maximums and is payable upon retirement or
termination. Employees with over five years of service receive accrued sick pay at 50% of their current hourly
rate upon retirement or termination. The financial statements reflect the accrual for compensated absences for
leave that has not been used, to the extent it is more likely than not that the leave will be used or paid at
termination.

32



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Grant Revenue

The District receives grant monies from other governmental entities. Grant revenue for the water line
replacement project is reported and accounted for in the Water Utility Fund. Grant revenue from other activities
is reported in the applicable fund when expended. Grant revenue is recognized when qualifying expenditures
are incurred.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, a separate section is reported for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a
future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The
District reports deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB on the government wide and
proprietary fund statements of net position.

In addition to liabilities, a separate section is reported for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a
future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District reports
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB on the government wide and proprietary fund
statements of net position and related to unavailable revenue on the governmental funds balance sheet.

Fund Equity

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is classified as net position and
displayed as follows:

Net Investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets and leases, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization and related debt, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted net position — consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by (1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or (2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The District has restricted amounts for deposits which
are restricted by the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, as well as a capital asset reserve that is required by the
grant agreement with the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection.

Unrestricted net position — all other net position that does not meet the definition of “net investment in capital
assets” or “restricted.”

The District’s policy is to first apply expenditures against restricted net position balances and then unrestricted
balances.

In the year ended June 30, 2025, the Board designated that funds be designated for the future budgeted
purchases of vehicles. Amounts are designated as follows: $404,298 in the general fund, $205,632 in the snow
removal fund, and $16,471 in the sewer fund.

33



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

In the governmental fund financial statement, fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — represents amounts that are either not in a spendable form or are legally or contractually
required to remain intact. Prepaid expenses are reported as nonspendable fund balances.

Restricted — represents amounts which can be spent only for specific purposes because of state or federal laws,
or externally imposed conditions. Capital asset reserves are reported as restricted fund balances.

Committed — represents amounts which can be used only for specific purposes determined by the members of
the governing Board’s formal action through a resolution or action. The District has committed fund balances of
$609,930 related to board designated amounts for future budgeted purchases of vehicles.

Assigned — represents amounts that are intended by the District for specific purposes but do not require action
by the governing Board. The District’s assigned funds represent the full fund balances assigned for next year’s
budget deficit and for future snow removal services.

Unassigned — represents all amounts not included in other classifications.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available,
the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which
committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent
first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Board of
Directors has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees'
Retirement System of Nevada (PERS) and additions to/deductions from PERS's fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Self Insurance
Trust Fund, Public Employees’ Benefits Program (PEBP) and additions to/deductions from PEBP's fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PEBP. For this purpose, PEBP
recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. PEBP’s cash and cash
equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments that are both (a) readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and (b) so near to materiality that they present insignificant risk of changes in value due to
charging interest rates.

34



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

As of June 30, 2025, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The provisions of
this standard modernize the types of leave that are considered a compensated absence and provides guidance
for a consistent recognition and measurement of the compensated absence liability. There was not a significant
effect of the District’s financial statements as a result of the implementation of this standard.

As of June 30, 2025, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures, which requires
management to evaluate whether there are risks related to a government’s vulnerabilities due to certain
concentrations or constraints that require disclosure. There was not a significant effect of the District’s financial
statements as a result of the implementation of this standard.

Note 2- Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative Code

The District conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration for the year ended
June 30, 2025.

Note 3- Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The budget document is compiled pursuant to the Local Government Budget Act set forth in Chapter 354 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes. These statutes have provisions for preparation, filing, notice, public hearing, and
adoption in connection with the budgetary process for Nevada local governments. Budgets for all funds are
adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), as applied to government
units. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Budgets are required by law for all governmental fund
types and proprietary fund types. Expenditures may not legally exceed budget appropriations at the fund or
function level; for proprietary funds, expenditures include operating and non-operating expenses only.

35



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Note 4 - Cash and Investments
Cash and Deposits

The District maintains one common checking account and a temporary cash investment account for all funds.
Detail of cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2025, is as follows:

Petty cash S 500
Cash in checking 631,345
Total cash 631,845
Held by Douglas County 2,424
Fixed Income Securities 2,133,190
State of Nevada Local Government
Investment Pool (valued at NAV) 19,813,677
Total cash and investments and cash and investments - restricted $ 22,581,136

The District’s fixed income securities all have investment maturities in 1-5 years.
Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

In the case of deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits
may not be returned to it. The bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to an aggregate of $250,000, with $348,714 not covered by FDIC insurance at June 30, 2025.

The District’s policy is to voluntarily participate in the Nevada State Collateral Pool for public fund deposits. The
collateral pool is administered and monitored by the Nevada State Treasurer’s Office. Due to its participation in
the Nevada State Collateral Pool, the District’s deposits were primarily insured and collateralized.

Pooled Investment Funds

Pooled investment funds consist of cash deposited in the interest-bearing State of Nevada’s Local Government
Investment Pool. Investments are recorded at fair value. The State of Nevada Local Government Investment
Pool is an unrated external investment pool that does not provide information on realized or unrealized gain or
loss activity. Accordingly, changes in the investment pool are reflected as net investment income in the
accompanying financial statements.

Earnings and realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the Combined Statement of Revenue,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance and the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund
Equity, captioned as investment income.

36



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Interest rate risk — Interest rate risk is the risk of possible reduction in the value of a security, especially a bond,
resulting from a rise in interest rates. This risk can be mitigated by diversification of durations of fixed rate
investments held in the investment portfolio. State statute limits investment in bills and notes of the U.S.
Treasury, along with obligations of an agency of the U.S. or a corporation sponsored by the U.S. government to
those maturating within ten years from the date of purchase. The weighted average maturity of the District’s
investments is less than three years.

Credit risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations and is a function of the credit quality ratings of investments. The District follows State statute for
reducing exposure to investment credit risk by investing in U.S. Agency securities.

The District is invested in the Local Government Investment Pool as of June 30, 2025. The LGIP operates under
NRS and is administered by the Office of the State Treasurer. The LGIP invests in securities as allowed by statute.
The LGIP is valued at NAV and therefore is not valued according to the hierarchy. At June 30, 2025, the LGIP had
a weighted average maturity of 49.5 days. The District is able to withdraw funds on a daily basis and has no
outstanding commitments as of June 30, 2025.

The fair value of the pooled investments deposited in the State of Nevada’s Local Government Investment Pool
is equal to the value of the pool shares. At June 30, 2025, the carrying amount of $19,813,677 is recorded at fair
value, and the various funds of the Kingsbury General Improvement District in the State of Nevada’s Local
Government Investment Pool was approximately 88% of the District’s total cash and investment balance.

The District’s deposits are maintained in recognized pooled investment funds under the care of oversight
agencies. The State of Nevada’s Local Government Investment Pool is administered by the Office of the State
Treasurer. In addition, the Local Government Investment Pool has an Investment Committee and is subject to
annual audits.

Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. The District does not have any investments that are measured using Level 3 inputs.

As of June 30, 2025, the District had the following recurring fair value measurements:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
instruments by fair value level
U.S. agencies S 2,133,190 S - $ 2,133,190 S -
Total investment measured
at fair value $ 2,133,190 S - $ 2,133,190 S -

37



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used by the District for its Level 2 assets:

U.S. agencies — Valued using matrix pricing and market corroborated pricing models.

Note 5- Fixed Assets

A summary of changes in general fixed assets in the governmental activities follows:

Deletions/
July 1, 2024 Additions Transfers June 30, 2025
Capital assets, being depreciated
Equipment and vehicles $ 1,444,348 S 2,568 ) 11,256 S 1,458,172
Office equipment 30,386 621 (131) 30,876
Land 126,482 - - 126,482
Infrastructure 13,137,008 679 (11,006) 13,126,681
Construction in progress (infrastructure) 276,610 367,248 (119) 643,739
Total capital assets, being depreciated 15,014,834 371,116 - 15,385,950
Less accumulated depreciation {(9,096,890) (442,531) - (9,539,421)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 5,917,944 (71,415) - 5,846,529
Right to use leased assets, being amortized
Buildings and improvements 15,594 - - 15,594
Furniture and equipment 3,223 - - 3,223
Total right to use leased assets,
being amortized 18,817 - - 18,817
Less accumulated amortization (17,989) (430) - (18,419)
Total right to use leased assets,
being amortized, net 828 (430) - 398
Governmental activities capital assets, net S 5,918,772 ) (71,845) S - S 5,846,927

The General Fund and Snow Removal Special Fund are the sources of funds for the acquisition of general fixed
assets.

38



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2025

A summary of business-type activities property, plant and equipment for the year ended June 30, 2025 follows:

Deletions/
July 1, 2024 Additions Transfers June 30, 2025
Equipment and vehicles S 5,796,738 S 82,008 S 199,280 S 6,078,026
Infrastructure 62,620,978 1,206,522 1,208,134 65,035,634
Ozone facility 808,433 42,086 - 850,519
Construction in progress 2,758,529 1,474,195 (1,475,324) 2,757,400
71,984,678 2,804,811 (67,910) 74,721,579
Less accumulated depreciation (24,754,068) (1,562,134) 14,021 (26,302,181)
Property, plant, and
equipment, net 47,230,610 1,242,677 (53,889) 48,419,398
Right to use leased assets, being amortized
Buildings and improvements 140,347 - - 140,347
Furniture and equipment 29,009 - - 29,009
Total right to use leased assets,
being amortized 169,356 - - 169,356
Less accumulated amortization (161,931) (3,874) - {165,805)
Total right to use leased assets,
being amortized, net 7,425 (3,874) - 3,551
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 47,238,035 S 1,238,803 S (53,889) S 48,422,949

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as

follows:

Governmental activities
Highways and streets
Snow removal

Total depreciation and amortization expense, governmental activities

Business-type activities
Water
Sewer

Total depreciation and amortization expense, business-type activities

Depreciation

Amortization

$ 379,466 S 215
63,065 215
$ 442,531 S 430
$ 1,463,639 $ 2,583
98,495 1,291
$ 1,562,134 $ 3,874

39



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Note 6 - Compensated Absences

The following schedule summarizes the changes in accrued compensated absences:

Beginning of year S 127,114
Net Change (56,880)
End of year S 70,234
Due within one year $ 64,422

Note 7- Loans Payable

In November 2007, the District entered into an additional loan contract with the State of Nevada in order to
construct projects for the public water system. The maximum amount available from the “Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund” is $3,000,000. Interest on any loan funds disbursed shall accrue at 2.96% and is payable
semiannually on January 1st and luly 1st of each year. Principal payments shall be made semiannually on
January 1st and July 1st, commencing on the January 1st or July 1st immediately following the date the District
draws the maximum authorized (i.e., $3,000,000) under the loan contract, the date the District completes the
project, or three years from the date of the initial principal advance under the loan contract, whichever occurs
first. In connection with the loan, the District delivered a $3,000,000 bond to the State Treasurer as collateral in
the event of default by the District. The District received a grant to fund 61.9% of the water capital projects and
used the loan proceeds to fund 38.1% of the project. As of June 30, 2025, the District had outstanding $565,695
in loan proceeds, which is the legal amount outstanding.

In June 2010, the District entered into an additional loan contract with the State of Nevada in order to construct
projects for the public water system. The maximum amount available from the “Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund” is $3,306,650. Interest on any loan funds disbursed shall accrue at 2.85% and is payable semiannually on
January 1st and July 1st of each year. Principal payments shall be made semiannually on January 1st and July 1st,
commencing on the January 1st or July 1st immediately following the date the District draws the maximum
authorized (i.e., $3,306,650) under the loan contract, the date the District completes the project, or three years
from the date of the initial principal advance under the loan contract, whichever occurs first. In connection with
the loan, the District delivered a $3,306,650 bond to the State Treasurer as collateral in the event of default by
the District. The District used the loan proceeds to fund 100% of this project, which is related to the installation
of water meters. As of June 30, 2025, the District had outstanding $1,022,927 in loan proceeds, which is the
legal amount outstanding.

40



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

In March 2012, Kingsbury General Improvement District obtained a low-interest, subsidized loan from the State
of Nevada State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000. On October 29, 2014, the
loan amount was increased to $11,000,000. Interest on any loan funds disbursed shall accrue at 2.39% and is
payable semiannually on January 1st and July 1st of each year. Principal payments shall be made semiannually
on January 1st and July 1st, commencing on January 1st or July 1st immediately following the date the District
draws the maximum authorized (i.e., $11,000,000) under the loan contract, the date the District completes the
project, or three years from the date of the initial principal advance under the loan contract, whichever occurs
first. The loan is secured by a general obligation bond of $11,000,000 issued to the Nevada State Treasurer in
the event of default by the District. This loan will provide 80% funding of the Water Treatment Plant
improvements. As of June 30, 2025, the District had drawn the entire loan and outstanding 55,094,698 in loan
proceeds, which is the legal amount outstanding.

In January 2015, Kingsbury General Improvement District obtained an additional low interest subsidized loan
from the State of Nevada State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $6,000,000. Interest on
any loan funds disbursed shall accrue at 2.28% and is payable semiannually on January 1st and July 1st of each
year. Principal payments shall be made semiannually on January 1st and July 1st, commencing on the

January 1st or July 1st immediately following the date the District draws the maximum authorized (i.e.,
$6,000,000) under the loan contract, the date the District completes the project, or three years from the date of
the initial principal advance under the loan contract, whichever occurs first. The loan is secured by a general
obligation bond of $6,000,000 issued to the Nevada State Treasurer and is recorded in the water utility fund in
the event of default by the District. The loan, which supplements the 2012 loan, will fund approximately 80% of
the Water Treatment Plant improvements. As of June 30, 2025, the District had drawn the entire loan and
outstanding $3,466,532 in loan proceeds, which is the legal amount outstanding.

The following schedule summarizes the changes in long-term debt:

Beginning Ending Current
Direct Borrowings Balance Additions Payments Balance Portion
State of Nevada

$3,000,000 S 780,592 S (214,897) $ 565,695 S 221,304
$3,306,650 1,210,710 (187,783) 1,022,927 193,173
$11,000,000 5,755,783 (661,085) 5,094,698 676,981
$6,000,000 3,771,900 (305,368) 3,466,532 312,369
$ 11,518,985 S (1,369,133) $ 10,149,852 S 1,403,827

41



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

The annual requirements to amortize the existing balances drawn on the loans are as follows:

Direct Borrowings

Fiscal Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2026 S 1,403,827 S 237,915 S 1,641,742
2027 1,439,409 202,331 1,641,740
2028 1,357,694 165,837 1,523,531
2029 1,271,635 133,684 1,405,319
2030 1,302,817 259,091 1,561,908
2031-2035 3,374,470 6,563 3,381,033

$ 10,149,852 $ 1,005,421 $ 11,155,273

Interest expense totaled $255,444 for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Note 8 - GASB 87 Leases

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the District determines (1) the discount rate it uses
to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments. The District
uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. When the interest rate charged by the lessor is
not provided, the District generally uses the US Treasury monthly average rate at the beginning of the fiscal year
based on the term length with an adjustment for the risk-free rate. The lease term included the non-cancellable
period of the lease. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are composed of fixed
payments and purchase option price that the District is reasonably certain to exercise. The District monitors
changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will remeasure any lease asset
and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease liability.
Lease assets are reported as right to use along with other capital assets. Lease liabilities are reported with debt
on the statement of net position.

The District has entered into an agreement to lease office equipment with initial terms of 60 months. The lease
terminates May 2026. During the year, the District recorded $4,386 in amortization expenses and $123 in
interest expense. The District used a discount rate of 2% based on the US Treasury monthly average rate based
on the term length as described above.

Remaining obligations associated with these leases are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2026 S 4,099 S 35 S 4,134

42



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Long-term lease liability activity is summarized as follows:

July 1, 2024 Additions Deletions June 30, 2025

Equipment $ 8,485 S - $ (4386) S 4,099

Note 9- Segment Information for Enterprise Funds

The District maintains two Enterprise Funds which provide water and sewer services. Segment information is
detailed in the basic financial statements on pages 22-26.

Note 10 - Pensions
General Information About the Pension Plan

Plan Description

The District contributes to the Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS). PERS
administers a cost sharing, multiple employers, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system which
includes both Regular and Police/Fire members. PERS was established by the Nevada Legislature in 1947,
effective July 1, 1948, PERS is administered to provide a reasonable base income to qualified employees who
have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed or substantially
impaired by age or disability.

Benefits Provided

Benefits, as required by Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the number of years of
accredited service at time of retirement and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive
months with special provisions for members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010 and July 1, 2015. Benefit
payments to which participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan include pension benefits,
disability benefits, and survivor benefits.

Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed at 2.5 percent of average compensation for each
accredited year of service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on or after July 1, 2001, this multiplier is
2.67% of average compensation. For members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.50%
service time factor. Regular members entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015, have a 2.25% multiplier for all years
of service. PERS offers several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general,
allow the retired employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her
lifetime and various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death.

43



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 — 286.579.
Vesting

Regular members entering PERS prior to January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of
service, at age 60 with 10 years of service, or at any age with 30 years of service. Regular members entering
PERS on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, or age 62 with 10
years of service, or any age with 30 years of service. Regular members entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015, are
eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or at 55 with 30 years
of service, or at any age with 33 1/3 years of service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a
member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of
average compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon
completion of five years of service.

Contributions

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution
rates, is set by statute. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan prior
to July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution plans. One plan provides for matching
employee and employer contributions, while the other plan provides for employer-pay contributions only.
Under the matching Employee/Employer Contribution plan a member may, upon termination of service for
which contribution is required, withdraw employee contributions which have been credited to their account. All
membership rights and active service credit in the System are canceled upon withdrawal of contributions from
the member’s account. If EPC was selected, the members cannot convert to the Employee/Employer
Contribution plan.

PERS’ basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a percentage of salary
throughout an employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates required to fund PERS
on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the required rates established

by the Nevada Legislature. These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286.421 and 286.450.

The actuary funding method used is the entry age actuarial cost method. It is intended to meet the funding
objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage of salary.

44



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Statutory Employer/employee matching rate was 19.25%
and 17.50%, respectively, for Regular employees. The Employer-pay contribution (EPC) rate was 36.75% and
33.50%, respectively, for June 30, 2025 and 2024 for Regular employees.

The District’s contributions were $168,686 for the year ended June 30, 2025.
PERS Investment Policy
PERS’ policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the PERS

Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of the
System. The following was the PERS Board adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30, 2024:

Target
Asset Class Allocation Long-Term Geometric Expected Rate of Return*
U.S. Stocks 42% 5.50%
International Stocks 18% 5.50%
U.S. Bonds 28% 0.75%
Private Markets** 12% 6.65%

*As of June 30, 2024, PERS' long-term inflation assumption was 2.50%.
**As of June 30, 2024, the private markets allocation includes 6% private real estate and 6% private equity.

Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2025, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2024, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of the net
pension liability of $1,921,901 was based on the District’s share of contributions to the PERS pension plan
relative to the total contributions of all participating PERS employers and members. At June 30, 2024, the
District’s proportion was 0.01064 percent, which was a decrease of 0.00070 percent from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2023.

Pension Liability Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following presents the net pension liability of the District as of June 30, 2025, calculated using the discount
rate of 7.25%, as well as what the District’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25%) than the current discount
rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
Net pension liability S 3,090,706 S 1,921,901 S 957,688

45



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the PERS Comprehensive
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (“ACFR”), available on the PERS website. Additional information
supporting the schedule of employer allocations and the schedule of pension amounts by employer is located in
the PERS ACFR.

Actuarial Assumptions

The District’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2024, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total pension
liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

Payroll growth 3.50%

Investment rate of return/discount rate 7.25%

Productivity pay increase 0.50%

Projected salary increases Regular: 4.20% to 9.10%, depending on service
Consumer price index 2.50%

Other assumptions Same as those used in the June 30, 2024 funding

actuarial valuation

Mortality rates for healthy regular members and contingent beneficiaries were based on Pub-2010 General
Healthy Retiree Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table with rates increased by 30% for males and
15% for females. For ages before age 40, mortality rates are based on Pub-2010 General Employee Amount-
Weighted Above-Median Mortality Tables. For ages 40 through 50, the rates were smoothed between the above
tables. Mortality rates for disabled regular members based on Pub-1020 Non-Safely Disabled Retiree Amount-
Weighted Mortality Table with rates increased by 20% for males and 15% for females.

Mortality rates for current beneficiaries were based on Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor Amount-Weighted Above
Median Mortality Table with rates increased by 15% for males and 30% for females. For ages before age 35,
mortality rates are based on Pub-2010 General Employee Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table. For
ages 35 through 45, the rates were smoothed between the above tables.

Mortality rates for pre-retirement regular members were based on Pub-2010 General Employee Amount-
Weighted Above- Median Mortality Table.

The mortality tables were projected generationally with the two-dimensional mortality improvement scale MP-
2020.

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2024, valuation were based on the results of the experience study
issued September 10, 2021.

46



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25% as of June 30, 2024. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan contributions will be made in amounts
consistent with statutory provisions and recognizing the plan’s current funding policy and cost-sharing
mechanism between employers and members. For this purpose, all contributions that are intended to fund
benefits for all plan members and their beneficiaries are included, except the projected contributions that are
intended to fund the service costs for future plan members and their beneficiaries are not included.

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability as of June 30, 2024.

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the District recognized pension expense of $155,467. Amounts resulting from
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2025. At June 30, 2025, the District reported deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S 407,732 S -
Changes of assumptions 124,015 -
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments - 189,335
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 46,832 198,666
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 168,686 -

S 747,265 S 388,001

The $168,686 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, resulting from District
contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
in the year ended June 30, 2025.

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through
PERS (active and inactive employees) is 5.64 years.

47



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Other estimated amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, excluding contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Fiscal Years Ending June 30,

2025 S 8,652
2026 208,924
2027 (13,189)
2028 (33,515)
2029 19,706
S 190,578

Additional Information — Additional information supporting the Schedule of Employer Allocations and the
Schedule of Pension Amounts by Employer is located in the PERS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
available on the PERS website at www.nvpers.org under Quick Links — Publications.

Note 11 - Other Post-Employment Retirement Obligation (OPEB)
Plan Description and Eligibility

NRS 287.023 allows retired employees of governmental entities with the State of Nevada to join the State’s
Public Employee Benefit Program (PEBP), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered
by a nine-member governing board. PEBP provides medical, prescription, vision, life and accident insurance, and
dental for retirees. The Plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established
to account for the Plan and no individual financial reports are issued.

Eligibility and subsidy requirements are governed by statutes of the State of Nevada and can only be amended
through legislation. The statutes were revised effective of November 30, 2008, to create new participation
limitations so that only active members of PEBP can elect coverage after retirement. Based on the statute
revision, former employees and retirees must have retired and joined PEBP by September 1, 2008, to elect PEBP
membership unless the District is currently utilizing PEBP’s as its health insurance provider.

Benefits provided

PEBP provides medical, dental, vision, mental health and substance abuse and also offers fully insured HMO
products. Long-term disability and life insurance benefits are fully insured by outside carriers.

48



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Employees covered by benefit terms

At June 30, 2025, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 3
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefit payments -
Active plan members 4

7
Contributions

Per NRS 287 contribution requirements of the participating entities and covered employees are established and
may be amended by the PEBP Board. The Boards’ contractually required contribution for the year ended

June 30, 2025 was $15,927, actuarially determined as an amount that is expected to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year. Employees are not required to contribute to the OPEB plan.

Total OPEB Liability
The District's total OPEB liability of $422,795 was measured as of June 30, 2025.
Actuarial assumptions and other inputs

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2025 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation rate 2.50%

Salary increases 3.00%, including inflation

Health care trend rates 9.30% in 2026, fluctuating down to 3.90% by 2075
Retiree's share of benefit-related costs All retirees currently covered by the PEBP are assumed

to retain their existing election until death

The discount rate was based on the yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.

Mortality rates were based on Pub-2010 mortality table for males and females projected 18 years; this
assumption does not include a margin for future improvements in longevity.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2025 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study issued September 2021.

49



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability:

Balance, June 30, 2024 S 640,356
Changes for year
Service cost 18,669
Interest 25,587
Differences between expected and
actual experience (186,065)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (59,825)
Benefit payments (15,927)
Net changes {217,561)
Balance, June 30, 2025 S 422,795

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.20 percent) or
1-percentage-point higher (6.20 percent) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
4.20% 5.20% 6.20%
Net OPEB liability S 471,861 S 422,795 S 381,727

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or
1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Health Care
Cost Trend
1% Decrease Rates 1% Increase
Net OPEB liability S 377,397 S 422,795 S 477,361

50



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the District recognized an OPEB benefit of $16,387. The table below shows
deferred resources as of the year ended June 30, 2025:

Deferred Deferred

QOutflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Changes of assumptions ) - S 119,544
Differences between expected and actual experience 44,805 164,924

S 44,805 S 284,468

Future recognition of these deferred resources is shown below:

Fiscal Years Ending June 30,

2026 $ (73,414)
2027 (105,136)
2028 (60,621)
2029 (492)
2030 -

$  (239,663)

Note 12 - Commitments

On Sept. 17, 2024, the District extended Summit Plumbing’s existing contract with five-year Sanitary Sewer
System Service Contract with a contract period of Oct. 1, 2024, through Sept. 30, 2029, in the amount of
$765,269 with approved hourly rates for force account work. As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred $131,443
for this work.

On June 13, 2023, the District approved an Agreement for Legal Services with Minden Lawyers, LLC. For a term
of three (3) years commencing July 1, 2023, with a monthly retainer amount payable of $2,500 and an hourly
rate of $310/hr. As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred $64,119 for this work.

On Sept. 20, 2022, the District approved a three-year Snow Removal Contract with Manchester Enterprises, Inc.
on a time and material basis with minimum guaranteed annual payments of $315,000 for fiscal year 2022/2023,
$250,000 for fiscal year 2023/2024, $250,000 for fiscal year 2024/2025, plus any fuel surcharges. The contract
period is September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2025, with optional annual extensions with minimum annual
payments of $235,000. As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred $384,905 for this work.

51



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

On April 20, 2021, the District approved an IT management contract with Pac States Integrated Business
Technology for services related to IT management service office server/computers, backup etc. with a monthly
amount payable of $1,132 and a onetime setup fee $1,755. In December 2021 the monthly amount payable
increased to $1,223 to include email security and then 6/2025 increase to $1,246 to include web version of
Office apps. As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred $15,873 for this work.

On June 22, 2021, the District approved an employment contract with the General Manager, Mitchell S. Dion, for
a term of three (3) years beginning July 26, 2021, and ending June 30, 2024. On August 15, 2023, the District
approved a 5% percent increase in salary and then on September 19,2023 extended his contract to June
30,2025. On January 17, 2025, Dion retired from his position. As of January 17, 2025, the General Manager
salary is $116,878.

On May 22, 2025, the District approved an employment contract with the General Manager, Derrek Dornbrook
for a term of three (3) years beginning May 1, 2025, and ending April 30, 2028. As of June 30, 2025, the District
incurred $22,982 for this work.

On June 15, 2021, the District approved an engineering services agreement with Dowl Engineering for services
related to Sewer Master Plan for an amount not to exceed $172,500 As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred
$128,581 for this work.

On December 13, 2022, the District approved a professional services agreement with Resource Concepts Inc. for
services related to Pump Station 3 Rehabilitation for an amount not to exceed $24,500 As of June 30, 2025, the
District incurred $8,123 for this work.

On March 21, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for
services related to Market Street Lift Station Repairs and Renovation for an amount not to exceed $113,000 As
of June 30, 2025, the District incurred $13,527 for this work.

On April 18, 2023, the District approved an audit proposal for audit services for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2023, 2024, and 2025 (with possible two one-year extensions) in the amounts of $50,000, respectively for each
of the three fiscal years and reimbursement of necessary out of pocket expenses amounts for travel and other
expenditures in accordance with the proposal. As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred $55,660 for this work.

On June 13, 2023, the District approved an award of a construction contract to Group West Construction Inc for
the 160 Pine Ridge Building Renovation and Repair in an amount not to exceed $2,349,067. On November
14,2023, the District approved change orders for bay doors and siding repairs in the amount of $23,264. Then on
April 16. 2024, the District approved window and door replacements in the amount of $72,509, which brings the
total not to exceed $2,444,840. As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred $2,474,839 for this work.

On July 18, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for services

related to 2024 Waterline and Road Repair and Renovation Project for an amount not to exceed $365,042 As of
June 30, 2025, the District incurred $263,884 for this work.

52



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

On July 18, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with Eastern Sierra Engineering for
services related to 2024 Waterline and Road Repair and Renovation Project for an amount not to exceed
$112,234 As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred $83,543 for this work.

On September 19, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for
services related to Ponderosa MHP Water System for an amount not to exceed $322,069 As of June 30, 2025,
the District incurred $336,716 for this work.

On September 19, 2023, the District approved an imaging contract and services agreement with Precision
Document Imaging for services related to scan documents, index and shred approx. 200 boxes, and document
storage access for an amount not to exceed $132,605 As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred $31,445 for this
work.

On November 14, 2023, the District approved professional service with Eastern Sierra for services related to
Stormwater Masterplan for an amount not to exceed $4,000 As of June 30, 2025, the District had not incurred
any costs for this work.

On February 20, 2024, the District approved a procurement contract with Western Nevada Supply for services
related to FY 2023-2024 Waterline Replacement Material for an amount not to exceed $718,923 As of June 30,
2025, the District incurred $720,425 for this work.

On April 9, 2024, the District awarded a construction contract with Aspen Developers Corporation for the 2024-
2025 Water Main Replacement Project for an amount not to exceed $4,195,665. Then on July 16, 2024, the
District approved an additional amount of $52,560 to include previous years project not completed asphalt
sealing & coating bringing the amount to a total of $4,248,225. As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred
Ponderosa MHP $1,789,783 and Tramway & Tina $1,331,049 for this work.

On May 21, 2024, the District approved a services agreement with Jacobs Engineering for services related to On
Call Treatment Plant Scada for an amount not to exceed $25,000. Then on July 16, 2024, the District approved
an additional amount of $75,000 for this service bringing the amount to a total of $100,000. As of June 30, 2025,
the District incurred $27,103 for this work.

On June 18, 2024, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for services
related to FY 25/26 Waterline Replacement Project for an amount not to exceed $975,556 As of June 30, 2025,
the District incurred $297,762 for this work.

On June 18, 2024, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for services
related to FY 25/26 Road Surface Repair and Renovation Project for an amount not to exceed $328,217 As of
June 30, 2025, the District incurred $115,855 for this work.

On September 17, 2024, the District approved a Geotech services agreement with Eastern Sierra Engineering for

services related to FY 25-26 Waterline and Road improvement Project for an amount not to exceed $99,020. As
of June 30, 2025, the District incurred $56,708 for this work.

53



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

On September 17, 2024, the District approved permit and design agreement with RPM for services related to
Equipment & Storage Facility at the Operations Yard for an amount not to exceed $59,500. As of June 30, 2025,
the District incurred $47,600 for this work.

On September 17, 2024, the District approved sprung structure materials with Sprung Structure for services
related to Equipment & Storage Facility at the Operations Yard for an amount not to exceed $409,235. As of
June 30, 2025, the District incurred $3,500 for this work.

On September 17, 2024, the District approved sprung structure construction with IT2 Construction for services
related to Equipment & Storage Facility at the Operations Yard for an amount not to exceed $557,730. As of
June 30, 2025, the District had not incurred any cost for this work.

On December 17, 2024, the District approved a Proposal with Summit Plumbing for services related to Holly
Lane Water Line Replacement for an amount not to exceed $38,000. As of June 30, 2025, the District had not
incurred any costs for this work.

On April 15, 20225, the District approved an award of a construction contract to Sierra Nevada Construction for
the FY25 Road Replacement & Rehabilitation Project in an amount not to exceed $1,814,007. As of June 30,
2025, the District had not incurred any costs for this work.

On June 17, 20225, the District approved an integration proposal with Springbrook Holding Company LLC for

Springbrook Finance Software in an amount not to exceed $73,580. As of June 30, 2025, the District had not
incurred any costs for this work.

54



SS

%0T'GL RECTL %0t L %vT'SL %97°9L %P0 LL %1598 %CT'SL %9T°9L %IT'8L Aupgey uoisuad [e303 auy Jo
agdejusosad e se uofysod 1ou Asednply ueld
%SET6T %TTH2T %LT°60T %TTLCL %L8°00Z %€9'L6T %C0'6CT %EQLYT %26'LET %EEETT JlosAed pasanod
s) jo a8ejuaouad e se Ayjiqel|
uojsuad 19U Iy} JO dJeys ajeuoipodasd
66T'v8L €10°T6L TIV'v6L 299'858 760628 PEV'PY8 TTL'618 £99'v06 £88'698 106006 llo1Aed paJanod
9/€'80S'T $ BELTLLT $  UBY'TIIT ¢ 99E°GOLT $  9SE'S99'T §  €/8'899T ¢ 6T9USOT $ 8SLYEZ'T $  999'690°T §  TOETTET $ Aujigey) uoisuad
19U 3Y) JO aleys aleuoiodosd
%9TETO0 %LIETOQ %0STT0°0 %Y6210°0 %12C10°0 %86110°0 %09110°0 %8ETTO0 %VETTO0 %¥9010°0 Awpigey uoisuad 1ou ay3 jo uoiodold
ST0T 910t L10T 810C 6T0Z 0z0T 120T fa4ize €20t veoe

SIB3A |BISI4 UDL 1SET

Ajiger] uoisuad 19N ul saduey) Jo a|npayds
301151 Juswanosdw| |esauan Aingssury



99

N-IN0qY palySiap-Iunowy,
*535BaIoUI AJADNPOId pue uolle|jul 3pnjaul saley 'adIAIas uo Sulpuadaq 4,

0Z0Z-dN 935

v/N sieak 9 uanoalold (euonelauan juawanosduny Ayjerow ainng
aako|dw3 Ayojes pue
v/N AyyjeaH t102-dY PaIySIdm-unospeay |esaudD 0T0Z-qnd 2aAojdwi3 *IUBWRINRI-RId

ECTILTERTIENET
v/N AuyjeaH tT0Z-dY pawy3iam-Junodpeay pue JoamAINg JuaBUU0) 0T0Z-qNd *xSOUBYBUI JuaLIn)

paiysiapm-lunowly a1y pajgesiqg
a|qeL A{EUOI P3|qeSIa PRUIGWIOD 000Z-dY AuleaH pT0Z-dY PAIYBIEM-3UNoOpeaH Aiayes pue Aajes-uoN 0T0Z-qnd pajgesia

29ho|dw3 pue 234139y AyljesH )
ajqeL Ajeno\ AyesH pauiquiod 000Z-dY AujjesH £10Z-dY PaIYSIoAM-IunodpeaH Arajes pue [218Ua5 OTOZ-qNd A TLET
sajed Ajjeoy

STOZ - 9102 £102 - 020C 120 - +207
%0S°E %05°€ %SL'T %SL°T %SL'T %SLT %05°T %05T %057 %05'C Xapu| 3314d JaWNsuo)
%GL'601%09Y  %SLEO01%0TY  BSTEOIUSTY  %ST6OI%STY  %STBOIRSTY  %ST'EOI%STY  %OT'601%0TY  %OT'603%0TF  %OT'603%0TY  %OT'601%0TY xaseanu) Alejes paidafold
%SL'0 %SL0 %050 %0S°0 %050 %050 %050 %050 %05°0 %050 aseannul Aed AYARINPOLd
%008 %00°8 %05'L %0S°L %05, %05'L %STL %ST'L %STL %ST'L 914 JUNOIS|J/UINIBL JO 31 JUBWISBAU]
%00°'S %00°S %00'S %00'S %00'S %00'S %0S'E %05"€ %0S°€E %05°€ ymou3 |joshed
%0S'€ %0S°€ %SL'T %SL'T %SLT %SL'T %05'T %05°Z %05°C %052 218 uoneyu|
ST0Z 9107 LT0T 8102 6T0C 0z0¢ 1202 7702 €202 vZ0T :3|Npayds 0} SAJoN

SIE3A |BISI{ U] Ise]
Ayjigen uoisuad 12N ul saguey) Jo a|npayds
1013510 JuswaAosdw| [esudn Ainqgssur)y



LS

%S8'TT %0941 %96°ET %8T'HT %6L YT %8l %90°ST %1T°ST %86'9T %EC'LT [iosAed paJanod
J0 a8euadsad e se suoingiiuo)
SI0T6. $ TIY'WEL ¢ 799'8s8 ¢ T60'6T8 S vEVMY8 S TLI6T8  §  £99'W06 § /88698 $ 106006 $ 5L06.6 @ $ |losAed pa1aA0d 5301381
- s - s - $ - e [ s - S - [ [ $ (ssa0x@) AJual3lap UONUIUOD
(tvL'ee) (#00°9TT) {906°6TT) (ocs'stT) {998¥ZT) (88€°12T) (z1z'9eT) (6St'TET) {696TST) (989°891) uolINguIued pasinbas Ajenioelucd
2y} 0] UolERJ Ul suoIINgUIUCD)
TrL'E6 $ POO'9TT S 906%6TT $ OLSLTT  $  998%beT  $  8BETZT  $  TIT9ET  $  GSYTIET  §  696°TST  § 989891 S uolINgLu0d pasnbai Ajjenioeliuo)
9102

L102 8T0T 6T0¢C 0z0T T20e [4 4314 €702 ¥eoe S¢0T

SIB9A |edsiq ua] ise
uoISUdd — SUOIINGLIIUO) 40 3NPIYIS
P143SIQ JudwdAoLdw| |e4ausD Aungs3ury



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Schedule of Funding Progress — OPEB

June 30, 2025
Actuarial UAAL asa
Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (b) (b)-(a) (a/b) (c) ([b-a)/c)
June 30, 2025 S 422,795 S 422,795 0.00% S 382,436 110.55%
June 30, 2024 640,356 640,356 0.00% 325,201 196.91%
June 30, 2023 637,231 637,231 0.00% 374,124 170.33%
June 30, 2022 695,507 695,507 0.00% 404,854 171.79%
June 30, 2021 817,127 817,127 0.00% 558,847 146.22%
June 30, 2020 505,633 505,633 0.00% 437,302 115.63%
June 30, 2019 425,432 425,432 0.00% 503,544 84.49%
June 30, 2018 375,156 375,156 0.00% 710,271 52.82%

58



65

"3](B[IEAE S| UOIIBWLIOJU| UIIYM 1O SIBDA 3SOU 10} AJUO UoIIBWIOLU
Juasasd |IM 1913SIJ Y3 ‘D|qR|IEAR SI BIEP JO SIBBA UDY [1UN ‘JSAIMOH "3]gel SIy} U pajussald ag 01 UOHBWIOUL JO SIEIA US) s2JINbaJ G/ "ON JUBWRLeIS aSVD

%28'25 %6V 8 %EY'STT %zT9vT %6LTLT %EQ'T0T %16'96T %SS0TT [loJAed 3aA0jdWw3-paano) Jo
28e1ua2194 Y Se Alljiger] g340 |eioL
TL201L PPS€0S S qogLey S /¥885S S vS8'vov veT'vLE S T0T'sZe S  9Ep'Z8e S lloiAed @ako|dw3-paiano)
99T'SLE eSSy S €€9'50S S [TT'L18 s L05'669 168857 S 9se'0v9 S S6L'TeY S Suipu3 - Aujiqen 340 (el
8SvvTE 99T'SLE ev'sty €£9°50S LTTL18 LTT°418 TET'LEI 9G£'0v9 Buluuidag - Aujiger] 9340 |eoL
869°0S 9.2'0S 10208 Y6r'TTE {ozo'tzT) (9£2°8S) T4 (195°LT2) Aupngen g3do (elo) ul 28uey) 19N
(gev0T) {T8/'01) (G€9°9) {0zs'eT) (ror'eT) {5z9'8T) (850°£T) (£Z6'ST) sjuawAed 1gouag
TPy 9€9'8T 876°7S (558‘6Y) {egzTST) (zov't) (£92°T2) (sz8'69) syndur 12410 Jo suondwnsse ug saduey)
44K 14 vIZ1T ) 9TS'EVE - (E¥859) - (590°98T) 20Ua113dX3 jen)de pue
peyradxa usamiaq Saduaaid
Z9€'eT 6E6'VT Y9t'ST 30S°TT T0T'31 060'ST 259'€t £85°SZ 1s8493U|
PI8YT 897°9T $ st $  Sv8'et S 9veot ¥95°CC $ 86761 $ 69981 $ 51502 BDIAIRS
8107 6102 0207 TZ0T [&4Y4 £202 202 S202

«SIBIA |BOSIJ UD] 15€
soney pajejay pue Aljigen 9340 19N ul saBuey) Jo 3npayos
143SIQ JudwaAoadw| [essua9 Aings3uly



Supplementary Information
June 30, 2025

Kingsbury General Improvement District

eidebailly.com



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Schedule of Capital Assets by Sources
June 30, 2025

Governmental Fund Capital Assets

Equipment and vehicles $ 1,458,172
Office equipment 30,876
Land 126,482
Infrastructure 13,126,681
Construction in progress (infrastructure) 643,739
Total Governmental Fund Capital Assets S 15,385,950
Investment in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source
General Fund $ 14,406,235
Special Revenue Fund 979,715
Total Governmental Fund Capital Assets $ 15,385,950

60



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Capital Assets used in the Operations of Governmental Funds by Function and Activity

June 30, 2025
Equipment Construction
and Office in Progress
Function and Activity Vehicles Equipment Land Infrastructure {Infrastructure) Total
Streets and Highways S 850,458 S 21,233 S 32,558 S 11,796,047 S 569,154 $ 13,269,450
Snow Removal 607,714 9,643 93,924 193,849 74,585 979,715
Erosion Control - - - 1,136,785 - 1,136,785
Total Governmental Fund
Capital Assets S 1,458,172 S 30,876 S 126,482 S 13,126,681 S 643,739 S 15,385,950

61



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Changes in Capital Assets used in the Operations of Governmental Funds by Function and Activity

Year Ended June 30, 2025
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

Capital Assets Additions/ Deletions/ Capital Assets

Function and Activity July 1, 2024 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2025

Streets and Highways S 12,906,199 S 363,251 S 13,269,450

Snow Removal 971,850 7,865 979,715

Erosion Control 1,136,785 - 1,136,785
Total Governmental Funds

Capital Assets S 15,014,834 S 371,116 $ 15,385,950

62



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Revenue and Expenses — Budget and Actual — Sewer Utility Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2025

(with Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2024)

2025 2024
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Operating Revenue
Sewer use fees $ 1,870,298 $ 1,847,379 $ (22,919) S 1,841,822
Connection fees and other
revenue 9,200 23,129 13,929 62,427
Total operating revenue 1,879,498 1,870,508 (8,990) 1,904,249
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 216,570 166,853 49,717 159,600
Employee benefits 138,121 58,020 80,101 88,601
Services and supplies 1,802,340 1,534,865 267,475 1,452,031
Depreciation/amortization 62,176 99,786 (37,610) 85,080
Total operating expenses 2,219,207 1,859,524 359,683 1,785,312
Operating Income (339,709) 10,984 350,693 118,937
Nonoperating Income
interest income 176,808 185,727 8,918 211,568
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - - - -
Interest expense - (37) (37) (240)
Total nonoperating income 176,809 185,690 8,881 211,328
Change in Net Position $  (162,900) $ 196,674 S 359,574 S 330,265

63



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual — Sewer Utility Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2025
(with Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2024)

2025 2024
Budget Actual Variance Actual

Operating Activities

Cash received from customers S 1,879,498 S 1,883,630 S 4,132 S 1,863,653

Cash paid to employees (354,691) (242,962) 111,729 (228,058)

Cash paid to suppliers (1,802,340) (1,637,572) 164,768 (1,375,274)
Net Cash from (used for)

Operating Activities (277,533) 3,096 280,629 260,321
Capital and Related Financing Activities

Capital expenditures (520,000) (24,230) 495,770 (937,661)

Principal payments of

lease liabilities - (1,316) (1,316) (13,134)
Interest/amortization
paid on long-term debt - (37) (37) (240)

Net Cash used for Capital and

Related Financing Activities (520,000) (25,583) 494,417 (951,035)
Investing Activities

Interest on investments 176,809 185,727 8,918 211,568
Net Change in Cash and Cash

Equivalents (620,724) 163,240 783,964 {(479,146)
Cash and Cash Equivalents,

Beginning of Year 4,196,298 4,300,762 104,464 4,779,908
Cash and Cash Equivalents,

End of Year S 3,575,574 S 4,464,002 S 888,428 S 4,300,762

64



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Revenue and Expenses — Budget and Actual — Water Utility Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2025
(with Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2024)

Operating Revenue
Water fees
Connection fees
Other revenue

Total operating revenue
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Depreciationfamortization
Total operating expenses
Operating Income
Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)
Interest income
Gain on disposal of assets
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenue
(expenses)

Income Before Capital
Contributions

Capital Grants

Change in Net Position

2025 2024
Budget Actual Variance Actual
S 4,766,462 S 4,908,422 S 141,960 S 4,801,300
97,800 10,200 (87,600) 107,250
25,350 43,532 18,182 -
4,889,612 4,962,154 72,542 4,908,550
839,706 678,382 161,324 631,770
515,792 226,574 289,218 359,867
1,282,531 1,052,762 229,769 832,889
1,366,871 1,466,222 (99,351) 1,403,796
4,004,900 3,423,940 580,960 3,228,322
884,712 1,538,214 653,502 1,680,228
345,198 220,238 (124,960) 377,820
- (53,889) (53,889) (5,715)
(272,609) (264,690) 7,919 (300,544)
72,589 (98,341) (170,930) 71,561
957,301 1,439,873 482,572 1,751,789
2,350,000 962,213 {(1,387,787) 1,277,745
S 3,307,301 S 2,402,086 S (905,215) S 3,029,534

65



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual — Water Utility Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2025

(with Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2024)

2025 2024
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Operating Activities
Cash received from customers S 4,889,612 S 4,934,244 44,632 S 4,871,251
Cash paid to employees (1,355,498) (970,723) 384,775 (932,568)
Cash paid to suppliers (1,282,531) (1,379,590) (97,059) (521,227)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 2,251,583 2,583,931 332,348 3,417,456
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital expenditures (11,611,589) (2,780,581) 8,831,008 (5,080,394)
Proceeds from capital grants 6,100,000 2,218,912 (3,881,088) -
Principal payments of
long-term debt (1,369,133) (1,369,133) - (1,335,305)
Principal payments of
lease liabilities - (2,632) (2,632) (26,267)
Interest/amortization paid
on long-term debt (272,609) (272,683) {74) {300,763)
Net Cash used for Capital and
Related Financing Activities (7,153,331) (2,206,117) 4,947,214 (6,742,729)
Investing Activities
Interest on investments 345,198 220,238 (124,960) 377,820
Net Change in Cash and Cash
Equivalents (4,556,550) 598,052 5,154,602 (2,947,453)
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Beginning of Year 5,827,691 6,005,639 177,948 8,953,092
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
End of Year S 1,271,141 S 6,603,691 S 5,332,550 S 6,005,639

66



Eide
QBallly

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees
Kingsbury General Improvement District
Stateline, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, business-type activities and fund information of the Kingsbury General Improvement District
(the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated November 26, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2025-001 that we consider to be a material
weakness.

eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 » Reno, NV 89511-2094 o T 775.689.9100 » F775.689.9299 ¢ EOE

67



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

District’s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the District’s
response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses. The District’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

&qup

Reno, Nevada
November 26, 2025

68



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Schedule of Findings and Responses

June 30, 2025
2025-001 Internal Control over the Preparation of Financial Statements
Material Weakness
Criteria: Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective system

of internal control over financial reporting. One of the components of an
effective system of internal control over financial reporting is the preparation of
full disclosure financial statements that do not require adjustment as part of the
audit process, including any adjustments necessary.

Condition: The District does not have an internal control system designed to provide for
the preparation of the financial statements and related financial statement
disclosures in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
including recording necessary journal entries and ensuring all amounts are
properly recorded. In conjunction with the completion of our audit, we were
requested to draft the financial statements and accompanying notes to those
financial statements, and record cash to accrual conversion entries. Although
this circumstance is not unusual for an organization of your size, the preparation
of financial statements as a part of the audit engagement may result in financial
statements and related information included in financial statement disclosures
not being available for management purposes as timely as it would be if
prepared by Division personnel. It is the responsibility of management and
those charged with governance to determine whether to accept the risk
associated with this condition because of cost or other considerations.

Cause: Procedures have not been implemented to ensure District personnel possess
the experience to prepare the District’s full disclosure financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, including ensuring
that all necessary adjustments are recorded and amounts are properly
recorded.

Effect: The financial statements and related financial statement disclosures have been
prepared by the independent auditors.

Recommendation: We recommend that the District enhance internal controls over financial
reporting that would allow for District personnel to prepare the District’s full
disclosure financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, including ensuring that all necessary adjustments are
recorded and amounts are properly recorded.

Views of Responsible Officials: Management agrees with the finding.

69






Eide
Bailly

Auditors’ Comments

To the Board of Trustees
Kingsbury General Improvement District
Stateline, Nevada

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and fund information of the Kingsbury General Improvement District (the “District”) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, nothing came
to our attention that caused us to believe that the District failed to comply with the specific
requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward
obtaining knowledge of noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures other
matters may have come to our attention regarding the District’s noncompliance with the requirements
of Nevada Revised Statutes, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

Current Year Statute Compliance

The required disclosure on compliance with the Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative
Code is contained in Note 2 to the financial statements.

Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance

The District monitored all significant constraints on its financial administration during the year ended
June 30, 2024.

Current Year Recommendations
See the schedule of findings and responses for current year recommendations.
Progress on Prior Year Recommendations

Finding 2024-001 reported for the year ended June 30, 2024, continues as finding 2025-001 in the
current year.

@—M L7

Reno, Nevada
November 26, 2025

eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 ¢ Reno, NV 89511-2094 e T 775.689.9100 e F 775.689.9299 ¢ EOE

70



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #9

TITLE: FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING 510 LAUREL
LANE EASEMENT REQUEST AND RELATED ALTERNATIVES

MEETING DATE: 16 December 2025
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Select one of the following alternatives and authorize staff and legal counsel to proceed consistent with
Board direction:

1. Approve a Non-Exclusive Access Easement across the KGID-owned property at 510 Laurel
Lane, subject to final legal review, appraisal-based compensation, and execution of an agreement
acceptable to District counsel.

2. Approve the Sale of the KGID-Owned Property at 510 Laurel Lane, subject to legal review,
public notice requirements, appraisal, and execution of a purchase and sale agreement acceptable
to District counsel.

BACKGROUND:

In early 2025, KGID was contacted by Kemper Hendrick and Marika Weseloh, owners of APNs 1318-
24-601-001 and 1318-24-601-002, regarding an easement request across KGID-owned land located at
510 Laurel Lane (APN 1318-24-710-001). The request is intended to secure residential access to their

parcels, which currently lack legal access.

Initial outreach began on January 30, 2025, and correspondence continued through March 2025,
including involvement from KGID staff, legal counsel Chuck Zumpft, and representatives from the
requesting parties. The easement area was surveyed and includes approximately 1,196 square feet along
the northerly line of Laurel Lane. A pump house site (currently out of service) is near or within the
proposed easement corridor.

At the October 21, 2025 KGID’s Board of Trustees voted unanimously to authorize staff and legal
counsel to engage with the requesting party regarding all alternatives and return to the board with terms
for approval.

INCLUDED
A. 510 Laurel Lane Appraisal
B. Staff Report 510 Laurel Lane — Special Value Determination

Fund impacted by the above action:
() All Funds () Not a Budget Item



(X) Water Fund (O Sewer Fund
(X) General Fund () Snow Removal Fund
() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



@ Jotimson Vatuation Group, Ltd —

AN APPRAISAL
OF_

1,380+ SQUARE FOOT PARCEL

IMPROVED WITH A FORMER
BOOSTER PUMP STATION SITE

LOCATED AT

510 LAUREL LANE, STATELINE
DOUGLAS COUNTY, NEVADA

OWNED BY

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

APPRAISED FOR

MARIKA WESELOH

— S— — California » Nevada ———

25-048



m Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd. - —

25-048

An Appraisal
Of

A 1,380 Square Foot Parcel
Improved with a

Former Booster Pump Station Site

Located At

510 Laurel Lane, Stateline
Douglas County, Nevada

Owned By
Kingsbury General Improvement District

Appraised For

Marika Weseloh

For The Purpose of
Estimating Market Value
As Of
December 3, 2025

California = Nevada -



% JOﬁnSOYﬂ/a[uatwn GT’OLLJO, l:td- California / Nevada

E "-,--.7."'-:?"-:\.‘!_%——:—_"' " =

—_— = ==

Post Office Box 11430 ® 124 McFaul Way, Ste. 201 ® Lake Tahoe, Nevada 89448 ™ (775) 588-4787

December 12, 2025

Marika Weseloh

RE: An Appraisal Report of a 1,380 Square Foot Parcel improved with a Former
Booster Pump Station Site located at 510 Laurel Lane, Stateline Douglas County,
Nevada

Dear Ms. Weseloh:

This letter is in response to your request for an Appraisal Report of a Former Booster
Pump Station Site situated on a 1,380 square foot parcel. The subject parcel is located at 510

Laurel Lane, Stateline, Douglas County, Nevada.

The Subject Property is improved with a small utility building that was previously
utilized as booster bump station for the municipal water system of Kingsbury General
Improvements District. The booster pump station has been abandoned as no longer needed
for operation of the municipal water system. The undersigned was unable to arrange for an
inspection of the interior of this small structure and its assumed the interior of the structure is

consistent with the representation as a small utility building that housed a booster pump.

The Subject Property has an atypically small parcel size and it would be very difficult,
if not practically impossible to develop the property with the legally permissible uses allowed

under the zoning without combining it with an adjacent parcel. Due to the unique size of the

— — wwiv.johnsonvaluationgroup.com = — e

25-048



m Jotnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.. ~

Page 2

property and the limited sale of similar properties, a much greater than typical range of sales

dates was utilized to develop a credible set of comparable sales from within the Tahoe Basin.

This is an appraisal report which is intended to comply with the reporting
requirements set forth under Standards Rule 2-2(a) of the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice for an appraisal report. As such, it presents only summary discussions of
the data, reasoning and analyses that are used in the appraisal process to develop the
appraiser’s opinion of value. Supporting documentation concerning the data, reasoning and
analyses is retained in this appraiser’s file. The depth of the discussion contained in the report
is specific to the needs of the client and for the intended use as stated herein. This appraisal
firm is not responsible for unauthorized use of the report. This limited scope narrative report

includes an outline with sub-headings and summary details.

Cafifornia » Nevada

25-048



M Jofnson Vatuation Group, Ltd

Property Address
Assessor’s Parcel Number
Owners of Record

Legal Description

Client

Intended Users

Intended Use

Interest Valued

Purpose of Appraisal

25-048

Page 3

510 Laurel Lane, Nevada
1318-24-710-001
Kingsbury General Improvement District

Portion of Lot 17, Kingsbury Highlands Unit No.
2 (full legal description in addenda)

Marika Weseloh

Marika Weseloh and Kingsbury General
Improvement District

To assist the Intended Users in understanding the
Market Value of the Subject Property as of a
current date of valuation to inform decision
making related to a potential sale by Kingsbury
General Improvement District to

Marika Weseloh

100% fee simple

This appraisal was prepared for the purpose of
estimating the Market Value of the 100% fee
simple interest in the subject property under its
highest and best use.

- California = Nevada - —



% Jotinson Vatuation Group, Lt

Market Value Defined

Extraordinary Assumptions

Hypothetical Conditions

Page 4

Market Value means the most probable price
which a property should bring in a competitive
and open market under all conditions requisite to
a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting
prudently and knowledgeably, and assuming the
price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit
in this definition is the consummation of a sale
as of a specified date and the passing of title
from seller to buyer under conditions whereby:

1) Buyer and seller are typically motivated;

2) Both parties are well informed or well
advised, and acting in what they consider their
own best interests;

3) A reasonable time is allowed for
exposure in the open market;

4) Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S.
dollars or in terms of financial arrangements
comparable thereto; and

5) The price represents the normal
consideration for the property sold unaffected by
special or creative financing or sales concessions
granted by anyone associated with the sale.!

None noted

None noted

! Rules and Regulations, Federal Register. Vol. 55, No. 165, Page 34696, 12CFR Part 34.42(f)

25-048

California » Nevada



% Jobmson Vatuation Group, Ltd

Page 5

Scope of Work
Preparation of this appraisal included:
1. A physical inspection of the exterior of the subject property;
2. Identification and analysis of the subject neighborhood;
3. Review of TRPA File Information System information on the subject’s assessor’s
parcel number;
4, Interview with Derek Dombrook, KGID General Manager;
5. Completion of a Highest and Best Use Analysis of the subject property;
6. Research and analysis of similar unbuildable parcel sales of similar size to the Subject
Property in the Lake Tahoe area,
7. Completion of the Sales Comparison Approach;
8. Completing of the Final Reconciliation; and
9. Completion of a Narrative Appraisal Report

Indicated Exposure Time 12-24 months
Effective Date of Value December 3, 2025
Date of Inspection December 3, 2025
Date of the Report December 12, 2025
Market Value Conclusion $10.000
Respectfully Submitted,

5@7&% @ 9&/5%&;1/
Benjamin Q. Johnson, MAI

Nevada Certified General Appraiser
License Number A.0205542 CG

—— - — - California = Nevada



M Jotinson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Cover
Title Page
Letter of Transmittal
Table of Contents
Neighborhood DeSCIIPtION....cvuccverreeeeceieesirtctiirs it sbe b sa e s s enasenen 1
ACTIAL MAD ..ttt sttt b e s s e s bt e R b e e R s s R bR e e e R e e b e e b e e nte e 6
SUbJECt PROTOGIAPNS. ... .ttt ettt ae s bbb s b e s s sesserees 6
SUDJECt PhOtOZIAPRS. ..cvveeeriirieraerenieeesieeerireecsrcst s tess et sae s san e sane b sanssasesrnesanens 8
Subject Property Identification And Description..........coceccveriivenininiiinninnnseeeeer e 9
Highest And Best Use ANalysiS.......ccvciiiincniininieiircnenineiisniie e seesssssssssssssssenes 11
Introduction To Valuation ANalLYSis.......ceeerveererereeeieesicreinniiniininnimiisi s ssssssssessssssens 13
Standard Assumptions And Limiting Conditions..........ccccecvvvnriniiniiniiininnniiieceeenecnsseeenees 28
QuUAlIfiCAtioNS Of APPIAISET ...coverreeeeererrecrerrinieiiiiiesiiit st nssnesaesaesa s onnsrbesaees 34

Addenda — Subject Property Legal Description
Plan Area Statement 083, Kingsbury Heights

. California = Nevada ——

25-048



m Jotmson Vatuation Group, Ltd.  ——

NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION

The subject neighborhood is located within the Douglas County portion of the Lake Tahoe Basin.
The neighborhood is bounded on the north by Glenbrook Bay and on the south by the Nevada-California
state line at Stateline. The neighborhood is bounded on the west by the shores of Lake Tahoe and on the
east by the crest of the Sierra-Nevada Mountains. The neighborhood is predominantly residential in
nature involving several residential subdivisions ranging from older, fair quality, non-lakefront

subdivisions to newer, very good quality, lakefront subdivisions.

U.S. Highway 50 is the principal access artery into the neighborhood from San Francisco,
Sacramento and other population centers in Northern California. U.S. Highway 50 is also the main artery
serving the subject neighborhood. U.S. Highway 50 extends through the subject neighborhood to
Spooner Summit and to U.S. 395 in Carson City, Nevada. The other principal thoroughfare serving the
subject neighborhood is Kingsbury Grade (S.R. 207) which extends easterly from its intersection with
U.S. Highway 50 to Daggett Pass, the crest of the Carson Range. Both U.S. Highway 50 and Kingsbury
Grade are maintained throughout the year with snow removal provided by the Nevada Department of

Transportation. Access to and within the subject neighborhood is reasonably good on a year-round basis.

The main employers for residents in the subject neighborhood are the Stateline casinos and

Douglas County government. Many year-round residents are self-employed or tele-commute.

There are an increasing number of workers who reside in the Carson Valley portion of Douglas
County and commute into the Lake Tahoe Basin for employment. The increase in commuters is a result
of the high cost of purchasing housing in the Douglas County portion of the Lake Tahoe Basin. The
effect of increasing second home ownership and decreasing full time residents is particularly evidenced
by the diminishing enrollment of the local school district. The local middle school closed at the end of

the 2007/2008 school year due to declining enrollment.

The main concentration of commercial facilities in the subject neighborhood is located in the
Round Hill area. There is a Safeway supermarket and several retail stores in the Round Hill Square
Shopping Center. In this area there are also several office buildings. In addition, there is a gas station

and a few restaurants. There are also limited commercial and retail facilities at Marla Bay.

- = - California = Nevada -

25-048 1



m Jofinson Valuation Group, Ltd. i -

There is another concentration of commercial facilities at the intersection of Kingsbury Grade and
U.S. Highway 50. There is a service station, two banks, several retail stores, the former Lakeside
Hotel/Casino that is proposed to be developed with a new hospital, several restaurants and the local
administration offices for Douglas County. Also, in this area are several office buildings and medical

offices.

Recreational amenities in the neighborhood include facilities at Round Hill Pines, Nevada Beach,
Zephyr Cove and Cave Rock as well as the opportunities provided by the lake and by the forested
hillsides and meadows. Round Hill Pines has a seasonal beach, a dock, and beach facilities. Nevada
Beach is a state park in Nevada with a campground and beach access. Zephyr Cove is developed with
tourist and recreational uses including a beach and marina, lodge and restaurant, cabins and campgrounds
as well as horse stables. There is also a large conference center located at Zephyr Point. There is a public
park and boat ramp located in Cave Rock. This is a popular spot for boating and fishing. The Nevada
side of Heavenly Ski Resort has two lodge areas with lifts connecting to the California side of the
mountain at the top of Kingsbury Grade.

All utilities are immediately available to the subject neighborhood. Electricity is supplied by NV
Energy. Natural gas is supplied to most of the developed areas in the neighborhood by Southwest Gas.
Properties north of Cave Rock are serviced by propane as there is no natural gas service in this area.
Telephone and cable services are supplied by several carriers. Sewer and water are supplied by various

General Improvement Districts.

Police protection is provided by the Douglas County Sheriff's Department. Fire protection is
provided by the Tahoe-Douglas Fire District and the U.S. Forest Service. There is a fire station in the
southern portion of the neighborhood located adjacent to Elks Point, one at Zephyr Cove and a fire station
in the northern portion of the neighborhood near Glenbrook. Also, there is a fire station at the top of
Kingsbury Grade. There are publicly supported education facilities ranging from first grade through high

school.

The residential development in the neighborhood includes numerous small subdivisions located
both sides of U.S. Highway 50, including Elks Point, Round Hill, Zephyr Heights, Zephyr Cove, Marla
Bay, Hidden Woods, Cave Rock, Logan Creek, Uppaway and Glenbrook. Along Kingsbury Grade there
is a small mobile home park, Kingsbury Meadows, Kingsbury Knolls/Heights, Granite Springs, Palisades,

California » Nevada

25-048 2



@ Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd. S

Kingsbury Highlands, and the upper Kingsbury area on both sides of Kingsbury Grade. With limited
exceptions, residential development is of good to very good quality reflecting a good to very good pride
of ownership. Some of the lakefront subdivisions, such as Elk, Point, Marla Bay, Zephyr Cove, Pittman
Terrace and Cave Rock Cove, involve old summer cabins dating back to the 1930’s. There is substandard
to average quality development in Cave Rock Village, which is an older subdivision. The better quality
development is concentrated along the shores of Lake Tahoe and in areas with particularly good lake
views. The community of Glenbrook, at the northern end of the subject neighborhood, is an exclusive,

gated community with very good to excellent quality homes and many homeowner amenities.

In summary, the subject’s surrounding neighborhood is primarily residential in nature with
limited commercial facilities. The majority of the residences are of average to good quality. The subject

property is located in the upper Kingsbury area of the neighborhood.

- - — — California ® Nevada - -

25-048 3



Q Jotnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

SUBJECT’S ASSESSOR’S PARCEL MAP
Douglas County APN 1318-24-710-001

Map Legend

Township/Range/Section

e e Approximaste River Cander Lins

Easemonts - Seo Recorded Documents
1 Oun SpacaiConservation Easements

s

IN1/2 SE 1/4] [1318-24-7]

ot Parcal Number [T 13N R18 E|

110 Parval SutiSeq Numbor m}, ;;,.

G Parcel Acreage = &4 ;"

BLr A Parcel Block Number "‘;L;—l—'
Parcel Lot Number ,_4;11:
Porool Address LR

-

g 20 M3 B

‘J||32!33 W] %

Yyl el n
1817 1615 1

aomzl’nzs

nz

3
|24
25
%

SEy-

| 8 SCALE: 1200
! REVSD: 113172024

WOTE: This map s prepared far tha use of the Dauglas County Assassor, for assessment and illustralive purposes onty,
1t does not represent survey of the premises. No Giability is assumed a5 1o the sufficiency or accuracy
of the data delinesled hereon.

25-048

California » Nevada




,am Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

SUBJECT’S ASSESSOR’S PARCEL MAP
Douglas County APN 1318-24-710-001
Magnified View

Subject Property Highlighted in Yellow

California = Nevada

25-048



A_‘@ Jotnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

AERIAL MAP

Subject Property Outlined in Orange
Boundaries are approximate and for illustrative purposes only

California » Nevada

25-048 6



@ Jotinson Vatuation Group, Lid.

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS

LOOKING EASTERLY ALONG LAUREL LANE
ADJACENT TO SUBJECT PROPERTY

ASTERLY FROM LAUREL LANE AT SUBJECT PROPERTY

LOOKING NORT

Cafifornia = Nevada

25-048



i@ Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd:

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS

VIEW LOOKING EASTERLY AT SUBJECT STRUCTURE

California = Nevada

25-048



Ai& Jofmson Vatuation Group, Lid — -

SUBJECT PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION AND DESCRIPTION

Assessor’s Parcel Number
Address
Owners of Record

Legal Description

Parcel Size
View Amenity
Zoning
TRPA & Douglas County
Plan Area Statement
Land Use
Land Capability?

Existing Land Coverage

Topography

Vegetation

Access

1318-24-710-001
510 Laurel Lane, Nevada
Kingsbury General Improvement District

Portion of Lot 17, Kingsbury Highlands Unit No. 2
(full legal description in addenda)

1,380+ square feet?

Mountain

083 — Kingsbury Heights
Residential

1a (1% base allowable coverage)
Unknown, no formal determination

The subject site has a moderately steep upslope
from the street to the rear property line.

The subject site has a moderate amount of native
trees and scrub brush.

Access is via Laurel Lane

Easements, Encumbrances & Restrictions A Preliminary Title Report was not available to the

Subject’s Sales History

undersigned. It is assumed there are no easements
or CC&Rs would impact value.

There has not been an arms-length transaction on
the subject property in over 20 years.

2 Based on Legal Description contained in Quitclaim Deed recorded on December 17, 1974 as Document 1974-076978 and

assumed to be correct.

3 Based on TRPA Map Maker Data. A formal site assessment and Determination of Allowable Land Coverage would need to be
completed in order for TRPA verification. Formal TRPA verification could differ materially from preliminary TRPA Map

Maker Date.

25048

California ® Nevada.-



% Jotnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.. S

Subject’s Listing History

Encroachments

Tax Data
Assessor’s Parcel Number
2024-25 Assessed Values
Land
Improvements
Total Assessed Values:

Total 2024-25 Real Estate Taxes:

Special Assessments

Permits and Approvals

25-048

The subject property is not currently listed and has
not been listed within the past year to the best of the
knowledge of the undersigned.

None noted

1318-24-710-001
$ 0
$ 0
$ 0

None

None noted

A check with the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
and Douglas County did not return any current
permits or approvals for the parcel.

California » Nevada ——

10



% Jofmson Vatuation Group, Ltd, — N

HIGHEST AND BEST USE ANALYSIS

Highest and best use is defined as the most reasonable and probable use that supports the
highest present value of the vacant land and/or improved property, as defined, as of the effective
date of valuation. Implicit in this definition is that the highest and best use must be physically
possible, legally permissible, economically feasible and maximally productive. The highest and

best use as vacant will be addressed first, followed by the highest and best use as improved.

As Vacant

There are no known physical characteristics of the subject site which would preclude

development of the subject property to its highest and best use.

With respect to legally permissible uses, the subject property is under two jurisdictions
with respect to land use. One is the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) and the other is
Douglas County. Douglas County has adopted TRPA’s land classification system.

Land use is controlled by Plan Area Statements with TRPA. The subject property is in
Plan Area 083, Kingsbury Heights. The full Plan Area Statement for Kingsbury Heights is
included in the addenda to this appraisal. The land use classification is Residential with a
maximum density of one single family dwelling per parcel. The subject property consists of one
parcel. Therefore, the subject property would allow one single family residence on the parcel.
However, as the subject parcel contains only 1,380+ square feet of land area, it is highly
improbable that site constraints would allow for single-family residential development while
meeting applicable setback requirements. It is considered highly likely that the Subject Property

does not contain enough land area to allow for single-family residential development.

In addition to legal land use under zoning, the development potential of vacant land
within the Lake Tahoe Basin is affected by the degree of environmental sensitivity exhibited by
the parcel. At the date of value of this appraisal the subject property did not have an IPES score

and an undetermined amount of allowable land coverage. The subject is located in Class 1a soils

= - California = Nevada - - : P

25-048 1 1



;m Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd —

which allows for 1% base allowable land coverage. There are very few, if any, potential legally
permission and economic uses for the Subject Property on a stand-alone basis. The highest and
best use of the subject property, as vacant, would be to combine with an adjacent parcel to form a

larger site for development.

As Improved

The Subject Property is improved with a former booster station for the municipal water
system operated by Kingsbury General Improvement District. The on-site structure is small and
was built to house the booster pump which is no longer in operation and no longer needed. The
existing structure could be utilized for storage, however the structure is located upgradient from
the street without convenient access additional storage is not a permissible primary use of the
property under the current zoning. KGID indicated the building should be demolished and the
undersigned concurs with this opinion. Therefore, the highest and best use as improved is the
same as the highest and best use as vacant, to combine with an adjacent parcel to form a larger
site for development. The existing improvements, due to their small size, zoning issues and

older age, do not contribute to the value of the subject site.

California » Nevada

25-048 1 2



% Jofmson Vatuation Group, Ltd. o

INTRODUCTION TO VALUATION ANALYSIS

There are three approaches to value which an appraiser must consider in estimating the
value of the property. The three approaches to value include the Cost Approach, the Income
Approach and the Sales Comparison Approach.

The Cost Approach has not been utilized in this appraisal assignment as the current
structure was designed for a booster pump for a municipal water system that is no longer needed,
there is economic obsolescence with this design. The Income Approach has been considered, but
not been utilized as splinter parcels with former utility outbuildings are not typically purchased

for their income producing capabilities.

The Sales Comparison Approach has been utilized. Under this analysis, comparable
parcels Lake Tahoe area were researched. There are very few sales of similar properties and an
extended time period was required to find sales that are similar to the subject in terms of size,
constraints on development and highest and best use. Based on the undersigned’s knowledge
and understanding, similar properties with very limited potential uses, have not appreciate in
value consistent with the broader market and therefore a wider period for comparable sales is
acceptable. The sales presented herein provide the undersigned’s understanding of the most

recent similar sales which the market would look to for establishing the value of the Subject

Property.

- = - California = Nevada - - ——

25-048 1 3



1@ Johnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

UNBUILDABLE COMPARABLE SALES CHART

25-048

California » Nevada

= m— "
Yon TotalLand Area/ | TRPA Development |
Land Coverage/ ~ Resources
Percentage Land ‘
|  Coverage to Total
[sale No. Property Identification/APN = Sale Date ‘Land Area il | sl iSoils _J|§ale ch_e‘
CLS-1 3985 Manzanita Avenue 7i28/2011 6,011 Sq. Ft. None $25,000
South Lake Tahoe, CA 500+ Sq. Ft. 100% SEZ
029-081-05 8.3%
CLS-2 3709 Osgood Avenue 74222016 10,000= Sq. Ft. None $10.000
South Lake Tahoe, CA None 100% SEZ
027-072-10 NA
CLS-3 76 Moana Circle 10/3/2016 15,214+ 8q. Ft. None $55,000
Homewood, CA 609+ Sq. Ft. Low Capability
098-191-007 4.0%
CLS-4 [543 Sunrise Avenue 72017 15200+ Sq. Ft. None $32,500
Meeks Bay, CA 152= 8q. Ft. Low Capability
016-513-001 1.0%
CLS-5 0 Park Lane 12/4/2023 4,750+ Sq. Ft. RDR $31,500
Kings Beach, CA 428% Sq. Ft. Low Capability
090-233-028 9.0%

14



“ Johmson Vatuation Group, Lid.

COMPARABLE SALES MAP

Fighiands
sar i
. {'f;- h 3 = I
_ L o \ _
L o I - . r ;-P‘- .” = m
e - UNonhstan@y) | N

- -

" Galifornta Resort .~
I Lk

. :T
[ Pl
a a=l
K Timberland

P L (&)

- "'-..-'1‘
_ Lake Tahbel
Hasind
 Upitiey

California = Nevada

25-048 1 5



@ Jomson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

COMPARABLE LAND SALE PROFILE SHEET
Sale CLS-1

Property 3989 Manzanita Avenue City: South Lake Tahoe
Address:
Property Stateline County: El Dorado
Location:
A.P.N.: 029-081-05 State: California
Topography: Level Legal Description: 50-D2 Lakeside Lodge
Subdivision
Total Land Area: | 6,011+ square feet % of Land Unknown
Coverage to Total
Land Area:
Existing Land 1% Base Allowable Land Sale Price: $25,000
Coverage: Coverage (existing coverage
exceeds base allowable and is
estimated at 500+ square feet)
TAUs None Sale Price/SF of $4.16
Land Area
Commercial None CFA to Land Area | NA
Floor Area: Ratio
Sale Date: 7/28/2011 Document Number: | 35254
Grantor: Raymond D. Epstein Trust Terms Of Sale: Cash to Seller
Grantee: Mirabelli Trust Verification: Nick Pavich, buyer’s
representative
Comments: This is the sale of a buildable commercial lot in South Lake Tahoe. The comparable is located in
Class 1B soils. A portion of the subject site is improved with asphalt paving that is used as a parking lot for an
adjacent apartment complex. The buyer was the owner of the adjacent apartment complex and purchased the
property because they were encroaching onto the sale property. The comparable had an undetermined amount
of existing land coverage.

25-048

California ®» Nevada

16



@ Jobmson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

COMPARABLE LAND SALE PROFILE SHEET
Sale CLS-2

Property Address: | 3709 Osgood Avenue City: South Lake Tahoe

Property Location: | N/S of Osgood Avenue at Sonora | County: El Dorado

A.P.N.: 027-072-10 State: California

Topography: Level Legal Description: Lots 149 and 150 of Bijou
Park

Total Land Area: 10,000+ square feet (0.23+ acres) | Zoning: Tourist Core Area Plan
TSC-MU

Available Land None % of Land 0%

Coverage: Coverage to Total

Land Area:

TRPA None CFA to Land Area NA

Development Ratio

Resources:

Sale Price Per SF $1.00 Sale Price: $10,000

of Land Area

Sale Date: 7/22/2016 Document Number: | 33309

Grantor: South Tahoe Redevelopment Terms Of Sale: Cash to Seller

Successor Agency
Grantee: Darcorp Asset Management, Verification: Nancy Kerry, City Manager
LLC of The City of South Lake

Tahoe and Deb Howard,
Listing Agent

Comments: The comparable is located in Class 1B soils (stream environment zone). The seller stripped all of

the appurtenant development resources from the site concurrent with the sale. The property is located along the

north side of Osgood Avenue, a secondary commercial and residential roadway in South Lake Tahoe. This site

was previously improved with a veterinary clinic and the prior improvements were demolished and removed

from the site in 2007.

25-048

California = Nevada

17



% Johnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

COMPARABLE LAND SALE PROFILE SHEET
Sale CLS-3

Property Address: 76 Moana Circle City: Homewood

Property Location: Moana Circle County: Placer

A.P.N.: 098-191-007 State: California

Topography: Moderate Legal Description: L 7 Moana Beach

Total Land Area: 15,214 square feet Zoning: Residential

Available Land 609 square feet % of Land Coverage | 4%

Coverage: to Total Land Area:

TRPA Development None CFA to Land Area None

Resources: Ratio

Sale Price Per SF of $3.62 Sale Price: $55,000

Land Area

Sale Date: 10/3/2016 Document Number: 84808

Grantor: Nancy Grimes Terms Of Sale: Cash

Grantee: John W Isberner Trust Verification: MLS and County Records
Comments: This is an unbuildable parcel (due to IPES score being below the IPES line for a buildable parcel in
Placer County). This property was part of the Moana Beach HOA. There is the speculative future potential that this
parcel becomes buildable if the IPES line drops in Placer County as it has done in the other counties in the Tahoe
Basin.

25-048

- California » Nevada

18




@ Jobmson Vatuation Group, Lid.

COMPARABLE LAND SALE PROFILE SHEET
Sale CLS-4

Property Address: 543 Sunrise Avenue City: Meeks Bay

Property Location: Sunrise Avenue County: El Dorado

A.P.N.: 016-513-001-000 State: California

Topography: Steep Legal Description: L 38

Total Land Area: 15,200 square feet Zoning: Residential

Available Land 152 square feet % of Land Coverage | 1%

Coverage: to Total Land Area:

TRPA Development None CFA to Land Area NA

Resources: Ratio

Sale Price Per SF of $2.14 Sale Price: $32,500

Land Area

Sale Date: 7/7/2017 Document Number: 27910

Grantor: Karin Low Terms Of Sale: Cash to seller

Grantee: Alan L Ashbaugh Verification: MLS and County Records
Comments: The property was sold for future development at a time when adequate land coverage was available.
At the time of sale, the California Tahoe Conservancy did not have any land coverage that would be suitable for
transfer to the subject site to make it buildable. The comparable featured good filtered views of Lake Tahoe.

25-048

California » Nevada

19




& Johnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

COMPARABLE LAND SALE PROFILE SHEET
Sale CLS-5

Property Address: Park Lane City: Kings Beach

Property Location: W/S of Park Lane County: Placer

A.P.N.: 090-233-028 State: California

Topography: Mild to Moderate Legal Description: Lot 92 - Brockway Park #1

Total Land Area: 4,750+ square feet Zoning: Placer County Tahoe Basin
Area Plan

Available Land 428+ square feet % of Land Coverage | 9%

Coverage: to Total Land Area:

TRPA Development None CFA to Land Area NA

Resources: Ratio

Sale Price Per SF of $6.63 Sale Price: $31,500

Land Area

Sale Date: 12/04/2023 Document Number: 1335-613

Grantor: US Liberty Corp Terms Of Sale: Cash

Grantee: Adrian G Sanchez Verification: MLS and County Records

Placer County vacant parcel with inadequate IPES for building. Current IPES of 616 and 9% allowable coverage.
This lot requires a residential development right that can be transferred to a different parcel.

25-048

California = Nevada

20




e

M Jobmson Vatuation Group, Ltd. — i

COMPARABLE LAND SALES DISCUSSION AND COMPARISON
Overall Sale Price Basis

Five comparables of limited to no development potential parcels have been presented. The total
sale prices range from $10,000 to $55,000. Two of the comparables are located in Class 1B (stream
environment zone) soils, which is similar the subject. These two comparables are located in South Lake
Tahoe. Two of the comparables are located in Homewood and Meeks Bay. These two west shore
comparables were not buildable at the time of sale, but had the speculative future potential to be
developed. One of the comaprables is located in Kings Beach and located in low capability soils. The

sales are qualitatively adjusted to the subject as follows:

Sale CLS-1, which sold for $25,000, is the sale of a vacant parcel located in Class 1B soils. The
property is located in a mixed-use area in close proximity to the downtown tourist core of South Lake
Tahoe. The comparable is located on a secondary street. The property included 1B land coverage that
was existing on the site. The existing 1B land coverage is roughly estimated at 500+ square feet, but has
not been formally verified. The property did not contain any other TRPA development resources. This
comparable was purchased by an adjacent property owner who encroached onto the site with a small
portion of an existing parking area. The property sold for $25,000 in July of 2011. The property was

openly marketed on the Multiple Listing Service prior to its sale.

In comparison to the Subject Property, an upward adjustment is necessary for the comparable’s
inferior location. On the other hand, downward adjustments are necessary for the comparable’s higher
percentage of land coverage to land area, larger size of the comparable versus the Subject Property and

the comparable’s superior topography.

Overall, CLS-1’s sale price of $25,000 is considered to be a high indication of value for the
Subject Property.

Sale CLS-2 which sold for $10,000, is the sale of a vacant parcel located in Class 1b soils. The
property is located in a mixed-use area in close proximity to the downtown tourist core of South Lake
Tahoe. The comparable is located on a secondary street. All of the existing land coverage had been

stripped from the site by the seller concurrent with the close of escrow and was not included in the

— — ——— California = Nevada = —

25-048 21



% Jormson Vatuation Group, Ltd.. . i

transaction. The property did not contain any other TRPA development resources. This comparable was
purchased by an adjacent property owner who wanted to create a larger site to allow for greater density on

his existing parcel. The property was openly marketed by the Multiple Listing Service prior to its sale.

In comparison to The Subject Property, upward adjustments are necessary for the comparable’s
inferior location and lack of any base allowable land coverage rights. On the other hand, downward

adjustments are necessary for the comparable’s superior topography and larger parcel size.
Overall, CLS-2’s sale price of $10,000 is a good indication of value for The Subject Property.

Sale CLS-3 is the sale of 76 Moana Circle in a homeowner’s association that has a private beach.
The comparable had 4% allowable land coverage, however, its IPES score did not allow for it to be
buildable at the present time. The comparable has moderate topography. The comparable is composed of
a 15,214 square foot site. It sold for $55,000 on October 3, 2016.

In comparison to The Subject Property, a very large downward adjustment is made for the
speculative future buildable potential of the comparable parcel. An additional very large downward
adjustment is necessary for the comparable’s superior HOA with a common area beach for its owners.
Finally, a downward adjustment is necessary for the comparable’s 4% allowable land coverage, which is

superior to the subject’s 1% allowable land coverage.

Overall, CLS-3’s sale price of $55,000 is considered to be a very high indication of value for The
Subject Property.

Sale CLS-4 is the sale of 543 Sunrise Avenue. The comparable features good, filtered views of
Lake Tahoe and the ability to be developed if the correct low capability land coverage was available for
sale and transfer to the subject site. The comparable features steep topography. The comparable is

composed of a 15,200 square foot site. It sold for $32,500 on July 7, 2017.

In comparison to The Subject Property, a very large downward adjustment is made for the
speculative future buildable potential of the comparable parcel. Downward adjustments are necessary for

the comparable’s lake views and larger parcel size

California » Nevada -

25-048 22



M Jotson Vatuation Group, Ltdd —

Overall, CLS-4’s sale price of $32,500 is considered to be a high indication of value for The
Subject Propetty.

Sale CLS-5 is the sale of the unbuildable lot in on the west side of Park Lane in Kings Beach.
The comparable has mild to moderate downsloping topography. The comparable has 428+ square feet of
base allowable land coverage and a residential development right. The comparable is composed of a

4,750+ square foot site. It sold for $31,500 on December 4, 2023.

In comparison to the Subject Property, an upward adjustment is made for the subject’s superior
location. On the other hand, large downward adjustments are necessary for the comparabes residential

development right, greater amount of allowable land coverage and larger land area.

Overall, CLS-5’s sale price of $31,500 is considered to be a very high indication of value for The
Subject Property.

- — ————————— California * Nevada - e

25-048 23



m Jotnson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

Summary and Final Reconciliation
Overall, based on the comparable sales, and with consideration given to the subject being
precluded from future development per, the location in Class 1a soils, and lack of other TRPA

development resources, the market evidence supports a value of $10,000 for the Subject Property.
With consideration given to the positive and negative aspects of The Subject Property, the
comparable sales identified, it is my opinion that the Market Value of the 100% fee simple interest in

T\the Subject Property, as of December 3, 2025, is $10,000.

FINAL MARKET VALUE CONCLUSION $10,000

—— California » Nevada —

25-048

24



m Jotinson Vatuation Group, Litd — : = =

EXPOSURE TIME

Exposure time is defined in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice as
“The length of time the property interest being appraised would have been offered on the market
prior to the hypothetical consummation of a sale at market value on the effective date of
appraisal; a retrospective estimate based upon an analysis of past events assuming a competitive

and open market.”

In general, properties listed for sale at a price above market value will require an
extended exposure time. Conversely, properties listed for sale at a price below market value will
usually require a relatively short exposure time. An estimate of exposure time may be an
estimate expressed as a range, and may be based on statistical information about days on the

market; information gathered through sales verification; and interviews with market participants.

Exposure time analysis assumes the property is available to a competitive and open
market. Based on the very limited market of buyers that would be interested in the Subject
Property, it is our opinion that the estimated exposure time for this property would be

approximately 12 to 24 months.

'ESTIMATED EXPOSURE TIME 12 TO 24 MONTHS

— = California = Nevada - . "

25-048 25



A& Jobnson Vatuation Group, Ltdi

report:

25-048

APPRAISERS’ CERTIFICATION

Each of the undersigned do hereby certify that, unless otherwise noted in this appraisal

I have made a personal inspection of the exterior of the property that is the subject of
this report.

T have no present or contemplated future interest in the real estate that is the
subject of this appraisal report.

I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the
parties involved with this assignment.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements of fact contained in
this appraisal report, upon which the analysis, opinions, and conclusions
herein are based, are true and correct.

This report sets forth all the limiting conditions (imposed by the terms of our
assignment or by the undersigned) affecting the analysis, opinions, and
conclusions contained in this report.

The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this
report has been prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of
Professional Ethics & Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the
Appraisal Institute, which include the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice.

My compensation is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined value or
direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value estimate,
the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event.

The appraisal was not based upon a requested minimum valuation, a specific
valuation, or the approval of a loan.

My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting
predetermined results.

California = Nevada -

26



% Jobinson Vatuation Group, Ltd

e This appraiser has not performed services involving the subject property
within the prior three years from the date of acceptance of this assignment.

e No one other than the undersigned prepared the analyses, conclusions and
opinions concerning real estate that are set forth in this appraisal report.

o The Appraisal Institute conducts a mandatory program of continuing
education for its designated members. As of the date of this report, Benjamin
Q. Johnson has completed the requirements under the continuing education
program of the Appraisal Institute.

e The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute
relating to review by its duly authorized representatives.

After careful consideration of all data available, and upon thorough personal investigation
of the subject property and the comparable properties analyzed, the estimated Market Value of
the 100% fee simple interest in the subject property, as of December 3, 2025, is as follows:

FINAL PROPERTY VALUE CONCLUSION $10.000

Respectfully Submitted,

Benjamin Q. Johnson, MAI

Nevada Certified General Appraiser
License Number A.0205542 CG

— - - Cafifornia ® Nevada - =

25-048 27



M Jotinson Vatuation Group, Lt o

STANDARD ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS

The acceptance of this appraisal assignment and the completion of the appraisal report submitted

herewith are contingent upon the following assumptions and limiting conditions.

LIMITS OF LIABILITY

This report was prepared by Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd. All opinions, recommendations, and
conclusions expressed during the course of this assignment are rendered by the staff of Johnson Valuation
Group, Ltd., as employees, not as individuals. The liability of Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd. and its
employees and associates is limited to the client only and to the fee actually received by the appraisal firm.
There is no accountability, obligation, or liability to any third party. If the appraisal report is disseminated
to anyone other than the client, the client shall make such party or parties aware of all limiting conditions
and assumptions affecting the appraisal assignment. Neither the appraisers nor the appraisal firm is in any
way to be responsible for any costs incurred to discover or correct any physical, financial and/or legal
deficiencies of any type present in the subject property. In the case of limited partnerships or syndication
offerings or stock offerings in real estate, the client agrees that in the event of a lawsuit brought by a lender,
a partner or part owner in any form of ownership, a tenant or any other party, the client will hold the
appraiser(s) and the appraisal firm completely harmless in such action with respect to any and all awards or
settlements of any type in such lawsuits.

COPIES, PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION AND USE OF REPORT

Possession of this report or any copy thereof does not carry with it the right of publication,
nor may it be used for any purpose or any function other than its intended use, as stated in the
body of the report. The appraisal fee represents compensation only for the analytical services
provided by the appraiser(s). The appraisal report remains the property of the appraisal firm,
though it may be used by the client in accord with these assumptions and limiting conditions.

This appraisal is to be used only in its entirety, and no part is to be used without the whole
report. All conclusions and opinions concerning the analysis as set forth in the report were
prepared by the appraiser(s) whose signature(s) appears on the appraisal report, unless it is
indicated that one or more of the appraisers was acting as "Review Appraiser." No change of any
item in the report shall be made by anyone other than the appraiser(s). The appraiser(s) and the
appraisal firm shall bear no responsibility for any such unauthorized changes.

CONFIDENTIALITY

Except as provided for subsequently, neither the appraiser(s) nor the appraisal firm may
divulge the analyses, opinions or conclusions developed in the appraisal report, nor may they give
a copy of the report to anyone other than the client or his designee as specified in writing.
However, this condition does not apply to any requests made by the Appraisal Institute for
purposes of confidential ethics enforcement. Also, this condition does not apply to any order or
request issued by a court of law or any other body with the power of subpoena.

INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY OTHERS

Information (including projections of income and expenses) provided by informed local
sources, such as government agencies, financial institutions, Realtors, buyers, sellers, property
owners, bookkeepers, accountants, attorneys, and others is assumed to be true, correct and reliable.
No responsibility for the accuracy of such information is assumed by the appraiser(s). Neither the
appraiser(s) nor the appraisal firm is liable for any information or the work product provided by
subcontractors. The client and others utilizing the appraisal report are advised that some of the
individuals associated with Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd. are independent contractors and may
sign the appraisal report in that capacity. The comparable data relied upon in this report has been
confirmed with one or more parties familiar with the transaction or from affidavit or other sources
thought reasonable. To the best of our judgment and knowledge, all such information is

California » Nevada

28



M Jobinson Vatuation Group, Lid —

considered appropriate for inclusion. In some instances, an impractical and uneconomic
expenditure of time would be required in attempting to furnish absolutely unimpeachable
verification. The value conclusions set forth in the appraisal report are subject to the accuracy of
said data. It is suggested that the client consider independent verification as a prerequisite to any
transaction involving a sale, a lease or any other commitment of funds with respect to the subject

property.

TESTIMONY, CONSULTATION, COMPLETION OF CONTRACT FOR APPRAISAL SERVICE

The contract for each appraisal, consultation or analytical service is fulfilled and the total fee
is payable upon completion of the report. The appraisers(s) or those assisting in the preparation of
the report will not be asked or required to give testimony in court or in any other hearing as a
result of having prepared the appraisal, either in full or in part, except under separate and special
arrangements at an additional fee. If testimony or a deposition is required, the client shall be
responsible for any additional time, fees and charges, regardless of the issuing party. Neither the
appraiser(s) nor those assisting in the preparation of the report is required to engage in post-
appraisal consultation with the client or other third parties, except under a separate and special
arrangement and at an additional fee.

EXHIBITS AND PHYSICAL DESCRIPTIONS

It is assumed that the improvements and the utilization of the land are within the boundaries of the

property lines of the property described in the report and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless

noted otherwise within the report. No survey of the property has been made by the appraiser(s) and no

responsibility is assumed in connection with such matters. Any maps, plats, or drawings reproduced and
included in the report are there to assist the reader in visualizing the property and are not necessarily drawn
to scale. They should not be considered as surveys or relied upon for any other purpose, nor should they be

removed from, reproduced or used apart from the report.

TITLE, LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS, AND OTHER LEGAL MATTERS

No responsibility is assumed by the appraiser(s) or the appraisal firm for matters legal in
character or nature. No opinion is rendered as to the status of title to any property. The title is
presumed to be good and merchantable. The property is appraised as if free and clear, unless
otherwise stated in the appraisal report. The legal description, as furnished by the client, his
designee or as derived by the appraiser(s), is assumed to be correct as reported. The appraisal is
not to be construed as giving advice concerning liens, title status, or legal marketability of the
subject property.

ENGINEERING, STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, ARCHITECTURAL CONDITIONS

25-048

This appraisal should not be construed as a report on the physical items that are a part of any
property described in the appraisal report. Although the appraisal may contain information about
these physical items (including their adequacy and/or condition), it should be clearly understood
that this information is only to be used as a general guide for property valuation and not as a
complete or detailed report on these physical items. The appraiser(s) is not a construction,
engineering, or architectural expert, and any opinion given on these matters in this report should
be considered tentative in nature and is subject to modification upon receipt of additional
information from appropriate experts. The client is advised to seek appropriate expert opinion
before committing any funds to the property described in the appraisal report.

Any statement in the appraisal regarding the observed condition of the foundation, roof,
exterior walls, interior walls, floors, heating system, plumbing, insulation, electrical service, all
mechanicals, and all matters relating to construction is based on a casual inspection only. Unless
otherwise noted in the appraisal report, no detailed inspection was made. For instance, the
appraiser is not an expert on heating systems, and no attempt was made to inspect the interior of
the furnace. The structures were not investigated for building code violations, and it is assumed

- California ® Nevada - =

29



w Jobnson Vatuation Group, Ltd

that all buildings meet the applicable building code requirements unless stated otherwise in the
report.

Such items as conditions behind walls, above ceilings, behind locked doors, under the floor, or under
the ground are not exposed to casual view and, therefore, were not inspected, unless specifically so stated
in the appraisal. The existence of insulation, if any is mentioned, was discovered through conversations
with others and/or circumstantial evidence. Since it is not exposed to view, the accuracy of any statements
regarding insulation cannot be guaranteed.

Because no detailed inspection was made, and because such knowledge goes beyond the scope of this
appraisal, any comments on observed conditions given in this appraisal report should not be taken as a
guarantee that a problem does not exist. Specifically, no guarantee is given as to the adequacy or condition
of the foundation, roof, exterior walls, interior walls, floors, heating systems, air conditioning systems,
plumbing, electrical service, insulation, or any other detailed construction matters. If any interested party is
concerned about the existence, condition, or adequacy of any particular item, we would strongly suggest
that a mechanical and/or structural inspection be made by a qualified and licensed contractor, a civil or
structural engineer, an architect or other experts. This appraisal report is based on the assumption that there
are no hidden, unapparent or apparent conditions on the property or improvements which would materially
alter the value as reported. No responsibility is assumed for any such conditions or for any expertise or
engineering to discover them. All mechanical components are assumed to be in operable condition and
standard for the properties of the subject type. Conditions of heating, cooling, ventilating, electrical and
plumbing equipment are considered to be commensurate with the condition of the balance of the
improvements unless otherwise stated. No judgment is made in the appraisal as to the adequacy of
insulation, the type of insulation, or the energy efficiency of the improvements or equipment which is
assumed to be standard for the subject's age, type and condition.

TOXIC MATERIALS AND HAZARDS

Unless otherwise stated in the appraisal report, no attempt has been made to identify or report
the presence of any potentially toxic materials and/or condition such as asbestos, urea
formaldehyde foam insulation, PCBs, any form of toxic waste, polychlorinated biphenyl,
pesticides, lead-based paints or soils or ground water contamination on any land or improvements
described in the appraisal report. Before committing funds to any property, it is strongly advised
that appropriate experts be employed to inspect both land and improvements for the existence of
such potentially toxic materials and/or conditions. If any potentially toxic materials and/or
conditions are present on the property, the value of the property may be adversely affected and a
re-appraisal at an additional cost may be necessary to estimate the effects of such circumstances.

SOILS, SUB-SOILS, AND POTENTIAL HAZARDS

25-048

It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the soils or sub-soil which
would render the subject property more or less valuable than reported in the appraisal. No
engineering or percolation tests were made and no liability is assumed for soil conditions. Unless
otherwise noted, the land and the soil in the area being appraised appeared to be firm, but no
investigation has been made to determine whether or not any detrimental sub-soil conditions exist.
Neither the appraiser(s) nor the appraisal firm is liable for any problems arising from soil
conditions. These appraisers strongly advise that, before any funds are committed to a property,
the advice of appropriate experts be sought.

If the appraiser(s) has not been supplied with a termite inspection report, survey or occupancy
permit, no responsibility is assumed and no representation is made for any costs associated with
obtaining same or for any deficiencies discovered before or after they are obtained.

Neither the appraiser(s) nor the appraisal firm assumes responsibility for any costs or for any
consequences arising from the need or lack of need for flood hazard insurance. An Agent for the

California = Nevada

30



Federal Flood Insurance Program should be contacted to determine the actual need for flood
hazard insurance.

ARCHEOLOGICAL SIGNIFICANCE
No investigation has been made by the appraiser and no information has been provided to the appraiser
regarding potential archeological significance of the subject property or any portion thereof. This report
assumes no portion of the subject property has archeological significance.

LEGALITY OF USE
This appraisal report assumes that there is full compliance with all applicable federal, state and local

environmental regulations and laws, unless non-compliance is stated, defined and considered in the
appraisal report. Tt is assumed that all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions have been
complied with, unless a non-conformity has been stated, defined and considered in the appraisal report. It
is assumed that all required licenses, consents, or other legislative or administrative authority from any
local, state or national government, private entity or organization have been or can be obtained or renewed
for any use on which the value estimate contained in this report is based.

COMPONENT VALUES
Any distribution of the total value between the land and improvements, between partial ownership
interests or any other partition of total value applies only under the stated use. Moreover, separate
allocations between components are not valid if this report is used in conjunction with any other analysis.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
The Americans with Disabilities Act ("TADA") became effective January 26, 1992. It is assumed that
the property is in direct compliance with the various detailed requirements of the ADA.

AUXILIARY AND RELATED STUDIES
No environmental or impact studies, special market studies or analyses, special highest and
best use studies or feasibility studies have been requested or made by the appraiser(s) unless
otherwise specified in an agreement for services and so stated in the appraisal report.

DOLLAR VALUES AND PURCHASING POWER
The estimated market value set forth in the appraisal report and any cost figures utilized are
applicable only as of the date of valuation of the appraisal report. All dollar amounts are based on
the purchasing power and price of the dollar as of the date of value estimates.

ROUNDING
Some figures presented in this report were generated using computer models that make calculations
based on numbers carried out to three or more decimal places. In the interest of simplicity, most numbers
have been rounded. Thus, these figures may be subject to small rounding errors.

QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS
Although this analysis employs various mathematical calculations to provide value indications, the
final estimate is subjective and may be influenced by our experience and other factors not specifically set
forth in this report.

VALUE CHANGE, DYNAMIC MARKET, ALTERATION OF ESTIMATE BY APPRAISER

All values shown in the appraisal report are projections based on our analysis as of the date of
valuation of the appraisal. These values may not be valid in other time periods or as conditions change.
Projected mathematical models set forth in the appraisal are based on estimates and assumptions which are
inherently subject to uncertainty and variations related to exposure, time, promotional effort, terms,
motivation, and other conditions. The appraiser(s) does not represent these models as indicative of results
that will actually be achieved. The value estimates consider the productivity and relative attractiveness ofa
property only as of the date of valuation set forth in the report.

r—— ——— - Cafifornia = Nevada - =

25-048 31



Am Johnson Vatuation Group, Ltd. B

In cases of appraisals involving the capitalization of income benefits, the estimate of market value,
investment value or value in use is a reflection of such benefits and of the appraiser's interpretation of
income, yields and other factors derived from general and specific client and market information. Such
estimates are as of the date of valuation of the report, and are subject to change as market conditions
change.

This appraisal is an estimate of value based on analysis of information known to us at the time the
appraisal was made. The appraiser(s) does not assume any responsibility for incorrect analysis because of
incorrect or incomplete information. If new information of significance comes to light, the value given in
this report is subject to change without notice. The appraisal report itself and the value estimates set forth
therein are subject to change if either the physical or legal entity or the terms of financing are different from
what is set forth in the report.

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL TRENDS
The appraiser assumes no responsibility for economic, physical or demographic factors which may
affect or alter the opinions in this report if said economic, physical or demographic factors were not present
as of the date of value of this appraisal. The appraiser is not obligated to predict future political, economic
or social trends.

EXCLUSIONS
Furnishings, equipment, other personal property and value associated with a specific business
operation are excluded from the value estimate set forth in the report unless otherwise indicated.
Only the real estate is included in the value estimates set forth in the report unless otherwise
stated.

SUBSURFACE RIGHTS
No opinion is expressed as to the value of subsurface oil, gas or mineral rights or whether the property
is subject to surface entry for the exploration or removal of such materials, except as is expressly stated.

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS, CONDITIONED VALUE
It is assumed in the appraisal report that all proposed improvements and/or repairs, either on-

site or off-site, are completed in an excellent workmanlike manner in accord with plans,
specifications or other information supplied to these appraisers and set forth in the appraisal
report, unless otherwise explicitly stated in the appraisal. In the case of proposed construction, the
appraisal is subject to change upon inspection of the property after construction is completed. The
estimate of market value is as of the date specified in the report. Unless otherwise stated, the
assumption is made that all improvements and/or repairs have been completed according to the
plans and that the property is operating at levels projected in the report.

MANAGEMENT OF PROPERTY
It is assumed that the property which is the subject of the appraisal report will be under
typically prudent and competent management which is neither inefficient nor superefficient.

FEE
The fee for any appraisal report, consultation, feasibility or other study is for services rendered and,
unless otherwise stated in the service agreement, is not solely based upon the time spent on any assignment.
LEGAL EXPENSES

Any legal expenses incurred in defending or representing ourselves concerning this assignment will be
the responsibility of the client.

CHANGES AND MODIFICATIONS

California » Nevada

25-048 32



z;;% Jotmson Vatuation Group, Ltd — p—

—

The appraiser(s) reserves the right, at the cost of the client, to alter statements, analyses,
conclusions, or any value estimates in the appraisal if any new facts pertinent to the appraisal
process are discovered which were unknown on the date of valuation of this report.

DISSEMINATION OF MATERIAL
Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report shall be disseminated to the general public
through advertising or sales media, public relations media, new media or other public means of
communication without the prior written consent and approval of the appraiser(s).

The acceptance and/or use of the Appraisal Report by the client or any third party
constitutes acceptance of the Assumptions and Limiting Conditions set forth in the preceding
paragraphs. The appraiser’s liability extends only to the specified client, not to subsequent parties
or users. The appraiser’s liability is limited to the amount of the fee received for the services
rendered.

S — ——————————— California ® Nevada e —

25-048 33



A& Johmson Vatuation Group, Ltd.

QUALIFICATIONS OF APPRAISER
BENJAMIN Q. JOHNSON

Professional Designations
MALI — Designated Member of the Appraisal Institute

State Licensing and Certification
Certified General Appraiser — State of California
License Number AG043925
(Certified through April 29, 2026)

Certified General Appraiser — State of Nevada
License Number A.0205542-CG
(Certified through November 30, 2026)

Professional Experience
Johnson Valuation Group, Ltd.
Partner

Johnson-Perkins & Associates, Inc.
Principal Appraiser
Senior Appraiser
Intern Appraiser
Research Assistant

General Electric
Finance Intern

Formal Education

Santa Clara University — Santa Clara, CA
Bachelor of Science in Commerce; Major in Economics

California = Nevada -

25-048

2015 to Present

2009 to 2015
2008 to 2009

2006 to 2008

2005 to 2006

2002-2004
(Summers Only)

2005

34



% Jofinson Vatuation Group, Ltd —

QUALIFICATIONS OF

BENJAMIN Q. JOHNSON, (CONTINUED)

Qualified as an Expert Witness
Second Judicial District Court — State of Nevada
Third Judicial District Court — State of Nevada
Ninth Judicial District Court — State of Nevada
Superior Court of California, County of El Dorado
Superior Court of California, County of Placer
U.S. Bankruptcy Court, District of Nevada
U.S. Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of California

Offices Held and Appointments
Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District
Trustee

Nevada State Board of Equalization
Board Member
Chairman

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
Land Use Commodities Market Steering Committee

Appraisal Institute

Reno-Carson-Tahoe Chapter

Director

Secretary

Vice-President

President

Treasurer

Chair of Candidate Guidance Committee
Nevada Chapter

Northern Nevada Branch Chapter Vice Chair

Region 1

Nominating Committee

Eagle Scout Board of Review, Board Member
Association Memberships and Affiliations

Leadership Development and Advisory Council (LDAC)

Executives Association of Reno (EAR)

Tahoe Regional Young Professionals (TRYP)

——— —— California = Nevada ——

25-048

2023to Present

2012 to 2022
2019 to 2022

2014

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2013 to 2015

2017
2015 to Present
2016 to Present

2010

2009 to 2012
2015 to 2016

35



% Jobmson Vatuation Group, Ltd — B

ADDENDA

Legal Description

A portion of Lot 17, Kingsbury Highlands Unit No. 2,
in the Northwest quarter of the Sol(theast quarter of
Section 24, T. 13 N., R. 18 E., M.D.B. & M., Douglas
County, Nevada, more pérticularly described as follows:

Beginning at the Northwest corner of Lot 17,
Kingsbury Highlands, Unit No. 2. as shown on that
map recorded in File No. 19280, Records of Douglas
-County, Nevada; thence S. 89°44'26" E., 42.0 feet;
thence S. 0°15'34" W., 51.8 feet to a point on the
Northeasterly line of Laurel Lane; thence. along
.Laurel Lane N. 49°24'28" W., 33.5 feet; thence,
along a 41.48 foot radius curve to the right, through
an angle of 49°20'04" a distéance of 35.81 feet to the
point of beginning.

California = Nevada -

25-048 36



083
KINGSBURY HEIGHTS

PLAN DESIGNATION:

Land Use Classification RESIDENTIAL

Management Strategy MITIGATION

Special Designation NONE
DESCRIPTION:

Location: This area is midway up Kingsbury Grade in the area of the Kingsbury Heights
Subdivision and is located on TRPA map I-16.

Existing Uses: This is a low density residential area that includes a trailer subdivision, a TRPA-
approved planned unit development and other residential uses. The area is 80 percent built out.

Existing Environment: The area is classified as high hazard. The land coverage is 25 percent
plus an additional 25 percent disturbed.

PLANNING STATEMENT: This area should continue to be residential at the density of one residence per
approved lot of record.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

1. There is a mobile home subdivision in this area.
2. Scenic Roadway Unit 44 is within this Plan Area.

SPECIAL POLICIES:

1. The portion of Kingsbury Heights Subdivision which is now used for trailers should be
converted to permanent structures.

2, Land coverage reduction is a high priority in this area.

PERMISSIBLE USES: Pursuant to Chapter 18 PERMISSIBLE USES and if applicable, Chapter 51
PERMISSIBLE USES AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURES IN THE SHOREZONE AND LAKEZONE, the
following primary uses may be permitted within all or a portion of the Plan Area. The list indicates if the
use is allowed (A) or must be considered under the provisions for a special use (S). Existing uses not
listed shall be considered nonconforming uses within this Plan Area. The establishment of new uses not
listed shall be prohibited within this Plan Area.

General List: The following list of permissible uses is applicable throughout the Plan Area:

Residential Single family dwelling (A) and mobile home dwellings

(S).

TRPA Plan Area Statements
083 - KINGSBURY HEIGHTS Page 1



Public Service Local public health and safety facilities (S), transit
stations and terminals (S), pipelines and power
transmission (S), transmission and receiving facilities
(S), transportation routes (S), public utility centers (S),
and local post offices (S).

Recreation Participant sports facilities (S), day use areas (A), and
riding and hiking trails (A).

Resource Management Reforestation (A), sanitation salvage cut (A), special cut
(A), thinning (A), early successional stage vegetation
management (A), structural and nonstructural fish/wildlife
habitat management (A), fire detection and suppression
(A), fuels treatment/management (A), insect and disease
suppression (A), sensitive and uncommon plant
management (A), erosion control (A), SEZ restoration
(A), and runoff contral (A).

MAXIMUM DENSITIES: Pursuant to Chapter 21 DENSITY, the following list establishes the maximum
allowable densities that may be permitted for any parcel located within the Plan Area. The actual
development permitted may be further limited by transfer of development rights limitations, residential
density incentive program, special use determinations, allocation limitations and general site development
standards.

USE MAXIMUM DENSITY
Residential

Single Family Dwelling 1 unit per parcel
Mobile Home Dwellings 8 units per acre

MAXIMUM COMMUNITY NOISE EQUIVALENT LEVEL:. The maximum community noise equivalent
level for this Plan Area is 55 CNEL. The maximum community noise equivalent level for the
Highway 207 corridor is 55 CNEL.

ADDITIONAL DEVELOPED OUTDOOR RECREATION: The following are the targets and limits for
additional developed outdoor recreation facilities specified in Chapter 13 to be located within this Plan
Area. Specific projects and their timing are addressed in the TRPA Five-Year Recreation Program
pursuant to Chapter 33 Allocation of Development. The following additional capacities allowed are
measured in persons at one time.

SUMMER DAY USES 0 PAOT WINTER DAY USES 0 PAOT OVERNIGHT USES 0 PAOT

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS: The capital improvement and other improvement
programs required by the Regional Goals and Policies Plan and Environmental Improvement Plan (EIP)

for this area shall be implemented. §

§ Amended 5/22/02

TRPA Plan Area Statements
083 - KINGSBURY HEIGHTS Page 2



STAFF REPORT

Prepared By: Derek Dormnbrook, General Manager
Agenda Item #9 510 Laurel Lane Easement Request and Related Alternatives
Subject: 510 Laurel Lane — Special Value Determination

Background
The District owns a small, irregular parcel located at 510 Laurel Lane, Stateline, Nevada (APN
1318-24-710-001). The parcel contains a former utility structure that is no longer required for

District operations.

The disposition process was initiated in response to a request from an adjoining property owner
seeking an easement across District property to access an isolated parcel located behind the
District-owned site. Upon review, staff determined that a fee-title conveyance, rather than a
permanent easement, would be the more appropriate mechanism to address access needs while
avoiding ongoing District maintenance and liability obligations.

An independent appraisal (Appraisal Report No. 25-048, effective December 3, 2025) concluded
a market value of $10,000. The appraisal noted the parcel’s limited size, lack of independent
development potential, and determined the highest and best use of the property to be
combination with an adjacent parcel.

Interested Party and Unique Circumstances

An adjoining property owner has expressed interest in purchasing the parcel because it would
provide physical and legal access to a separately owned, currently isolated parcel located behind
the District property. Acquisition of the District parcel would materially improve the usability of
the rear parcel.

This access benefit is specific to the adjoining owner and is not generally available to the open
market.

Market Value and Special Value Considerations

The appraised market value reflects the price a typical buyer would pay in an open and
competitive market, without consideration of circumstances unique to a particular purchaser. In
this case, the parcel may provide additional value to the adjoining owner by enabling access to
an otherwise isolated property.

While this potential added value is not reflected in the appraised market value, it may reasonably
be considered in negotiations when disposing of property, provided the District receives fair
compensation and acts in accordance with its fiduciary responsibilities

Fiscal and Policy Considerations
o The appraisal establishes a defensible minimum sale value for the property.



e A negotiated sale price above appraised market value may be appropriate due to the
access benefit provided to the purchaser.

e Approval of a negotiated price above market value does not conflict with the appraisal
but rather reflects the distinction between market value and value to a specific purchaser.

o Sale of the parcel would eliminate District maintenance responsibility and return the
property to productive private use.

Conclusion

Staff recommends authorization to negotiate a sale price that meets or exceeds the appraised
market value and reasonably reflects the access benefit provided to the purchaser, subject to final
approval. This approach is consistent with the appraisal and acts in the best financial interests of
the District and its ratepayers.

Staff further recommends an initial asking price of $30,000 with authority to negotiate a final
sale price not less than $10,000.

As an alternative to selling the property, should the Board determine that retention of District
ownership is preferred, staff recommends consideration of a non-exclusive access easement
subject to a one-time easement fee.

Under this alternative, staff recommends that the easement fee be not less than the appraised
market value of $10,000 together with full reimbursement of all District legal, administrative,
and recording costs. The easement would be limited in scope to access purposes only and
structured to minimize ongoing District maintenance, operational obligations, and liability
exposure.

Staff continues to recommend a sale as the preferred option due to its finality and elimination of
long-term District liabilities; however, the non-exclusive easement option is presented for Board
consideration.



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #10

TITLE: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING APPROVAL OF DOWL
TASK ORDER 73 FOR PRELIMINARY DESIGN AND COST ESTIMATING SERVICES
FOR THE KGID-TDFPD OPERATIONS YARD STORAGE BUILDING

MEETING DATE: 16 December 2025
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order 73
with DOWL, in an amount not to exceed $170,897, for preliminary design, planning-level construction
cost estimating, and partial detailed design services for the joint KGID-TDFPD Operations Yard Storage
Facility.

This authorization will allow the Board to proceed with Task 1 (Preliminary Design and Planning-Level
Cost Estimate) and selected portions of Tasks 2—4, consistent with Board direction from August 2025
and October 2025. The Board may approve Task 1 only, or Tasks 1-4, depending on desired progress
toward project development.

BACKGROUND:

On August 19, 2025, the Board authorized the General Manager to pursue a joint venture with the Tahoe
Douglas Fire Protection District (TDFPD) for the development of a permanent shared vehicle storage
facility to replace the previously considered Sprung structure, which was abandoned due to
environmental and structural concerns.

On October 21, 2025, the Board directed staff to coordinate with DOWL and a qualified geotechnical
consultant to confirm site feasibility at the Operations Yard and evaluate alternatives, noting that a 2018
geotechnical investigation identified areas of uncontrolled fill that would require substantial over-
excavation if used for a permanent structure.

Following this direction, DOWL has prepared Task Order 73, which establishes the scope and cost for
advancing the project into preliminary design and planning-level cost estimation. The Task Order
covers:

Task 1 — Preliminary Design & Planning-Level Construction Cost Estimate
e A preliminary site layout figure
o Civil and electrical conceptual layouts
e A structural/mechanical design assumptions letter



o A planning-level estimate of probable construction costs
These items directly address the Board’s request for clarity on construction costs prior to
advancing into full design.

Tasks 2-4 — Partial Project Management, Sub-Consultant Coordination, and Detailed Design
o Limited project management (Task 2)
e Mechanical subconsultant costs (Task 3)
e A portion of detailed design work (Task 4), including:
o Site layout
o Ultility coordination
o Drainage and grading development
o 50%, 90%, and 100% design milestones

Tasks 5-8 (Permitting, Bidding Assistance, Construction Management, and Construction
Observation) are not included in this authorization and will require separate Board action once the
final project scope is defined.

Project Cost Summary

The combined cost of Tasks 1—4 included in this Task Order is:

$170,897 (Time and Materials, Not-to-Exceed)

(Per the Task Order Fee Schedule, page 13)

The full project—including permitting, bidding support, construction management, and observation—is
currently estimated at:

$404,347

However, only the $170,897 amount is before the Board for approval at this time.

INCLUDED:
A. Task Order 73 - DOWL

Fund impacted by the above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item
(O Water Fund () Sewer Fund
(0 General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of 4 pages, referred to in
and part of the Agreement between Owner and
Engineer for Professional Services dated August 19,
2025.

Task Order

Task Order Number: 73
Date: December 16, 2025
Title: Kingsbury General Improvement District — KGID-TDFPD Operations Yard Storage

Project Description: This project involves the planning, coordination, and design for a new
10,500 square-foot (SF) commercial storage and parking facility at the Kingsbury General Improvement
District (KGID) operations yard, located at 801 Kingsbury Grade. Permitting, Bidding, construction
management, and construction observation are not included under this Task Order as these efforts cannot
be fully understood at this time to provide an accurate representation. These tasks will be included in an
amended Task Order once the design is complete and all parties fully understand requirements set forth by
permitting entities for the construction of the building.

This Task Order also includes the preliminary scope of work and estimated costs for these subsequent
phases, though these figures and scopes may need to be adjusted after further coordination with KGID to
better understand the final needs and requirements.

The need for enclosed storage has been a priority for KGID for several years, dating back to initial
development plans by JWA Consulting in approximately 2002. This effort represents the culmination of
previous planning phases, including a discontinued full administration building design in 2018, which was
halted due to higher than anticipated estimated construction costs and significant geotechnical findings
(uncontrolled fill requiring substantial over-excavation and structural replacement), and an earlier
abandoned attempt at a temporary structure. The current direction focuses on a durable, pre-fabricated steel
building solution to ensure long-term reliability and compliance with local building requirements.

This renewed project will be a joint venture between KGID and the Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District
(TDFPD), establishing a shared facility for the enclosed parking and storage of large KGID operations
vehicles and TDFPD fire apparatus.

Improvements to the operations yard will include the new steel building and necessary site upgrades, such
as improvements to site drainage, the design of a sand oil separator utility, and coordination of essential
services including water, power, and natural gas. Our scope includes the design of the civil site
infrastructure and the foundation/anchorage for the pre-fabricated steel building, which will be provided by
a specialized supplier.

This Task Order initiates the detailed design effort to secure the necessary Douglas County approvals,
confirming the viability and estimated construction costs to provide a permanent solution for the shared
operational needs of both KGID and TDFPD.

The Master Services Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the
parties.

Page 1 0f 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




PART 1-SERVICES

Task 1 — Preliminary Design & Planning Level Construction Cost Estimate

Objective

To perform preliminary investigation and design to provide KGID a planning level opinion of probable
construction cost estimates.

Approach

DOWL will prepare a planning level design to prepare a construction cost estimate. This task will include
the following activities:

Planning level design layout figure per KGID provided information on building size and location
per previous correspondence.

DOWL will gather additional information from existing sources (as-builts, maps, Survey etc.) to
update the existing topographic and utility mapping. Coordinate with KGID to obtain needed
missing information from KGID files/records to finalize existing data and mapping.

Planning level design layout will be utilized to get preliminary quantities for site improvements
and include the preliminary design components
o Civil Site Layout: Site / Parking layout, septic placement, existing utilities, preliminary
mass grading.

o Electrical: Location of applicable electrical facilities in the project area and preliminary
layout of proposed facilities.

o Structural and Mechanical components will not be shown on figure during the preliminary
phase.

Deliverables

The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:

e Preliminary Site Layout Figure with Civil and Electrical site improvements.
e Preliminary design letter outlining all structural building design elements for Civil, Structural,
Electrical, and Mechanical (Provided by CR Engineering) assumptions to produce cost estimate.
e Planning Level Construction Cost Estimate that includes Civil, Electrical, Structural, and
Mechanical.
Assumptions

The following assumptions apply:

The preliminary design layout and Cost Estimate will be prepared with the information from
previous studies, investigations, and KGID provided information:

o DOWL will utilize the existing survey and Geotechnical Report from 2018.

o DOWL will utilize information from previous Geotechnical Studies and amount of
excavation of existing soils under the proposed building will be based on the Geotechnical
report recommendations

o The building size (70-ft x 150-ft) and location was provided to DOWL by KGID.

Design Letter will be used to provide KGID the preliminary components and scope included within
the building design for review and KGID to provide additions or remove from the Scope with
review.

Page 2 of 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




e DOWL will provide preliminary design recommendations in the Letter and include a list of
information needed from KGID to determine the project needs and scope of work needed to prepare
a final design.

Exclusions

e Building Placement provided by KGID. NO alternative locations or building configurations are
included in this Task Order.

Recommendations

DOWL recommends that another Geotechnical Investigation be prepared on the site and localized to the
proposed building location. Due to the existing site containing uncontrolled fill, this poses a significant risk
to the proposed building footing stability. To ensure the structural design is adequate, structural design will
recommend that the existing fill be removed to the fullest extent anywhere under the existing building. A
new Geotechnical evaluation at the proposed building location will help identify the exact amount of
uncontrolled fill in that area and may reduce the overall amount of excavation depending on the new
findings.

TASK 2 — PROJECT MANAGEMENT
Objective

To plan, organize, direct, control, and communicate relevant activities set forth in this Scope of Work within
the approved budget and schedule.

Approach

DOWL will routinely review project progress and communicate project status on a regular basis.
Communication will be through email and telephone. This task will include the following activities:

e Project administration includes scheduling maintenance, cost control, monthly invoicing, filing,
resource allocation, and routine communications.

e Team coordination, including conference calls and internal meetings.

e Monitoring changes to the scope, budget, or schedule and developing change management
strategies with KGID.

Deliverables
The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:
e Monthly reports will be provided with timely invoices.
Assumptions
The following assumptions apply:

e Project duration is estimated at 12 months, project management beyond Final Design is not
included at this time.

e Project-related issues will be identified, communicated, and resolved.
e Submittals will be made from DOWL to KGID electronically.

Page 3 of 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




TASK 3 — SUB-CONSULTANTS

Objective

To provide subconsultants as part of the design for the storage building.
Approach

Mechanical engineering and designs will be performed by a subconsultant. For additional information,
please refer to the attached proposals from the following subconsultants:

® Mechanical Design — CR Engineering.

Deliverables

The following deliverables will be submitted in conjunction with Task 1 and Task 4 deliverables:
e Preliminary Construction Cost Estimate for mechanical, plumbing, and fire protection.

e The subconsultants’ designs and reports will be included with the completed plans and
specifications.

Assumptions
The following assumptions apply:

e Support from subconsultants includes preliminary cost estimation and design, Final Design, and
construction administration. Only Sub-Consultant fees for Task 1 and Task 4 (Preliminary Cost
estimate and Final Design) are included at this time.

e The subconsultants’ designs and reports will be included with the plans and specifications
beginning at the 50% design level.

Exclusions
e Sub-Consultants are NOT included in this Task Order:
Special Inspection
Geotechnical
Architectural

Planning

O O O O O©

Landscape Architect

TASK 4 — DETAILED DESIGN
Objective

Preparation of plans and specifications for bidding purposes, as well as an opinion of probable construction
cost for the Project.

Approach

DOWL to provide civil, electrical, and structural engineering services for the design of a storage building.
The design shall include the preparation of stamped plans, construction contract documents and technical
specifications, and an opinion of probably construction costs. This task will include the following activities:

e Civil Site Design Components: site layout, building configuration, septic design, utilities, grading,
and other required civil requirements.

e Electrical Design Components: Design of electrical lighting of building and parking area, electrical
conduit site layout, Building interior lighting, conduit layout inside building, site receptacles,
coordinate new power service to support electrical loads with NV Energy, design of electrical

Page 4 of 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




service to mechanical components (Controls and exhaust), and backup / future transformer
locations, and grounding.

e Structural Design Components: Design of structural building foundation system and metal building
anchorage.

e Aninitial on-site visit along with one on-site 50% design review with the District to walk the project
area confirming all field components are incorporated into the plans and all points of conflict are
addressed/resolved.

e DOWL will gather any additional information from existing sources (as-builts, maps, etc.) to
update the existing topographic and utility mapping. Coordinate with KGID to obtain needed
missing information from KGID files/records to finalize existing data and mapping.

e Obtain and process record drawings from utility purveyors with buried and aerial utilities within
the Project corridor.

e Preliminary building and site layout drawings will be provided to KGID for review at the 50%
level.

e Coordination with utility purveyors on service extensions to the new building.

e Prepare a drainage study and water model check for fire flows.

e Preliminary design drawings, technical specifications, and opinion of proposal cost documents will
be provided to KGID for review at the 50%, 90%, and 100% levels.

e Comments received from KGID will be incorporated into the design.

e One (1) 50% submittal review meeting and site walk at KGID with DOWL and KGID staff.

e Quality assurance and quality control of deliverables to KGID.

Deliverables

The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:

e Submittal of the preliminary building and site layout.

e Submittal of the 50% set for District review and comment will include PDF files of the Plans
(117x177), Construction Specifications, and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost..

e Submittal of the 90% set for District review and comment will include PDF files of the Plans
(117x17”), Construction and Procurement Specifications, and Opinion of Probable Construction
Cost.

e Submittal of the 100% set used for bidding will include individual PDF files of the Plans (117x177),
Construction and Procurement Specifications, and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost.

Assumptions

The following assumptions apply:

It is anticipated the design will consist of a 30-page set of stamped drawings.

The Project schedule anticipates KGID will provide review comments for all submittals to DOWL
within two (2) week of our submission of these documents.

Specifications will be in EJCDC format for front end and CSI format for technical specifications.
Offsite improvements to State Route 207 will not be required as result of this Project.

KGID will pay all required application and permit fees or deposits.

Page 5 of 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




e NV Energy, South West Gas, Charter, and Frontier Communications plans will be designed by the
utility and referenced in the Project’s plans. KGID will pay all utility design and installation fees
for service extensions.

e Civil Site Design Assumptions:
o Septic design and sand-oil separator will only be for building drainage only.
e Flectrical Design Assumptions:

o NV Energy to install a new electrical service due to the increase in electrical loads from
the proposed building.

e Structural Design Assumptions:

o Building footing recommendations will be based on the existing Geotechnical Report and
will assume excavation of all uncontrolled fill per the report.

o Steel Building Performance Specifications will be provided to KGID for the Steel
Manufacturer.

o Final Building reactions to be provided by the Steel Building manufacturer for foundation
system design. Reactions provide by the Manufacturer will be reviewed and incorporated
into the foundation design.

Exclusions
e Civil Site Design:
o NO sanitary Sewer and restroom facilities are included in this design.
e Electrical Design:

o SCADA design is not included with this design but accommodations for communication
panels and conduit will be made.

e Structural Design:

o Specification of Roll-up and man-doors are NOT included in this Task Order. If doors are
not included from Steel Building Manufacturers, DOWL can amend the scope to provide
Specifications for the doors.

TASK 5 — PERMITTING (Not Included with This Task Order)

Permitting is not included in this Task Order at this time. DOWL is able to provide necessary permitting
but will be required (See Exclusions) to adjust the scope after coordination with the KGID General Manager
and gain an understanding of what portions KGID will lead and what DOWL will perform.

The following is an Estimated scope that lists the scope of work DOWL can perform. The Fee estimate
represents the estimated amount of effort.

Objective

DOWL to coordinate and secure appropriate permitting and agency approvals for the construction of the
steel storage building.

Approach
This task will include the following activities:
e Permits required for this project:
o Douglas County Building Permit
o Douglas County Septic Permit

Page 6 of 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




NDEP-BSDW Waiver Request Letter

Nevada Energy — Commercial Project Permit

o O O

Southwest Gas, Charter, and Frontier Communications (As needed)
o TDFPD Fire Approval / Permitting
Preparation and submission of Douglas County Building and Septic permit applications.

Preparation and submission of a waiver request letter to Nevada Division of Environmental
Protection — Bureau of Safe Drinking Water as the project is anticipated to include an extension of
less than 500 feet of KGIDs distribution system.

Submit a Commercial project Application for new electric Service with NV Energy.

NV Energy, South West Gas, Charter, and Frontier Communications plans will be designed by the
utility and referenced in the Project’s plans. KGID will pay all utility design and installation fees
for service extensions.

Submit for approval to Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District on the fire suppression system, fire
hydrant location and projected flow conditions.

Three (3) coordination meetings and coordination with NDOT presenting the project.

Deliverables

The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:

Permits, plans, and written approvals from the agencies identified.

Assumptions

The following assumptions apply:

KGID will act as the Applicant and pay all required application and permit fees or deposits.

Significant environmental permitting is not included as part of this task.

e Offsite improvements to Kingsbury Grade will not be required as result of this Project.
Exclusions
e Douglas County Permitting NOT Included:

o Building Energy Calculations per International Energy Conservation Code (IECC) NOT
included.

o Architectural design is NOT included in this Task Order and MAY be required for Douglas
County permitting (if not supplied by the Steel building manufacturer).

»  Architectural design analysis for mixed occupancy

= Building Exterior elevations

»  Any other architectural requirements for Douglas County Permitting
o Building Structural plans and design information:

*  Roof Framing Plan

o Planning sub-consultant is NOT included in this Task Order and MAY be required for
Douglas County codes and permit requirements.

o Landscape Architecture plans are NOT included in this Task Order and MAY be required
for Douglas County codes and permit requirements.

Page 7 of 14
Exhibit A - Task Order
Master Services Agreement




TASK 6 — BIDDING ASSISTANCE (Not Included with This Task Order)

Bidding Assistance is not included in this Task Order at this time. DOWL is able to provide necessary
support to complete this task after coordination with the KGID General Manager

The following is an Estimated scope that lists the scope of work DOWL can perform. The Fee estimate
represents the estimated amount of effort.

Objective
Assists KGID in the bid selection process and award of the contraction contract.
Approach
This task will include the following activities:
e Facilitate all bidding efforts including: bid advertisement, distribution, plan holder’s list.

e Conduct and attend Pre-Bid meeting at KGID’s office, prepare agenda, and compile meeting
minutes for distribution.

e Answer questions from bidders, prepare and distribute RFI’s and addenda, as required.
e Conduct and attend bid opening at KGID’s office.

e Review bids received, create bid tabulation tables, perform due-diligent check on apparent low
bidder, and recommendation for award of the contract.

e Prepare and issue Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed.
o Work with Contractor to obtain signed agreements, bonds, and insurance.
Deliverables
The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:
e Addenda, as required.
e Letter of recommendation for award.
Assumptions
The following assumptions apply:
e DOWL will advertise and bid the Project electronically.
e Assuming the preparation of three (3) addenda and six (6) RF]Is for this Project.

e Steel Building to be procured by KGID. If KGID would like the Contractor to specify and procure
the building, the Task Order scope will need to be modified to provide all necessary plans,
specifications, and information in the plans and contract documents to do so.

TASK 7 - CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT (Not Included with This Task Order)

Construction Management is not included in this Task Order at this time. DOWL is able to provide
necessary support to complete this task once full project scope and timelines are known after coordination
with the KGID General Manager.

The following is an Estimated scope that lists the scope of work DOWL can perform. The Fee estimate
represents the estimated amount of effort.

Objective

Monitor the Project and keep the District informed of the Project status. This phase also includes assisting
the District with close-out of the construction process and Construction Contract.

Page 8 of 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




Approach

The following activities will be performed as part of this task:

Oversee the Project team and provide routine project management and communications.

Conduct one (1) pre-construction meeting at the District’s office, prepare agenda and meeting
minutes for the pre-construction meeting. DOWL attendance will include the Project Manager,
Project Engineer, and Construction Observer.

Process change-orders and payment applications, evaluate claims, review submittals, respond to
RFIs, and address unanticipated conditions.

Weekly in-office construction management activities are limited to ten (10) total hours per week.

o These activities include processing of documents (described earlier), coordination with all
parties, daily observation report QC, etc.

o Maintain all Project documentation for the duration of the Project including tracking,
disbursing, and reviewing. Maintain logs for all documentation including submittals,
RFCs/RFIs, field orders, work change directives, and change orders.

Certified Payroll Review:

o Review certified payroll reports supplied by the prime contractor. Reports to include prime
and sub-contractors working on the Project.

o Verify contractor staffs’ position, time, and wages paid are accurate and comply with the
prevailing wages for the Project.

Schedule and manage weekly on-site construction meetings. Prepare all agendas and meeting
minutes for weekly construction meetings.

Coordinate a Substantial Completion inspection and develop a final punch-list of work items to be
completed prior to final inspection. Meeting onsite will include DOWL Construction Observer,
Engineer, District staff member, and Contractor for site walkthrough.

Conduct a final inspection meeting to verify that all outstanding work items are complete (DOWL
Project Engineer and Construction Observer to perform on-site final walkthrough with Contractor
and District Staff).

Upon completion of construction, obtain both Construction Observer and Contractor as-builts and
incorporate all modifications into a set of record drawings. Revisions will be made in the CAD
design files.

Recommend Project final acceptance to the District.

Deliverables

The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:

Notice to Proceed.

Pre-Construction Meeting minutes.
Construction Meeting Minutes

Certified Payroll reports supplied by contractor.
Contractor Pay Applications.

Change Order forms (If required).

Substantial Completion List

Conformance letter from DOWL.

Page 9 of 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




e Record drawings electronically (PDF)

Assumptions

The following assumptions apply:

® Pre-construction meeting to be held at the District’s office.

® Project is located out of the Tahoe Basin and TRPA grading season limits do not apply.

e Construction anticipated to take Eighteen (18) weeks.

o

o

Time effort required by Engineer and Office staff detailed in the Approach section.

If construction efforts vary from this schedule, DOWL will notify the District and will be
available per the estimated weekly time effort, or an agreed upon weekly time effort, for
days that work is being performed until complete and compensated on a time and materials
basis outside of the scope.

District will be notified by DOWL with sufficient time prior to Contractor going over the
scheduled date. DOWL will discuss with District and provide justification for additional
work. An Amendment to this contract or a separate Task Order for construction services
beyond this scope will be used as a formal agreement with District after coordination and
approval from the District.

e Nine (9) weekly construction meetings are assumed — no meeting first week of construction,
meeting to be bi-weekly. DOWL will be available for additional on-site visits if requested by the
District, billed on a time and materials basis outside of the Scope.

e Weekly construction meeting costs shall include all time, 6 hours for meeting, travel, and mileage.

e Office engineering efforts are detailed under the Approach section of this task.

e The Construction Observer and Contractor will provide a complete and clean set of redlines to

DOWL.

e It is anticipated that the Construction Contract will exceed $250,000; therefore, certified payroll
reports and associated field interviews will be required.

(o]

Certified payroll reviews are assumed at 3 hours per week for the duration of construction
identified within this Scope

Certified Payroll reports are anticipated to be complete and correct. Contractor is to be
familiar with certified payrolls and compliance.

One (1) minor revision for each Certified Payroll report is assumed within this scope of
work. Additional revisions will be billed on a time and materials basis.

If Certified Payroll reports are not complete, DOWL will reject submission and require re-
submittal by the contractor.

DOWL’s review will consist of verification of personnel, time worked, and hourly wages
and that requirements of the Project are met.

All final certification and reporting to Labor Commission must come from the District as
they are the public body, funding the Project, and have ultimate responsibility.

e Material testing will be provided by Contractor via certified third-party testing company.

e Change orders will be initially reviewed by DOWL. DOWL to coordinate with contractor to
review, evaluate, and respond to claims.

(¢]

A reasonable effort is assumed to be email and phone correspondence with contractor, and
two (2) revisions of a change order reviewed by DOWL with response from DOWL to

Page 10 of 14
Exhibit A —~ Task Order
Master Services Agreement




Contractor. If there is no resolution with Contractor after DOWL’s initial coordination and
response, DOWL will engage the District for negotiation and resolution.

o DOWL will gather information from both DOWL observation documents and Contractor
construction documents to present the documentation and DOWLSs response to the District
for final review and approval.

e Public Involvement will be performed by the District. DOWL will support the District in the field.

o The District will coordinate and provide information to the public. DOWL will provide the
District any supporting documents or clarifications for the public.

o DOWL will provide any daily observation reports or photos of the site to the District in
case of homeowner complaints or damages.

o It is assumed that the DOWL Construction Observer will be the first point of contact in the
field. The Construction Observer will be responsible for enforcing that Contractor has
posted signage and notice to homeowners during construction. Construction Observer will
also communicate with homeowners and provide information to DOWL Engineer and the
District.

® This Task Order includes Two (2) meetings at the District Office and onsite, outside of the weekly
construction meetings, for the Pre-Construction meeting, and Final Completion Walkthrough.
Meetings costs shall include all time, 6 hours for meeting, travel, and mileage.

TASK 8 — CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION (Not Included with This Task Order)

Construction Observation is not included in this Task Order at this time. DOWL is able to provide necessary
support to complete this task once full project scope and timelines are known after coordination with the
KGID General Manager.

The following is an Estimated scope that lists the scope of work DOWL can perform. The Fee estimate
represents the estimated amount of effort.

Objective

Perform construction observation ensuring all aspects constructed are compliant with the design plans and
specifications.

Approach

The following activities will be performed as part of this task:
e The main Construction Observer to provide Half-time observation during the construction process.
e The Electrical Engineer will perform two (2) site-visits during the construction process.

e The Structural Engineer will perform Four (4) site-visits during the construction process for
Structural Observation and general conformance to the contract documents.

e Notify Contractor, Engineer, and the District of any issues in the field as or before issues occur to
allow quick resolution.

e Answer questions, verify work is being completed per the plans and specifications, and coordinate
with all parties and the public.

e Monitor traffic control and public access.
e Prepare daily observation reports, measure quantities, and take photographic records.

e Monitor material testing (performed by certified third-party firms contracted by the contractor) to
certify requirements are being met.

Page 11 of 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




Attend all weekly progress meetings.
Generate punch list of items to correct at substantial completion.
Conduct final site walk ensuring punch list items are complete.

Keep a set of redlined as-builts of construction.

Deliverables

The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:

Daily Observation Reports
Punchlist
Redlined As-Builts

Assumptions

The following assumptions apply:

Construction anticipated to take Eighteen (18) weeks total.

DOWL construction inspector to be part time, two days a week at 20-hrs / week. Inspection costs
shall include all time, 8 hours on-site inspection, 2 hours for reporting, travel, and mileage.

The Structural Engineer will perform structural observation site visits on the foundation elements
(footing, rebar, forms, and anchoring of the structural components).

The Electrical Engineer will perform site visits to inspect the electrical components of the project.

If construction efforts vary from this schedule, DOWL will notify the District and will be present
for days that work is being performed until complete and compensated on a time and materials
basis outside of the scope.

On-site observation will only occur when the contractor is performing work.

Construction Observer will be the first point of Contact with the Public in the field. Observer will
notify DOWL Engineer and District of any homeowner issues, complaints, or requests. DOWL will
rely on the District to coordinate with homeowner as necessary and resolve any issues or direct any
changes in the field regarding homeowner or public request. DOWL will provide support and
maintain communication with homeowners per District direction.

A single half-time Construction Observer will oversee observation. If there are multiple
construction crews running, the DOWL Engineer and Observer will coordinate with the Contractor
to determine the key areas of inspection for the day. Observer will coordinate with Contractor to
get a daily schedule from contractor to make an informed decision.

o DOWL will coordinate with District to identify a plan to ensure project has adequate
inspection if there are multiple construction crews.

o If multiple crews require observation, DOWL to coordinate with District to identify a plan
and assess the effort required and if more persons are needed. DOWL will obtain approval
with District prior to additional effort beyond this scope of services.

This Task Order includes Two (2) Electrical Engineer Site Visit inspections, and Three (3)
Structural Engineer Site Visit inspections outside of the weekly construction meetings. Inspection
visits costs shall include all time, 6 hours for meeting, travel, and mileage.

DOWL will be available for additional on-site visits if requested by the District, billed on a time
and materials basis outside of the Scope.

Page 12 of 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




Exclusions

e Special Inspection is NOT included in this Task Order. Special inspection will be required for soils,

e Architectural Inspection services are NOT included in this Task Order.

PART 2 - COMPENSATION
KGID shall pay DOWL on a time and materials basis, including travel, not to exceed

One-Hundred and Seventy-Thousand and Eight-Hundred and Ninety-Seven Dollars ($170.897.00).

The total estimated fee is $404,347 with all tasks included for permitting, Bidding, and Construction
Administration / Observation. Hourly rates and other expenses shall be in accordance with Exhibit C of the
Master Services Agreement (Standard Hourly Rates). The breakdown of the individual task budgets is as

foundation preparation, concrete testing, and structural building steel components.

follows:
Tasks Total Cost | Task Order Cost
Task 1 — Preliminary Design & Construction Cost Estimate $9.281 $9.281
Task 2 — Project Management $19,421 $9,710
Task 3 — Subconsultants $53,200 $43,200
Task 4 — Detailed Design $108,706 $108,706
Task 5 — Permitting Phase (Not Included with this Task Order) $34,371 $0
Task 6 — Bidding Assistance (Not Included with this Task Order) $14,113 $0
Task 7 — Construction Management (Not Included with this Task Order) $97,262 $0
Task 8 — Construction Observation (Not Included with this Task Order) $67,993 $0
Current Task Order Fee: $170,897
Estimated Bidding, Construction Management & Observation Fee: $233,449
Total Estimated Project Budget: $404.347

Page 13 of 14

Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




PART 3 - SCHEDULE
The following is a proposed schedule to be used as a general guideline only:

Award of Task Order........c.cooovveveenerecerienirenreecennen December 16, 2025 Board Meeting
Preliminary Design / Cost Estimate .............................. January 2026

50% DeSIN........cveeieeiiiiieneeeriie . February 2026

90% DESIZN.....c.oconeeniiiiiirii s April 2026

Permitting. ..o e May — July 2026

100% DeSIZN. .....cooeiiiceerreeccecreee e August 2026
Bidding..........ccooiiii September 2026

COnStIUCHON. ......ooveiit et e e e e March 2027 — October 2027

Project Closeout..............cccoeiiicinniinniinineneene November 2027 — December 2027

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Task Order.

Owner: Kingsbury General Improvement District Engineer: DOWL Engineering

By: By:

Print Name: Derek Dornbrook Print Name:  Matt Van Dyne, P.E.
Title: General Manager Title: Senior Project Manager
Date Signed: Date Signed:

Page 14 of 14
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




CR ENGINEERING

Mechanical Engineering Consultant
5434 Longley Lane

Reno, Nevada 89511

Phone: 775.826.1919 Fax: 775.826.1918
WWW.Cr-eng.com

Proposal
December 4, 2025

Mr. Travis Marshall, PE
DOWL

5510 Longley Lane
Reno, Nevada 89511

Re: Kingsbury General Improvement District Operations Yard Storage Building
Dear Travis:

Thank you for the opportunity to provide the following professional services proposal. This letter is
intended to set the terms between DOWL and CR Engineering for the above project. It is to define the
project scope and fees.

Project Description
Construction of a 10,500 square feet metal building for vehicle and equipment storage.

The mechanical system is anticipated to include the following:
. Paint storage room exhaust

Heated makeup air unit(s)

Vehicle exhaust (8-12 vehicles)

General garage exhaust

HVAC Controls

The plumbing system is anticipated to include the following:
Garage floor trench drains

Sand/oil interceptor on site

Utility sink(s)

Sink w/ eye wash

Domestic water piping

Domestic water heating

Waste and vent piping within the building

Fuel gas piping

Mechanical (HVAC)
We will provide complete mechanical plans and specifications as required to obtain a competitive bid.
Mechanical design will include HVAC equipment, louvers, ductwork, and controls.

Plumbing
We will provide complete plumbing plans and specifications as required to obtain a competitive bid.

Plumbing design shall include domestic water supply piping, floor drainage, waste and vent piping, and
fuel gas piping. The sand oil interceptor will be shown on the civil drawings. All utilities will be shown to
five feet outside the building.

Fire Protection
We will provide a performance specification that includes floor plan with riser location and areas to be fire
protected, riser detail, and test location.



KGID Operations Yard Storage Building Proposal Page 2 of 4

Planning & Cost Estimating Scope of Work
. Assist with project planning
) Prepare mechanical, plumbing, and fire protection preliminary cost estimate

Design Services Scope of Work

Prepare mechanical design drawings and specifications

Prepare plumbing design drawings and specifications

Prepare fire protection performance specification

Prepare IECC Mechanical Compliance Certificate

Prepare construction cost estimate

Attend design coordination meetings in Reno, NV

Provide progress drawings at Design Development, and Construction Documents phases
Provide sufficient wet-stamped drawings for submission to the building department
Address building department comments

Prepare Bid Documents

Construction Administration Services Scope of Work
Respond to questions during bid period

Response to field generated questions

Review mechanical equipment and material submittals
Review plumbing equipment, fixtures, and material submittals
Revie fire protection shop drawings, calculations, and material submittals
Attend pre-construction meeting

Construction site visits as requested

Review test & balance report

Review Operation & Maintenance manuals

Final observation of the work

Prepare as-built documentation from contractor markups

Services not Included

International Energy Conservation Code envelope compliance
Septic design

Sand/oil interceptor design

Structural design or review of equipment support
Reproduction of documents

Permit fees

Client Provided Materials
° Building plans in AutoCAD or Revit format

General Terms and Conditions

Unless specifically delineated in a contract subsequent to this proposal or governed by another mutually
signed contract, the following General Terms and Conditions shall also apply to CR Engineering (the
Firm) DOWL (the Client) for the scope of this work:

1. Access to Site: Unless otherwise stated, the Firm will have access to the site for activities
necessary for the performance of the engineering services. The Firm will take precautions to
minimize disturbance to the Owner due to these activities, but has not included in the fee the cost of
waiting for access or reimbursing the Client for lost time.

2. Dispute Resolution: Any claims or disputes made during design, construction or post-construction
between the Client and Firm shall be submitted to non-binding mediation. Client and Firm agree to
include a similar mediation agreement with all contractors, subcontractors, sub-consultants,



KGID Operations Yard Storage Building Proposal Page 3 of 4

suppliers and fabricators, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute
resolution between all parties.

3. Billings/Payments: Invoices for the Firm's services shall be submitted, at the Firm’s options, either
upon completion of such services or on a monthly basis. Invoices shall be payable within 30 days
after the invoice date. If the invoice is not paid with 60 days, the Firm may, without waiving any
claim or right against the Client, and without liability whatsoever to the Client, terminate the
performance of the service. Retainers shall be credited on the final invoice.

4, Late Payments: Accounts unpaid 90 days after the invoice date may be subjectto a monthly
service charge of 1.5% on the then unpaid balance. In the event any portion or all of an account
remains unpaid 90 days after billing, the Client shall pay all costs of collection, including reasonable
attorney’s fees.

5. Indemnification: The Client shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold
harmless the Firm, his or her officers, directors, employees, agents and sub-consultants from and
against all damage, liability and cost, including reasonable attorney’s fees and defense costs,
arising out of or in any way connected with the performance by any of the parties above named of
the services under this agreement, excepting only those damages, liabilities or costs attributable to
the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Firm.

6. Certifications: Guarantees and Warranties: The Firm shall not be required to execute any
document that would result in its certifying, guaranteeing or warranting the existence of conditions
whose existence the Firm cannot ascertain.

7. Limitation of Liability: In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both
the Client and the Firm, the risks have been allocated such that the Client agrees that, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, the Firm'’s total liability to the Client for any and all injuries, claims, losses,
expenses, damage or claim expenses arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes, shall
not exceed available policy limits. Such causes include, but are not limited to, the Firm's
negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or breach of warranty.

8. Termination of Services: This agreement may be terminated by the Client or the Firm should the
other fail to perform its obligations hereunder. In the event of termination, the Client shall pay the
Firm for all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses, and
reimbursable termination expenses.

9. Ownership of Documents: All documents produced by the Firm under this agreement shall be
considered as the property of the Firm. The Client may not use the documents prepared under the
terms of this proposal for any other endeavors than those for which they were intended without the
written consent of the Firm.

Fee
CR Engineering proposes to complete the described Scope of Work detailed above for a fee based on
Time and Materials Not to Exceed the following:

Planning and Cost Estimate $3,200
Design $40,000
Construction Administration $10,000

Additional Services
Additional services will be negotiated with the Client prior to commencement of additional services and
will be billed in accordance with the current Fee Schedule.



KGID Operations Yard Storage Building Proposal Page 4 of 4

Insurance
CR Engineering carries general liability and professional liability errors and omissions insurance.
Evidence of coverage is available upon request.

Agreement

This proposal is valid if accepted within 90 days of its date. If this is acceptable, please execute an
agreement or indicate by signing below. This will serve as our notice to proceed. Fee arrangement will
be renegotiated if project is placed on hold for more than 180 days.

Sincerely,

L

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:

cERINEG
M/ L M By:

Christopher L. Rounds, PE For: DOWL

Date:




CR ENGINEERING

Mechanical Engineering Consultant
5434 Longley Lane

Reno, Nevada 89511

Phone: 775.826.1919

www.Cr-eng.com

Fee Schedule
Effective January 1, 2025

Hourly Professional Rates

Principal Engineer $240.00
Senior Engineer $200.00
Professional Engineer $160.00 to $180.00
Engineer/Sr. Designer $120.00 to $160.00

Designer $100.00 to $140.00
Draftsman $100.00 to $120.00
Administration $110.00

Construction Manager $250.00

Consultant Fees
Cost + 15%

Printing and Plotting
Photocopies, 8%x11  $0.50/each

Bond Plots $1.00/square foot
Scanning

8%ex11 $0.25/each

11x17 $0.50/each

Large format $3.00 per sheet

Outside Reproduction and Scanning Services
Cost + 15%

Shipping
Cost + 15%

Travel
Inside 40-mile radius of Reno, NV no charge
QOutside 40-mile radius of Reno, NV $0.70 /mile (door to door)
Car rental, airfare, meals, lodging cost + 10%

Payment Terms
Invoices are sent monthly based on progress of the work.



SZOZILZY MeWYs3 eag i -

s oress I i v 3 z v z L o z i 3 IHGRIONIO] PUR SBUMEIC PioOWH
P [t %5728 z [ ONSSRU] LTBRILOD (Hoeds [ENIANIS
5278 [ nez (D ! 9 e utoen WONORMIEAA M
19rsis coss () i [t 1 B I N | e || [E—i 1T [ —— S i © T e T e A 2
vi0'19% n20'198 e t g€ (24 9 05 084 Swsauibug B0
10828 185 B94'28 8 Z z 8 e $2UAIBUCD UONINIIUCT-1d 1NPUDT PUS e7uBBIc ‘N..h |
906'FS 905'7S k4 2 z 0b 9 £ MoARY RIWANS )L
e s pepio) 10ty wopsAneacd ¥
9618 " v z v v fesrtimaul pua w9ioR spswse By o] ey Bupieny 99
ozis 9 c z v UDNEPULILIOTRY FUR UONSINGEL MO PE 5B
vae's org 6 T v z Gpgeid un Suusdo P ke
wor'es o z [z z z z v ¥ v npupRy BuppE Suund SUCRAND S15N €D
s 155 " z v s Bugeap piares npue0 pue ez EBiG 29
9sTEs o v i P ' Bppi@ pus uoyRURLINZOQ AN URD e PUS el | D
L T Ko
(13 rLZ'9% I3 z z 9 v L] r 13 HodoN Mol Bud [SpO JNIEM 1 OdIOL  L'§
rores vorss " z z 0 3 v 8 ) T umupoon GGV B |
c0Ts 928 ot z z 8 [} {BAnDR) 5} SONIDINWIIOD 1903 WURD 'SUD AN 5§
ETEY B95'ZS S Z [ r 14 Z 1 ABRUZAN S
[ s08'is 08'1§ 3 z z r t b 1PAIBAL (IR0 MOSERGION €9
96828 %6628 st z z ) ] 3 v - andeg- fmeo 7§
2us 2zis E) [3 z v - z | z [ o z {Bomesgy BURINE) g Buping - Amen 15
S . pepnpy "y
965118 201 z G g o al e g g m " 0
[t 20r'ts [ v v 0
eRS o5t z v [ st = 3 6 zn E2 3 s 6. Jo uowin TEGrue) SBumEiq WS KOS BY
wies E3 N (T 5 v 9 z Tonig Beu
'S £61'EPS 052 v ] | 9 T sv 3 sh ® E s¢ 6 1100 $13RG0uG 40 UOIIKID 'SLONEIIORIS [DIUYDRL ‘SBUMRI] UBRVG %05 LY
Eoi) 3 %S [ U = v v o
es'es 658 o - s B T uBraq 101 Bursse50/ AU PUB ABANS BUGEE 5
| ots 20ts " @ z w
e s £ I e T - L 9 [ VOREIRIEED AT £
i6v)s 571s & =; T s |77 | =Y GoganioD B 2y
= e
00001S 00015 (@ reeL) uoHRASULRY UOTANASUOD - DUyl 80 1E
00ers o0ar (ponny) eq - Bl o 210
oozes e . ) ..I I [ (1 0m1) ormwis3 ;oD ¥ Buumy - Biseuibus 1O |
Buuseubuz B0 - oUTPAK L'E
]
RILS = 0 B B ® B TURLISBRLE PV UEUB 0D SURITKINS 19Id £Z
€658 [aess | € ) 1 B | 1 | | | 1 = I 1 | s | | B Wswaeus  pur USHELRIDOD [URD eRold £7
 cov'ss eve'ss 1 o€ 9 || B | 1 1 | | | | | | [ | [ 9 $001Kg ssa01gU0daY ANHON LT
TowoEwaiq 63095 7 L Y591 S95) OUIRSWOUS B3 - [EHUBNISH] - WEUNSUTNS 1)
BE6S | wes s z z +
arv'zs low'zs [ - [~ 2 | z ' )i 3 V - " (mimanas 183U13613 T0) 1893 UORIIRGD SKIBIA 19 VOO €'}
ez “oveEs o z z v v € z winbi 170ATY $UG (WD ARUILINGI] %OL )
[TTE Cimwes o % B - 7 ik 3 z VOREURI00 WBWET 503 § UBH G AISURIRGTN 1 IUMITSUOD-NS |
== — =— e s ]
= = T ——n I =1 [Tl Wy T Wi 1 i T vais | i T T 2 [ [T0] [ jpvessan w1 %3] (103 MT $TISTAS
= L T T i [ — N Y i ms o — m =i e s =3 (1us) 4wy sz

]
afivio)s paeA suopeiedo ad4al - AION
LOINLEI0 INIWIAOULH] TVHINID ANNEEONM




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #11

TITLE: REVIEW AND RECEIVE QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JULY/AUGUST/SEPTEMBER 2025

MEETING DATE: 16 December 2025
PREPARED BY: Derek Dombrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review and file financial statements July — September 2025 (not
an action item)

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: District financial statements are prepared for each month of
the year. Although monthly statements will lag a month or two due to the pending processing time,
these provide the Trustees with insights into the financial well-being of the agency.

INCLUDED:
A. Financial Statements July — September 2025

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






S3HNLIANIdXd ANV
dNN3IA3IYH 40 LNJW1LVIS

‘NOILISOd HSVYO
Gcoc AlNI






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (GENERAL 49%
CASH POSITION 'WATER 27%
B B B - ) - . SEWER 18%
JULY 2025 - | SNOW 6%
BEGINNING | ENDING
FUND BALANCE TRANSFERS ADJUST. RECEIPTS CHECKS BALANCE
GENERAL FUND $ 917439851 |$  (12,905.06)[ $  (398.89)| $ 104,997.36 | $ (41,483.75)| $ 9,224,608.17
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $§  404,298.09 |$  12,905.06 | $ - |3 - $ a - |$ 417,203.15
GENERAL INVESTMENT S 821,775.44 | $§ - _$ - $ 3,94898 | $ - $ 825,724 .42
GF TOTAL $ 10,467,535.74
WATER FUND $ 423543402 (% (201,122.28) $ 790.05 |$ 463,69440 S (319,863.11)| $ 4,178,933.08
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $ 664,206.14 | $ 16,629.40 | $ - $ - $ - $ 680,835.54
WATER INVESTMENT $ 837,749.45 | § = $ - $ 2,49515 | $ - $ 840,244.60
KGID/TRPA RESTRICTED (STATION48MPS) | $  45,430.00 | § - |$ - |8 - |$ - |$  45430.00
DIST DEBT RESERVE $ 228,691.64 | § 73,265.64 | $ - $ - $ (228,691.64)| $ 73,265.64
TREAT DEBT RESERVE $ 59217910 [$ 11122724 |$ - |3 - |$  (592,179.10)[ $  111,227.24
|CAP IMPROV. RESERVE ~|S - $ - $ - $ - | % B - $ :
WF TOTAL| S L $ 5,929,936.10
SEWER FUND $ 3,999,829.31 (672.81)| $ (304.22)| $ 170,555.22 | § (402,862.51)| $ 3,766,544.99
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $ 16,471.10 | § 67281 | $ - $ - $ - $ 17,143.91
SEWER INVESTMENT $ 447,701.50 | $ - $ 1,71346 | $ - $ 449,414,96
SF TOTAL $ 4,233,103.86
SNOW REV. FUND $ 604,824.88 | $ (6,732.41)| $ (86.94)| $ 71,521.87 | $ (24,999.16)( $  644,528.24
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  205,632.93 | § 673241 8% - |3 - |s - |$ 212,365.34
SNOW INVESTMENT - |$ 2463580 |$ - /s - s 24454 | $ - |8 2488034
I SNOW TOTAL| - $ 881,773.92
298 KINGSBURY GRADE RENTAL 1% 274951678 - |$ - |8 2231357 |$ (6,057.52)| §  291,207.72
80 RENTAL TOTAL | L B $  291,207.72
GRAND TOTALS $ 22,578,209.58 | $ - $ (0.00)| $ 841,484.55|$ (1,616,136.79)| $ 21,803,557.34
CHECKING
US BANK _$ 632,670.73 [ § - $ 76177496 | $ (795,266.05)| $ 599,179.64
US BANK MMA S 112.25 | $ - $ $ - $ 112.25
MORTON CAPITAL MMA S 381,749.94 | § - $ 8,402.13 | § - S 390,152.07
4.25% FIRST FNDTN BANK S 250,000.00 | $ - S 250,000.00
4.70% FLAGSTAR BANK S 250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
5.10% MORGAN STANLEY BANK S 250,000.00 | $ - S 250,000.00
5.20% BANK HAPOALIM NEW YORK S 250,000.00 | $ - S 250,000.00
4.00% NORTHEAST BANK CD S 250,000.00 | $ - S 250,000.00
4.60% JP MORGAN CHASE S 250,000.00 | $ - S 250,000.00
4.40% WASHINGTON FED BANK S 250,000.00 | $ - $ - $ - S 250,000.00
$ - |$ - $ - |8 - S
LOCAL GOVT POOLED 4.2718525% $ 19,813,676.66 | $ - $ 71,307.46 | $ (820,870.74)| $ 19,064,113.38
GRAND TOTALS $ 22,578,209.58 | $ - $ - $ 841,484.55 | % (1,616,136.79)| $ 21,803,557.34

Page 1






1 =8eq

Wd PP EE:6 $TOT/ST/LT ='d

%98'L6 60°Z£9'866°6 00°L18'818°01 (60°€26'G8) 00'851°9£6 16781088 (50°¢26'SS) 00'851°9£6 16781088 SANNIATY Ie101
%2t 16 16°2197090°Z 002861801 (ts0zren) 00527589 80POC1L9 160ZLVF 0052539 60T0E TS $334 y3sn jewol
%016 08%95¢ 0086¢ 0072 454 00vee 02€Ee JONVANSNI INITINNAYIS
%09'16 50°0Z¢'7L 000856} 568 00'962°L S6°€08") 568 00'S62' S6'C0E") JONVHNSNI SSOT INIMAY3S
%29'L6 SE'88L'L 00256} 59') 00'Z94 59'€91 59'1 0029} S9'E9) 3NNIATY NINGY INITAYIS
%8868 00'GZ€E'L} 00°009'24 00522 007050} 00'62'L 00522 00050' 006:Z') INNIATY 334 HI4SNvEL
%0004 00'ZiE'8l 00Zi€'84 00007 000 0000L 000 $334 NOILOANNOD
%EB'SH 0009 00°08% 00°0% 0002 00°0% 00'02 $334 MO3HD NANLIY
%6Y 78 LU 00'009'6 £9'989 00008 69'88v'L 69'989 00°008 6988t S39UYHD 301AY3S
%6Z 76 81'8¥+'8S 00°066'19 00'694' 8IH5'E 00591 P4 R R $334 ¥3SN NO SALTYNId
%E£L'88 70'886'92} 00024 €L 0021591 9%'1El'oL 00°2H5'9k 9B'LEL'OL NOILJNNSNOD TYIDHINNOD
%L9'L6 70'762'98 00°2€1'%6 8L0 00'7¥8'2 8L H8'L 8.0 00'P¥8'2 8L H8'L NOILOFLO¥ JdI4 TVIOHIWNOD
%.9'L6 ITSEY 00'282'vLy 00'595'6€ £2795'6¢ 00'595'6¢ £2795°6¢ TVIDYIWNOD - $334 ¥3SN
%4916 Gy'6GL'G6 00'¥6%'701 85 00°20.'8 SSYEL'S 8627 00202 S5'vEL'S NOILO3L0Yd 384 TYILNIQISIY
%50'18 L9EGE'9G 00°000'22 0002151 EVore'el 000215} EYor9'el NOILSWNSNOD € ¥3IL TYILNIAISTH
%09°¢8 0L'G¥B'9S 00°000'89 00022k 0EYSL'LL 000KZ'Th 0EPSL'LL NOILAWNSNOS Z Y3IL TYILN3AISTY
%1418 vL246'11E 00°00v'35€E 00'85¢' Ly 2 TGYEY 00852 Ly 9T ZSY'Er NOILJINNSNOD | ¥3IL TYILN3AISTY
%0L'16 £2'880'7LL'S 00°/82'962'9 00'66L'v2S 1872225 00'€6.'72S LI8FLTTS TYILNIQIST - $334 ¥3ASN
$334 ¥3asn
%1506 56°}¥H'L06 00°£1.0'966 L0'8S2'EL 00°€IE'L8 WO'LIS'YE LO'BSZ'EL 00°cie'i8 L0'LIS'PE SNOANVTIIISIN felol
CAT BL09V61 0005072 CTLEES 002502 CERS L TLEES 00752 ¢ 20685 L INNIATH HIHLO
%00°00} 00°000'6Z 00°000'6Z 000 000 000 000 000 000 INNIATY LNVHD
%EL LB LLYER'TH 00292004 00°26€'8 62268 00'26¢'8 62°26€°8 JINOONI TVINTY
%00°001 000521 A 00°008 000 00005 00'0 334 MIIATY NYd
%9906 06'962'£9L 00°96'L18 05'58¢'8 0078102 05°6v9'8L 05°58¥'8 0079402 09'6+9'8. SLNIWLSIANI NO 1STHILNI
SNOANVII3ISIN
%ES Y6 61LZV5'0L6') 00'222°060°C (61°011°SS) 00°0Zv'69} 18'60E'YIL (61°0L1'5S) 00°0Z¥'69) 1860 FLE SaxVL [E10L
%916 II9ES9EL 0076VE08 £80 00775699 £9725699 €80 0075699 £87256 99 NOILNAILSIA XYL ALVLS
%92 96 01°969'295 00'€8.'685 00'€8 Ly 06'980'22 00'€8' LY 06'980'C2 dN-DIYIN WIIOTYAQY
%0000} 00°299' 00°299' 000l 000 000k 000 XV1 ALY3d0dd WNOSH3d
%PE'96 76219'699 00'88'069 00°0£2'35 80'592'5¢ 00'0£2'3S 80'592'6¢ S3XVL WIHOTYAQY
SaXVL
SANNIATY
Buiuieway
19Bpng doueLep jefpng 8ouBLIBA 196png QLA |enjoy aouepep jebpng 1ebpng |emjoy
e10] JuadIag uam—.:m jeioL GZAd [B10L wom—v:m aLa e\ Juand poudd jualind poLIad jualng poliad juaund

14Vda

GZ0T/LE/L USNoIyL SZ0Z/1/L Wold
GINIGWOD SANN4 1TV SFUNLIANIdX3 PUE SINNIAIY JO INIJWILVLS

10141S1d INJWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNISONDI




7 @feq

W pree:S STOT/ST/TT =ieg

%00°004 00°069'62 00°0£9'62 00'0S 0005 000 00°05 0008 000 SNOIS % $7001 'S3NddNS a13i4
%60'06 9z'see’sl 00°208'7) 9z'8zy 00'568't PL99v'L 9’8y 00'568' 74°99%'L TVINIY INTNCINDIT
%55'56 99'8Y2'92C 00°062'9€Z 99'812'6 0009264 YELPS0L 99'812'6 00°092'61 YELIS'0L SHIYAIH/ INIVISTddNS 'dIND3
%€ 159 00'S57'01 00'€50°9k 00'€88'2 00'18Y'El 00865 00'€88"2 00'l8r'el 00'865'S SNOILJINOSENS 2 S3NA
%0€"LL 729892 00°228'101 0006022 TAV A 0006022 92'0v2'62 3SNIdX3 YILNNOD
%59'86 06°9r) 02 00'70b' 1L 06'G96'Y 00'€26'S 01456 065967 00'€Z6' 01256 "LNIVIN NV SHIVd3H ONIATING
%E9'L6 ZL'vEL'SE 00°05Z'701 ZVoLL 009898 206159 2L0L) 00'989'8 88'615'8 SIOUYHO MNvE
%0001 00'90€'22 00'90€'22 000 000 000 000 000 00'0 S1e3aave
%01'5L 0S'¥EV'¥9E 00'9vZ'58 05667 00'LIELZL 051180z} 05'66% 00'LIE'LZ) 05'L18'0Z1 SLNINSS3SSY ¥S1100
%00°6. 2692969 00'65€'8v8 520 00060242 G1680712 520 00'060'242 L'680'Z4C 08 W YLY40¥d VSL10a
/NI 000 000 000 00°0 00'0 000 000 000 ONIO! JAIINY TYAOWIY MONS
%0000k 00°000'62 00'000'62 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIANYS - TYAOWIY MONS
%0000} 00'000'22 00°000'62L 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIMO - TYAONIY MONS
%26'/8 50'695'6€ 00°000'sy S0'690°04 0000561 SBHEY'S 50'690°0L 00°006'51 S6'PEY'S $3ddNS 2 IONVYNILNIVIN Qv0d
%19'96 00'12€'64 00'000'02 00'L28'S 000089 00’629 00'128'S 00°005'9 00629 JOVYNIVHA ANY NOISOY3
%0p'L6 62'996'28 00'002's8 GZ'arE'S 00°655'2 SLEIET SCSYE'S 00'655"2 CIRAY A ONIAIAYNS 8 ONIYIINIONT
%00°00L 00°00¥'Z) 00°00¥'2} 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOILYILO9AN HO8Y1 31
%¥5°56 58'660'29 00°000'59 68’6182 00°9L¥'S 51006 68'615'2 00'94¥'S 51°006'2 WoI1
9007001 00'007'E9 00'00%'€9 00'197°0} 0019101 000 00'19¥°0L 00'L9¥'0) 000 ONILNNODDY
S3SNIdXT ONILYHIJO
%20'v6 £2'990'V8E'2 00°929'6€5' £2TNLY 00'bZE'YIZ L9051 £22L'2 00'vZE'PIT PINTEATA $3ISNIdX3 A3LVI3Y TIOUAVd lejoL
%I €8 00°6Er 00°6eY 3SNIdXT ZONYMOTIY UVO
%LE'€6 ¥5'152'9 00°00£' PS5l 00'168'} 9v'8vy STl 00'168'L v’y SASNIdXT TIOHAYd ¥IHLO
%9 006t 0000522 00°228') 00'150'12 00°228' 00°150'12 3SNIAX3 IAVIT A3NYIOV
%26'G6 £6'00€'2L 00'265'08 SEETY'e 00'612'9 19'162'¢ EE'ETH'e 00619 19'162'¢ 3SN3dX3 83d0
%0158 92°€v0'01 0000} eIy 00088 vLoLL') 92'eoL'y 00°088'6 POkl SWHOLINND
%00°001 0028661 00'286'6} 00'€99' 00€99't 00°0 00'€99't 0099’} 000 SLI43NIA INFNACTIWANN
%EL16 9€'812CL 00°0ze'e} 00662 #9101} 00662 PII0HL SIS - S1143NIF ITA0TINT
%Pt 66 AN A1 00'60€'9.€ 29'€92'62 00°25€°1€ £8'€60' 29'€92'67 00°£5¢'1€ 8E'€60' $43d - SL143IN3E FIA0TdIN
%ET ¥6 06'6Z0'06% 00'0£'92S 05'€29°01 00°06'0% 05'9vE'0E 05°€29'01 00'026'0% 05°9¥€'0¢ SN Q3N - SLI43N3A 33A0TdINI
%476 68'/28'02 00'69%'22 68'2EC 00°048' b2e9't 68262 00'028'} gy DIA3W/YOIS - SLI4AN3E FIA0TAINS
%vb'e6 S0'PrY 081 00'112'S61 0105} 00°89Z'0} §6'992'7L 50'L0S'L 00'89¢'9} 9699.'7) 301440 - TI0UAVd
%S1'06 L I0'5E9 00°952'189 #2'201°01 00'118'¢S 92'80L'9 22010} 00'L18'95 92'80L'9Y JONYNILNIVA - TIOHAYd
%86'76 P6'€29'755 00°900'¥85 ¥6'eee’sl 00'999'8% 90'2€L'6T VEEEEBl 00'999'8% 90'7EE'6Z HIDYNYI - TIOUAVd
SASNIX3 Q3LVTIY TI0HAVd
SAUNLANIDE
Bujuieway
1oBpng ELINETTY 1obpng aouepep 10Bpng QLA Jenmoy aouelep 1ebpng 1ehpng |emoy
€101 Jusdlag awmvzm leioL QZAd IBI0L uam_u-..m alA Jesj juaung poudd juaung pouad juaing poLiad juaung

14vad

ST0Z/LE/L YSNoIYyL S202/L/L wold
G3INIFWOD SANNd 1TV SFUNLIANIdX3 pue SINNIATY JO INTJWIALVILS

1O141S1A LNFWIAOHUdWI TVHINTO AUNISONDI




¢ odeg

WA PEES STOT/ST/TT ed

%86'9. (98'65¥'615°S) (0015227212 (b1'922'899) (00615v86) (r)'162°c59'1) (71°924899) (00°'515'v86) (v1162'es9')) STANLIANIAXT ¥IA0 INNIATY $S30X3
%¢6 58 SET60 B Sl 00B3eTEe 2T (L] [[EFEN4) 505I7EES e (G008 ¢hI) 00EIo0C6 b SOOIvEES ¢ S3UNLIANIX3 lejoL
%e0E3 BPPI0NI6L 0003071096 (15°8217092) 00228698 15°5000€9'0 (15821090 002287698 T5S000E9°F SASNIAXT YIHLO [EI0L
%08¢8 SOVBYSSLL 00°GIEOIES 00000058 SE08B0L0F (56088092 00000058 GE0880Ig T AVILNO TWLIdYO
%96'16 ¥8'682'81C 00°G16°26T 78104 00'228'61 91'521 64 ¥8'L0L 00°228'6} 91°5Z1'6l ISNIdX3 LSTHALNI
%00°00L 000 000 000 00'0 000 000 TWS0dSIA NO SSOVNIVD
SISNIdXT ¥IHLO
%391°28 £7€5620L'G 00'T18'¥58'S £2°699'r8 00226°058 20°958'16L £T'C99'78 00'225'9£8 10868°}5L SASNIdXT ONILYHILO [E10L
%EE 16 00 eIy} 00501'9¥5} 00Tv88el 6020vEL 00Zv88eL 16007Er 3SNIdX3 NOILYIDFHd3d
%19'L6 vrSLY'L 00'651'8 70 00°089 99629 i2d)] 00089 95'6.9 SANOE 40 NOILYZILHOWY
%L1 6L £9°6.2'G9 0095+'28 00'128'9 L8921 00°128'9 1E°9L1'2) dX3 W3LSAS INFWLYIIL ¥ILYM
%986 SLTH9'9L 00°00L'22 SLUIMW'S 00°6/%'9 SZ'1507) SLLY'S 00°SLE'9 522501 3SNIXT WALSAS LSIQ ¥ILYM
%810} 00'¢88'l 00°005'8} 00°€88'L 00°005'8L 00°2L9'9L 00'€88'} 00°005'8} 00°219'9L INIWOVYNYIN G3HS ¥AMIS/HTLYM
%1968 00°264'G1 00'€85'21 00'99%' 00928't 0099%' 00°928'L ONINNYS/ONIMOLINOW H3LYM
%¥6'S6 96'pPS'68 00'0£'e6 95°066°€ 009242 yre8LE 95'066' 000222 ¥'68L'¢ WY dX3 H3A
%2y L6 78'959'871 00'865'Z51 78'6LL'8 002122} 8L I¥6'E 786208 0021224 8l'L¥6'E ddNS/1I0M13Nd dX3 F10IHIA
%0L'06 69'168'0/2 00'662'S0¢ §9'266°L 00'50%'98 5€'20V'82 G9'266'L 00'SOV'9E SE°L0V'8T 0110373 3 SVO - SALMILN
%L9'16 0005Z'Ly 00°000'Gt 000 00°052'€ 00°052' 00'0 00°052' 000SL'E $334 33LSNAL
%0000k 0000112 0000412 00262} 00°4SL') 000 00262} 00'252' 000 TIAVYL
%98 76 00'88L'EE 00029'5€ 00°GEL'} 00'£96'C 00°2e8’} 00'SEL') 002967 00268’} SUYNIWIS ONY ONINIYHL
%26'L6 0L'1S2'sL 00'9eL'2L (1184 0022} 06'8E"L oLey 002yl 06'¥8E"} INOHd313L
%9666 7€'/66'9 000002 z€'08S 00°€8S 897 7£°085 00'€8S 89Z $100L TIYWS/S3NddNS dOHS
%00°004 00'60'8 00'620'8 00zey 00°eey 000 002y 002Zy 000 $39UYHO NOILYONENd
%9566 BO'EYEZI 00°000°€k 806692 00'969'2 7695 80'6€9' 00969 7695 39v150d
%.£'68 INEA 0062801 eLeby 00°0%0°2 12165’} eL8by 000102 12165} $334 ANV SLINYAd
%0526 0v'286'22 00'L5'€2 oV orY') 006202 09'88S OvOpt'L 00'620' 09885 $3I1ddNS 391440
%P1 €6 00°000'8€ 00008'0% 00009 00°00¥°€ 00008 00009 00°00b's 000082 TYIYOLINYT 301440
%6.'G6 L'969'2€ 00'€5€'6E r9z9't 00'€82'€ 65'959'L L'9zZ9') 00'€82'€ 65959' SIANLIANIXT SNOINYTIZOSIN
%09'16 00'85F 00008 00’8y 0006 00'zy 00'8Y 0006 00y $334 N3N
%0000} 00°000°0€ 00000°0¢ 00'0 000 000 000 000 000 LNIYIN 8 HIvdTd W3 LAN
%Y8'86 Ly0ze'sL 00°005'G1 17078 00°005'8 £5'6.1 Ly 0Ze'8 00005'8 £5'6L1 SL4Yd AJOLNIANI
9%00°004 00°00L'} 00004} 00'52§ 00'525 000 00'528 00525 00°0 ININdINDA ALFHVS
%02} 6'J62'61 00°EET'OvL SLi6Y'T 00'€EV'62L §T'586'92) SLL6YT 00°€EV 6T} SZ'GE6'9Th SANOE ANV JONYANSNI
%88'G8 16222'8) 00208'12 1598 00'991L'€ 6'6.0'€ 1598 00'994'€ 6v'60' ISNIX3 ALRIND3S
Bulujeway
Jobpng aoueuep je8png oUBLIEA . —_ femoy aouenep 126png jobpng |enjoy
€101 Ju82I0g «mm_oam |ejoL GZAd elo] aoav___m ali Jedj juaund poLiad jusng pouiad juaung poliad juaiin)

14vad

S202/1LE€/L U3noayl s2oz/L/L wold
Q3NIGWOD SANNL 1TV STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIH JO INTWILVYLS
1O141S1d INFWIANOUdWI TVHINTO AHNASONIM






1 =8eq

Wd 9V 1€°T1 STOTT/1T e

%2526 Z00L'08 00002'15 20'6520'¢ 00'60€'Y 86'€82'} 20'§20'¢ 00'60€'Y 96'682"} ONIATAENS 8 ONIMIINIONT
%00°001 00Z19'} 00219’ 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOILVILODAN ¥0ay1 oI
%2996 Y2 OrL'e 00°052'¢ ¥2'194 0014 9/°60} Y2194 00'142 92°601 WO
%0000} 00°0LL'E 00°02L'E 00628 00€26 000 00628 00°€25 000 9NILNNOJIY
$ISNIdX3 ONILYEIdO
%86 Z18L'8ss 00°91'98¢ 20089 00°8eY'ZE 88°ISLLE 71089 00°85Y°2E 8826242 STASNIdXT QILVIIN TIONAVd [e1oL
%97E8 0E59 059 ISNIdX3 FIONVMOTIV dvD
%00°001 200002 000002 20991 00994 2099} 0099} SISNIX3 TIOHUAVd WIHIO
'101-85V9)|,, . . . - . ot . .-
) SOUBRIOIY W Enuooy SEouesgy peresuadivoni| oL 9 0Z'19L'T 00005 00'162 08'88€"} 00162 08'96€"} JISNIdXT IAYIT AINUODY
%9L'46 71'e6L°0L 00°00°H 4 ZLeL9 00026 89'9YZ AN 00026 889V ISNIdXT 8340
%6108 0LEM) 00692} 0L°285 00288 0E'6YE 04285 00788 0E'6¥E SWHOAINN
%0000} 00'866'C 00'866'Z 00'6%C 00'6¥2 000 0062 00612 000 SLI4ANI8 INFWAOTAWANN
%7888 ¥Z'e6LT 00'SpL'e 0068} 94158 00681 9158 SIS - S143NTF FFA0TIWI
"LOLESYD,, .. ot ot - - - o o - 3
e ——————di | | 66'98.'8Y 00'666'61 66'800'€ 0019}y L0Z8H'L 66'800' 00191y o'zsk't SY3d - S1143IN3F JIA0 TN
%50°26 91'88L'04 00'678°9L 00°€00'9 78041'9 00'600°9 ¥8'04L'9 SNI 03N - S1143INIF FIA0TINT
%IEES 09°201'¢ 00'82L'¢ 00048 0v'029 000LE 0v'029 21a3W/YI4 - S1I43N38 JIA0TNA
%E'TH $6'790'12 00092'62 56922 000VY'Z S0612Z S6422 00°0%7'2 506122 391440 - TIOHAYd
%5E°06 99'920'701 00281511 007656 YE'S0L' 1L 00'¥65'6 PE'S0L'LL JONVYNILNIVA - TIOHAYd
%9676 817078 00°209'28 B1006' 000082 29°66¢'y 81°006'2 0000€'2 78668y HIOYNVY - TIOHAVd
S3ASNIdX3 QILVTAY TIONAVd
STUNLIANIAXT
%LL'E6 16'990'26Z'7  00°ZKE'EOV'T |(16Z8LYY)  o0'esv'sel  e0Szush  |(L6'81vh) 00°€9¥°564 60°522'151 SANNIAIY [e30L
%I188 TR 000¢SciE | 87¢co0r  00SH09C  §259609¢ 8TT6 01 00TH09C 8596'9¢ SNOANVTIIISIA €101
%0000} 00°000F 007007 00'e8 000 00%8 000 INNIATH ¥3HLO
%Ly OV SZI0EI|, o, s - - - . ot - et
womisod ysea Jod 8BUEYo UonEsoyE %y¢ @ 1obpng| PC+ 88 TLYSSYLT 00025 HLE 82°600°LL 00'096'5Z 82'696'0€ 82°500'L) 00'096'52 rA e SLINIWLSIANI NO LSTHILNI
SNOANVTIAISIN
%ES Y6 6L°Z15'9L6°F  00T23'060° |(6L0LL'SS)  00'0z¥'69l  1e'e0EvhL  [(6LOLL'SE) 00°0Z¢'691 18'606 4L S3XVL leloL
%I9V6 IV 00V6YeE08 | €80 005699  £3/5699 £80 0026699 £856% NOLLNGIILSIA XYL 3LVLS
%92'96 01'969'295 00'¢8L'685 00E8l'y  06'980°CC 00'€8)'2¥ 0698022 dN-INYIN WIHOTYAQY
%00°001 00'£99' 00°299'9 0004 000 0004 000 XV1 ALY3d0Y¥d TYNOSHAd
%YE'96 76719'699 0088069 00°0/2's8 80°692'52 00°042°65 80'92'57 SAXVL WIHOTYAQY
SAXVL
SANNIAY
Buujewiay daueliep Jobpng aoueuep lemay  [edueuep jobpng 1ebpng jenjoy
Bpn ' * i
S3LON _SMM uﬂom._om umav__m |elol SzZAd jejol uwwu__m aia womvzm am led) Jalny)| pouaddjuauny polliad jusalin) pould uaung &Qhw QZ:& d§m2m0

14Vid

10141513 1NTFWIA0HdWI TVHINIO AHNISONI

S202T/LE/LYSNoIL STOT/L/L Wwoid
pung Ag sainjipuadxy pue sanusAsy JO Juawalels




7 ded

W 9 1E£:T1 STOT/PT/T1 =ed

%19°ZL- 9°0L5'621 (o0'ovz'zzo’y) |(socsi'sze) (o0 Zes‘osy)  (89°062°151°L) |(89°€SL'GL9) (00°265'9.t) (89°05161'1) SIYNLIANIAXT YIAO INNIATY §530X3
%610 TToC T, U0GCt ((ZIG960t0) G00S02Z8 ZIISCOEOET |(IZG95059) 00030°¢28 ITST0E0E T STUNLIANTdXT le10L
IG5 TITozeCT 00902808 |(682r6'850) 00000009  68°THEBSCE |(68°THEESY 0070007009 68TV 85T 1 $ISNIdX3 YIHLO [EI0L
“Josloid Juaweoe|day B UolRN|INEYSY PROY SZAL|%LLSS VIE9CerS T 0090¢808C 00000009  B8CH68SC F |(BEZI6859 00000009 68ZY685¢ AVILNO TYLIdYD
S3ISNIdXT YIHLO
o6b6'26 00648712 00°00Z°1€Z | 00°262°€T 00°'729°6¢ 00'52€'9) 00°262'¢Z 00'229'6¢ 00'528‘9L SASNIJXT ONILVYILO [e0L
'sped 3 siadijed 8yeiq 0IBS || 90# N1 (%FL I8 GZBOLEL 008006 00052 T GIBES} 000521 SIBERE W8N dX3 HIA
%zY' L6 18°698'7) 00092'S1 18448 0022} €L¥6€ 1828 002.2'} €1 ¥6E ddnSMIOA3ANd dX3 F10IHIA
%Gt'68 EEVIG 0065 ] 00'69 1909 £e'8 00'69 1909 21103713 2 SY9 - S3LNILN
%.9'L6 052902 000822 050 00881 05°281 050 0088} 0528} $334 331SNYL
%00°001 000522 000522 00°28) 00°281 000 00°281 00481 000 T3AVHL
%16'v6 65'S8Y'y 0092y 55264 00°€6€ 5P 02 ss°esl 00'€6E Sy ove SHYNIWIS aNY ONINIVYL
%6616 o6yl 00701 £00 00'¢} x4 £0°0 00'€l 16T INOH4ZT3AL
%00°00L 00°08L'L 00081} 000 000 000 000 000 000 $39UYHO NOILYOIENd
%90 05°LLL 00°20L 0521 00°29 0567 05°2) 0049 056y $334 ANY SLINY3d
%1.£'86 81'855'} 00°%85'} 8190} 00ZEL 78'5e 81901 00ZEL 2852 $3(1ddNS 391340
%EE'EH 00°00%'} 00°005'} 0052 00°6ZL 0000b 00's2 0052} 00°004 TYIMOLINYF 301440
%5166 ¥E0IS0 000090} YEv6L 00'¥88 99'68 vE'Y6L 0088 99'68 STANLIANIIXT SNOANYTIIDSIN
%0000} 00005 00°005 00005 00005 000 00°008 00005 000 INTWCINDT ALTIVS
%06'} £5'88 00879’y £5'88 00'879'y 1688y £5'88 00'8Y9'y L858y SANOE ANY IONVHENSNI
%6.76 15981 00002 51 0094 eryl 5 0091 eryl 3SNIdXI ALIIND3S
%0000} 00'09'61 00°0E9'61 00°08 0005 000 0005 000§ 000 SNOIS % $T001 ‘'$3ddNnS a13id
%026 12648 002y 44 00'SE 6.7¢ 12T 00°S€ 6228 TYINTY INININD3
%6826 6V LELY 00°00L'S 6279 00°52y 15298 6129 0052y 15°29¢ SYIVAIW LNIVW/STITAdNS ‘dIND3
%SZ'G9 SE0Ly 00062 SE9vE 00°009 59657 SE°9vE 00009 S9°€5T SNOILJIOSANS 3 $ana
sysod Bpig "y Uouduosans Enuue xoosm%w“ %6€°83 900"y 009867 00'GLy 16828 00°Shy 6'8.5 ISNIdX3 ¥ALNDNOD
%06'66 €6'786'71 00°000'S1 £6'VEZ'L 0008Z'} 2064 £6'vE2'L 00082'1 1061 “LNIYW ONV SHIV4Td ONIaTING
%26'L8 G0'595'6€ 00'000'Gy 50'G90'01 00005'S} S6VEY'S S0°590°0L 000056l S6'vEY'S S3MddNS ® IONYNIALNIV VoY
%1996 00'12E'61 0000002 00'128's 000059 00'629 00'LZ8'S 00°005'9 00629 3OVYNIVIA ANY NOISOY3
Buueuizy ajueMep jebpng aJuBMeA |lenjoy  |aoueuep jabpng jebpng lenjoy
S3LON _Shwah”mhon_ uuuvsm. [e10L SZAd [ej0) uumv__m. aLi 1Bpng QLA Jea) Juanng uo_._.an_ JuaLNY Ppoliad Juaiing polidd jualng (0L) annd TVHINTO

14vid

G20T/1LE/LYSNolyL STOZ/L/L Wold
pund Ag sauniipuadx3 pue SanuaAdy JO JuswAeIs

10144810 INTFWIAOHdWI TYHINIO AHNDSONDI




¢ 8eq

W 9P 1ETT STOUPT/TL R1Ea

0} B0UBPIOIZY Ui [ENIDY SSOUSSqY umﬁhwh.ﬁ.._mm:/\ow %6500} 17161622 00'€58°£2¢ 12528'02 0028684 1T°62E0C 002868} SY3d - S1I43N3E FIA0TANT
%.0'G6 ¥8'19€'162 00'€9%'90€ ¥8'056'8 00'250'vZ 91'101's) 8'056'8 00'280'2 a1'10L's) SNI Q3N - SL143N38 33A01dIN3
%0816 96'082°2) 00'%56°Z) 96°60¥ 00'620°} ¥0'€L9 96'S0¥ 00620} $0'€L9 OIQ3W/VII4 - SLIA3N3E 33A0TdNT
%26 TT08L'eL 00'280'8L 2Z'109 008059 81°906'S zeL09 00'805'9 81°906'G 301440 - TI0UAVd
%186 7EE8Y'ERY 00'98¢'G1S Z8'SP0'L) 00'8¥8'eY 89'206'1E 2eSP0'L) 00'8¥6'2 89°206°1€ JONVNILNIVIN - TIOUAVd
%E9'56 91'€76'952 00'959'892 9155904 00'88€'22 ¥8ZeL' L) 91'659°0} 00'88¢'22 ¥8eeL L HIDVNYW - TIOUAVd

SASNIAMXI ALV 1108AVd
S3YNLUANIdX3
%bT’16 STTFISEY  00LIL'9es |(czeov'zl) 0089'7IS wviesy  |(ezeoy'zh) 00'y89°28% LpiT'sty SINNIAIY [E10L
%8116 BIEGSY  006IP0S0G  |L28°LL9LE 0065695y  BULISWW¥  |(2ell9TLL) 00°655 95% VIS $334 ¥3ASN [El0L
%L9'16 08'%95'7 008622 00'vET 0z'eee 00°¥€C 0T'eee JONVAINSNI INIT INNAY3S
%0916 §0'92Z'vL 00°0€G'GL 66'8 00'662'} S6'E0E"} 868 00'662'} S6'E0E"} JONYHNSNI SSOT IANITAYIS
%29'16 G'88.'L 00256} 591 00291 G9'e9l 9l 00'¢91L S9°C9) INNIATY NINAY INITAYAS
%6068 510159 00'80€'2 GZ'88L 00609 ST'164 ST'881 00609 GC'26. INN3AIY 334 ¥3JSNVHL
%0000} 00ZLLYL 00Z1L'Y) 00008 000 00005 000 $333 NOILOINNOD
%E8'G6 00°09% 00°08% 00'0¥ 0002 000y 0002 $334 M03HI NYNL3Y
%67 ¥8 LELLLS 000096 69'899 00008 69881} 69889 00008 69'88Y'L SIDYVYHI IDIAY3S
%C8'€6 0£'66.'6€ 00022y 00'5ES'E 020292 00'5€5'e 02°029'2 §334 ¥3SN NO SAILTVNId
%.L.L'/8 7175596 00°000°04} 88'2¥¢C 00002} 83 LIV'EL 88212 00'002'c} 88 LP'El NOILAWNSNOD TVIOYIWWOD
%L9'L6 7826098 00'LEL'Y6 840 007P8°L BLYV8L 8.0 00'h¥a'L 8Lvh8'L NOILD3104d 3dld TYIOHIWNCD
%916 Ly8LL'EEE 00'950'79¢ 00'8¢€'0¢ €6'LEE'0E 00°'8e€°08 £G28€°08 TYIDYIWNOD - §334 H3sN
%y9'L6 S¥'662'G6 006V ¥0) jHea 00208 SSYEL'S §5°22 002028 §5peL'8 NOILO3104d FHI4 TYILN3AIS3Y
%S0°18 1585885 0000022 00'0Z4'S) £roro'el 0002451 eV Ore'cl NOILAWNSNOD € J3IL TVILN3AISTH
%09°€8 0£'6¥8'9S 00°000'89 000v2'CH 0EtSh'L) 00°0¥2 Tl 0EPSL'LL NOILJWNSNOD ¢ ¥3IL TYILNIAISTH
%02'88 $£'991'062 00°000°62€ 00'02LCk 99'EEB'8E 0000222 99'€€8°GE NOILJNNSNGD | H31L TVILNIQAISIY
%ZL'16 66°189'6LF'C  00TEB'E6LE 00'191°91€ 19052V IE 00'L9L'9)E 19'062'71E IVILNIQISIY - S334 438N
$334 ¥38N
%EETH H'006'69¢ 00'862'96¢ (180 00'6Z1°95 6526808 (1y1€l) 00°6ZL°LE 65°26¢°0¢ SNOANVTTIOSIN [EloL
%9002 81092721 0005¢'S2 wiws 00THe 68T L WLVS 002he 706857 INNIAIY HIHLO
%00°001 007052 0008Z 00°052 000 00°04¢ 000 334 M3INTY NY1d
womisod yseo Jad 8BUEYD UOEIONE N“mw ww%mw %6€'€6 £968872€  00'86)'SYE 002982 Le808'CC 0029282 LE'508'22 SININLSIANI NO LSFHILNI
%00°001 0000062 00'000'52 000 000 000 000 LNVID ¥Yd3 304N0OS LNId NON 61€
SNOANVITIISIN
SANNIAY
Buiieway 3JUBLIEA jebpng ERIITTTLETY [emoy  |aoueuep 3obpng  396png [enjay
S31ON _Swwmu__u_”m._mm uamv__m. €101 GZAd {B101 umnvzm. QLA 1eBpng LA Iea) Jualng uo_h.cm JuBLING  POldd JUBLNY Polad Jusung (02) aNNA HILYM

14vada

10141S1A LNIAWIA0OHdWI TVHINTO AHNISONDI

G20T/LE/L YSnolYL STOZ/L/L woad
pund Ag sainlipuadx3g pue SaNUIAIY O JUaWRLIS




¥ 28eg

Wd 9% [£°CT STOTPT/TT =1ed

%1616 G6'156°C) 0008L'Sk §6'9¢ 00'59¢'} 508224 G6'9t 00'592'} 50822t INOH4TT1L
%9666 ZE'166'9 00°000'2 2£'085 00'€8S 897 ¢£'08s 00€8s 89¢C ST100L TYNS/SATddNS JOHS
%0000} 0008+ 0008L'E 00°081 00°08L 000 0008} 007081 000 SITYYHD NOILYIEnd
%.5°66 26°0€2°9 000929 16°0€9'} 00099'} €0'6C 16°0E9'} 00°099°L £0'62 3OV1S0Od
%09'28 £LEPY'8 00'6£9'6 €Lp0¢e 00°005'} 12661} £L¥0E 00°005'} 2564} S§334 ANV SLIWY3d
%6€ L6 20'7eRT) 0062'€} ¢E'65L 00'904'} 89'9%¢ ¢e'65L 00904 89'9¥¢ $31ddNS 301330
%EE'E6 00°008'0} 00000'8} 00°00€ 0000} 00'00Z°} 00°00€ 00005} 00'002'} IVINOLINYT 331440
%¥y't6 LLVIE'S 0000001 17181 00°2€9 £€8'G59 FANE: (% 00°2€8 £9'659 SIUNLIAN3dX3 SNOINYTIZOSIN
%09'16 00°8Sy 00008 00'8F 0006 00z 008 00°06 00ey $334 NAIN
%0000} 00°000'0€ 00'000'0€ 000 000 000 000 000 000 INIYN 2 HIvd3d 4313N
%08'86 Ly 0e8'rh 000006} 1¥028'L 00000'8 €56L1 1'028'2 00'000'8 £9°6LL SLHVd AYOLNIANI
%00°001 00008 00005 000 000 000 000 000 000 LINIWdINDT ALTJYS
%8621 Zy' 1058l 0069250} ZrLoL'L 00'€9v'98 95'192'98 oL 00'€9¢'88 85°'192'98 SANOA GNY FONVUNSNI
%be'98 ¥E'095'24 00'8¥5'P) ¥eTIS 00'005°C 99'/86'} ¥eels 00'005°C 99'/86'} ISNIAXT ALIINOTS
%ES 06 72'89E'8 00's¥2'6 vl 00'£90°} 9¢'6/8 216} 00°£90°) 92'6.8 TYINIY IN3WCIND3
%ET ¥6 9881251 00°0sL9L 98'85¢ 00061} FL'IE6 98'85¢ 00'064'} ¥I'1E6 SYIVAIA/ LNIVW/STiddNS 'dIND3
%B0°ES 07'260'9 00'999'6 0Z'8E9'y 002028 08'895'€ 07'889'y 00'202'8 08'895'¢ SNOILJIYOSENs ¥ Sand

sywwed Bpig “/y UoRduosqns [enuLe v_ooﬁm::ww %6€ 89 18'6v0'8P 0019202 00°000'8} 6LLET 00°000'8} 61'L122Z ASNIJX3 HALNWOD
%¥2'86 £9'E65'Y) 00658y} £8'6/6 00°2€2') 21192 £8'616 00°2€2') 2149¢ "INIVIN ONV SHIVd3d ONIQTING
%5816 06'9v6'8Y 00'06Z'€S 06'96 00 0%ty oLeve'y 0696 00°0vb'y 0L'Eve'y SIOUVHO MNVE
%00°001 00926'c} 00'9¢6'c} 000 000 000 000 000 000 $1893aavd
%1666 £2'028'1C 000522 £¢'996 00'968'} L1'6C6 £2°996 00'968'} L1626 ONIAFALNS B ONIYIINIONT
%00°001 00°0Fk'2 000112 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOILVILODIN HO8Y1 VoI
%Z0'L6 ¥9'468'L8 00°000'6€ 792047 00'052°¢ 9eTrL'} $9°201'T 00052'e 9eTYlL VoI
%00°004 00°0%0'8E 00°070'8¢ 00'222°9 00'222'9 000 00'242'9 00229 000 ONILNNOJJY

SISNIdX3 ONILVYIdO

%9¢€'¥6 LSEVEOV'E  00°L26'98F) | 2L LTHER 0061222} 8T'162'c8 v'ey 00'612°22} 8T I6L'c8 SASNIJX3 AILVT3Y TI0HAVd [el0L
%8116 088l 088l 3SNIdX3 FONYMOTTY ¥YD
%66'G8 56'162'T 00002 S5 ISH) 00009’} Si'8vy 85161} 00°009'L Si'BvY S3ISNIAXI TMOHAVd HIHLO

0} 30UEPICIDY Ul [BUODY SEOUASqY nwﬁwm,__wmwww %¥6'0C- 00°000°€ 00°280°} £0'2TL'SL 00°280°) £0°CzL'GL JSNIX3T IAYIT Q3N
%8076 79062'88 00029°0 29'696 00°68€'c BE6IY'C ¢9'696 00'69€'S 8E6LY'T ASN3dX3 340
%LV 18 98'z9'L 00°272'8 98'162'e 00'vL€E'Y pLZzZLL 9g'15z'e 00'7E'y pLez's SWHO4INN
%00°00} 00'666'2 00'666°2 00°999 00999 000 00'999 00999 000 S1143N39 INIWAOTNSNND
%LT 76 GLZov'L 00916'2 {94 00°SLy G'Esy G1'le 006t Gg'esy SIS - SLIJINTE I3A0TdW3

Buuieway aoueLeA joBpng dJueUEA jenjoy  |esuepep 196png  jebpng |emjoy
S31ON _sﬁau””mhon_ jebpng g0l  6zA4 [e101 [3eBpng QLA 19Bpng QLA Jeaj Juaung | pouad JusuNy Polidd Jusung poldd usung (0Z) aNNd H3LVM

14vid

LOIH1S1A INFWIAOHUdIWI TVHINIO AHNESONI

S2O0T/LE/L YSNOIYL STOT/L/L woid
pund Ag sainyipuadx3g pue sanuaAay Jo JUsLWIBIRIS




¢ a8eg

WA 9+ 1€-2T $TOTHT/TT =ied

%Y8'E6 (rsogzea') (ooiozeve') |(oszsz'es)  (oo'ssoize)  (9sgee’vos)  |(98-Lseics) {00°850°}22) (08°6££'v0¢) SUNLIANTAXT ¥3IA0 NNIAY $S30X3
%8r 6 ITI0C686'6  OOBIG9cOl |(€060800  O0CPloel  TO0RO6LL  |(€0808T07 oevlesl £9019°6L SIUNLIANIdX3 leloL
%86°$6 GChI06LS O00WVI9L9 |(P0Z6001  O0ZeB69¢  WWIGLOIZE  |(IF0Z6001) 0022869 WIeL0IE SASNIdXI ¥IHLO fe10L
%0000} 000 000 000 000 000 000 13SSY 40 T¥SOdSIA NO NIVD/SSO1
Jooloud suipalep eul | /AeMwes| ¥Z0Z Ad|%L0'%6 GLES0'G/S'S  00'9ZL'926'S 00000082 $2TL9LSE 00'000'052 §ZT19'158 AVILNO TVLIdvD
9%96'L6 ¥9'68.'812  00'GLE'262 | v8'LOL 002286 91'6ZL6l 8104 00°/28'61 9157161 ISNIdXT LSTHILNI
SASNIIXT YIH10
%50'88 90'828'S6ET  00°0S5°02LT | 90'W19°98  00°969'L9E  ¥6IZO'SZE | 00°WL9'OF 00°969°19¢ ¥6120'52¢ $3SNIdX3 ONILYHIO [E10L
%CE 16 17550y 00899ZbYL 006690zl  ELC19Geh 006E9021 £rel9ser ISNIAX3 NOILYIOTH4IA
%.9'L6 vrSLy'L 00'551'8 0 00089 95'6/9 o 00°089 95'6.9 SANOE 30 NOILYZILHOWY
1eak e oy Ajlensn peseyaund uabAxQ pnbioes ) 6/ £9'6/2'59 00'95%'28 001289 189224 00'128'9 9LV dX3 WALSAS INFWLYIHL HILYM
%V9'86 51259'9L 00'002'LL SLLW'S 00°G¥'9 62'150') SULW'S 005219 $2°L50') JSNIdXT WALSAS LS1Q HALYM
%81 0} 00'¢88't 00°005'8} 00'€88'} 000088k 00°LL9'OL 00'€88°} 0000981 00°219'04 INIFWOYNYI G3HS HIMIS/EILYM
%19'68 00'282'GH 00'€85'/1 00'99Y'} 00'9Z8'L 00'99%'} 00'928° ONITAINYS/ONIIOLINOW ¥3ALYM
%10'26 1E'8LLEY 00'790'59 LEOLY'E 00'ZZ¥'S 69'G¥5' 1£'9LV'e 00'Zer's 69'G¥6'} WY dX3 HIA
%Zy 16 90'526'81 | 00'820'22} 80'120'L 00vLL0L  ZEZSL'E 80°120"2 0072101 6T61E ddNSNICMANd dX3 IT0IHIA
%G. 06 8r's0L'svz  00°206'7.C | 8Y'avs'L 000v676  Z9E6E'SZ 8rors's 00°0v6'2E 75'€6E'ST JRILOTTA B VO - SALAULN
%916 0005292 00°000°22 00°0 00052°T 00°052' 000 000822 000522 $334 3315N4L
%00°00} 00'7O7'EL 00'VOP'EL 0021V} 00°2LL'L 000 00°2LbY 00 L1} 000 T3AVHL
%286 0z'8vs'1Z 00'996'22 0 ¥6% 00716’} 08'6LY'L 0z ¥6¥ 00716 08'64L%'} SHYNINTS ANY ONINIVHL
Buueway aouenen jobpng gueue) lemay  |eoueuep 1o6png 1ebpng lemay
S3LON _a«“Mauﬂ”M_mm womusm. jejol SZAd [EI0L aom—-:m. alA uma—ozm aw 1gaA Jualn)d vo_._.on_ JUdLING  polIdd JuUdLINg poliad Jualng Acﬂw Qz:u_ EW._.<>>

14vid

SZOZ/LE/L UBNOIYL SZOT/L/L Wold

pung Ag saimipuadx3 pue Sohuansy jo Juswaiers

10141S10 LNIJWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




g 08eg

Wd 9P TE:TT STOTYT/TT Ed

%19'86 £9'6Z2'61 00700564 €9YGE'L 00629' 1802 £9'¥6E"L 00'629' 8o WO
%00°001 00'020°64 00°020'64 00'8EL's 00'8E}'E 000 00°8EL'E 00'8EL'E 000 ONILNNOJIY
S3ISN3dX3 ONILVHILO
%046 T6'SE9'COE  000Z9'C8L | Z6E6H'E 0081 808612 z6'c6h's 00°8LK'LE 20786'12 S3ISNIAX3 Q3LVTIY TIOUAVd IEIOL
%80 L7 097 09z 3SNIdXT IONYMOTIY ¥vD
%1000k ¥0°008 00°00S vO'Ly 00’1y W'l 00'Ly $ISNIIX3 TIOMAVd ¥IHLO
0} SOUBL00DY Ul [NIS0Y S90UBSTY ue_wmﬁmw% %E0'€E AN 00°000'% 00°eEe 8'8/9' 00°€6E 8/'819'C 3SNIdX3 AV QINYOY
%9526 80'290') 00°06%"2) 80'620' 00°25%'} 622y 80°620' 00 LSt') 6'22y 3SNAdx3 8340
%0209 0588 00211 0671 00'¢L 0585 0571 00°¢L 05'85 SWHOAINN
%00°001 00'966' 00'966'S 00°66% 00667 00°0 00'667 00’661 000 S114IN38 INFNACTIWINN
%Z9'6L 98'582 0086 00'65 717102 00'65 71102 SIS - SL43NTE ITA0TINT
%826 2E'Y66'LS 00'9/2'65 78'/99'¢ 00'6E6'Y 89'182'} 7¢'159' 00'6€6'Y 89'182') SY3d - S1143INIF JIA0TINT
%E8'¥6 95°225'9L 00'969'08 85'198'} 00'GE0'9 TreLL'y 89'198'L 00'6£0°9 ZVeLl'y SNI"03W - SLIFANIE 3FA0TIN3
%0L'€6 1y'980°¢ 00'v62'€ 99 0022 £4°200 1’99 002 £5°20¢ QI3N/VOIS - SLIHANTE 33A0TINA
%W 26 9B°EEL'YS 00'795'85 B8'6vY 00°088'Y ANV A 88’6ty 00°088'7 ZVO0EY'Y 301440 - TI0HAYd
%EE 16 SE0L'OPL  00°041'SSL BE'0EL'Y 00066'270  29%66L'8 8E°0EL'Y 000624 29'66.'8 HIOYNYI - TIOHAYd
S3ASNIdX3 Q3LVT3Y TIOYAVd
STUNLIANIIXI
%6G°L6 WIssy8s’s 000652807 |(19790¥'2) 00'SkY'SLE  65'800°€LL  [(Lio0v'T) 00°SLY'SLL 66°800'ELL SANNIAIY [B30L
%6516 ESCILILY  O0I8LBI8  |(€BEEET 00685091  Z}G90°95F  |(€EEZETD) 0068€001 I1'590's5T $334 ¥3SN [eJ0L
%1606 0GOPEE 00229°¢ 09S¢ 00908 051e8 (4 00908 05°TEE INNIAZY 334 HIISNVHL
%0000k 00°009° 00°009° 00002 000 00'002'} 000 $334 NOLLOANNOD
%£5'56 8L°00L'7h 00094y} 000621 28'659 00°0€2'} 78'659 $334 ¥3$N NO $SAILTYNId
%06'L6 76'SEV'08 00°021'¢€ 00TUE'S 80'P89' 00ZI€'e 807892 NOILJWNSNOD TYIDYIWNOD
%£9'L6 08'¥ES'8E 00'860'2Y 0z'0 00'€05'¢ 02'805'¢ 0z°0 00'€05'¢ 02'€05°€ TVIDHIANOD - $334 ¥3sSN
%1528 0r'182'12 00°00%'9Z 09°0€1 00'88Y'Y 09'819'7 09°0E} 00'88¢'% 09'819'% NOILJWNSNOD | ¥AIL TYIINIAISTY
%.9'L6 £0'€Z6'609's  00'161'95L'L 00'0SE'SYl L6929} 00°05€'9p1 16°292'9%} TVIINIAISTY - $334 ¥3SN
§334 ¥3sn
%09°16 86°698'29L 00608221 00'920'6k  zvevs'rh  (8szs) 00'920°51 TrEvEYl SNOINYTTIISIN letoL
%0001 007005 00005 01 000 001v 000 INNAATY ¥3HI0
%00°00k 00°005 00°008 00052 000 00052 000 334 MIIARY NYd
%55'16 89'G98'L9L  00'608'9LL [ Zv'80Z 00'5EL'pl Zreve'yl 7r'80e 00'SeL') IVEve'yl SLNIWLSTIANI NO 1S3H3UNI
SNOANVTIIOSIN
SANNIATY
Buujeursy aJueUep 106png douelep |lenpdy  |asuenep 196png 1ebpng Jenjoy
S3LON _Shw.ma““w_mn_ uoa_.zm. 1ejol  G§ZAd [ej0l auuuam. QLA 1Bprg LA 169 Juasung uo_._.mn_ JUdLNY  POldd JUALING pOoLLdd Jusing (0€) ANN4 ¥3IM3s

14vdd

10141S10 INFWIAOHdIWI TVHINTO AHNTSONI

SZ0Z/LE/L USnoIylL 62oe/L/L wold
pun4 Ag saJnlipuadx3g pue SenuaAsy 4O USRS




L o8eg

Wd 9P 1ETT STOTTU/TT =1ea

%LL L9 (z6'c65'608)  (00'sya‘zsy) | 26'ps0'8z  (00°60L‘BL2)  (E0'PSO'END) | 26'S0°'ST (00°604'1.22) (c0pS0°ch2) STUNLIANIAXI ¥IAO0 INNIATY $S30X3
T6F 58 A TAN T A 1AL S A B 5T 1K 74 2 < < 1S 2 R 1 (X745 14 9909 SAUNLIANIAX3 [EI0L
%96 66 B9°9E9206  0099LI0S (€T 000 T (E2E£4] 000 T SASNIAX3 ¥IHLO [EI0L
%9666 89BEG 205 00992208 000 e 000 wlic AVILNG TWLIdYO
$3SNIdX3 ¥3HLO

%Sh 6L 2L°000°626°L  00°ZS8OLE'L | 8L¥ELIT  ODSVO'SIY  ZTISS'E6E | BL'W6LIZ 00°9¥0'SHY 2T'158°C6¢E SISNIdXT ONILYHILO [ejoL
%IV 16 9282006 00/Ev'86 (72 S0C) 00°€028 7 e0ve 00028 78078 3SNAdXA NOILYIOFEd3a
%89'16 99'¥9v'1T 00'SZ7'€Z 99'048 001182 £'096't 99058 001182 ¥£096' DIMLD313 8 Sv9 - SALTILN
%4916 00'6£'2h 00°005'ek 000 00521} 00'GZ4'} 000 00'GZ4'} 00°6Z1') $334 33LSNYL
%0000} 00'29v'e 00'29¥'€ 00882 00'882 000 00862 00882 000 T3IAVHL
%0000} 00728 00728 00'68% 00'68% 000 00'68% 00'68 000 SUYNINIS GNY ONINIVHL
%86'16 607108} 00Ze9't 60°G 00'9EL 160E} 60'G 00'%E} 16°0EL INOHdIT3L
%00°001 000022 00002 0006 00°06 00°0 00'06 0006 000 $39dvHD NOILYOENd
%9566 S9'00¢"y 00°0Zr'y S9°0LL 00'9E2 SE'6L G9'94L 00°9EL SE'6l 3OVLS0d
%992 00'801 00'50% 00'801 00°50 00'262 00'80} 00'S07 00'262 $334 NV SLINYAd
%Ly L6 16°662'0 00'5€6'9 15'26¢ 00°248 Br'6LL 15268 00'L28 6V6LL $ANddNS 301440
%EE 6 00°00+'8 00'000'6 0005} 00082 00009 00051 00052 00°009 TYIHOLINVF 301440
%876 10268 00°€5L'g L0'16L 00215 £6°02€ L0161 00ZLs £6°02¢ SFANLIANAXT SNOINVTIZOSIN
%00°001 00005 00'008 00°00% 00°00S 00°0 00°00% 00°006 000 S14Vd AYOLNIANI
%561 (a7 0068822 Ov'¥¥s 00888 09€PE'ZZ OV #rS 00'888'22 09'Eve’L2 SANOE ANY FONYENSNI
%8E'Y8 €0'LYL'S 00'%08'9 00'0€9 167T90'} 00069 16290'} 3SNIdX3 ALIINO3S
%1568 W'STH'E 00728’ 10'10T 00009 66'86¢ W'L0e 00'009 66'86€ TVAINTH INFWIND3
%0456 VTS0 00°0%0'6LZ 1£729'8 00026'2L  69'242'6 1£729'8 00°026'LL 69'242'6 SHIVdT LNIVI/S3ddNS “dind3
%Y1 69 0L'607'E 00'LE6'Y 012852 00704y 06'125" 042857 00'70LY 06'125'L SNOILRIDSENS 8 $3Na

syuad Bpig sy Uonduosqns Jenie V_oegc.:wm %6L'9L 1986291 00'928'1Z 00002 6E°2L0% 000042 6€'2L0' JSNIdXT YILNANOD
%1466 09'62€°1€ 00'6LY'LE 09°£25°C 00'819C 0v'06 09'2267 00'819'2 0706 "LNIVIV ONY SHlvd3d ONIGTING
%18'16 09'797'2€ 00°09€'SE 0908 00'9¥6'2 0v'568'C 09°05 00962 0v'S68' SIOUVHI MNVE
%0001 007826 00'¥82'6 000 000 000 000 000 000 s1g3qave
%0462 0GVEY'YE  00OKZ'S8Y | 0566V 00'LIEZL  09118'0ZL | 05°66Y 00'41€'121 05118024 SINIWSSASSY ¥S110a
%00'GL GZ697'969  00'6SE'BY8 | 520 000607k SL680%CIZ | G20 00060212 5680712 0 B W YLVH-0¥d ¥S1100
%0000} 00'052'04 0005201 00758 00758 000 0058 00758 000 ONIATAYNS B ONIYIINIONT
9%00°00} 00'804'2 00'80LZ 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNILYILODAN ¥0av1 oA

m—__:m_m:Eom ,uo_._m_._m> ummt_,_m JUBLIBA B |lenjdy uelep ammv_._m uom—:_m |enjoy A v
SALON _BH huma " eBpng |ejo)l  SZAL Ielo) |3eBpng QLA 155pNg QLA Jea) Jualn)| poliad ualing pouad JuaLind poldd jusund 0€) ANN4 ¥IM3S

14vid

G20T/1LE/L YSnoayl SZoZ/L/L wold
pund4 Ag saanyipuadx3 pue sanuanay jo JusaLdlels

1O1H1SId INJWIAOHWI TYHINIO AHNGSONDA




g ofeg

Wd 9% 1£:T1 STOTPT/LL =1ed

%00°004 00005 00°005 00°008 00005 000 00°005 00°00S 000 ONIAIAYNS % ONIYIINIONI
%00°00% 000K’} oy zAlh 000 000 000 00'0 000 000 SNOILYILODIN H0ay1 O
SUOISIABY JOBAUOT [BAOLLIBY MOUS |%19™/G vezi8'l 00°052'¢ 00042 99'2/€"} 0002 99° 248"} WO
%00°004 000LL'E 000218 00°€28 00628 000 00'€2S 00'€2s 000 ONILNNOJOY
S3ASNIdXT ONILYYIHO
%Lb'€6 Lrpl8'8ST  00°ES6'9L | LKOLL'S 0068162 €5'820'81 WoL's 00°681°€Z £6'820'81 SASNIdX3 QILVTI3Y TI0NAVd [El0L
Jebeuey [eseus9 wusiuj UOEDO]Y 01 [G/AIGH 0EZEr 0070 0EZEr 000 0ETEr 000 3SNIdXT JONYMOTTY ¥VYD
%6666 £6'666 00°000' £6'€8 0078 100 £6'€8 0078 100 $ASNIdX3 TIOHAY HIHLO
0] S0UBPIOGOY Ul AIO0Y SOOU9SQY E%ﬂw% %EY bE 19889 000002 0099} 6E°LIE"} 0099} BELLE} ISNAdX3 IAVI QINYOOY
%1.2'86 VSPBL'LL 00'Z6€'41 15162 00'6¢6 Bv'261 15162 00'6¥6 6’261 ISNIdX3 83d0
%90°€8 02'96 00°€0L'} 0279 00°155 08'981 02'¥9€ 00°158 08'98} SWAOAINN
%0000k 00'866' 00'866' 00647 00'6v2 000 006t 00'6%2 000 S1143N39 INFWAOTIWINN
%Y5°76 WL 0022} 0092 68'¥6 0092 6876 SIS - SLI43INIE JFA0TdWI
%926 P'EvZ'8e 00'14Z'6¢ v0'2L2'e 00'0£2'¢ 96266 L ATAS oooL'e 96'266 S¥ad - S1143N38 IIA0 TN
Jabeueyy |eleuss) wiusju) UoHEDO]Y 80| %1026 76'00v'25 00'29€'79 00°088'y 80°196'% 000887 801967 SNI 03N - SLIF3N38 33A0dN3
%EL¥6 18T 00'687'Z 1809 00202 ELvl 2809 00402 gLorl OI03WYOIL - SLIFANTE FFA0TINI
%¥t'T6 00'690'2¢ 00°082'62 00'52e 00'0v7'Z 006122 00'5z2 00°0¥'2 006122 301440 - TIOHAVd
%8226 9L 165ty 00°'8EC'1G 92'895 00692y ¥200L'E 9.'89S 006927 vZ'00L'E JONYNILNIVIN - TIOHAYd
%¥6'€6 7T8L1'89 008452, eyt 00'8¥0'9 8L66E'Y el 00'8¥0'9 BLB6E'Y HIDYNYI - TIOHAVd
S3ASNAAX3 A3LY13Y TIOUAVd
STUNLANIIE
%6T'16 €3'904°85.  00'LOP'OE8 | LL'S60°E 00'661'69  21¥62TL 11°560'¢ 00'661'69 N7 4] SANNIATY [EI0)
%8916 STO0cves.  O00celnes |(926H) 00'18Y'89  PII9Ess (926 0078789 ¥Z19e88 $334 ¥3sN teloL
%1606 SIEIvT 000297 A 00°SEr G797 (A [ A INNIATY 335 ¥IJSNVAL
%.5'v6 0L8S'Y 00018y 00°00% 0€'192 00°00% 0€'19¢ $334 ¥3SN NO S3ILTYNId
%L9'16 0079629 00'889'89 00°0 00'92L' 00922 000 00'722' 00722’ TVIOYINNOD - $334 3SN
%1.9'16 1BEEY' B9 00'99'9p2 618 0022229 6106729 618 00'Z2z'es 8108229 WILNAQISTY - $335 ¥3sN
$334 ¥3asn
%LE VS 15999 00°619' erpie'e 00'8LL $r286'c shvIT's 00'81L Eree's SNOINVTIIISIN [eloL
%0000 00000 00002 009F 000 0091 000 INNIATY ¥3HLO
wonisod yseo Jod oBUELD LOREI0E ”\\”w Mwmwmm %62 €S 15981y 00'6L¥'8 A 00204 £vzes’e ey 0ez'e 00202 Er'2e6'e SINIWLSTIANI NO 1STH3UNI
SNOANVTIIOSIN
S3NNIAIY
S310N m_u__ocm_”:EMm aoueLIep 19Bpng SOUBLBA  oinequa BV |eoueuep joBpng  39Bpng [enjoy (09) 3INN3ATY
(E101 ueoseg OEPREIFIOL  SZAd [EI0L |396png aLA Jeaj Juauing | pouad Juangy pouad JuaLng poltsd Jaun)|  qv103dS TVAOWIY MONS

14vad

LO1HLSIA INIJWIAOHIWI TYHINIO AHNASONII

S20Z/LE/L Ysnoayl 20T/ L/L wold
pun4 Ag sainjipuadx3 pue SSNUSAY JO JUSWIAEIS




6 =8eg

N 9P TETT STOTAT/TT =*1ea

%yy'80L (co'889'995)  (00'109°228) | 699KL'LL  O0BIEZE  SE'IBO'FY S8OLL 1L 00°L2£'2¢ S8°280't $3YNLIANAAX3 ¥IAO ANNIATY SS30X3
%5 16 BOTelTeeT 00C00<scF | BOI2ES (IVR:74: 3 A T A4 551208 0082898 9028 SFUNLIANAXA [EI0L
%1666 11679zl 00°Z99°STH 68°ZE; 900 (913 68°L¢) 000 BYLE S3ISNIdXT YIHLO ejoL
%666 FIBeoECh 00799¢z1 000 882 000 [P AVILNO T¥1IdVD

S3SNIdXIT ¥IHLO
%¥6'86 01'Z62'zv6 00286256 | OL'BYS'E 00'6£9°€l  06'680°0} 01'6bs's DO'6ES'EL 06°680°01 S3SNIdX3 ONILYYIO [230L
00001 T0BSZ €F 00BSEL 07T 00F0FE 000 00F0FT 007011 000 W dX3HIA
%z L6 18598y} 00'092'SH 18'9/8 0012t eLvee 18'9.8 00'L22'} €1'76E ddNSAIoMAaNd dx3 310H3A
%8556 19'6¥5 00'6.8 19y 00'69 6652 19'eY 0069 6e'52 Q11031 8 SVO - SALMILN
%L9'16 052902 000522 00°281 05°/81 0028} 09281 $334 33LSNHL
9%00°00k 00'%86'} 00'786°) 00'591 00'G91 000 00'59) 00994 000 T3IAVHL
%E9'L6 2088t 002502 00'121 SULL) 00'12) SULLL SHYNINIS ANY ONINIVHL
9%66'16 20671 0079} €00 00k 16Th £0°0 00l 1671 INOHdT1AL
%0000} 00615} 00515} 00251 00254 000 00254 00251 000 $3SUYHO NOILYONENd
%€5'66 918"} 00°028't or'162 00°00¢ 58 o' 162 00°00€ 58 JI9VLS0d
%6526 05819 00'899 0584 0089 09'6v 058} 00'89 0567 $334 ANV SLIWY3Ad
%EE 26 6€'9EE") 00°€L€'} 6E'LL 00kl 19°9e 6€'LL 00'tLL 19°9¢ $3NddNS 301440
%EEEH 00007} 00005} 00'5g 00'SZ4 00°001 0062 00°SZ1 00°00} TWIHOLINYT 301440
%0v'86 YE0IS'S 00009 ¥E'LLE 00°29% 99'68 vE'LLE 00°29¢ 99'68 STANLIANIX3 SNOINYTIFOSIN
%00°00} 0000} 00°004 0062 00'S7 000 0062 0062 000 INTFNIND3 AL3HVS
%06'} £5'88 00'8v9'y £5'88 00'8¥9'Y 17655y £9'88 00'8v9'y L6858y SANOE ANY IONYUNSNI
%ET Y6 15°6ET 00052 156 0002 £yl 196 00'02 eyl ISNAAXT ALIMNO3S
%00°001 00°000°0) 00°000°0} 000 000 00'0 00°0 00'0 000 SN9IS 3 $100L 'S31ddNS a134
%2698 56'/56 00'LOL'} 55'1E 00°GL} ShErL oghy 00'52) SYEv) TVLINTH INFNIND3
%00°004 00004 00°00} 0052 00'62 000 0052 00'5¢ 000 SUIVARY/ LNIVIYSINAANS 'dino3
%90°G9 SETLY 00°9Z, GE'9LE 00'025 59'€5T SE'9LE 0008 69'€52 SNOILJIMOSENS 8 $3NA
syuwad Bpig 'y UoduoSqnS (enuue v_oe%__.:wm %zL'LL 9z'18e'e 005y 00'626 vLTLE'L 00626 V22U 3SNIAX3 ¥ILNIWOD
%6966 26718y 00°068'% £€6'98€ 00207 L0G) £6'98¢ 00°20% 1061 LNIVW GNY Sulvd3d ONIaing
%418'16 79°7ze'y) 00°009'61 79 00700} 88'LLT') 7972 00°00€'} 8E°LIT'L SIOUVHD MNvE
%0000} 00'960'Y 00'960'y 000 000 000 000 000 00°0 sla3aava
i/AIQ# 00'0 000 000 000 00°0 000 000 000 ONIOI IA/ILNY TYAOWIY MONS
%00°00} 00°000'62 00'000'62 000 000 000 000 000 00'0 ONIONVS - TYAOWIH MONS
%0000} 0000062 0000064 | 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIMO'd - TYAOWTY MONS
S31ON u_“w_w_”__““m aauepep 3e6png ELTIEIITT SoBPEIIA lenjoy  |asueuep 39Bpng  30Bpng jenjoy (09) INN3A3Y
€101, Jud0I2g uomu_..m |ejel GZAd |eloL uwmu:m ailA Jea) JUaLny) | polidd jualnyd poldd jualIng poliag juauny |_<_own—m |_<>ozmm >>ozw

14vid

10141S1Q INFWIAOUdIWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDA

§202/1LE/L USnoay] GZ0T/L/L woid
pun4 Ag seanpuadxg pue SaNUIAY JO JusLIAIEIS




01 @8eq

WA 9t 1€-TT STOUPL/TT =2

%92 LL0E W'B0Z'YS 00°046'SS (zroLy) 00828°) 951921 00828° 8s10L's STUNLIANIJXI YIAO INNIAZY §830X3
paig L4441 (71757 2 (PR S 006159 TZ0I59 (LL787 006153 TI0I5S SIYUNLIGNTAX3 [esoL
%EE 98 (4174 00°Z61F 1215 006159 1059 006159 1059 SISNIJX3 ONILVYACO [El0L
%BIETE I5EeC 9k oorerZr (&S 00915 €779 00915 EvI% 0I¥10313 ¥ S¥D - SALNILN
%00°00} 00007 0000¢ 007001 00°004 000 0000} 00001 000 $31ddNS 301440
%6926 0000001 0000801 00°00} 00006 00008 00001 00006 00008 TYIYOLINYF 301440
%58'C6 6¥'66¥'9 0070002 6t'¢8 00'€8s 16008 6'C8 00°€8S 15°00S SIHNLIANIAXT SNOANYTIFOSIN
%86'L 8% 00982 182 00'982'¢ ELILLE 8L 00'982'€ ARAAS SANOE ANV FONYHNSNI
%196 GLE0C 000¢¢ SLL 008l SOl S 0081 SZol IVLNIY INFNIND3
%00°00L 00°00% 00°00% 00002 00002 000 00002 00°00¢2 000 SYIV¥d3d/ LNIVIW/S3NddNS 'dIND3
%6¥'88 \9vTr'y 00°000°5 009y 6E°6.G 009y 6E°6L8 "INIVIN ONY SdIVd3d ONIaTIng
S3SNIdX3 ONILYYIdO
SAYNLIANIIXI
%EL 16 12¥EY'T6 00°292°001 00°26¢'8 62'2ee's 00°26¢'8 677258 S3NNIAIY [E0L
CAgMYS VK544 00292001 00°262°8 sTetee 002688 (T4} SNOANYTIIISIN [EloL
AT VIVEVTE 0072527001 00Z6€8 6CCEE 8 007688 6CTEES INOONI TVINIY
SNOANVTIIISIN
SANNIATY
S3LON mﬁ__mﬁﬂhx aoueleA 1hpng asuepep 106png QLA |lenjoy aouepe Jebpng 1bpng |enjoy Aowv TVLIN3IY
o) ARaEl 1bpng g0l GzAd [ejo)L | 19Bpng QLA JeajjuaLIng) | pouddiuduny)  poudd JALN)  PoLdd JUILRY JAYHO AHNISONII 862

14vdd

190141S1A INFWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDI

§20Z/LE/LYsSNo1y) SZ0Z/L/L wold
pung Ag sainyipuadx3 pue sanuanay Jo JU3WI31LIS




SIHNLIANIdX3 ANV
JNN3IATYH 40 LNIWILVLS

‘NOLLISOd HSYO
§¢0¢ Lsnonv






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  GENERAL 45%
B CASH POSITION - B WATER 28%
- SEWER 20%
AUGUST 2025 SNOW 6%
| BEGINNING | - ENDING
FUND - - BALANCE  TRANSFERS ADJUST. RECEIPTS CHECKS BALANCE
GENERALFUND $ 9224,608.17 | $  (12,905.06)| $  (130.32)| $ 126,956.77 |$  (1,351,160.77)| $ 7,987,368.79
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  417,203.15[$  12,905.06 | $ - |3 - 18 - |$ 430,108.21
GENERAL INVESTMENT S 825,724.42 | § - - |8 - $ 1,035.80 | § - $  826,760.22
GF TOTAL | - $ 9,244,237.22
WATER FUND |$ 4,178933.08 [$ (201,786.60)| $ (9.11)| § 49417532 | § (523,641.87)| $§ 3,947,670.82 |
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) |$§  680,835.54 |§  16,620.40 | § - 1S - |8 - |$ 697,464.94
WATER INVESTMENT |$ 840,24460 | $ - |8 - |8 639.11 | § - |$ 840,883.71
KGID/TRPA RESTRICTED (STATION 48MPS) | $ 45,430.00 | $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 45,430.00
DIST DEBT RESERVE $ 7326564 (%  7352045|% - |8 - |$ - |$ 146,795.09
TREAT DEBT RESERVE $ 11122724 |$  111,627.75|$% - |8 - |$ - |$ 222,854.99
CAP IMPROV. RESERVE $ - |8 - |8 - |3 - |8 - s .
- WF TOTAL B $ 5,901,099.55 |
SEWER FUND $ 3,766,544.99 | § (672.81)| $ 96.98 | $ 184,481.89 | § (40,862.74)| § 3,909,588.31
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | § 17,14391 | § 672.81 | $ - |8 - |8 - 1$ 1781672
SEWER INVESTMENT B $ 44941496 | $ - $ 418.73 | $ B - $  449,833.69
SFTOTAL| - |$ 4,377,238.72
SNOW REV. FUND $ 64452824 | § (6,732.41)| $ 4245 |$ 7157239 | $ (25,061.37)| $  684,349.30
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  212,365.34 | § 6,73241 | § - s - 18 - |$  219,097.75
SNOW INVESTMENT $ 24,880.34 | $ - |8 - |8 110.18 | $ - $ 24,990.52
. - SNOW TOTAL o - $  928,437.57
298 KINGSBURY GRADE RENTAL $ 29120772 | $ - |3 - 1% 724164 % (2,053.36)| $  296,396.00
- 80 RENTAL TOTAL - | - $  296,396.00
GRAND TOTALS $ 21,803,557.34 [ $ (0.00)) $ - $ 886,631.83 | $ (1,942,780.11)| $ 20,747,409.06
CHECKING i )y
US BANK ~|$ 59917964 |$  800,000.00 $ 814,299.91 [$ (1,942,780.11)[ $  270,699.44
US BANK MMA s 11225 ($ - $ - |8 - |s 112.25
MORTON CAPITALMMA ~ [$  390,152.07 | § - $ 2203825 - |$  392,355.89 |
4.25% FIRST FNDTN BANK $  250,000.00 | $ - | |$  250,000.00 |
4.70% FLAGSTAR BANK $  250,000.00 | § - |$  250,000.00 |
5.10% MORGAN STANLEYBANK | $  250,000.00 | $ - | $  250,000.00 |
5.20% BANK HAPOALIMNEW YORK [ $  250,000.00 | $ - |$  250,000.00
4.00% NORTHEAST BANKCD  [$  250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
4.60% JP MORGAN CHASE $  250,000.00 | $ - - |1$  250,000.00 |
4.40% WASHINGTON FED BANK $  250,000.00 | $ - $ - |8 - |$  250,000.00
- s - |8 - $ - |3 - |5 5
LOCAL GOVT POOLED 4.2557215% $ 19,064,113.38 [ $ (800,000.00) $ 70,128.10 | § - | $18,334,241.48
GRAND TOTALS $ 21,803,557.34 | $ - $ - $ 886,631.83 | $ (1,942,780.11)| $ 20,747,409.06

Page 1






1 @8eq

WV 9FE€T 1T STOT/PITT Ed

%6508 81LIY'BLL'S 00°218°218°01 (81°€68°62) 001692°081'2 23°6.€°001°2 (60'026'c2) 00°LLLYYE'L 16061022} SANNIAZY [e0L
|%ELe8 556V 96E'S 007286 1EL L 65°565°0F 008ereiE) FLETAN YaTivTe 000,989 [ TZ47]] $334 ¥3asn [e3oL
%EE €8 09TEEC 0086.C 00207 0799F 020 00°€EC (4554 JONVENSNI 3N INITAYIS
%6)'€8 ST6L6'CL 00°0€5Sk 610z 00065 §L019°T 08'bh 00'662' 08°90¢"L JONVANSNI $507 INITAYIS
%22 €8 18129’} 00°256'} £9¢ 00428 £9°L2E 86t 00'Z9L 86691 INNAATY NINGY INITAYIS
%25 V8 0005901 000092} 000042 00°056'% 00°050' 0069 INNIATY 334 HIISNVHL
%12 ey 002162 00ZIE'8l 00°Th¥'S) 00°00%'0L 001201 00°00¢'01 $334 NOILOINNOD
%0528 00°0z% 00°08% 0008 0009 000 000y 000r $334 MOFHD NuNLIY
%¥9'5L 192, 000096 69'8€2 00009} 69'BEET 0008 00°008 00058 S3IDUVHD 30IAYAS
%1988 V2TE6'S 00'066'19 00°06€°0} 621502 00°594'S 18615 $334 ¥3SN NO SIIL YN
%ZL6L 08°10L'pbL 000Z)'Evl 00veL'6g 02'810'62 00ziz'el ¥2'988'2) NOILIWNSNOD TYIOHINNOD
%EE'ES P L'8L 00°2EL'Y6 950 00'689'51 95'689'G1 00'GPR'L 8L7v8'2 NOILO3L0Yd Il TYIDHINWOD
%EE'ES ¥5°259'G6E 00'28L'vLy 00°0€4'6L ov6CL'6L 00'595'6€ £2'795'6¢ WIOYINNOD - $334 ¥ISN
%82'€8 06'%20'28 00'¥6v'v04 0188 00'74b'L4 01'69%'LL §5'/2 002028 SGyEL'8 NOILDFL0Yd FHId TYILNIQISTY
%0€'L9 evESY'ay 0000022 00°089'LE 15°9¥5'€T 00°095'9% ¥1°006'6 NOILJWNSNOD € 311 TYILNIQISTY
%9289 5g'952'0y 00°000'89 00°094'sZ SVere'ie 00026'Z1 58'880°0} NOILJINNSNOD ¢ ¥3IL TVILNIAISTY
%E8'LL £6'665'9.2 00°'00'55E 00'796'06 1000882 00v0L'ey LB LPE'SE NOILJIWNSNOD | ¥31L TYILNAAISTY
%0Y €8 76'19€'162' 00°282°962'9 00'99F'6¥0°L 80°SeH'SH0't 00°€6L'¥2S LE'919'728 WIINAQISTY - $334 ¥38N
§334 ¥3sn
%8L'18 0595718 00°€10'966 (05°6v0'9) 00925'281 09°920'181 (15°20¢'61) 00°cbZ'901 6v'506'98 SNOANVTIIOSIN [e10L
%6€ 0L 8L0v06L 00050Z¢ AT 005057 706008 (0tsce 000¢v ANNIATE ¥3H10
%15'€8 6518 00°292'001 00'962'9} 2911991 00°26€'8 8€'6.2'8 IWOONI TYINTY
%0008 00000} 00082 00°006 00082 00°00% 00052 334 MIIATH NVd
%0t'18 6€°0¥€'589 00'9¥6'118 19°'822'91 00°Z2€'0vl 19'509'95} LeeL's 00'€91'0L b1996'2L SLNIWLSIANI NO LSIHALNI
%0000} 00000's¢ 00°000'6Z 00000'52 000 00000'52 000 INVAHD Yd3 30UN0S LNIOd NON BLE
SNOANVTIIOSIN
%01'2L SL'GSK° 205 00'228'060'2 (c1'8v2'L8) 00°619°029 18°99£'€85 20°298°21 00°S6L1S¥ 90°250'69% S3aXVL 1e10L
%EE €8 PEBIS699 0076v'€08 997 00FIEEEL 99G16EEL €870 0025699 £8756°99 NOILNGIYLSIA XYL ILVLS
%S 79 98'ErL'08E 00°€82'685 00'8L1'v22 71°6€9'602 v LL9'0L 00'G66'9.L ¥2'755'28) dN-IMvYIN WFHOTVAQY
%6866 98'659'9 002999 0008 pLL 00°0v L XY1 ALYAd0Yd TYNOSHId
%62 59 20°€L0°15Y 00828069 00°€€5'292 £6'708'6€C §8'9/2'L 00'€92'202 S8'665VIT SAXVL WIHOTVAQY
$aXVL
SANN3ATY
Bugureway 1obpn aojueue sduele, en asuelep 190pn: afipn. en
m&o._. u_w_ow._uw_ e ﬁcm—.zm. _m“/o._. wom—u:m SZAd [B0L ﬁmu:m. n_\.”.> uowu—_m QLA ._nm_> «—a_wm_:o vo_h.un_\“hwt_w_om _uo___umﬂ_ ”.._wm._.__..o co_h_wn_ “”M::O

14vid

SZ0Z/1€/8 USNoayL STOT/1L/8 Wwoid

Q3NIGWO0D SANNL TV STHNLIANIAX3 Pue SINNIAIY 0 INJWILVLS
10141S1Q INFWIAOYdIWI TYHINIO AUNGSONDI




¢ wfeg

WV IFETTT STOT/PTT 2B

%00°00L 00°0€9'62 00'0£9'6¢ 00°001'8 000018 000 000508 000508 000 SN9IS 2 $100L ‘$3IMddNS aT3id
%ES S8 99'099ZL 0020871 99'¢le 00'615' eIz 00029 09729 TYINTY INTFWINDI
%66 6L 0¥’ 0L¥'681 00'062'9EC 00'S0L 't 09'6.€'1¥ 00°SYE'PZ 97'9e8'9e SuIVdI/ INIYW/SAITAdNS "dIND3
%479 15'67E'0) 00'€50'91 15°068"2 00'#6S'EL 6v'60L' 152 00ELL 6°501 SNOILI¥OSENS ¥ $3Na
%1199 Prove'29 00°228'L0L 00'912'62 95°085'vE 04'Ge8't 00°9z1'2 0£'062'S 3SNIdX3 ¥ILNINOD
%62 L6 £5'¢21'69 00'70b 1L £5'916' 00°248'}1 Ly'086'} £€9°056'Y 00'%26's 18616 "INIVIN ANV SHIvd3y ONIATING
%8L'e8 L0'21L'98 00°052'$01 002221 66'265"LL 00989 L210'6 S30YVYHO YNVE
%00°004 00°90€'22 00'90¢'22 000 000 000 000 000 000 s163a ave
%04'SL 08 vt voe 00°9YZ'8Y 09667 00'LLE"LZL 05'118°02) 000 000 000 SININSSISSY ¥51100
%002 GZ'692'969 00'65€'8Y8 520 00'060'212 5.'680'24C 000 000 000 0% W Y1¥4-0ud ¥$1100
AICH# 000 000 000 000 00'0 000 000 000 ONIOI IA/ILNY TYAOWIY MONS
%0000} 00000'52 00°000'62 000 00°0 000 000 000 000 ONIANYS - TYAOWTH MONS
9%00°00k 0000024 00°000'62L 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIMOTd - TVAOWTH MONS
%26'/8 G0'G95'6€ 000005y S0°'G90°LL 00°005'2Z S6°VEP'S 00°000'2 00°000'2 000 $3ddNS @ IONYNILNIVIN QvOd
%19'96 00'12E 64 00'000'02 00'4Z€Z4 00°000'1 00'6.9 00°005'9 00°005'9 000 JOVYNIVHA ANY NOISOH3
%L1 6 0018108 00°00Z's8 008656 00°219'71 00'610' 5752y 00'850°2 §Z'508' ONIAIAUNS B ONIHIINIONT
%0000} 00002} 00°00v'2H 000 000 00'0 00°0 000 000 SNOILYILODAN HO8YT Tv931
%90'L6 GE'98)'6G 0000059 SE'8LO'S 00'Z€8'01 59'€18' 052052 00'94¥'s 056167 oI
%00°00} 00°00%'€9 0000%'€9 00'652'81 00'652'81 00'0 00'86."2 00'864'2 000 ONILNNOD2Y
SISNIdX3 ONILYYILO
%Gh'88 ¥r's08'2h2'T 00'929'6£5°2 vb'192'82) 00°280°120 96°0L2'262 1265’59 00'804'002 6851 1k} SASNIAXT QILYTIY TIOUAVd [E10L
%879 006 00°8E5 ISNIdX3 FONYMOTIV ¥vD
%¥8'58 80°16L's 00°00£'9 80°€eT') 002812 76'8v6 00'L62 9008 SASNIdXI TIOUAYd HIHLO
%658 96'1€6'} 0000522 00052 0’89502 96'95€'C 00°€8'} ISNIdX3 IAYIT QINYO0V
%E8'L6 99°800'7L 00'265°08 990189 00°0ev'e} PE'€85'9 £C'ETY'e 00'G12'9 19'162'€ 3SNIdX3 8340
%ER 1L 9z'e51'6 00'092'41 LTAYIAS 00°088' $2'908' 000 00°068 SWHOLINN
%00°001 00°/86'6} 00'£86'61 00'92€'€ 00'9Z€'e 000 00'€99'} 00'€99'} 000 S1143N3E INFWAOTIWINN
%2E 06 0'080'2) 00°0Z€'eL 0r'SLl 00°59%' 09'682'L w08y 00'999 96281 SIS - SLI4INIE 3FA0INI
%S} 76 (XA AN 00°60€'928 5'289°0% 00'pLLZ9 9r'920'22 76°6Z'LL 00°25€'1E B0'EE6'6L SY3d - S1I43INTE FIA0TANT
%56'88 00°2€2'89¢ 00°02£'925 00208'€Z 000¥6'18 00'8E1'85 09'82L'El 00°026'0% 05'16L'22 SNI "IN - SLI43NTE FIAOTINI
%25'58 z9ciesl 00'69+'22 29'/8% 000¥L'E 8E'75T'E £LY52 00'0/8'L 12619’} DIAINYOI - SLIFANTE FFA0TANE
%L.78 59'6/¥'591 00°142'S61 590087 009€5°2€ SE'SEL'6T 09'662't 00'892°91 0¥'896'7) 301440 - TI0YAVd
%Ev'98 06'722'685 00'952'189 06'060'12 00229's1L 0116526 91'886'01 00" 18'9S 8'228'Sy 3ONYNALNIYW - TIOYAYd
%5206 1£'€50'425 00°900'¥85 LE'BLE°0F 00'2€E'L6 €9°756'95 ey Sr0'1z 00°999'8y 15029'22 YIOYNYIN - TIOHAY
SISNIAX3 AILVIIY TIONAVd
STUNLIANIXT
Buluiewsy jobpn doueLe aoueLIe, Bn)o asueuep 3a6pn. abpn: en
mﬂ.‘o._. u“_m“”w“ 8 uam_u_..m. _m»o._. «wnvzm SeAd 1E0L uom—:_m. n\.,_.> «mmt:m alA ._wm_> «_u_mMSU vo_._.mm\whwt—_v_om vo_._«wﬂ_ W:mm._._so —uo_.__om “”M::U

14Vid

S202Z/1€/8 Usnoiyl 52oe/1L/8 woid

G3INIGIWNOD SAONND TV STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATYH 30 INIWILVIS
1D141S1A0 INJWIAOHUDIWI TVHINID AHNGSONDI




¢ o8eg

WY OV €T TT STOT/P/TL P1RA

%99'2L (12°889'L4Z'S) {oo'isz'zer') (62°3yv°8L) (oovi9'zer't) (62'290'196'}) $9'228°061 (00'660°86%) (s1144'208) STUNLIANIAXT YIAO0 INNIAIY $530X3
Tty 11 BTGLI 06 CF 00855 166 21 (F755586¢) 0038¢90 ¢ 25 i K TX L7425 00 evlT 8006 T STUNLIANIAXT [EI0L
%60 1L TIEnsz8s 00°7080°109°6 (6919529 00°E6E°004C 68°900°92LC P05V 007995°0¢2'1 SEI009V1 1 S3ASNIdXT ¥IHLO [EI0L
%LL0L 2SI 00°GOE99E'6 00072090 SVIVEIELT 1§TLLE8 [OEZAr A [IWER TN AVILNO TYLIdYO
%V6'€8 65569661 00'616'2€7 B6SEEY 00°€59'6€ L'612'8¢ SUVEL 00'928'61 SZ¥60'61 3SNIdX3 LSTHILNI
%00°00L 000 000 000 000 000 000 WYS0dSIa NO SSOUNIVD
$3ASN3dX3 ¥IHIO
%29°L8 Y6'E9Z'0EL'S 00°218'v58'S ¥6'606°9LY 00°8GH'LYL'L 90°8¥S'vZL vL'ST2 861 00°9¢6'40€ 9z0LL'901 S3SNIdX3 ONILYYILO leo),
%9978 07Ze08Z1 000 9vS T 00789'Z5¢ 0975085 00ZP88el EOIE0TED ISNIdX3 NOILYIDTEd3A
£8'66.'9 00961'8 880 00°09¢"L AN il 00089 9569 SANOA 40 NOILYZILHOWY
%09°9. H0'S9L'€9 00°95+'28 00ZrL'EL 66'062'61 8E'95L'Y 00'148%9 9T dX3WILSAS INIWLYIHL HILYM
%PZ 86 T9'eee’sL 00°002'2L 79'€85'HL 000562} 8E°99E'L 185919 00'6L¥'9 £1'60€ ISNIXT WALSAS LSIQ ¥ALYM
%810} 00°€88’t 000058} 00'¢88' 00°005'8} 00°2L9'9L 000 000 000 INFWOVYNYIN QIHS HIMIS/HILYM
%G558 00'Z¥0'SH 00'€85'21 00'16€ 002¢€6' 001452 00'152 00°99t'L 00°GLL ONITIWYS/ONIFOLINOW H3LYM
%1856 212er'e8 00°0£€'e6 zhShe'LL 00°€55'S1 88°06°C 95'959"2 002442 (A 7A WY dX3 HIA
%P6'6 08'901'974 00'865'¢51 08'L¥Z'6) 00°€Er'Se 0Z'161'9 865001 00012} 200527 ddNS/1I0MAN4 dX3 F10IHAA
%SLZ8 £5'8¥9'252 00'662'50€ €5°68)'11 00°0¥B'E9 1¥'059'28 88'L6L'E 00'SeY' L2 N5 (A 74 21410313 8 Y9 - S3LAILN
%EE €8 00°008'2€ 00°000'sY 000 00°005'2 000052 000 00°05.' 0005L' $334 3315041
%00°00k 00°004'12 0000442 00715'e 00715 00'0 00252} 00'482') 000 J3IAVHL
%E9'v6 00'902'¢€ 00°029's€ 001207 00'Ge6'S 00'716') 009887 00896 0028 SUYNINIS ANY ONINIVAL
% es 60'86¢'71 0091 6094 00'458' 16'2€8'C 00°22%'} L0'eSH' 3NOHdITAL
%88'66 £5'166' 000002 551"} 00991’} 8 VLS 00'€8S 6L $T100L TIVWS/SINddNS dOHS
%59'58 75'916' 00'620'8 75'6€8 00'866' 8v'8S1'l &Ly 00'9/5'} 885kl $39UYHD NOILYOI18Nd
%81 ¥8 80'EY6'0L 00'000'EL 80'669 00'969' 26'9507 000 000002 39v1S0d
%G8'6. 979898 00°628°0L o 145 000¥LT ¥5261'C ££'86 00002 1109 $334 ANV SLINY3d
%E.'88 86'€16°0C 00'L5'€Z 86°10¢"} 00'656' 70469 00°0€6'L Tr'890'2 $3MddNS 301440
%9578 00°00S'E 00°008'0F 00°00S 00°008'9 00°00€'9 00°00¥'€ 00005 TVRIOLINYT 301440
%TLEB 81'£88'9€ 00'€5¢'6E 81260y 00'295'9 79694 LIS9Y'T 00'6.2' €eI8 $IUNLIONTAXT SNOINYTIZOSIN
%09'L6 0083 00°00S 00807 00052 002y 00°091 007091 000 $334 N3N
9%00°00k 00°000'0€ 00°000°0€ 000 000 000 000 000 000 LNIVA 8 dlIvd3d Y3 13N
%78'86 17'0zE'S) 00°005'S} 170768 000058 £5°6L1 000 00'0 00°0 S1MVd AJOLNIAN
%00°001 00004} 00004} 00'525 00528 000 000 000 00'0 INFWINOI AL3AVS
%¥LTL LIS L) 00'€EC'9Y} SLY8Y'T 00°096'0€ 4 STGIY'8TL 00°225' 00°0v5'L SANOE ANV FONVHNSNY
%ELT8 ZZ'9e0'8l 00'208'12 72186 00291y 8600 1L¥62 00'186 62989 ISNIdX3 ALIMND3S
Buiureway y96pn doueue aoueue en aaueuep Jobpn: fpn en
mmmo._. u:mcw._w“ 8 acmv:m. _u“,o._. ummvzm S2Ad B0l uwm_u:m. n_\.,_.> ummv_._m ar ._uv_> u_”“N_:U uo_._.wﬁ_\w—“__w._._ﬂom vo_._uoon_ _“:cm._.__._o vo_h_an_ ””M_._:o

14Vid

6202/LE/8 Usnoiyl Z0Z/1L/8 woid

J3NISIWO0I SANND TIV STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATY 30 LNJWILVILS
L1O141S1d INIWIAOUWI TVHIANIO AHNASONIA







1 :e8eg

Y LOOTTT STOTH/TL =ied

%.2'96 08'LLL'6Y 0000215 08'889'9 00°219'8 0Z'826') 8'699° 00'80E'Y LTy ONIATAUNS B ONIYTINION
%0000} 00ZLY't 00219’ 000 000 000 00'0 000 000 SNILVILOD3N HOgY1 oI
%6t 76 v0'1L0'e 0005Z'€ $0'€9e 00'ZYS 96'821 08'10¢ 00122 0Z'69 WO
%0000} 000248 000418 00'€6 00°€l6 000 00°06¢ 00°06¢ 000 ONILNNOJ2Y
S3SNIdX3 ONILYHIAO
%y 98 go'vev'ees  00°9L1'08€ 80°01Z'11 00796t  Z6'ISLTS 96°625°9 00'728'LE vO'v66'PT S3SNIdX3 GALYTAY TI08AVd [E30L
%6059 (5 0008 ISNIdXT FONYMOTIV ¥VD
%0t'86 80'896'} 000007 80008 00°2€e Wwe WYEL 00991 ¥6'LE S3SNIXT TIOHAY YIHLO
%C9 VS ;81181 0000°€ 00'Z8S €1'885't 9 00'162 £E'612 3SNIdX3 IAVIT1CINYOOY
%E5'56 yZopsoL 00'0F0' 1L ATl 000¥e't 9L'€6 7Vl 00026 88°9vC JSN3dX3 83d0
%¥6'99 0081} 009"} L0'66¢ 00788 £6'28S 000 €9EeT SIWHOSINN
%0000} 00'866'2 00'866'7 00°86Y 00'86% 000 00'6¢2 00'6¥2 000 SLI43NI8 INFWACTAWINN
%978 7677992 00'shL'e 00°9vE 8028y 89°92 0051 ZE'0El SIS - S114IN3E IFA0TIWI
%8GC6 8991’0y 00°'626'6¥ 89°665'y 0022E'8 ARAARS 69'065° 00194y 1£'045C S¥3d - SLI43INIE IFACTJWI
%8G8 69'896'G9 00'6+8'9L 69°GZ1') 00900'2} LE088'0L £9°EET'L 00°'€00'9 6oLy SNI ‘GIN - SLI43NIE 3FA0TdNT
%€ 69 60¥85'C 00'82L'e 00029 LBEPL'L 00°0LE fegordd DIdIN/YOI - SLI4INTE FIA0TINA
%LLY8 696L8'1C 00'082'62 69'647 00°088'Y LE09K'Y vLv6L 000P7'C T 74 301440 - TIOYAVd
%.9'18 9E'620'%6 007451 00'884'6} Y9T0L' e 00'765'6 02666 JONYNILNIVA - TIOWAYd
%52 06 60'650'6. 00'209'28 60°250'9 00°009'vL 162158 16951’ 00°00€"2 60EPL'Y HIOVNYA - TIOUAYd
$3SN3dX3 Q3LVTY TI08AVd
sFUNLIANIdXa
%99°ZL WoLE'svL's  o00Tveeor'’T |(zirocs’sl)  00'20£TL9  €51126'959 | viilSK'eT 00°6€Z' L2y '969'505 SANN3ATY (e30L
%SV 9L vECI89EC 00025 ¢IE 9IS 00Z80°ZS 9909°EL BES650F 00970792 §E6E99E SNOANVTIIISIN [E30L
%00 001 000007 007000F 00291 000 0078 000 3NNAZY ¥IHLO
01 5Z/08/9 Uonsod yseo j6d 9BUEYD UOTEOO(E %.E B amwnm %.E°9. YEGI6'IET  00°026'LLE [ 9989 00026°MS  99HD9'EL 8E'629'0) 00'096'62 8E'6E9'0E SLNIWLSIANI NO LSTHILNI
SNOANVTIISIN
%01'2L eI'SSy'208')  00°2Z8'060°7 |(cL'gpz'ie)  00°GHO'029  I8'O9E‘€8S | 90°Z98°LL 00°S61'15Y 90°250'69¥F S3XVL [EI0L
% E8 785699  00%6ve0s | 997 007I6€EL  99GI6EEr | €80 0025699 £8'256'99 NOILNGIMLSIA XYL 3LYLS
%Sb'¥9 9BEYL08E  00'€8.'68S 00'8LL'YZZ  FL'6EYBOT | ¥TLI9DL 00°5€6'9L) 2255 281 dN-3VIN WFHOTYAQY
%68'66 98'659'0 002999 0008 L 000y i XYL ALY3dOHd TYNOSHId
%67 59 L0E0'Sy  00'8/8'069 00'€€5'79¢  €6v08'6EC | 589.CL 00'€92' 202 §8'685'712 SIXYL NTUOTYAQY
saxvl
SINNIAY
Bujuteway adueuep jabpng oueleA jenjoy  |aoueuep je6png 1obpng lenoy
S3LON _mah”m«””w._wn_ umm—:._m |e10l GZAd [eIoL awmvam aLA umm_u:m air Jeajp JUdN)| pPoLIad Juaung) poudd Judiny poliad juaiungd «Oh» QZ: l 4§WZWQ

14vVda

SZ02/1€/8 Ydnoayl SZoZ/1L/8 wold

S3UNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY 40 INFWILVYIS
10141510 INJWIAOHIIWI TVHINIO AHNESOND




7 w8eqd

AWV LOF9ZTT STOT/P/TT =ed

%8z 9z- rezesse  (000vzzeo’l) |(zress'ess)  (ooeLz'ii)  (2'998'082L) | 96°€98'HOM (oozso'ore)  (bo'8LL'GEL) $IUNLIANIJX3 HIA0 NNIAIY $S30x3|
T UIIGT D08SSere ((GCeselcs) OOTE66eET SCORIvet | ZE90IEL w016l SFPIBTRY SIUNLIANIAX3 lejoL
TITTE TFEoyIes  0090c808¢ |(/SZitco)  0OOVEtScE ISLIUOL8Y | ZEGVEE 0007259 8PILLIY SISNIdX3 ¥3HLO lesoL
%LLEE TyeevIes  0090C808Z |57/vtc9)  0OOWeSe ISLHLW8T |ZESOVSE D00V £SO BOVILLIS AVILNO TWLIdYO
SISNIdXT HIHLO
%5026 yrezgziz OD00ZUET | bTBOV'MS  OD'6LLTL  9L0L'8l VTLLE 00°251°e¢ 9,50 SISNIdXI ONILVYIHO [E01
%3928 T0S5IEl 00'800°G1 To679 001052 661580 T Al weer WY dX3 HIA
9%56'S6 Yiyazeadt 00'092'} 18°926'} 00'%¥5T 9219 09850’} 00z 05'€22 ddNSMION3NS dX3 101HIA
%9'6L 245y 00628 LA 00'tgk STLL 00es 8595 01410313 B SYO - SILNILN
%ELEY 00'628' 000822 000 00'GE 00'62€ 00284 05284 $334331SNYL
%00°00} 0010522 00082 00'%2€ 00'p2E 000 00281 00281 000 T3AVHL
%S9'v6 STELY'Y 00'92L'y ST YES 00'8L 22682 02188 00'¥6€ (134} SHYNIWIS GNY ONINIVHL
%66'€8 90981 00291 900 0092 ¥6'5Z €00 00¢€} 182} 3NOHdITAL
%8196 8YEV 00084} 000 gbsy 000 £hay SITYVHO NOILYONENd
%9€ 0L 052LH 007294 0521 0029 05'6v 000 000 000 §334 ONY SLIWY3d
%28 L6 Trevs't 00'v88'} Zreee 00'%92 85¥E 744! 00Zel 98 $3I1ddNS 301340
%00°58 0052} 00'005'} 0052 00052 00'522 000 00'52k 00524 VIFOLINYF 301340
%5066 L6670} 00°009'0} 10'299') 00'89'} 66°001 L9718 00'%88 eLL STUNLIANIXS SNOINVTIZOSIN
900004 00008 00'008 00'005 00008 000 000 000 000 INFWINDI ALFHYS
%06'L €688 00'8y9'Y £5'88 00'8Y9'Y 17'655'Y 000 000 000 SANO ANY FONYANSNI
%€6'88 9841 00002 986 00'ze 114 628 0094 bl ISNIdXT ALIND3AS
%0000} 00'0£9'6} 00'0£9'61 000048 00'004'8 000 000508 00'050'¢ 000 SNDIS 2 $700L ‘83ddNS 134
%8078 Trove 002k oy 0002 8599 1ze 00'Ge 622¢ TYINTH LNTFNIND3
%92 ¥8 662" 00'00L'S 672y 00058 15208 00'52y 000ty SYIVAIH/ LNIVW/SINNS dINd3
%ES 79 80'L2¥ 00'0EL BO'IYE 00009 26'852 000 pra SNOILJINOSENS B $3Na
%L 98 67€2EY 00°986'% 62291 0008 L2799 AN 00'SHy 10€8 ISNIXT ¥ILNWOO
%S'66 v L6 00'000'} LT 00005 9578 152811 00052'L 6v'29 "LNIV ONY S¥Ivd3d ONITING
%26 28 50'595'6€ 00'000's¥ §0'590'2L  0000§2C  SBER'S 000002 00'000'2 000 $31ddNS B IONYNILNIVIN QYOY
%1996 0012’61 00'000°0Z 00LZE'TL 00000k 00649 00'005'9 000059 000 J9DYNIVHA ANY NOISOYS
Buureuisy douBLeA jabpng JoUBMBA |lenyoy  |asuenep jabpng jebpng |enjoy
S3LON _m—hw.mﬁ“”m._am ummu_-m. |elol GZAd [eiol ummv:m. ala ummvzm a Jea), juanng vo_h.an_ JUdLIND poulRd Judlny poldd Judling «Qh» aNNd Tvd3 mmv

14vid

§202/1€/8 Ysnoiyl §202/L/g wold
SFUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATY 40 INFWILVLS
10141S1d LNJWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNASONI



¢ ded

WV LO:9T 11 STOZ/P/TT =ed

%82 56 £9260'2b2  00€S8'LZT | eG€I’le  00WL6'L€ 24709201 92'888'¢ 00'286'81 2860 S¥3d - SLI43NTE IIA0TWINI
%2} 06 S078L'9/C  OO'EOY'O0E | SO'EE8'ZL  00WOL'BY  S60BZ'CE 17789 00'Z50'7C 6261161 SNI Q3N - S1143N38 IFA0TINT
%26'88 18IS 00'¥56'C) lezes 008542 6LSEV') ST9LE 00'60° §LT9L DIQ3W/VDIA - SLIAINTE 3FA0 TN
%LL Y8 98'261'99 00°280'8L 981zL'} 00910l PLYE8L ¥9'028 00'804'9 9¢'286' 301440 - TIOYAYd
%09'28 TLOVISY  00'98E'GIS | 2086'k  00'968'GB 8B'GIB'E9 08'756°0} 00'8¥6'cY 0Z€40'eE JONYNILNIVA - TTONAV
%96'06 8Y99E'PYe  00'959'807 | e¥B8r'Uz  000LLYr  ZGUST'he 7eEE8'6 00'68€'22 894952 HIOYNVIN - TIOYAYd
S3SNIdX3A QILV1IY TI0¥AVd
STUNLIANIAXT
%9278 95'9SII6k'y  00°Lul'ozy's | (09'6vE'99) 00°0L6'L00°L  $095'GE6  |(e€ 0pE'ES) 00°9Z2'%1LS 19'58Z°09% SANNIAIY [EI0L
CATRA] TFeENF  DoeIpotoS |V iv9cEl  U0Csemie  IGol0zas  |(10E960Z 00°260°35% XTI $334 yasn (el
%EE'ES 09'kE€T 008627 0029y 0V 9y (4] 00°€€C 0ztee JONVHNSNI NN INNAYES
%61 €8 52616 000656} 5202 00'065'Z 0192 081y 00'62' 08'90€"} JONVHNSNI SS07 ANMAYIS
%2 €8 26929} 00256'L £9¢ 00'92¢ €9'eE 86°} 00794 86694 3NNIATY NINGY INNAYES
%86 V8 05'994'¢ 00'80€"2 00'812'L 05174} 00'609 SThrE ANNIATY 334 HI4SNVAL
%46 19 00ZLL'6 00ZLLYh 00ZI0'El  00°009' 007156 00'009' $334 NOILOANNOD
%05 L8 00'0ey 00°08Y 0008 00'09 000 00'0F 000F §334 %103HO NUNLIY
%¥9GL 1E'19z'L 00°009'6 69'862 00009’ 69°8EE'T 0008 00008 00058 SIDUVHO IDIAYIS
%4928 £ PaL'2E 00'02Y'2t 00'020°2 16'652'G 00'5ES'E 18'1£9°T $334 439N NO S3ILTYNAd
%PE'8L 8572198 0000004k | Z¥seL 0000162 Tr'STs'ee v§ Ly 00006'6 5 L2E°01 NOILANNSNOD TWIQHININOD
%EE'EY i pv'eL 00'ZEL'¥6 950 00'689°'GL 95689} 00'G¥8'L 818’2 NOILO3LONd Tl TWIQHINNOD
%EEES Y6'0BE'E0E  00°950'%9€ 0002909  90'529'09 00°'8€€°0¢ £526€'08 TVIDYIANOD - $334 H3sN
%82 €8 06'720'28 00'vBY'YOL | 0L'SS 00PLYLL  OLBOYLL 5522 00'204'8 SGvEL'8 NOILO3L0¥d Tyl TVIENIAISTY
%0€" L9 Eresy'sy 00'000°22 00'089'1E  LGOVS'EC 00'095°1 1°006'6 NOILJWNSNOD € ¥aLL T¥ILNIQISTY
%92'89 98'9GL 0y 00'000'89 0009L'se  SVERTIT 00°026'Z4 58'880°01 NOILJWNSNOD Z d3IL TYILNIAISTY
%ELLL eUeeL'sse  00000'62E 0005228  LT9LTEL 00°08¥'6E L9Zor'PE NOILJWNSNOD | ¥3IL TWILNIAISTY
%EY €8 0VPY'S9L'e  00ZE6'E6LE 00Z¢E2€  06'¥BY'BC9 00'LOL'9lE 6T VET PIE TVILNIAISTY - $334 133N
$334 ¥3sn
%6v'98 SV8pLThe  00'86z'96c  |(eL0z‘er)  oo'esziL8  sg'eps'es |(zi9le'ze) 0062195 82°764'5Z SNOANVTIIOSIN [EI0L
%1789 BLOWELL 00°05€°5¢ TCSBLE 0wy 2c 6008 [y41%4 000cy INNIATY ¥IHLO
%EEES 00'529 00054 00°005 00'52} 00057 00'52h 334 MIIATY NV
o1 i0c1s s Useo ad SBUeLD LONEOOle 511 @ feben O 9B SCTBLOET  006HSHE WSS SIS 0w BT SLNINLSIANI NO LSIHALNI
%00°00% 00°000'G2 00'000'6Z 00000'sc 000 00'000'52 000 LNVHO Yd3 304N0S LNIOd NON L€
SNOANVTI3ISIN
SINNAATY
Buurewioy aouelep 1ebpng [ouBleA |enjoy  |aoueuep jebpng  3e6png lemoy
S310N _Shwmhum._an_ uumvzm |ejol GZAd [e10l uum—.:m alA uomu-_m atr 1B3) JUaLINg | pouldd Jusuny) pouad jualing) pouad juaung AONV QZDn— M_m._.<>>

14vidd

S202/1LE/8 USnolyl SZ0Z/1/8 woig
SIUNLIANIAX3 Pue SINNIAIY JO INFWILVLS
1D141SI1d LNFWIA0OHdWI TVHINTO AHNISONDI




¥ 98eg

WV LO9TTT STOT/H/TT 938

%.£°68 926892} 00'081'G1 9/G 000652 A 4T 00'592'} 61'962') INOHJ313L
%8866 £5'166'9 00°000' £5°26)°) 00'994 ' Jig VZ'LLS 0089 6.6 $1001 TIVWS/SAdNS dOHS
%2296 99'650' 00081 99'650') 00'081°) ve0Tk 99'648 00°000' ¥e0Z) $3IOUVHD NOILYOINaNd
%8y v8 L60LL'S 00'092' 16019 00'099'} £0'650't 000 00020t 39V150d
%918 arTHe'L 00'669'6 vE0r 00002 Y5962 €286 00002 [Z'109 $334 ANV SLIWY3d
%6068 98'628'} 00'6£2'Ch 98'29. 002187 PLBPY'L o 00°904° 9oL’ $31ddNgS 301440
%0058 00°008'S} 00'000'g} 00°00€ 00°000' 000022 000 00°005°1 00°008"} VIRMOLINVT 301440
%3076 718026 000000} v1'8/8 00'029') 98162 6969 00°€E8 £0'9€} STUNLIANIAXT SNOINYTTZOSIN
%09'16 00'8% 00'005 00'802 00052 00k 00094 0009} 000 $334NaN
%00°004 00'000'0E 00°000°08 000 000 000 000 000 000 LNIVA 8 dIVdTY 313N
%08 86 17028y 00°000'GH 1y0z8'L 00'000'8 €561 000 000 00'0 SLuYd AHOLNIANI
%0000} 00°00S 00008 000 000 000 000 000 000 INTNAIND3 ALAAVS
%L1 9L T7'196'91 00'€92'50L | Z#'889') 00'056'68  89°L0E'88 00°225't 00'0¥S'} SANOE aNY SONVHNSNI
%01 58 T8z 00'8¥5'%} raLl 006162 £L191Z £6'vET 006y 20081 JSNIdX3 ALRIND3S
%158 £2°568'L 00'5+2'6 £L6LL 00'625'+ 126VE°) 00297 V0bLy TVINTY INIWCINDT
%EE 68 LRy 00'061'9} 7L99V'S 000614 LrAYAN 98'L02'S 00'000°9 L2l SulvdId INIYW/ST NS 'dIND3
%229 IBEED'D 00'999'6 166797 002828 60'2£9° VoL 00'62 62°€9 SNOILJIMISENS 8 $3Na
%399 6C9CLYY 0019202 0019222 LLYES'ST 8y'L66 00'L92'Y 79'eze's 3SNIdXT HILNDNOD
%LL 76 19°690'%L 0065871 L9'689° 005242 £€'68L Y8ELL 00'8€2°} 9L'tZ8 *INIVW NV SHIvdTd ONIgTINg
%22 €8 LLBYE'rY 00'062'6S 000888 £8'16'8 00°0bY'y €868y S3I0UVHI YNVE
%00°00} 00'926°} 00'926'c1 000 00°0 000 00'0 000 000 $1630 Qve
%98°06 1169902 0006222 VoL 00262 62°080C 8y'ShL 00'969'} 25064} ONIATAYNS B ONIYIINIONT
%00°001 00°0v'L 0002 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOILYILODIN HOaY1 1¥9T1
%b9¥6 55'606'0E 00°000'6¢ 55607y 00'005' 70607 16'10ET 00082 60'8v6 w931
%00°001 00°070'8¢ 00°0v0'8€ 00'956°0)  009S6°0L 000 00'629'% 00629t 000 ONILNNODOV
$3SNIdX3 ONILYYIdO
%86°88 YE'9C0'SZE'L  00°226'08Y'L | $6'I6K'YR  00'Z8E'BKT  90°0B8'E9L | ZTWO0'LY 00'£94'12) 82'86008 $ISNIdX3 QILVIIH TI0NAYd [E30L
%60°ZL 0£'6VT 05067 ISNIdX3 ONYMOTTV ¥YO
%yE L 18826'C 00'002° 188LL 00°009' £1128 000 89246 $3ISNIAXT TIOHAV ¥3HIO
00'000°E 1 _ 000442 G881l 829167 00'€80°) ISNIdXA IAVIT GANUDOV
%0188 A 00'0£9°0% +Z'666') 00'822'9 9,868 79'696 00686 8EBLYT 3SNAdX3 8340
%518 98'SELL 0092’8 962927 00'7LE% P L9l 000 05687 SWHOLINN
%0000} 00'666'2 00°'666'2 00'Z€€'} 00ZEL") 000 00'999 00999 000 SLI43NIE INFWAOTIWINN
%6076 LOThYL 00'916'2 19'66€ 00148 £eLLY 258.€ 00'96€ 87'Ll SIS - SL4ANIE IIA0TINI
n_.__:_uEum_ Jduelep ucmusm aoduelep |enjoy aduelep «oa—.:m ~cmu=m |enpy
S3loN _smﬂ“”ma g 19Bpng je10L  SzAd 1eioL [106png A "8 QLA oy uauing | powed ueng pouieq eLng pouag jusung (02) aNN4 H3LYM

14vdd

G20Z/1€/8 YSnoiyl G20Z/1L/8 Woid
SIYNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATY JO LNIJWILVYLS
1D141S1d LINTFWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AUNGSONIDI




s =deqg

WV LO9T 1T §TOZ//TT 01ed

%ME'L8 (o5 2v6'r1e'y)  (00'10z'2ve't) | 0s'L29'2e (oogze'vas)  (0gese'zeo) | ee'ebe'ol (00°298'¢6¢) (r9°218228) STAUNLIANIAXI ¥IA0 INNIATY $S30X3
€6 P8 §07009088  O0BIGROCOL | 90TC0F0F  Q0Ges099T FECISCOS T | BOGRT el 00°c60'306 T esl STUNLIANAAX3 [eioL
EATZ 1WeeoT9s 00 PP P9I |(BRGELEE)  DOES96E8  GBOBLO6E | TG VEB MY 007929695 8166'228 SISNIdX3 YIHLO oL
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 1388V 40 S0dSIa NO NIVD/SSO1
%87'S8 79'951'990'6  00'92L'926'S 00'000'008  8Y'695°098 | LLTOVIK 00000055 £2'268'805 AVILNO VLIdYD
%68 65°969'661 00GLB'LEC | 6G'EEH') 00'€59'6€ L¥'BLZ'8E SL1eL 00'928'61 ST ¥60'61 3SNIdXT LSTHALNI
$3ASNIdXT ¥3HIO
%29'18 WSIP02ZT  00'0S5°02LT | 10'SO9'BZ  00°008'S2S  GEPEL00S | S6°066'LY 00'b0L'LIZ SO°ELL'SLL SASNIdX3 ONILVYIO [e10L
%VaC8 BESITS6L T 00899ZhT 0082 19C5C15¢C 00'6E9°0CH §86E9GCE 3SNIdXT NOLLYIOFYAIA
%EE'ES 88'562'9 00'651'8 88°0 00°09€E"L 7V'65€E' 0 00089 95649 SANOE 40 NOILYZILHOWY
%09'9. 10'G91'e9 00'95+'28 00°ThLEl 6606261 8E'95. Y 004289 97T dX3 WILSAS LNIWLYIYL HILYM
%Ye 86 79'EEE'sL 0000222 79'€85' L 00°056'2} 8€'99€'L 18°591'9 00'S2'9 £1'60€ ISNIdXT WALSAS LSIA HILYM
%810k 00°€88't 00°005'g} 00'€88' 00°005'8% 00°2b9'0} 000 000 000 INFWOYNYIN GIHS HIMISAILYM
%G558 00°ZH0'6H 00'€85"2} 00'16E 00286 00'4¥52 00152 00'99¢'1 00°GL2 ONITINYS/ONIZOLINOW HALYM
%98'96 5£'020'€9 00'790'59 GE'008'8 00°v¥8'0L S9'EN0'Z YOv2e’s 0072y 96'46 WBY dX3 H3A
%v6'S6 02TV LLL 0082022} 90'16E'Sk 004E'07  ¥6'956'Y 86'69¢'8 0061’01 20'€08'} ddNSIOMANA dX3 F10IHIA
%0.78 Wpi0'2z  00Z0S'v/e 10'651'04 0029'2S 6687y £9219C 00°202'12 1y¥60'22 DIMLD313 8 SV - SALMILN
%EE'ES 00'005'22 00°000'22 000 000057 00008t 000 00'052' 000522 $334 331SNAL
%0000} 00°v0v'el 00'Y0V'EL 00'¥E22 0022 000 00°ZLH) 00°2LL'Y 000 T3IAVHL
%89'¢6 Ov'SIS'Ie 00'896'22 0v'SLET 00'828'€ 09°25¥'} 02'188' 00Fi6'L 08z SUYNIWIS GNY ONINIVHL
Buuteway aoueLep j1obpng asueLep lenjoy  |esueuep 39bpng  396png {empoy
SILON _S“Mﬂ“”whwn_ «amu:m 12301 SZAd B0l ummv_._m alA umwv_-m awm 13 A JUaLN)| poudd Juaungd polidd juadnd pouad jualind AONv QZ:n_ Im._.<>>

14vVid

SZ0Z/1LE/8 USnoayl SZ0zZ/1L/8 wold

SIUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY JO INJWILVLS
10141S1d INSWIAOUdWI TVHINID AHNISOND




9 afeq

NV L0:92- 11 STOT/H/TT =1ed

%8'96 ov'vI8'el 00'005'61 0P ¥95T 00082'€ 09689 L607') 00'529' £Z5LY 931
%00°001 00°020'61 00'020'6} 00'L25's 00 LLY'S 000 00°6EE'Z 00'6£€'Z 000 ONILNNODOY
$3SN3dX3 ONILYYZdO
%G168 TEIBLEYE  000Z9'SSE | Z6¥E0IZ  O0'EL8'Z9 s0'8E8ly | 00°MS'LL 00S6E°LE 0058'61 SISNIdX3 QILYT1IY TIONAV [E30L
%88L 099 00%SH 3SNIXI IONYMOTTV ¥YD
%ET L8 JIR: ) 00°005 1181 0078 £9'€9 00'L¥ BE9 SISNIdXT TIOHAYd ¥IHLO
%.L6°5T 69880t 00°000'7 00999 11962 108 00°€EE £5782 3SN3dX3 IAVIT 0INHI0Y
%116 9L'¥E9'9l 00°06¥'2L 91'850' W06z ¥9'558 80°620' 0025t} 6220 3SN3dX3 8340
%0209 0588 00251 057l 008’ 05'65 000 000 000 SWHO4INN
%00'00} 00°966' 00966' 00866 00°866 000 00°667 00°66% 000 SLI43NIE LNFWAOTIWINN
%2062 £6'64L 00°286 00'804 00102 10r 00°6% £6' SIIS - $1143N38 FIA0TINT
%Lv'26 Se118'YS 009/2'65 SIS 00'8/8' SOVoY'Y €095} 00'6€6'Y 167818 SY3d - $1143N3F IIAOTINT
%6868 LoveeL 00'969'08 LpI6'S 000020 68'551'8 £5250' 00'SE0'9 17786 SNI "G3W - SLI43IN39 3IA0 TN
%82'98 10’8062 00'¥62'€ 1079} 00'8¥S 66°58¢ 668 00927 Sresl DI0INYOI4 - S1143NIE JA0 TN
%LLV8 9EEHI6Y 00'795'85 96'668 00'092' ¥9026' 8y'68¢ 00088'Y 7506ty 301440 - TI0HAVd
%bg'69 YOSYB'9LL  000ZL'SSL | ¥0'SE9’S 0009857 96'%2Z'9) 99°105's 000862l ATAN] YIOVNYIN - TIOHAVd
S3SNIdX3 Q3LYTI3Y TI0¥AVd
SUNLANIIXT
%S1'E8 YT L280LLY 00085250 00S9V'0SE  92°292°9%¢ 00°050'6) LVVSLELL SINNIATY leroL
%1es vesesTogl 0018681 00F7IG06 99288918 00Ger 09} BZEEHS $334 ¥3sn eioL
%eL V8 00TIE 0029¢ 00219 00195 0090¢ 05%62¢ INNIATY 334 YIASNVL
00009' 0000+ 00°00¥'2 00008'Y 00'009'€ 00°002'} 00'008' $334 NOILOINNOD
%0E'16 19SSl 0009271 00092 61782') 00°082') 18429 $334 ¥ISN NO SIILTYNId
%TE¥E X Ts'Le 000Z1'eE 00%29'9 8276)' 00TUE'E 019052 NOILAWNSNOD TYIDHIWNOD
%EEES 09'1E0'SE 00'8E0'TH oro 00°900'2 0r'900'2 020 00'€05' 07'€05' TVIOYIANOO - S334 SN
%806, 02°9/8'02 00'00'92 00ZHS 08625' 0022y 0Z'$06 NOILIWNSNOD | ¥3IL TYILNIAISTY
%YEER IS/969F' ) 00'L6L'9GL') 0000/2767  6v'¥5262 00°05€‘9¥ 25°9P2'9vL TYILNIQIS3Y - $335 ¥asn
$334 ¥3sN
%02E8 06'826'bl 00608241 (0602 0015662 0108862 | 89'LL 00's26'7} 8992671 SNOANVTTIOSIN (101
%00°00F 00005 007005 0078 000 (%3 000 INNIAZY ¥3IHLO
%00'Z 00528 00005 00007 005zl 00054 00621 334 MIINTY NYTd
%L1'€8 05€S0'k  00B0B'9ZL | 04982 00B9K'6Z  0L'SGL6Z | 89U 00PEL'YY 8911871 SINIWLSIANI NO LSTMILNI
SNOANVTIZOSIN
SANNIAIY
Buureway aouepep Jebpng eouBUEA |emoy  |eduenep jefpng  19Bpng |enyoy
SaloN i o o OEPE [0 SZAd oL [196pn QLA 98P18 LA g0, uauing)| poUsd WaLND PowOd ALY POLe WL (o£) aNnd ¥aMas

14vid

ST0T/LE/8 USnoiyL 5202/ 1/8 woid
SITUNLIANIdX3 pue SINNIATY 30 LNIWILVLS
1001d1S10 INFJWIAOHdIWI TYHINIO AHNESONDI




L @8eq

WV LO9TTT $T0T/H/TT 2eq

(11°629'209)

%bL 08 (o0ero'zsy) | weie'ss  (oo'sez'ell)  (e8wE'tyl) | p1E92D 00'918°L6 162086 STUNLIANIJXT ¥3A0 INNIATY 530X
058 §roocaice 008tcolge | 5E0C06E 0085l6es SoLElTer | T6ESSL [[iZi4%] §0S96L SIUNLIANIAXT 1esoL
%1666 $9582°208 00997205 | ¥96ISS 00°000°9 92°08F 96T 0070009 $0ESe $ISNIdXT ¥IHLO lejoL
%1666 v958¢ 205 0099L°205 v961GS 0070009 9087 96°97LS 000009 ¥0€5e AVILNO WLIdYD

SISNIAX3 YIHLO

%86°9L GLTEY' LML 00'TS8'0M6'L | BL'SOV'LE o0'sss‘osy  LzeIvery  |(66702.%) 00°6£8'st 66°296°GS $ISNIXA ONILVYILO le1oL
%86 8 WZE918 007ZEv96 00907 90 6666291 00028 SI16E8 ISNIAXT NOILYIDTMIA
%EL'98 LE'9LE'0T 00'SZr'€T LE0LB'L 00'616'F 69801 59'656 008042 sesyl'l 010313 B SYO - SALMILN
%EE'E8 00°05Z'11 00005'€k 000 00'052' 000522 000 00'GZH't 00°szZL'L $334 33LSNAL
%0000} 00°Z9r'e 0029 00945 00928 000 00882 00882 000 T3AVYL
%8566 0v'6v8'S 00'728'S 0v'€S6 00'826 09'%2 ov'voy 00°687 0972 SUYNINIS ANY ONINIVHL
%96'€8 120"} 00269’} 1201 0022 6'19¢ AR 00°9EL 98°0¢1 INOHJI1AL
%06'G6 vL'60L'2 000022 PL66Y 00065 92'06 vL60F 00°005 9z 06 $39YVHI NOILYOITENd
%81 '¥8 59022 00°02Y'y 59'9E 009¢2 GE'669 000 00089 3OV1S0d
%19'92 00'80} 00°s0Y 00'80L 00°S0% 00°262 000 000 00'0 $33d4 ANV SLINY3d
%6948 ZE'180'9 00'5€6'9 Ze0e 00'SSH'L 89658 00825 Bl'7.9 $31ddNs 301440
%00'58 00089'L 00°000'6 00054 00°005't 00°05€'L 000 00052 00°052 IVIHOLINYF 301440
%89'€6 YO¥OL'G 00'€51'9 v0'Se9 00'720' 96'88¢ 16y 00215 €089 SIINLIAONIX3 SNOINVTIZOSIN
%00°001 00°008 00008 00°00$ 00005 000 000 000 00°0 SLHvd AHOLNIANI
%56'L v s 00'888'2¢ Ov'¥tS 0088822 09'€KE'LZ 000 000 000 SANOE aNY IONVHNSNI
%al"LL £20S2'S 007089 000841 LLe5S'L 0z'6€ 00°0ES 08'06% ISNIIXI ALIMNDIS
%EZ'98 5z l62'e 00'928' A 00089 CTRTA 0008 L2l TYANTY INFWIND3

-9 B 9beyiA soye ] Buiysn) o1pAH Buigwinid LWINS | %} 6. 61°9810L) 00°0%0'SHe 00°0v8'5E 1BESR by 00°026'2} 71'909'GE SYIVdIY LNIVW/SAAdNS "dIND3
%6189 18 00'1E6'7 7’8857 00°2rL'y 95°€S5' ¥e'9 00'8¢ 99'LE SNOILJIIDSANS  $3na
%L0'69 Z00LLS) 00'98°ke 00°006'Y 86920 WS 000022 65'889' 3SNIdX3 Y3LNIWNOD
%9E 66 yIWArAT 00'6LY'LE L1'PE0'S 00'9€2'S £8'102 159082 00'819' eriil "INIVA ONY S¥IVd3d ONIaTINg
%7PL'€8 82'86€'6C 00°09€'se 00268 7Z'196'S 00'9r6' 78'690' SIDUVHD MNYE
%0000} 00'¥82'6 00'782'6 000 000 000 000 000 000 sig3aave
%01'6L 0S¥EP'y9€e  QO'OyC'sey | 0566k 00'LbE' L 0SLI8'0ZL | 000 000 000 SLNIWSSISSY ¥S1100
%00'G. 62'692'9E9 00'65e'st8 | §Z0 000060'ZLC  5.680Tke [ 000 000 000 0% W VLvd-0ud vS110d
%9.'06 8v'20€'6 00°05Z'0} 8v'09. 00'80L' 75'1¥6 0058 75°L¥6 ONIAIAMNS B ONIYIINIONT
%0000} 008012 008042 000 000 000 00'0 000 000 SNILYILOD3N HOav1 vo31

Buureway aoueliep 1ebpng aoueliep |emoy  |esuenep 39bpng  3aBpng |enjay
S3LON _Shw.mu““”_on_ uomv-_m |ejol GZAd €0l uwmu_._m ala ummv_..m an JB2) JUBLINY| POLIdd JuUdlINg POl Judlnd poliad juaund AOﬂu QZ—.-H— ﬂm;mm

14vVda

§Z0Z/LE/8 YsnoiyL G20/ 1L/8 Wwouad
SIUNLIANIdX3I pue SANNIAIY JO INTJWILVIS
10141S1d LNFWIAOUdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




g afed

WY LOS9T T STOT/P/TL e

%028 10'2eY 00008 L0 LEY 00°00S 6629 000 66'29 ONIAIAYNS ¥ ONIYIINIONT
%00°001 o0ove't 0002’} 000 00°0 000 000 00°0 000 SNOILYILODAN HOAY1 1v931
d4Y [BrOWEY MOUS|% )7L 9168 00052 000¥5 #9'858' 00'0£2 86'087'1 WO
9%00°00} 00021 00°0LL'e 00°€16 00°€L6 000 00°06€ 00'06¢ 000 ONILNNOD2Y
S3ISNIdX3 ONILYYIJO
%29°18 05'299'zvc  O0'ESB'9ZZ | 0G'VZSLE  00'GMB'SY  0S'06Z%E e0TIY'e 00°029'22 el $3SN3dX3 03LVTI3Y TI0HAVd [El0L
O/AIC# 0850¢ 000 08500 000 0S¢ 000 ISNIdXT JIONYMOTIY HVD
%08'96 96'296 00000' 96'SEL 00'891 Y0'Ze €0'es 008 BLE S3ASNIdX3 TIO¥AYd H3HLO
%15'€T SL0Ly 00000 0076 §8'625't 00'991 av'8le 3SNIdX3 IAVTT Q3INYO0Y
%E5'96 20'266°0k 00'76€'H1 z0'€08'} 00'968' 86'76E 15162 00'6%6 6 /61 3SN3dX3 8340
%¥6'29 £E'6vL 00'€04't €e' /61 0055 L9'e5E 000 1899} SWHO4INN
%00°001 00'866' 00'866' 00'86 00'86% 000 00'6v2 00'6¥2 000 SLI43N38 LNIWAOTININN
%G8 68 8a'TyL'L 002t 8801 00°0%} ZL'6z) L1162 0079 €e SIIS - SLI4INTE IFA0TINI
%G1'Z6 86°L9L'9E 00'1¥Z'6e 8609%'¢ 00°0¥5°9 20'6.0'¢ 768811 0002'¢ 01807 S¥3d - SLIH3INIE IIA0TINI
%98'S8 SLLYS'eS 00'Z9€'29 51666 000926 58'028' £2°020' 00°088'¥ 11'658'€ SNI (3N - SLI4AN3E 33A0TdNI
%888 1£'202'2 00'68¥'2 LE'2ZL 00'thy 69'08C ¥'99 00202 9507t 0I3N/YOIS - SLIFANTE FIA0TINT
%LL¥8 v 618'7C 00°082'62 ZA 007088y 92 09"y v 61 00°0t¥'2 A A 301440 - TI0YAVd
%PE'S8 IrszLey 00'8ET'1S Zrez0't 00'865'8 BGZI6"2 99°95% 00'692"Y YEZI8'E JONYNILNIVA - TIOHAYd
%268 9/°089'79 00'8/6'7L oL'86L'Yy 0096024 21682 ¥5'095'2 00'8t0'9 9v'16'€ HYIOYNYI - TIOHAYd
$3ISNIdX3 431V TI0¥AVd
STUNLIANIdXT
%0928 85°1E6'689  O00'MOK'0E8 | ZH1L00 00'86£'8€)  TV'e9F'VPL | ST'9L6'T 00°661°69 STSLLeL S3ANNIAIY le10L
%I €8 BLTHISeS  00¢eltes |(BruEd) 00296'9€F  Z6t99er  |(zocn) 0018189 LT $334 ¥3SN (0L
%2. 78 05¢ET 000297 00022 0577 00GEd Szior 3INNIAIY 33 YIISNVAL
%E7 68 IB'16T Y 00'018'Y 00008 €015 00°00% £2°952 $334 ¥3SN NO $AILTYNAL
%EE'ES 00°0v¢'25 00'889'89 000 00'8tY' b 008K L1 000 00¥2L' 00722’ TVIDYINNOD - $334 433N
%PEES IE'9ETTZ9  00799'0PL 00vr'YZL  69'5ehvTl 0022229 06'561'79 IVIIN3AISTY - $334 ¥3sn
$334 338N
%G8 08°88L 00°619' 02'v6e’D 00°98r'L 0Z°058'2 LreLL's 00'81L 10168 SNOANVTIIOSIN lej0L
%0000F 00002 00002 00T 000 0090 000 INNIATY ¥IHLO
01 62/08/0 uonisod ysed sad s6UELD LoYeooyE %, sm%m %66'9 08'88% 00'61¥'8 029219 00'70¥'} 0Z'068'2 LISBL'E 00204 10°168'¢ SINTWLSIANI NO LSTHILNI
SNOANVTIZOSIN
S3ANNIATY
S310N mﬂw:m_””hmwz souRLIEA y9bpng QOUBUBA e qua (BT |acuene jebpng  jebBpng [enjoy (09) 3INN3ATY
€10) JUs3194 196png [eJo]  GZAd (2301 [39Bpng LA Jea), Juauing | pouad Jualing  poliad Jusung pousd uaund|  qwi03ds TVAOIWIY MONS

14vad

S202Z/1€/8 USNoIuL §20Z/1/8 woid

STHUNLIANIdXT pue SINNIATY 40 INJWILVIS
10141810 LINFJWIAOHWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDI




6 @8egd

WV LOS9TTT STOT/F/TL =ied

%ELBLL (0g'gse’zle)  (00'b09°2z8) | 08'9LL'EZ OO MMOLL  08'LSL'Y6 $6'666°H1 00°029'8¢ $6'699'05 STANLIANIIXT ¥IA0 INNIAZY §830X3
T%EC 96 JTO6LTOcT  O0C00CStT WSO | O00L5E8 9ROV 0IE20% 00625 08 0ES05 e SUNLIANIAAX3 [eJoL
%666 £6°085°ECH 00°Z89°€21 E66H L 00005F 2008 WIS 00005F %47 SASNIdXT YIHLO [er0L
%6 66 T6985tcr  00799%€cr | E6GHT T 00005+ 1008 2L 00005+ []¥47 AVILNO WLIdvD
$ISNIdX3 YIHLO
%6€86 S60V0'I66  00'ZBE'TSE | S600L'Y 00Z¥00z  SOTMESH SE'ISHE 00°50%'9 SILIsT's SASNIAX3 ONILYNILO IEI0L
%1666 EYRS7A 00°852El §I561C 00802C A are0F 00%0FT wel WY dX3 HIA
%56'G6 1£T99'%) 00°092'GL LE'926') 002452 €9°219 05°240') 00'L2') 05'€7¢ ddNSMI0Mand dx3 310IH3IA
%8V’ 16 66'52S 00628 6612 00'12h L6y 8£'82 00'Z$ [4:3%4 2MHLOTTA B SYD - SALILN
9%EEL'€R 00628’} 000527 000 00'§2€ 00°G28 050 00'881 05'/81 $334 33LsSNYL
%00°00} 00¥86'L 00'¥86' 00088 00'0€€ 00'0 00'591 00'594 000 T3AVHL
%E0'L6 §6'298') 00250 56°261 002E SO'¥8L 02851 00'LLL 0eeL SHYNINAS ANY ONINIVIL
%66'€8 90'9E} 00291 900 0002 16'SZ £0°0 00°€} 1621 ANOH4ITAL
"[eAOWIBY MOUS d A IUBWIASIBADY | %Ly O 52719 00618} 00'82Z 5706 0092 61206 SFOUYHO NOILYOMand
%S0°E8 LIS 00°028' 00°00€ 75°80€ 00°0 00°00€ 30V1S0d
%65'26 09819 00'899 058l 00'89 0567 000 000 000 $334 ANV SLIWY3d
%eLYL 8E'€S0'} 00°€") 00'822 79°64€ 00thl 10'€682 $3MddN$ 301440
%00'58 00'62°} 00005 0062 00'062 00622 000 00521 0052} TVRIOLINYT 301440
%02'86 LO'667'S 00009's 10°€€8 00'7E6 66°001 19'S5y 00°29% ge'Ll $3UNLIANIXT SNOINYTIZOSIA
%0000} 00°001 00°00} 00'S7 00'62 000 000 000 000 INJFNINDT AL3IVS
%06' £5'88 00'879'y £€5'88 00'8Y9'y 1y655'Y 000 000 000 SONOA ANY FONVHNSNI
%116 98'22¢ 00052 8Ll 00°0% 122 6271 0002 V2L ISNIXI ALIMND3S
%00°00} 00°000'0} 00°000'04 00°0 000 000 000 000 000 SNOIS 8 $7001 ‘S3ddns 4134
%1878 9/°¢E6 00'104'} T 00°002 ¥Z'291 [P 0062 6.'€2 TVANTH INTFNDIND3
%00°004 00'004 00°001 0052 00'6Z 000 000 000 00'0 SUIVATY INIVIWISTANdNS ‘dIND3
%bE 9 80°/9 00922 80'11E 00025 76'852 000 Vras SNOILAIMOSANS B $3NA
%E0'29 ¥B98L'E 00%5L'y 00'62Z' 919"} 8566 00052 Zr el ISNIXT HILNAWOD
%8066 U580y 00°068'y [AN:7) 00708 82'r 62°7L¢ 00°20% 1262 INIVIV ONY SHIVd3d ONIGTING
%yl €8 90'046'21 00°009'G} 000097 ¥6'629' 00°00€'} 95756 STIDUVHO HNVE
%00'001 00'960'Y 00'960'7 00°0 000 000 000 000 000 slg3aava
0/AIO# 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONID! JA/NLNY TYAONIY MONS
%00°001 00°000'6Z 00°000'G2 000 00°0 000 000 000 000 ONIANYS - TVAOWIY MONS
%00°004 000006, 0000062 | 000 00°0 000 000 000 000 ONIMOd - TYAOWTY MONS
S310N uw_w_m””hmmz asueLep 196png 20uBLIEA — |[emoy  |aoueuep jebpng  jebpng |enjoy (09) INN3A3Y
€10 U923 jobpng jejol GZA4 [e30L |396png QLA Je3) JUaLINY | PoLIdG JUSLND  POHAd JUaLINY polad Waun)| w103 dS TVAOWIH MONS

14vdd

S202/1L€/8 USnolyL SZ0T/1/8 Woid
STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATH JO LNFWILVYLS
10141S1d INTFWIAOUdWI TVHINIO AUNTSONDI




01 98eq

WV LO9T T STOT/P/TL e

%£1°699 86'269'87 00'026°SS (86°798) 00'Z¥8'L WuTL 00'496'S PGISS SIUNLIONIAX3 ¥IAO ANNIATY §539X3

V816l o4 25 WIelv (G9Z8E) 00256 8 SOPEES o0EEre peeoleT STUNLIANIAX3 (2101

%9161 SETOVSE 00267 S9¢3E 002568 SITECS 00EEYT (733T¥4 SASNIdX3 ONILVHILO [e10L

%20 68 Ly e0e St 0016+ ZE 007801 t5788°T 00918 010z6 01410313 8 S¥D - SALMILN

%0000} 00'00¥ 00°00% 00°00L 0000} 000 000 000 000 $31ddNS 301440

%EE'€8 00'000'6 00'008'0} 000 00'008' 00'008'} 00006 00°000') TVIMOLINYI 301440

%LY8 86'216' 00°000°2 86'8L 00'994'} Z0'280') 00'€88 15°085 STUNLIANIAXT SNOINYTIZISIN

%86') 1892 00'98L° yi:§7] 00'08L'€ LINAVS 000 000 00°0 SANOE GNY FONVHNSNI

%ET'S8 0528} 00022 05°€ 00'9E 0426 SoL 0081 A} TYINTH INFNING3

%00°001 00°007 00'007 00002 00'002 000 000 000 000 SUIVAIH/ LNIV/SIAdNS "dINO3

%L9°E8 £9°€8LY 00°000' €51 008 918 4321 009k BO'MYT "INIVW ONY SdIVdad ONIQTING

$3ISNIdX3 ONILYHIdO

STUNLIANIdXT

%1568 €E'GSL'YR 00°292'00  |(eczal) 00v6'9L  29Mb'9L  [(z921L) 00'26¢'8 8¢'6/2'8 SANNIATY 10101

%15T8 TESEITE 00792°00F  [(Eczel) 007eL9F 91199 @9l 00°26E8 86178 SNOINVYTIISIN &0l

%ISE8 §CS5IT8 007Z9200% 00v6L9F 911991 00Z6E8 A JNOONI YINTY

SNOINVTIIOSIN
S3ANNIATY
Sa10N m.“_u.__m_”“_ms_ oousyen  aBpng | eouepen oo . oy | coweneAwBpng  bpng femoy (08) VAN
JEI0) JUB219g Smu_._m epL QZAd 1ol ummuzm alA Jed ) juaung pouad juaLing pouagd jualn)  poLied jusun) maémv >ﬂDmeZ_V_ me

14vid

SZ0Z/LE/8 Ysnoiyl GT0Z/L/8 woid
SIHUNLIANIdX3 pue SINNIATFYH J0 LNIWILVIS
10141S1A INTFWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNGSONIDA




SIHENLIANIdX3 ANV
JNN3IATH 40 LNIWILVLS

‘NOILISOd HSVO
S¢0¢ H38W31d3S






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

FUND

GENERAL FUND
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT)
G_ENERALNVESTMENT o

GF TOTAL

WATER FUND

RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT)

WATER INVESTMENT

KGID/TRPA RESTRICTED (STATION 4 8MPS)

DIST DEBT RESERVE

TREAT DEBT RESERVE

CAP IMPROV. RESERVE
- WF TOTAL

SEWER FUND -

RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLAGEMENT)

SEWER INVESTMENT N

SF TOTAL

SNOW REV. FUND
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT)
SNOW INVESTMENT

SNOW TOTAL

298 KINGSBURY GRADE RENTAL
80 RENTAL TOTAL

GRAND TOTALS

CHECKING
US BANK
US BANK MMA
'MORTON CAPITAL MMA
4.25% FIRST FNDTN BANK
4.70% FLAGSTAR BANK
5.10% MORGAN STANLEY BANK
5.20% BANK HAPOALIM NEW YORK
4.00% NORTHEAST BANK CD
4.60% JP MORGAN CHASE
4.40% WASHINGTON FED BANK

LOCAL GOVT POOLED 4.2703439%

GRAND TOTALS

Y 9 'GENERAL 46%
CASH POSITION 'WATER 28%
'SEWER 21%
SEPTEMBER 2025 'SNOW 5%
BEGINNING ENDING
BALANCE _ TRANSFERS ADJUST. RECEIPTS CHECKS BALANCE
$ 7987,368.79 |$ 92,1706 | $§  (129.47)| $ 561,121.67 |$  (614,650.42)| § 8,025,880.83
$ 43010821 |$  12,905.06 | $ - - |8 - |$ 44301327
$ 82676022 | $ (105,075.32)| $ - |$ 3224428 - |$  724909.32
- $ 9,193,803.42
$ 394767082 |8  3,992.07 (8 (33.86)| $ 461,381.67 |$  (525,799.96)| § 3,887,210.74
$ 69746494 |%  16,629.40 | $ - |8 - |8 - |$  714,004.34
$ 840,883.71 | $ (206,390.34) $ - |$ 2018638 |$ - |$ 636,500.75
$ 4543000 (% - |8 - |8 - |3 - |$  45430.00
$ 146,795.09 |$  73,772.36 | $ - |8 - |8 - |$ 22056745
$ 22285499 |$ 111,996.51 | § - |8 - |$ - [$ 33485150
$ - |8 - |8 - |8 - |8 - |$ -
$ 5,838,663.78
$ 390958831 |$ 8197200 [$ 12226 |$ 17309469 |$  (46,44456)| $ 4,118,332.79
$ 1781672 |$ 672.81 | § - |8 - |8 - |$ 1848953
$ 449,833.69 |$  (82,644.90) $ 1,357.19|§ - |$ 36854598
$ 4,505,368.30
$ 68434930 [$  (6,670.43)| $ 4107 |$ 7070378 | § (20,079.10)| $  728,344.62
$ 21909775|% 673241 % - |3 - |8 - |$ 225830.16
$ 2499052 |8 (61.98)| $ - |9 26248 | § - [$ 2519102
$ 979,365.80
$  296,396.00 | $ - s - |3 - |s (1,796.98)| $  294,599.02
- $  294,599.02
$ 20,747,409.06 | § (0.00)| $ 0.00 | $ 1,273,162.28 | $  (1,208,771.02)| $ 20,811,800.32
$ 27069944 |$ 49417254 | $1,196,465.24 [ $  (1,208,771.02)| $  752,566.20
$ 112.25 | $ - $ - |s - s 11225
$ 39235589 | § (394,172.54)| $ 686047 (% - - s 5,043.82
$  250,000.00 | § - $  250,000.00
'$  250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
$  250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
$  250,000.00 | § - - $  250,000.00
$  250,000.00 | § - - $  250,000.00
$  250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
$  250,000.00 | $ - B $ - |$ - |$ 250,000.00
$ - |§ - $ - |8 - |8 -
$ 18,334,241.48 | $ (100,000.00)| $ 69,836.57 [ $ - | $18,304,078.05
$ 20,747,409.06 | § - |3 - |$1,273,162.28 [ $  (1,208,771.02)| $ 20,811,800.32

Page 1







1 @8eq

WA SO 1$:2T STOT/B/TI <1ea

%¥9eL 6£'5£0°658°L 00°18°818'04 (e°c82'00L) 00°£90°090°¢ 19186562 (1z'zse'o2) 00°86.'6.8 5'501'658 SANNIAIY lejoL
%00%L 860LF12LS 0086180 86°662'91 00°HIE 0 NS00 155661 00°€81°559 15816729 $334 ¥3SN lel0L
%00'GL 07860c 00862C 00002 09'669 020 00°€€T 07°¢€T JONVHNSNI 3N INMAYES
%9L'YL SO0L9'LL 00085k S6'GE 00'788' S6'616'¢ 0z'5l 00'v62'1 0Z'60E'} JONYENSNI SSOT ANITAYIS
%L6'L BE'EOY'Y 00'256' 197 00°98Y 19'88% 00294 86'094 JNNIATY NINAY 3NMAY3S
%IZEL 005226 00°009'Z1 00°62¢ 00051 00'GLE'e 006.€ 00°050' 00'SZH'L INN3ATY 334 ¥ALSNVAL
00Z1E'81 00°888'tL 00TLr'sL 00°00€'0E 00°006'61 000 00°006'6} $334 NOILOINNOD
%L9'99 00°02E 0008y 00°0¥ 0002} 0009} 00°09 000y 00°00L $334 ¥O3HO NY¥NL3Y
%6815 1E'186Y 00°009'6 69'812'C 00°00¥'2 69819 00°08%' 00°008 000822 S3DYVHD FDINYTS
%078 z1'8.8'05 0006619 00'96¥'G1 8L 00991 60'750'Y $334 ¥3SN NO SAILTYNI
%82'0L 56985001 00024 'ett S0'165 00TYE'LY S0'€es'ey 589671 00'81E'TL S8rlsel NOILJWNSNOD TWIDHIWNOD
%00'6L 99°209'04 00°2€1'%6 el 00°€€5'€T VE'VES'ET 8.0 00'pH8'L 8LYPR'L NOILOILON 4 TVIDHIWWOD
%00°G. 18'280'95¢€ 00°28L'viy 00'669'8}L BL'¥69'8LL 00'595'6E £2'795'6€ TYIDHINWOD - $334 ¥3ASN
%26vL GE'287'8L 00°v6¥' 701 598 00724'92 59'90¢'9Z §5'62 00'802°8 852618 NOILOA10Yd JdI4 TYILNIAISTY
%88'€S £2'¢6.'8¢ 0000022 00°0Z6°ey IR A 00°0vz'2L 02'099' NOILJWNSNOD € ¥3IL TYILNIISTY
%EB'YS 0v'287'L¢ 00°000'89 00°09€'E 09'ZLL'0E 00°00Z°04 Sr'eob's NOILJWNSNOD Z ¥3IL TYILNAAISTY
%52 89 92'295'Te 00°00t'S5€ 00268'12} PLIEBTLL 19°201'€ 00°0£6'0¢ 19'260'PE NOILJWNSNOD | d3IL TYILNIAISTY
%01'6L §0'6/9'82L'y 00°/82'967'9 00'661 725"} G6'114'895°L 00°€€L'%2S 18'989'275 TILNIAISTY - $334 ¥3sN
§334 ¥3sn
%LL'EL 15'192824 00°€10°966 (1g-980°M 00'9£¢'892 6V°15Z'L9T 66296y 00°219'08 6672L'S8 SNOINVTISOSIN [eloL
%6055 L1067 000502 EB16ES 00289 gAY T9Z88T 00252¢ TO6ELT 3NNIATY ¥3AHLO
%08'G. 80'€.8'GL 00°£92'004 00'161'S2 76'€68'v7 00'26€'8 527828 INOONI TYLNTY
%0007 00°00S 000524 00'006 00082 00°00$ 000 00008 334 MIIATY NYTd
%SLTL 9z /81219 00'96' 18 /°896'81 00°06%'01Z yL85v'622 £1°069' 00°€94'0L £1'658'2L SINIWLSIANI NO 1STHIALNI
%0000} 00'000'6Z 0000062 00°000'6Z 000 000 000 00'0 INYHO Vd3 3OHNOS LNIOd NON 6L€
SNOANVTIZISIN
%8¢"L9 06'208'30¢'} 00228060 (06°86£°28) 00°81¥'P9.L 01°610'289 (Lrosi'sy) 00°€08'€rL £2'769'96 SaXVL [ej0L
%005Z }570¢9'¢09 00767'E08 871 002287002 BVEL800C 0085699 £8775699 NOLLNGIYLSIA XYL 3LYLS
%56'19 6¢'09€'59€ 00'€82'685 00505652 VLTTee 00°/8¢'SE 15°€8LY) dN- YN WTHOTVAGY
%6866 98'659' 00°299'9 0058 119 00'G 000 XVL ALY3d0dd TYNOSYH3d
%4879 ¥ZT9L'vEY 00'8£8'069 00°986'€0E 9/°612'952 00'ESK' Ly £8°016'L SAXVL WIHOTVAQY
Saxvl
SANNIATY
Bujureway
ﬂaw_u_..m Jdueliep umm_u:m adueliep uunvzm QLA jenjoy uelep uwmusm u¢mt=m |enjoy
3oBpng [e10) STAd |E10) y0Bpng QLA Jeapjuaun) | pouddjusin)  pousd ualnd  poliad Juaung
|e30] Juaasad
G202/0€/6 Ysnoayl SZ0Z/1/6 wold

14V a

G3NISWOD SANNA 1TV SFHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY 30 INIWILVILS

10141510 INFWIAOYdIWI TVHINIO AUNASONDI




T wfeq

W4 SO LSTT STOT/BITT e

%00'001 00°0€9'67 00°0£9'62 0005422 00°051'22 000 00°050'6) 0005061 000 SNOIS 8 ST00L '$3NddNS a1314
%SEEL 10°/58'04 00'208'74 10°€0L 00'819'Y £6vY6'e Lr6ce 00'EEL'Z 65°€08'L TYLINTH INININD3I
%bE9L 1162081 00°062'962 12°088'9 00'616'29 £2'7£0'95 IE'SSL01 00°018'81 £9'759'8 SYIVdIY/ LNIVA/SINANS “diND3
%L 79 1S'BYE 0L 00°€50'9L 15246, 00'929°¢l 67'€0L'S 008 0028 000 SNOILINOSENS 2 S3NG
%98'¢9 SSERO'YO 00°28°104 00'16L'GE Sy'ees'se (ANATAS 006259 68206 ISNIdXI ¥ALNINOD
%19'96 1£169'89 0070412 1£°85€'GL 00'bLL 2L £92I'Z YRS 00'126' 91287 "INIVI ONY SdIYd3d ONIAING
%82'SL 19'18v'8. 00°082't0} 19°062 00'650'92 6£'892'52 0915 00°289'8 0ov'see's SIDUVYHO YNVE
%00°001 00'90€'22 00'90€°22 000 000 000 000 000 00'0 slgaaava
%0154 05'¥Er'P9E 00'9vZ'S8Y 0566 00'LIE'LZL 05°118'0Z) 000 000 000 SININSSASSY ¥SL100
%0052 5¢'692'99 00'65€'8V8 SZ0 00060242 SL'680Z12 000 000 000 0% W YLvd-0dd ¥SL100
O/ 000 00'0 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIOI JA/ILNY TYAOWIY MONS
%00°004 00°000'62 00°000'52 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIANYS - TYAOWIH MONS
%00°004 00°000°6.L 00°000'52 000 000 000 000 000 000 INIMOTd - TYAOWIH MONS
%26'/8 5059566 00°000'St 50°990'6Z 00°005°0¢ S6vEY'S 000008 00°000'8 000 S3NddNS % IONYNILNIVIN QvOY
%1996 00'12¢'6} 00°000'02 00'128'Sl 00°005°94 0069 00°005'€ 00005 000 3OVNIVHA GNY NOISOU3
%€ 16 00'990'82 0000258 00'L¥S'YL 00629'12 00¥€)L 00°EB'Y 00'850°2 00'G4L'2 ONIAIAANS B ONIYIINIONT
%0000} 00°00%'2) 00°00¥'Z1 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOILYILODIN H08YT TvOT1
%8589 56'8.5'vy 00"000'69 00'6YZ'94 59'127'02 00°LLY'S 00'809'v) WoT
%0000} 00°00¥'€9 00'00%'€9 00'¥65'82 00'v65'8Z 000 00°GEE"0L 00°GEE"0L 000 ONILNNCJ2Y
S3SN3dX3 ONILYHILO
%0%°€8 860987112 00°929'GEG'E 96'826'907 00'¥hL 129 zo'si8'0zy 15°299'8L 00'Z12'902 arph0'szl SISNIdXT Q3LYI3Y TIOMAVd le1oL
%VC 75 052607 0502r 3SNIdXT JONYMOTIY ¥vO
%E9'18 7E'69¥'S 000029 ETUTL 00'€Lr'T 89°0Z'} 743 00'162 9182 SASNIdX3 TIOUAYd Y3HLO
%908 'hLL'8l 00005'¢C (T 00°€29' 66'8Z€'Y 50ZLL '8l 00'€/8'L 3SN3dX3 IAVAT AINEO0Y
%SL'/8 66'912'04 00'765'08 66'692°0} 00'st1'02 10'G/8'8 geeTy'e 00'§HL' 19162 3SN3dX3 8340
%L9L 7L070'6 00092'11 zLOrle 00088 8C'6EL'C 000 P EL SWHOJINN
%0004 00'286'61 00'£86'6} 00'166'y 00°166'7 000 00'699'L 00'599°} 000 S1143N3E INFNAOTIWINN
%8068 #8'798'} ) 00°0ZE '€l 869 00'1EL'Z 91’55’} 7005 00999 95°594 SIS - SLI4ANTE IFA0TINI
%9888 06'69¢'VE€ 00'60€'92€ 06'1€1'25 00'LL0'6 0L'866' LY 9 PrY'LL 00°28€1E v9716'61 SY3d - SLI43INAF 3FA0TdW3
%I¥'E8 90'550'6E % 00°04£'928 90°565'6E 00°016'22) ve'pLE'L8 90°€64'}1 00°06'0% ¥6'9L1'62 SNI @I - SLIA3INTG 3FA0TINI
%9r'6. 8/'6v8'L) 00'69v'72 8766 00°019' 72519y 91°205 00°08' ¥8'29E') 0IQ3IN/YOIS - SLI4INAE FAA0TdNI
%07'8L 98'/10'eS) 00'LI2'S6) 98'0v9'9 00708'8Y vLegl'ey 1Z0r8'e 00'89¢'9} 6L 12Tl 301440 - TIO¥AYd
%2508 ¥6'826'8Y5 00'952'189 6'£69'2€ 00'SE7'0LL 90°2LL'TE} $0'295°9) 00°€18'95 96'StZ 0% JONYNILNIVA - TIOHAYd
%.L'€8 90'v0Z'68Y 00'900'78S 90'261'1S 00'666'Sv1 ¥6°108'%6 69°218°04 00'/99'8¥ LEBYB'LE YIDYNYW - TIOYAYd
$3ISNIAX3 Q3LVI3Y TI0¥AVd
STUNLIANIAXZ
Bujureway
1oBpng aouenep 19bpng JoueLIBA 196png QLA enjoy aoueuep jabpng 1ebpng lenyoy
2oL Juesleq uomuzm jejol QZAd |01 ummu=m alrk B3 A Juaun) poliad juaiing) polad juauny) poliad juainnd

14vid

S202/0€/6 U8nolylL §20Z/1L/6 wioid
G3INIGIWOD SANNL TV STANLIANIdXT PUe SINNIATY 30 LNIWILVIS

1O141S1a INIWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNASONDI




€ 8ed

N SOTTSTT STOL/B/TT =rea

—,\,s.n (95°1£8'155°) {00'152221°2) 96'6.9'966 (00'685'612'2) (rv'646'029'}) T ANIL (00'586'9€2) S8THLOVE SIHNLIANTXT $3A0 ANNTATY $$30X3
Kiaz SEIIEOIVEr 00895166 ¢ S6'796'869 00'999'6/2' 50'102°085'Y 90°025'£60'} 00°€82'919'} 6292615 $3UNLIANIAXT 1B10)
%LE69 769570999 00'0807109°6 26'568'ch2 00'612'¥8L'E 80°€Z8'0V6'Z 18'B90'616 00°929'¢80°) 61952791 SISNIAXT HIHLO B0l
%1760 [y 00S9E 996 86062442 00 0vLVZL'E Zr'605'€88' 90'85€'816 00°000'790'} 6'199'GyL AVILNO WLIdY0
%16'S. ¥£'109'08) 00°G16'262 PEGOL'T 006266 99°e1€'s8 SL1EL 00°628'61 ST Y60'61 ISNIdX3 LSTHILNI
90000} {00'00z°¢) {00002} 000 000 000 000 000 000 WSOdSIA NO SSOVNIYD
SISNIAXT HIHLO
%8162 SO'GYLGEY 00°Z1858' 50°0v9'842 00'602'49%' $6790612'} LL282'66 00'5v2'92¢ 62T9v'922 SISNIAXT ONILVHILO leloL
%8¢ VL ¥EVSveYL ) 00501 9%G 1 {0'pzL' 1) 00'925'98¢ 90059'26€ (ov'sss) 00'Z¥8'8Zl 9v'LBS'6C) ISNIdX3 NOILVIDTHdAA
%005, 919 0065’8 ® 000%0' 898807 o 00°089 95629 SANOG 40 NOILYZILIONY
%26'99 9}°929'95 00'957'78 {rgrol0') 00°€19'0¢ 8'629'62 51765 00°128' Sg9EE'9 d¥3 WALSAS INFWLYIHL HALYM
%Sy 16 LONL'SL 0000’24 LWL 00'627'61 £8'696') 5G'168'G 0051’9 7119 3SN3dXT WILSAS LSIQ WILYM
%810} 00°€88'} 00°005'81 00'€88' 00005'S} 00°219'91 000 000 000 INIWOYNYIN QIHS HIMISILYM
%9/°08 00002 00'€85'21 00510’} 00'86€'Y 00°e8e’s 00429 00°'98Y'} 00Z¥8 DNITWYS/ONIMOLINOW HILVM
%18'56 PARIAQ: 00°06E'€6 zhzer'sl 000EE'ET 89°206' 002412 00°L4L'L 000 WRY dX3 HIA
%99'88 98'862'SEL 00965254 9g'7¥8'02 00'6¥1'8C PLY0E L 90’609’ 0091LL'Z) TGXATRN) ddnSMIoMand dx3 F10IHIA
%ST'SL €6'2€'62¢ 00°662'508 £5VA0'eL 00'929'68 1519561 005/8') 0098212 0011622 O1419313 8 SVO - SALNILN
%00°6. 00'0GL'€E 00'000'Sk 00°0 000521} 00°082'4} 000 00°08L' 00°082'€ $334 331SNHL
200'001 0000412 0000112 0042 00142 000 00282 00'252') 000 TIAWAL
%.9'€6 SE9CY'ee 00029'S¢ SE6HLD 00°'606'8 $9€81'2 5£'969' 00'896°C 59692 SYYNINIS ONY ONINIVHL
%Li'S. £6'126'2 00'9E1'2) £6'99 00°182'Y 092y 808 0042t} 9,°9/€"} INOHATT3L
9%96'96 ££°126'9 00'000'2 6449 00°062'L 197 08’618 00°¥86 0Zv9 ST00L TIYWS/STITddNS dOHS
%858, THE'Y 00'50'8 e 00794'€ erzeL) 00765 00994} 0078 $39YVHO NOILYOIENd
%0 9L 097£6'6 00°000'1 09789'} 00762y 0v'490'e Z5SHD'l 00'950' 700’ JOV1S0d
%2 L 61580 00'628'01 619v9 000vYE 19'€6L'Z €186 00°002 12109 $334 ANY SLIWMAd
%80'98 26'06702 00°LIS'ET 26'809'C 00'688'S 80082' 6908} 00°0€6'+ 90629 §3Mddns 301440
%L LL 00°00L'1€ 00°008'0% 00004} 00°00Z°0 00°004'6 00'009 00°00¢'€ 00008°2 TYIMOLINYF 301440
%ES 06 16'929'SE 00658 '6E 16719 00'1¥8'6 60'92L° £1220°T 00'6.2°€ 12957} $TUNLIANTAX3 SNOINYTIIOSIN
%0916 00°8G7 00008 00802 00052 00Ty 000 000 000 $334 N3N
%00°001 00°000'0¢ 00°000°0€ 00'000'} 00°000'4 000 00°000'} 00°000'G1 000 INIVIA 2 ¥IVdTN ¥ALIW
%386 10z€'SH 00°005'S) 1r0ZE'8 00°006'8 £56.) 000 000 000 S14¥d AHOLNIANI
%00°001 00°004'} 00004} 00529 00529 000 00°001 00004 000 ININAINDI ALTAVS
%60'L1 SESIZ 00°€EZ'OpL SEBOK'T 00°28v'2E} 9210081 (ors1) 00228 orTrsl SANOS ANY 3ONVHNSNI
%692 SETHLL 00'208't2 G708 00795'S 59'650' £1eT 00°LI¥'L 188671 3SNIdX3 ALMNO3S
Bujureway
1o6png agueuep 1o6png agueleA o —— |enjoy aoueuep Jebpng jebpng |enjoy
[E10L JU8DI3g wom_u:m |eyol GzAd 18301 awuv—_m ala JedA JuaLNY pollad juauind poLiad Juauny poli’d juaun)

14vdd

S202/0€/6 Usnoay] 5Z0e/1/6 woid
Q3NIFWO0D SANNd TTV STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIHY 30 LNJWILVLS

10141S1d LNIFWIA0OHdIWI TYHINIO AHNGSONIM







[ :a8eq

Nd ¥§:8%-21 ST0OL/8/TT e

%9076 S1'629'8y 00°00£'L8 SLYGR'6 00'6Z6'Z) 5800 SE'G9L'E 00'80€'y S9THLL ONIAFAYNS B ONIYIANIONI
%00°001 00219} 002L9't 00°0 000 00°0 000 000 00°0 SNOILYILOD3N HOoay1 TvO31
%EL'T6 69°€L0' 00082 69°9/S 00°€l8 1£°9EC S9ELE 00'b22 5625 o
%00°001 00°04b'¢ 00041'E 00°0EY'} 00°0EY'} 000 00°218 0018 000 ONILNNODOY

SISNIdX3 ONILYHIdO
%ee'18 e6esople 0092198 | B6'6BE'CZ  00°L8K'S6 1028022 L8'681ZH 00°626°1S 60'565'6) SISNAdXT Q3113 TI0YAVd [EloL
%S 75 £8'291 £5'7) ISNIAX3 FONVMOTTY HYD
%1786 01'896'} 000002 01997 00'86% 06'18 2099} 0099} SASNIXT TIOUAYd YIHLO
%L6'6C1 BO'6YS'Y 00005°€ 8026t 00'e/8 12826 00162 ISNIdX3 IAVIT QANEDOY
%6 €6 9€'662'0} 00°0¥0°L) 9’6107 000927 Y0pL z1'el9 00026 88'9¥C 3SNIAXT 8340
%t6'99 L0081} 00892} L0'862 00288 £6'785 000 000 000 SWHOHINN
%0000} 00'866' 00'866' 00'8%2 00'8¥2 00°0 00062 00052 000 S1143N38 INFWAOTIWINN
%5978 SY'6657 00'S¥L'E 00'€0§ S5'G¥S £5°¢6 00261 17e9 SIS - SLIFANTE FFA0INI
%L0'28 00'¥8Y'eY 00'6€6'6y 00'820'9 00'E8Y'Zh 005519 zesey) 0019}y BOTELT Sy3d - S1I4INIE IFA0TINI
%LE 6L 1¥'166°09 00'6v8'9Z WISL'T 00°600'81 6G°2G8'G) 71520’} 006009 82 LL6'Y SNI 03N - SLIHANTE JIA0TINT
%8869 09'188C 00'82L'e 00°0£6 05'9¥E"} 201 00°0LE 65202 OIa3NYDH - SLIJANIE FTA0TINT
%0v'8L 75'956'CC 00'08Z'62 25'566 00°02€"L 8r'¥2€'9 £8'G45 00°0v7'Z LLv98') 301340 - TIOHAVd
%12'9L 00'LEL'28 00ZEL'SIL | 00288 0078282 00'66€'22 Y'L0E'E 00'7656 967609 JONVNILNIVA - TIOHAVd
%L1 €8 19'18€°€L 00209'8 19619, 00°006'1E £e'072'Y1 85229' 00°00€'L T 119’ HIDYNYIN - TIOUAYd
S3ISNIAX3 Q3LVIFY TTO¥AVd
SFYNLIANIAXT
%EV LY STLYELOL  00TPE'SOM'T |(Szeso'ze)  00'BYSTYE  GLV98'68L (82°256°9¢) 00°9v8°694 TTeee'zel SINNIAZY [EI0L
%6759 POV 0000Z5TIE S9'6l2'6  00°0EL'BL S9'578'L0L 662618 00°€r0'9Z 66°0V2'vE SNOANVTIIDSIA (0L
%007 000 000007 000007 00°05¢ 00'0 0068 000 INNIATH HIHLO
‘%L 01 Gg/0g/9 uomsod| o =
Usea i et Uoleaote 545 @ 1Bng " ISR L SO'S98'6C  000BELL  SUSYELOL 66:082'8 0009662 B60V27E SLNIWLSIANI NO LSFHILNI
SNO3NVTIISIN
%8E°L9 06208°30Y'L  00°7Z8060° |(06'88£'28)  00BLP'YIL 01610789 (LL:051°5h) 00°€08'chL £2'269'86 S3XVL EI0L
%00 GZ 16029208  00F6VE0E |67 00728002  6V'E/8°002 00'856°99 £8'/56'99 NOILNERILSIA XV1 FLVIS
%56'L9 62°096'G9¢  00°€8L'685 0608’66 LLTev'YeT 00°28£°6E 15€8:'%) dN-INYIN WTHOTYAQY
%68 66 98'669'9 00'299'9 0058 L 00’ 000 XV1 AL43dO¥d TYNOSHId
%829 v2ZoL'ver  00°88'069 00'0B6'E0E  9L°G12'9GZ 00°€SY 1y 80164 SAXVL NIHOTVAQY
$3xvl
SINNIATY
Bujupeway ajuepep 1efpng ddUBLIEA |enjoy aoueuep Jebpng  39bpng lenjoy
S3L0N _s.“ﬂn“wo o FPnaIEoL szAdIeoL [196png aLx WOPNB QLA o) Juouing | pomsdusuny pouag jueLIng Pouad LN (01) annd TvdINIo

14vid

S20T/0E/6 Ysnoayl 5Z0e/1/6 wold
AaNN4 A9 STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATY 40 INIJWILVLS
1O141SId INJWIAOUdIWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




7 w8eq

W $$:8PTT STOT/B/TT =ieq

onepsz- wposgez  000KETROD) |Orose'os)  (oovsvioz’l) (LivkLzezl) 10'626'26F (00°502'8%) 10'v2L's STUNLIANIAXT YIA0 INNIAIY §$30X3
AT WOty 00cssGert |OFi670  00ec0r0e  SFBODCl0C [7§5LY4 00T50ve8 1Tt SIUNLIANIAX3 [E30L
06T Triicceg 009028082 000/C 8T  15°389°SL6F 00628067 0070007085 0012166 SISNIdX3 YIHLO [Ei0L
%96 EVZI€Te8 00902808 000V Ev8T ZGB8BGL61L 00628067 007000065 001166 AVILNO WLIdYD
S3ASNIdXT ¥IHLO
%09'68 Z1e9L'20z  00°002'b€Z | ZLLIZM8  00'SOE'S0F  88'ECOPE 88'298'07 00°925°2¢ Zh'e99's SASNAdX3 ONILVYILO le1oL
%9978 1095LE D0B00GH 106687 001SLE 6671581 0005¢F 0005¢F 000 Wed dX3 HIA
‘sped J0J0eA | %P8 0L 99'60801 00°092'GL 00'G18'E YE0SY'y 00122} 1L'2E8'E ddNSM0M3aNd dx3 310(H3A
%2.'69 18007 00'6.5 00°291 1Ll 00'9Y 889G DIMLO313 3 SYD - SALMILN
%00'52 05°289'L 000522 050 00°€95 05295 050 00'88} 05°281 $3353315NYL
9%00°001 00052 000527 00°195 00'198 000 00'281 00'281 00'0 T3AVHL
%59'76 sTeLr'y 0092y 52826 00'18L'} §.'75¢ 00'¥6¢€ 00'¥6€ 000 SUYNINIS ANY ONINIVHL
%86'SL 60°€4 00291 600 00'6€ 16'8¢ €00 0ol 16TL 3NOHdI 1L
%8196 189EL') 00°08L'} 180T 00052 ELsy 00°052 00057 000 $39YYHO NOILYDINENd
%9E'0L 0544} 00'291 0521 0029 0561 000 000 000 $334 ANY S1INE3d
%15'66 SBTIS') 00'¥BS'} 58'v2e 00°98¢ SLLL £r's6 00'ZEL 1598 $3NddNS F01440
%EE'8L 00'GLH'} 00'005'+ 00°05 0068 00'5Z¢ 00'57 00621 00°004 TVIMOLINYT 301440
%8186 LE"L0Y'0L 00°009°01 1E'65%'2 00259 69'261 08764 00'788 0446 $3ANLIANAAX3 SNOINYTIFOSIN
900°00} 00008 00°008 00°008 00°005 000 000 000 000 INIWAINDI ALAAVS
%06’} €588 00'8r9'y £5'88 00849y 17655y 000 000 000 SANOS ANY JONYHNSNI
%808 89194 00002 89'6 00’8y ze'8e 009} 8L'gl 3SNIdXT ALIMNDIS
%00°001 00°0£9'61 00°069'64 00°051'24 00°051'LL 000 00°050'6 00°050'6 000 SNOIS B $1001 '$311ddNS 413l
%2} 9L E9EIE 002y £9' 00701 1£'86 ) 00'7€ 64726 TVINZY LNTNAIND3
%92 ¥8 BY'L62'Y 00°00L's 6v'2Ly 00'622') 15208 00°52y 00'szy 000 SHIVdI INIVWSAITAdNS "dind3
%€5'%9 80'LLY 00°0eL BO'LYE 00°009 76°952 000 00'0 000 SNOILIZOSENS B S3NA
%€0°G8 75°66T'Y 009867 7586 00'St2'L 8y oy, £T'1ee 00'GHy 1068 ISNIdX3 ¥ILNDWOD
%.£'66 6€'506'v4 000006} 6€'659' 00082 1976 §6'267'1 00°052'} S0k "LNIVIN ONY SHllvd3d ONIaTING
%Z6'28 §0'595'6¢ 00°000'GY S0°690'6Z  00°005°0¢ SBYEY'S 00°000'8 00°000'8 000 $311ddNS % IONYNILNIVIN V0N
%19'96 00°12€'6) 0000002 00'k28'S1 000059} 00'629 00°005°€ 00°005°¢ 000 JOVNIVHQ ANY NOISOY3
Bujuteway asueliep yabpng aoueLep enjoy aosuenep Jebpng jebpng |enjay
S3LON _SMHmu_—u_”M_un_ uwut:m. |ejol GZAd [ej0L amnvzm. aia uom_u:m atx Jed) Juaung uo_h.mn_ JuUsln) PpoulRdd Jualing poliad jusiind «Qh» QZ:l QEWZWQ

14viaa

G20Z/0£/6 YSnoiyL 5202/L/6 woid
aNNd A9 STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY 10 LNFWILVYLS
1O141SIA INTFWIAOUdIWI TYHINIO AUNDSONDI




¢ a8eg

W vS$:81:T1 STOT//TT =ied

%7868 290402 00€S8'L2C | zZeveeE Q019698 80°9YL'ET 6,°009'9 00°286'81 12'98€'2) SY3d - SLI43INIE FFA0 NI
%2478 y0629'652  OO'EOY'00E | pOTEST  009SHTL 96°¢E8'0Y 66'867°L 00'750'%2 10'€55°9l SNI"GIN - SLI43NE 3TA0 TN
%0428 BSELLO) 007562} 65966 00'62°€ Wore'e 8E'PLT 00'620' 29408 010INYII4 - SLi4INTE TTAOTIN
%0r'8L vL12219 00'280'82 PL859T 00'25'61 92'598'9} BR'9ES"L 00'80'9 ANNIY 301440 - TIOHAVd
%88'18 90'L0Zer  00'98E'GLS | 90°0LY'SE  00SYB'STL  YEYLE'ES Y6BBY'E) 00'6Y6'2F 90'65Y'62 JONYNILNIVA - TIOHAVd
%06°€8 9Cl0Y'STZ 00'0G9'897 | 9E'606'EZ  00'K9L'Z9 N s TN 8802 00'888'2¢ Z1'196'8) HIDYNYW - TIOYAYd
S3SNIdX3 Q3LV13Y TIONAVd
SIUNLIANIAXT
%04'pL pO'eGL'IZ0'r OO ZLL'ezb's  |(p0°Z06'8S)  00'SOV'POY'L  96°095'S0V') w'L 00'855°Z0% 5'000'0Lp SINNIAT leto)
%E9EL TEoPOPOLE  ODBLVOLDS |(€605661)  009Ccoret Z0GOE9CE | 0SVB9ZH 007291V 05°8SE Ty $334 y3sn [e0)
%0052 07’8607 00'86.C 0000Z 09669 020 00°€EC 07eee JONVANSNI 3NIT INMAYIS
%911 SO'049'H 00065t $6'6E 00788 S6'616'€ 0zSh 00'%62't 0Z'60€'} JONVHENSNI SSOT INITAY3S
%.6'L BE'EIY') 00'256°} 19T 00'98Y 19°88Y 00294 86°091 INNIAZ NINGY INITAY3S
%l TL 52762 00'80¢'2 288l 00°228'1 ST'SI0T SLY9T 00'609 SL€18 INNIATH I3 WIASNVAL
00ZHL'pL 00'688'S 00ZL0'E} 00°006'} 00'00E°€} 000 00'00£'E L $334 NOILOINNGD
%.9'99 00'02¢ 0008 00'0F 00°0Z1 00'094 0009 00°0% 00001 $334 03HO NdNLIY
%68'LS 1£°186'% 000096 698L2°C 00'00+' 69'819'% 00'08Y'} 00008 000822 S3I9YVYHD F0IAYIS
%0908 S8l ve 000272y 00°509'04 gAY 00'GES'E 96'667 $334 ¥3SN NO S3ILTYNId
%.b'89 15BIE'SL 0000004, | €189} 00'000°€E £V’ 189'E 10'956 00'006'6 10'958°04 NO!LJWNSNOD TYIDNINNOD
%0062 99°209°0L 0028196 el 00'€€5'ET VEPESEL 80 00'%¥8'2 8L Y82 NOILO3LOYd Fdid VIDYIWAOD
%00'5L WEPO'ELL  00'950'F9E 0074016 65°CH0'6 00'86€°0E £6'26£°0¢ IIDHINNOD - $334 H3SN
%26'%L 5€'282'8L 0060 | S9HB 002292 59'902°92 56T 00'80.'8 65'264'8 NOILOALOY Fid YILNAAISTY
%B8'€S £2°€6L'8E 00'000'22 00'026'EY LL902'EE 00'0VZ'2H 02'099'6 NOILJWNSNOD € Y311 TYILNIQISTY
%E8'bS 0 £682'28 00°000'89 00'09€'GE 09°7LL0E 00°002'0% Sre9r's NOILJWNSNOD Z ¥AIL TVILNIAISTY
%E0'89 L9EEe'eZZ  00°000'62E 00°098'LLL  6£994'S0L 1082 00'019'62 7)088'1€ NOILJWNSNOD | ¥3IL TWILN3AISTY
9%G1'GL SE'LLLIS8'T  Q0'ZER'E6LE 00€8y'8Ys  SOVIBZYE 00'19L'9LE SL6ZEIE TYILNIAISTY - SI34 ¥3SN
$33d4 ¥asn
%2008 LB0LZLE  00'86Z'96E  [(LL'SEE'SE)  00'ZEM'8LL  68'L6L'6L (86°9£2°6) 00'628°0¢ 0'7v9'ST SNOANVTIIOSIN [E0L
%80CS ZLTO0CEr 000585 £82I8S 00°9EED (SN 192202 e 196EY ANNIATY YIHLO
%EE €L 00052 00052 000 00°008 00°005 0068 000 00626 334 MIIATY NV
\y5E Joc BBUELD chﬂmﬂ_%m www.”“mwm“ %EL 08 Y659'82  00'86L'SKE 00'10£'98 904599 0029282 R JrANYA SINIWLSIANI NO LSIHILNI
%00°00} 00'000'5Z 00700052 0000062 000 000 000 000 INVH9 ¥d3 304N0S LNIOd NON 61€
SNOANVTIZISIN
SANNAATY
Buurewioy aoueLieA jobpng JUBLIBA enjoy adueuep 196png 1obpng lenjoy
SHLON _s“ﬂ_.u_“ma | Pna (=0 SzAd 1oL (19Beng QLA BOPNEALA oo\ aung | poueduaung pouad juaung pouiad jueLng (02) aNNI YALYM

14vid

SZ0Z/0E/6 4YSnoayl 5zoe/1/6 wold
ANN4 A9 STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATYH JO INTWILVLS
19141S1Aa INJWIAOUIWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




b @8eq

Wd PS8%:TT STOT/R/TT =k

%YE'SL roEr'LL 00°081 G} 4 AL 00'G6.'E 89°erL'e 99°Gy 0069Z') ve'6Le'L INOHJIT13L
%9686 ey o000l |eeust 000t e 0B61S 00ves 0w $700L TVS/SINddNS dOHS

sBunsod qor JojesadQ Jo1eM |%L L 8L 99'98Y'T 0008L'E 99'G8Y 0008L'} €769 000 00929 S3DHVYHO NOILYDINgnd
%v6°0L 00 00OL9  |/60L 00089C  EU6SS) 000K 00020} 000l 39V150d
%2L'sL ST 0GE96  |61Z06 000067 IGU6ET ere 00002 12109 ST ONV SLINYAd
%4E"98 98'99v'L1 006£2'€L 98'605'} 00'81E'e r12L8'1 [(IR% 7% 00'90L'} 00°€9¢ S3NddNS 301440
%eesL WOV 000008 |00009  0000SY 00006 00008 00005') 000021 TYRIOLINY 301440
%899 joie8s 000000 |YEOBET  00EST  99TH s 00es 00z STUNLIANIX3 SNOINYTIIISIA
%09°16 00°8s¥ 00'00S 00'802 00082 00¢r 000 000 000 S334 N3N
%0000} QWO00006 000000  |00000SL  00000SH 000 a0000's) WO 000 NIV 3 SV ML
%0896 OZEYL  o000SL | srozes  00000E  eSL 00 000 000 S1UVS AYOLNIANI
%0004 00005 00008 wooL 0000l 000 0000} 0000} 000 LNBWINO3 ALZHYS
%397} WEIWSL  OUESOL  |20eA’L  0OLISE  SHTYaes 00225 orzrs SONOE QNY ZONVHNSNI
%108 9E090YL  O0BKSWL  |8cu8  oDSaLS  29uese LoEs 00098 6361 3ISNIDXE ALHNOIS
%50L wovge  0evs  |vvee Q0vT 90BER z58 00sez ) 61640 VLN LNFNCIND3
%8988 WIZEYL  000SK9L | sel0ES 000 ovezE 2vsee 0007 9+0) SUIVAZH/ INIVWSIddNS *dino3
%2r29 16609 Q09996 | I6WOLY  OUUSES 60269t 0056 00ss 000 SNOILARIOSENS 3 S3NQ
%6009 9T IO WL OrSeUsE i 00000 690557 ISNIX3 ¥ALNANOD
%bL 5 WETL 00%EYL  |2088LT Q06T 856%6 SEe60') 009z sl LNIVIN GNY SHIVd3x ONIGTING
%resL L0y 0006ZES | 2vel Wiz SeLLel $605 WY S0002 SIOUVHO SNV
%0000} WoET  00WBEL | 000 000 a0 000 000 000 $1830 Qv
%8698 9£°269'64 0005222 9£'6E9'7 00'889'G 79250°e 49'eZ6 00'968'L SE'CL6 ONIAIANNS 3 DONIMIINIONT
%0000 worws 0oL |000 000 200 000 00 w00 SNOLLYILO9AN H08Y1 T¥OTT
%8526 GEON'E 000008 |SEGIE9 0006 SUE6T 09072 0005 wers oI
%00 001 0OV0SE  0UOK08E | Q0USKLL QDS 000 0040 004029 000 ONLINNOOOV

S3ISNIdXI ONILYEIHO
%L9'E8 L00ZV'PPe L 00'2Z6'98¥'L | L9'2vl'9TL 00°5H5°69¢E £6'708°2H7 £L052'2 C0'ESLLEL Jradly:1] SIASNIAX3 A3LY13Y TT0HAVd iel0L
%€G 99 E67€E 88 3SNIdX3 FONYMOTIY HvD
%659 0607 oUo0E |08 00009 670K 200 0818z SISNIXE TIOHAVd HIHLO
%S0°0F $0'902'S 00°000°El 00'€52°e 96'€62'L 611411 00°€80°L JSNIdX3 IJAYIT INYIIVY
%5128 W U090 | 988067 00LON0L  bLBSTL 2969 0088 BBHZ 35NId¥3 6340
%9008 w0l oowee  |ewesr  oower  evwnl 00 1528 SAHO4INN
%00'004 wsesL  00SEL  |ovssst  o08eet 000 00999 00999 w00 SLI43NTE LNTWAOTAWANN
%oE'e6 WeeEL  0UOI6L  |v8O0w. 00T 9LHCS T 00968 697 SIS - SLI43NGE FA0TINS
QE_—_—_NEOK adueuep a&@ﬂ—-m adueuep |lemoy aouelep u@&ﬂ—..m uﬂmﬂ—_m lenydy
SSUON _suww““ms g’ 19Bpng 7oL czad 1mioL [sobpng atn PPP"E A eo juaung | pomedjueun) popad usLng powsguein) (02) aNN4 ¥3LYM

14viad

ST0Z/0€/6 Usnoiyl §20Z/1/6 Wwold
AGNN4d A9 STHNLIANIdX3 PUe SINNIATY 30 ANIWILVLS
LO141S1d INTJWIAOUdIWI TVHINIO AYNISONDI




¢ »deg

WA $S:8Y-TT STOT/B/TT 23ed

%08 (hozv'eors) (00102206 | ))gp) 900 19EZL 1S \9BLY8Y STUNLIANIIX3 ¥IA0 ANNIAZY $530X3
%ea 18 SIS Ters 008lesocor |SIZ69Gl9  OOCeo00SZ GOGECTEal §0029115 G0aerTeR T6Tes TeE STUNLIANIAXT [B0L
%SETE 26990°26+'S 00 W IOL'S | Z6F0F09E  D00GIVRCEL  BOPIERI6 18°0VZ 6LF 009z8'v8Y 6158559 $3ISNIdX3 HIHLO lejoL
00000 000 000 000 000 000 000 L3$SY 40 WS0dSIA NO NIVO/SSOT

ety oy Uoloady Ao Sull e %0L 78 85'509°610'  00'92L'976'S | 89'6E6'4GE  00'000'G8C'L  2¥090'206 90'605'84¥ 00'000'59? ¥6°06t'97 AVILNO TYLIYD

BUILIBIBM PZAS Y} POMBIA JOU dABY S
%6'GL vEL09'08L  00'GLB'ZET | ¥ESOLT 00'62v'65 99°ELE'LS SUleL 00'628'6} SC'¥B0'6) JSNIdX3 1SFHILNI
$3SN3dX3 ¥IHLO
%hb'GL 95'06£'SK0'Z  00'0SS'0ZL'T | 99'6¥8'8ZL  00'600908  ¥V'6SL'LL0 SS578106 00'602"222 Srr20'LL) S3SNIdX3 DNILYYIO lejoL
ST VL E06E6 V0T 00999°ZRPT 00716196 Z68clcle 006ET 02} SEOLTICE 39NIdXT NOILYIOFEdAA
%00°6L ZE9L9 00'51'8 ® 00'0%0' 89'880C 7o 00089 95629 SANOE 40 NOILYZILHOWY
%2689 91'928'95 00'95v'28 00'€19'0Z ¥8'629'SZ 51265 00'128'9 Se'BEE'9 dX3 WILSAS INTWLYTHL ¥3LVM
%Gh'16 LV9LL'SL 00°002'2L L 00STr'sh £8°686°) 65468 00'67'9 SY'219 ISNIdXT WALSAS LSIQ HIALYM
%8104 00'€88't 00°005'81 088"} 00'005'8} 0021981 000 000 000 INTWOYNYIN GIHS HIMISHILYM
%9208 00'002'74 00°€85'2} 00'10' 00'86€'7 00°€8e’e 00729 00'99Y't 00'¥8 ONITIWYS/ONRIOLINOW ¥3ALYM
%98'06 5€'020'€9 00'790'69 GezzTYL 009929 S9ER0'C 00Z2t's 00Z2r's 000 WRY dX3 H3A
%8€06 YE6ZE0L 0082022 | ¥ETLL8 00'LEZS'0E 09'8r.'LL 8C18E'E 007240} TLT6L'Y ddNSAIoNand dx3 I10H3A
%E)'SL 09°9E7'902  0020S'v.Z |99 MELL  00'L00'6L ¥E'592'89 S9z8L') 00'096'12 €407 DIMLDTT3 % SVO - SALNILN
%00'5L 0005202 0000022 000 00'052'9 00'052'9 000 00052 000527 $334 331SNYL
%0000} 00'Y0Y'El 00'bO'EL 00'45E°E 00'158'€ 000 00ZLLE 00Lhb'Y 000 T3AVYEL
%0526 SLSve'Ne 00'896'22 SLBL0'Y 00ZrLS seTel) SE'VPY'L 00F1E'L 59'692 SHYNIWIS GNY ONINIVEL
Bujuiewsy ajuepep 1ebpng aoueleA lenjoy souenep Jobpng  jeBpng emydy
SLoN _sﬁm.““ma 4 19PnGEI0L  GZAd 1e0L |39Bpng QLA POPNBALA  pa woung | pouad WL Pouad WAL Powsd uaLn (0z) aNnd 3LV

14vid

SZ02Z/0€/6 USNoiyl SZOoT/1L/6 Wold
GNNd A9 S3UNLIANIdX3 pue SINNIATY J0 INFWILVLS
10141S1d INIJWIAOUdIWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




9 :ofeg

W YS8P:T1 STOT/B/ZT AeQ

%ZL76 0E0L'8) 00°005'61 0€'SY8'e 00628y 0/°620' 06°082't 00'629'} 0Lpre oI
%0000} 00020'6} 00°020'61 00°245'8 00'2/5'8 000 00°004'€ 00°00L'E 000 ONILNNOJOY
$3SN3dX3 ONILVY3LO
%5098 61'966'2Z6  00°0Z9'S8E | 61'S09'9E  00°69Z'YB 18°€99'1S ros'st 00'96¢"'LE £L'528's1 $3ASNIIX3 A3LVITY TIOUAVd [EI0L
¥ ¥6°068 ¥ JISNIIXT JONYMOTIV ¥vYD
%YT 18 0z'9ey 00°00S 0Z'65 00°€Z} 08'€9 €0l 00'Ly $3ASNIdX3 TI0HAVd YIHLO
%S8'SEL LLvEY'S 00'000'Y WEEY'T 00°666 kAN 00°€EE 3SNIdX3 IAVIT QINUOIY
%99'26 ¥2'907°91 00062} vz 180°C 00'LLE"Y 9/°€82'L 80°620't 00'25%') 2612y 3ISNIdX3 8340
%0209 0588 00'2bH 054 00°€L 05'85 000 000 000 SWHOLINN
%00°001 00'966' 00966 00'26%') 00°26%') 000 00°66% 00'66¥ 000 SLI43INTE INIWAOTIWINN
%b8'8L LL8LL 00°/86 00'£5) 68802 8l'ly 00’6t 8L SIS - SL143INIE IFA0TdNI
%1148 S¥'266'LS 00'9.2'65 Sh'ees's 00°218'7) 55°€87'L 01024Z 00'6€6'Y 06'818C SY3d - S1143INIF IIA0TINI
%20'S8 £0'0L9'89 00'969'08 £0'610'9 00°501'81 16'580'2) 67012 00'6€0'9 80'066' SNI "IN - SLi43NTE F3A0TINI
%E1C8 ¥2'502'2 00¥62°¢ YT EET 00228 9/'889 YAV 0022 LT OIA3INYDIA - SLI4INIE FFA0TINI
%018, 20'616'sh 00'%95'85 70'166') 000ra'rl 86'87924 99151} 00088y PEBTLE 301440 - TI0UAYd
%P9€8 SE'222'62) 00°02)'551 SE'96E'E} 00°16.'88 §9'76€'S7 1£€9L'E 00'1£6'2} 69°291' YIOYNYI - TIOHAYd
$3ASN3dX3 AILYI3Y TIOYAVd
STUNLIANIdXI
%85'pL JO0MO'PES'  00'06G‘LS0°T | 6ETHLT 00292026  6€'6.6'726 £9'PLY'9 00°208'691 £9'01Z'0L) SINNIATY [EI0L
%ISPL 08°sve00F T 00118681 |OCI6SE 00 1SSy DTeEheib (£ 444 007220551 ¥56vZ 2ol $334 ¥3sn |e30L
%IETL 0587C 0029% 055¢ 0086 05Er6 059Z 0090E 05Z8¢ INNIATY 334 HALSNVAL
00009 00'000'6 00°00¥'Z 00°00¢' L 00°009'9 000 00°009'9 $334 NOHLOANNOD
%.0'98 8y ¥0LZ1 00°09L'7L 00'069'¢ 76550 0002k Ee'hL $334 43N NO S3ILTYNId
%629, 8£'892'5e 00°0Z1'eE 0026’8 79'158'2 va'0vE 0081€Z 8869 NOILWNSNOD TYIDHINNOD
%00°GL 0r'9zs'1E 00'8e0'ey 090 00'605'0} 09°605°0L 0z 00605 02'€06' YIOHIWNOD - $334 |3sN
%P60L S9'922°8) 00°00+'92 00'Z€0°0k SE'1L9'L 55'/28 00°02€" §S'IpL'T NOILJIWNSNOD | ¥ TvILNAIS3Y
%Z0GL 6E°067'Z1E'L  00'L6L'952') 00050'66y  1900L'BEY 00°0SE'9YL ZL'98L'Ov1 TVILNIAISIY - $334 ¥3ASN
$334 ¥3sn
%VE'SL 18'196°EE} 00'608'221  |(18'828) 00°9ZL'vY sl p8'ey (16°208) 00671 60°296'€} SNOANVTIIOSIN (E10L
%0000} 00008 00005 002y 000 0T 000 INN3AFY ¥IHLO
%0005 00052 00°008 00°00% 00'052 00'SZ1 000 00'SZ} 334 MIIAIHE NYd
%t€'SL 18 LITEEL 00'608'944 00°€02' vt B1'265'€y 00'¥EL'YL 60ZV8'El SLNIWLISTIANI NO 1STHIINI
SNOANVTIIISIN
SANN3AIY
Buuewiay douBleA jebpng oueleA lemoy aoueuep jabpng jebpng lenjoy
S310N _mﬁhwma_—u_“mhwu umwu=m. jejol SZAd g0l ummv_._m. alA uomtzm aLa J1eaA Jualng —.o_._.mn_ juaung) polad jualing polad jualnd AOMV QZDH_ EW;WW

14vid

G20T/0£/6 USNOIUL SZOT/L/6 Wol]
ANN4d A9 SFANLIGNIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY 10 LNFWILVILS
10141S1d INJWIAOHdIWI TVHINID AUNGSONDI




L wdeg

W #S-8%-T1 STOT/B/TT =ied

%1L'86 (s1evezv)  (o0'sye'es)) |siors'ys  (00'eez've) (588696} v0°z2Z'08 00'¥50's8 p0r9L2'sel STUNLIANIAX3 ¥3IA0 ANNIAIY $S30X3|
75018 WeerIIz?  G0meOEe |ILEIS TOSRTIS FOBIOS TrI03Er [ 74 7] EEOvE OF SIUNLIONAdX3 leroL
%1666 #9582 206 00°982°208 vO6IGCh 00000°¢H 3E08Y 000007 000002 000 S3SN3dX3 Y3AHLO FeloL
%1666 $9582° 205 0099205 ¥oBISZL 00000°€H 9e08Y 0070002 000002 000 AVILNO TYLIdYO
S3aSNIdX3 ¥3HLO
%beSL SELICTIYL  00°268'916'L | E6TOL'TE  00'L€2'205  LOWES'TLY Y 4%4 00°Z8E'9p 9871L'ST SASNIAX3 ONILVNIHO [E30L
%89 7L 16GIGEL 00ZEV'S6 006097 801267 0618 00t0¢8 0riers 3SN3dX3 NOILYIOFH4IA
%078 067126} 00'SZy'eT 062852 00'¢62'9 0L0IZ'Y 65°2LL 00'728') Ly LOH) DIMLO313 3 SYD - SALMILN
%00°GL 00'SZh 0} 00°00S°€} 000 00'6.€'€ 00'G2€'¢ 000 00624} 00524l $335 33iSnYL
90000} 00°29v'e 00294'e 00798 00'798 000 00'882 00'882 000 REINET
%8566 0v'6v8'S 00'728' oveer't 00°29%' 09'%2 00'68% 00687 000 SHYNINIS ANV ONINIYHL
%¥6'GL £E'66Z') 00'2€9'} £E'Sh 00°80% 19768 ovs 009l B8'0EL INOHdT1AL
%06'S6 ¥L601L'T 00°002'2 PL60L'L 00°00Z't 9206 00019 00019 000 $394YHO NOILYOMand
%6v'9L 59°0BE'E 00°0zk'y 59°ZEY 002LH') SE'6E0') 00°96¢ 00'9€L 00'0¥€ 39V1S0d
%.9'92 00'80} 00'50% 00'801 00'S0F 00°262 000 000 000 $334 ANV S1INY3d
%66 ¥8 0v'¥68'S 00'6£6'9 0v'269 00'€EL'} 09°0¥0"t 80'L6E 00'8.S 76981 $3ddns 301440
%EE 8L 00°050°2 000006 00°00€ 000522 00°056' 00°051 00052 00009 TYIHOLINYT 301440
%2106 96'245' 00'€SH'9 96026 00'965'} #0509 76'S62 00215 80'0kC STINLIANIAXT SNOINYTIZOSIN
%0000} 00°005 00008 00°008 00°00% 000 000 000 000 S1¥Vd AHOLNIANI
%GS6')} a7 00'888'22 O ¥¥S 00'898'22 09°evE'22 000 000 000 SANOA ANY FONVINSNI
%0Z'69 19802y 009089 00°069' 6€'660'Z 00085 79145 3SNIAdX3 ALIMNOIS
%58'TL £9'68.°2 00'vZ8' £9Z1E 00'15E") 26°860'} 8E'651 00149 Z9LI8 TN INTNIND3
%L1'GL vr'9e9' Lok 000v0'Ske | pir9se 00'092'€S 99'60¥'eS 52°0.£'6 00°026'2) SL6YS'8 SUIVITH/ LNIVA/SIddNS “dIND3
%67'89 wiLe'e 00'1E6'Y 776197 00694y 95°€55'} 0022 0022 000 SNOILINOSENS B S3NA
%0699 L0'9E9'v 1 009812 00°099' 66'660'L 66'S8C 00'092 WvLy ISNIdX3 HILNNOD
%€} 66 vRrbLILE 00'6LY'1E 8'6.5'L 00582 vz 19'6¥5'2 008192 €8s "INIVIN GNY SHIvd3d ONIGTINg
%22'5. 1.'865'92 00°09€'5E 9L 00'8¢8'8 9z'19L'8 96'GYl 0096 #0008 SIOUVHO MNvE
%00°001 00'¥82'6 00'782'6 000 000 000 000 000 000 sig3aava
%0L'G. 0SyEY'P9E  00'9KZ'SBY | 0966 00LEIZE  0SLI8'0ZL 000 000 000 SINFNSSISSY VSL10a
%00'6L 52'692'969 00'65e'8r8 | STO 00060242 52'680'212 00'0 000 000 0% N YLvd-0¥d ¥S1100
%9.06 8y'20¢6'6 0005201 arylo'l 002952 75116 00'¥58 00758 000 ONIATAUNS B ONIITFINIONT
%0000} 008012 008042 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNILYILO93N HOaY1 v
Bujujeway aouenep 1e6png suelep lenyoy souenep jobpng 1a6png |en)oy
S3l0N _Sww.mu__.-_“m._om umut__m. |elo] GZAd jejol amav:m. ala ...wmv.._m ar Jeaj juaund _uo_._.on_ jusung poldd uaung poliad juaung AOMV Qz:n_ ﬂm;mw

14vidd

S202/0€/6 Ysnolyl 5z20e/1L/6 wold
aNN4d A9 SFUNLIANIdXT Pue SINNIAIY JO INTWILVIS
10I41S1d INFWIAOUHdIWI TVHINIO AdNESONDI



g :a8eq

Wd YS-8¥:TI ST0T/3/T1 9ed

%07 18 LO'2Ey 00'008 1028w 00'008 6629 000 000 000 ONIAIAYNS ¥ ONIYFINIONT
%0000} 00°0%2'} 00042’} 000 000 000 000 000 000 SNOILYILODAN H08Y1 T¥o31
150J01d 9 J0BAUOD [AOUIBY MOUS 00°052'€ 00’118 66'122'91 00'Le SE'E9EEl BLOEL
%0000} 00021 00°02L'E 00°08Y'L 0008’ 000 00218 00218 000 ONILINNOOY
S3SNIdX3 ONILYYEdO
IS8 L1682 00'ES6'9LZ | SVIBL'0Z  00'ER'S9  8'l9T'Sy £9069' 00'829'22 LE16'EL $3SNIdX3 03LVT3Y TIONAV leioL
OTAIGH 0850C 000 08'50Z 000 000 000 000 3SNIdXT IONYMOTIY ¥VO
%0896 56'296 00°000'} 56612 00252 5028 668 00'%8 100 S35NIdX3 TIOHAVd H3HIO
%60'6v 8196 0000072 8L6Y') 00'867 £9°1197 00'994 3SN3dX3 IAYI1 AINEODY
%08'¥6 £6°66.'0L 006} £5'462' 00° 2487 17265 15152 00'6¥6 6¥ 161 3ISNIdX3 83d0
%Y6L9 £C8hL 00°€0L') £e'161 00'158 19°€5€ 000 000 000 SIWHOHINN
%0000} 00°866' 00'866' 00'87L 00°8bL 000 00052 00°052 000 SL143NIE INFWACTAWINN
%8298 ¥ 160°) 00222 w6z 00702 9Ll 958l 00'%9 WSy SIIS - SLI43NTE FIA0TINI
%z} 28 £Li8LYE 00'142'66 €LesL'y 000186 18650 41567 000£2'€ 5826t SY3d - SLI4INTE IIA0TINT
%066, 86'728'6Y 0029629 857042 000KVl ZIESTL £veal's 00'088'Y 15°910°¢ SNI Q3 - S1143N3E 33A0TdNT
%VE 78 SY6Y07 00'685' 518} 00'429 5666y vI'vS 00'202 9'Z61 QIINVOI4 - SLI4INTF ITA0TIWI
%0v'8. 86'G56'22 00°082'62 86666 00°02€"2 Zrvze's 8646 0Pz 91198’ 301440 - TIOMAY
%.59L 89°062'6E 00'862'1 88008 008087k 212002 00042y R ias JONYNILNIVIN - TIOHAYd
%95'€8 89°€49'09 0082622 89'602'9 00vhieL  ZEHEELL 60107 00'8%0'9 80°2£0'y HIOVNY - TIOHAV
SASNIAXT 3LV TIONAVd
STUNLIONdX3
%E6'EL WRLB'ElS  00'L0K'0E8 | esbase 00'865'202  65°ZAN'OLZ TRITY 00°002°69 102 SINNIATY Ie0L
V5051 7709 D0eLieB  |lsTveh) 00VPY'S0Z  §L'600'02 00°Z8r'89 £6'026'89 334 ¥3sN ieloL
WHIETL TAD 000237 Tl 00°60¥ Ty TR 00°el 51991 INNIATY 334 HIISNvHL
%S878 61686 00018 00'102' 1928 00’107 BL'90€ $334 938N NO SILTYNIJ
%00'GL 0091515 00'889'99 000 00Z4V4L 00T 000 00'2L's 00'%22'S WIDHININOD - $334 WAsN
%L0GL IEL90'095  00V99'9KL 00999'98)  69'965'08l 0022229 00'21'29 TYILNIAISTY - $334 ¥3sN
§334 43asn
bl EE- {v8'¢58°2) 00'619' a'91E's 00%512 V'L Y9726 003k, PoTHY'E SNOINYTIZISIN [etoL
] %00°00F 00002 00002 00'8¥ 000 00'94 000 INNIATY ¥3HLO
1585 i SR Ul ot 0 BB 00647'8 PEOE's 009012 YTLY'LL PY0PET 007202 P9THIE SINIWLSIANI NO LSTMILNI
SNOANYTIZOSIN
SANNIATY
S3L0N m—u_w:m_”_dEmom aguejiep 19bpng adueLep o —— [emjoy eoueuep joBpng  39Bpng [enjoy (09) INN3A3Y
(01 yuoaag 396png |eloL  SZAd IeI0L (39Bpng QLA IeaA JuaLUNY | POLIad JUBNRD POLIad JBLNY poliad eLND|  w1DIdS TYAOWIH MONS

14vid

G20Z/0£/6 USNoIYL SZTOZ/1L/6 Wold
aNNd A9 STUNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIATY 30 INIJWILVILS
10141S1d INFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AUNASONDI




6 28eq

WA bS8¥T1 STOT/B/TT 2ied

%5192} (sssoz'esd)  (00'L09'ZZS) | £9°25t'8E 00°Z€2'96 £5'V89'9E} SLSELL 00°164°22 €L926'}y STUNLIANIAXT ¥IAO0 INNIAIY $S30X3
0176 FOTOCTIT] ODCODEoe T |ver9g'6  00'99¢'60L  90°86L'6L 96°226'LL 006002y ¥1'980'0¢ STUNLIANIJX3 [etoL
%¥6 66 £6°085°ECH 00°299°€H £6'6LY'E 00°00S'c 1008 00°000°2 00°000'2 000 S3SNIEXI ¥IHLO E0L
%v6 66 €6985¢€ch  00Z99%ek | eB6lve 00005 1008 000002 000002 000 AVILNO TWLIdVD
SISNIdX3 ¥3HIO
%0L°96 89'526°026  00'28£'296 88'996'S ooeey'e ZLostIe £6'592'1 00°18€°2L L0°SLL'9) SASNIdXT ONILVYILO [ejoL
%16 66 QLR ES 008SZEL 9,008’ 00'EIE'E ¥l 00°G04'L 00°50L't 000 Wed dX3 HIA
%926 98'¥GL vl 00°092'Sl 98°20L'C 00°€L8'e vi's0L'L 67'€8.L 00 L2k 1528y ddNS/1I0MANS dX3 F10IHIA
%CE L8 04208 00°625 06 00291 06'2L Wee 009y B68'€T 01410313 3 SYO - S3LMILN
%00'5. 05289} 000822 00296 06295 00°281 05481 $334 33LSNYL
%0000L 00786t 00¥86'} 00'g6Y 00'S6¥ 000 00'g8L 00'591 000 T13AVAL
%E0 L6 G6'/98') 00250 56'82E 00°€1S SOVl 00'bLL 00'bLH 000 SYYNINIS QNY ONINIVYL
%86'GL 60°€Z) 0079} 800 006¢ 16'8E €00 00l 167} INOHd3A1AL
%Ly 0¥ STTL9 00515} 00'vES 52'206 00°90¢ 00'90€ 00'0 $3DYVYHD NOILYOIT8Nd
%ET VL 8606} 00°028' 86084 00009 2069 2568} 00°00€ 8v'091 39V1S0d
%865C6 05819 00'899 0s'8) 0089 05'6v 000 000 00°0 $334 QNV SLINY3d
%90 L 199101 00°€LE't 00'Zve 6195¢ evLL 007} 1598 $31ddNS 301440
%€e9L 00°S2L} 00005t 00°0S 00°G€ 00's2E 0062 00521 00°001 IVIRIOLINYT 301440
%9596 bEL0'S 00°009'S LE'802' 00107} 69761 0g'6€ 00°29¢ 0216 STUNLIAONIDXT SNOANYTIZOSIN
%00°001 00004 00001 0052 00'5Z 000 000 000 000 INININDA ALIAYS
%06°} €588 0089 €588 00'8#9'y L6655y 000 000 000 SANCE ANY JONVENSNI
%L9'v8 89117 00052 B9'ZZ 0019 ze8e 8y 00'le 8191 3SNIdX3 ALIMND3S
%0000} 00°000°04 00°000°0} 0000001 00'000'0L 000 0000004 0000004 000 SNDIS 8 $1001 'S3MddNS @13
%L2'L9 79012 00104t 971 00'6.€ BE'09€ 00°G21 71'€61 TYANIY INTNIINDT
%00°00L 00004 00°Q0L 0008 0008 000 0092 0052 000 SHIVdIY/ LNIVW/S3NS "dIND3
%bE 9 80°L9¢ 00'9Z2 80°LLE 0005 76'852 000 000 000 SNOILAIHOSANS 3 $anNa
%5629 eree6'e 00'SL'y 00'629'L 8519:°1 85502 00°00% A4 ) 3SN3dX3 ¥ILNdWOD
%E8'86 1984y 00'0E8'y 19°6b1'L 00902'} €696 56'68¢ 00'20v 50Tk "LNIVIN ONY SHIYdIY ONIQTINg
%2Z 5L SLYEL'LL 00009k SLYE 00°0068'¢ ST'598'C 69'%9 00°00€' 15T} SIDYVHO MNvE
%00°00} 00960y 00'960'% 000 000 000 000 000 000 $1830 ava
i0/AIC# 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIOI FA/NLNY TYAOWTYE MONS
%0000} 0000052 00'000'6Z 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIANYS - TYAOWIY MONS
%00"001 00°000'G2£ 00000622 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONIMOT - TYAOWIY MONS
S310N a_“_m:m_”:EMm aouBLIEA j9Bpng QUURUEA e a1k {emoy asueyep 39Bpng  39Bpng {enjoy (09) INN3AIY
|10 Wealeg 1obpng |ejo)  6ZA4 [eoL |1eBpng QLA leaj Juaungd | poLad UIMUNY Polad JUALINY poldd WaLn)|  wIDIdS TYAOIWIY MONS

14Vad

SZ0Z/0€/6 USNoIyL SZ0Z/1/6 woid
ANN4 A9 STHNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY JO INTFWILVLS
10141S1d LNJWIAOHdWI TVHINTO AHNISONDI




01 #8eq

Wd ¥5:84°TT STOT/B/TT -ved

%90°0E€ 79'S56'7 00°026'SS (26" Lv¥) 00°29K'€} Srvio‘El aviLL 00029 9v'IeL's SIUNLIANIAXT ¥IA0 INNIATY $S30X3

TevEL I B0Z6LT (bt-051) 006221} vr'6.8'H) 1zzee 00LLL'T 6LPYS'T SIUNLIANIAX3 Ie30L

%8P EL 9CI16TE 006 (vt0s1) 0062211 vr68°LL Yaid LT BLYYS'T SISNIdXT ONILYYICO [ejoL

%6V E8 00SEPH 00160ZE 00'268' 00'6€8' 00098 1156 01410313 3 S¥9 - S3LNILN

%00'00} 00007 00°00% 00°001 00001 000 000 000 000 $3NddNS 301440

%E6'S, 000028 00°008°01 00°001 000042 000097 00°00L 00°006 00008 TYIMOLINYF 301440

%189, 66'928'S 00°000'2 66'SZ) 00'6v2'L 10'€29'} 'Ly 00'€8S 66'SES $24NLIANIdXT SNOANYTIFOSIN

%86’} 37 00'982' 8L 00'98L'¢ EVibL'e 000 000 000 SANOS ANY JONVENSNI

%Y8'LL TRV 00022 LA 00'S 5.8y SL1 00'8l 529l TVANTY (NININDI

%0000} 00'00% 00°00% 00002 00002 00'0 ] 000 000 SHIVdTY/ INIVIW/SINAdNS "diND3

%58'8L SPT6'e 00°000' 57061 00°8¥2'} 65'250't WYL 00'94¥ 80'LT 'INIVW ONY SHIVdTd ONIGTING

SISNIdXT ONILYYIO

STUNLANIID

%0£°G/ 80°EL8'GL 00°292004 00°161's2 76'€68'77 (TN 70)] 00°26€'8 522878 SANNIAIY Ie30L

T0C L B0EL85L 00°Z9Z00F 00°b6°sZ 76°€68'vZ (78 100} 00°26¢'8 $27828 SNOINVIIIISIA 1BIoL

%0E 5L BOEIBGL 002927001 00'161'ST Z6'€68'7C 00°26€'8 S728T's JNOONI TYINTY

SNOANYTIIISIN
SANN3AIY
S310N m.“wﬁ_”””x souepep 19Bpng b S Sepp—————— ) wbpng 16png [emoy (08) TViN3Y
fioy oy 10Bpng |ejol  GzAd [ejoL | 3e6pna ala poladjusuing  polisd JuLN)  poLad jusng JAYHOD AHNISONDI 862

14vdd

G20Z/0E/6 YBNoIYL SZTOZ/1L/6 Wold
aNN4d A9 STYNLIANIdX3 Pue SINNIAIY 30 INTWILVILS
1D141S10 INTFWIAOHdWI TVHINTO AHNASONDI




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #12

TITLE: FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING APPROVAL OF
LIST OF CLAIMS

MEETING DATE: 16 December 2025

PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees review and approve the list of claims for November
14™ to December 10, 2025, from check number 65876 to 65967 for a total of $781,802.96.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Each month the district is billed from vendors for a variety of goods and services which are

necessary and appropriate for the district operations and administration. In exercising fiduciary
duties, these are reviewed and approved monthly by the Board of Trustees.

INCLUDED:
A. List of Claims for November 14 to December 10, 2025

Fund impacted by above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






Check Number Check Date

65876 11/14/2025
65877 11/14/2025
65878 11/14/2025
65879 11/14/2025
65880 11/14/2025
65881 11/14/2025
65882 11/14/2025
65883 11/14/2025
65884 11/14/2025
65885 11/14/2025
65886 11/14/2025
65887 11/14/2025
65888 11/18/2025
65889 11/18/2025
65890 11/18/2025
65891 11/18/2025
65892 11/18/2025
65893 11/18/2025

A

65894 11/18/2025
65895 11/18/2025
65896 11/18/2025
65897 11/18/2025
65897 11/18/2025

Date: 12/10/25 09:07:18 AM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/14/2025 Through 12/10/2025

Payee

Transaction
Description

JUDITH BREWER

DERREK DORNBROOK

MICHAEL E. EDWARDS, JR

BRANDY JOHNS

MICHELLE M. MCCOY

SHANE T. MORTENSEN

BYRAN D. MOSS

TIMOTHY E. ROBERTS

JEFF M. SIMAS

LEIGH C. STANTON

JEFF T. WOOD

SHANE T. MORTENSEN

GREGORY FELTON

EDWARD J. JOHNS

SANDRA D. PARKS

SARA NELSON

CYNTHIA M. TRIGG

AFLAC

AIRGAS USA, LLC

ASPEN DEVELOPERS CORP

BARTON HEALTHCARE SYSTEM

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

Employee: BREWER; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: DORNBR; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: EDWARD; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: JOHNS; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: MCCOY; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: MORTEN; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: MOSS; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: ROBERT; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: SIMAS; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: STANTO; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: WOOD; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: MORTEN; Pay
Date: 11/14/2025

Employee: FELTON; Pay
Date: 11/18/2025

Employee: JOHNSE; Pay
Date: 11/18/2025

Employee: PARKS; Pay
Date: 11/18/2025

Employee: SNELSQ; Pay
Date: 11/18/2025

Employee: TRIGG; Pay
Date: 11/18/2025

ACCT FA935 LIFE
INSURANCE DORNBROOK,
EDWARDS, JOHNS, MOSS,
S

RENT LIQUID IND LG
190-300 LT NITRO

PAY APPLICATION 9
#30113 TRAMWAY TINA
WATER LINE

ACCT. 800002207
ROBERTS
PRE-EMPLOYMENT DRUG
TEST

ENGENEERING SERVICES
MARKET LIFT STATION
PER

ENGINEERING SERVICES
2025 ROAD REHAB &
REPLACMENT PROJECT

Check Amount

2,306.

3,832

2,221.

2,026.

1,672

3,106.

3,724.

1,217.

1,6009.

1,529.

1,845.

1,740

735.

739.

689.

739.

739.

605.

1,393.

400, 917.

35.

3,196.

6,470

75

.47

03

56

.70

04

35

01

34

25

40

.70

12

12

12

12

12

55

69

95

00

25

.50

Page:

1



Check Number

65897

65897

65898

65899

65900

65900

65901

65901

65901

65901

65901

65901

65901

65901

65901

65901

65901

65902

65903

65904

65905

65906

65907

65908

65909

Check Date

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

Date: 12/10/25 09:07:1% AM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/14/2025 Through 12/10/2025

Payee

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

EIDE BAILLY LLP

EMPLOYERS ASSURANCE CO.
FLYERS ENERGY LLC
FLYERS ENERGY LLC
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
GARRETT'S HANDYMAN SERVICE

HOMESERVE USA

JENSEN INFRASTRUCTURE

KELSIE FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVI

KINGSBURY AUTOMOTIVE & SUPPLY

LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC.

LOPEZ HOME ENTERPRISES LLC

MACLEOD WATTS, INC.

Transaction
Description

ENGINEERING SERVICES
FY24 WATERLINE
IMPROVEMENT 10/25

GENERAL SERVICES,
OPERATIONS YARD &
TAHOE BEACH CLUB

PROGRESS BILLING
RELATED TO FY 24-25
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STAT

WORKERS COMPENSATION
INSTALLMENT 06 12/2025

FUEL DIESEL 211.4 GAL
FUEL REGULAR 100 GAL

775-150-0119-103174-5
EASY

775-150-0120-092376-5
DCLTSA

775-586-8471-100215-5
STATION 1

775-588-1065-022924-5
PINERIDGE

775-588-2401-060791-5
PALISADES

775-588-2410-111700-5
EASY

775-588-2419-091195-5
PALISADES

775-588-2705-042476-5
TERRACE VIEW

775-588-4482-052798-5
MARKET

775-588-7495-061182-5
MARKET

775-588-8311-081082-5
GALAXY

298 KINGSBURY LIGHT
BULB

LOSS & LINE INSURANCE
10/31/25

CAST IRON FRAME 24IN
FLAND DOWN DOMETSTIC
QTY 3

FIRE EXTINGUISHER
ANNUAL MAINTENANCE

TRUCK #1726 LUBE, OIL
& FILTER BRAKE
INSPECTIONS

ACCT. 71572887
INDUSTRIAL ACETYLENE
IND HIGH PRESSURE

SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES
12/2025

FYE 2025 GASB 75
ACTUARIAL REPORT

33,682.

9,737

31,855.

1,123

871.
.74
51.

440

51.

176.

219.

42

53.

43,

58.

75.

1,538.

756.

1,476.

113.

206.

54,000.

2,400.

Check Amount

00

.75

18

.00

72

11

11

54

85

.22

.18

.18

.01

27

82

94

00

80

00

00

Page: 2



Check Number

65910

65911

65912

65913

65913

65914

65915

65916

65916
65916

65916

65917

65918

65918

65919

65919

65919

65919

65919

65919

65919

65919

Check Date

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025
11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025
11/18/2025

11/18/2025

11/18/2025
11/18/2025
11/18/2025
11/18/2025

11/18/2025

Date: 12/10/25 09:07:19 AM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/14/2025 Through 12/10/2025

Payee

Transaction
Description

SOUTH LAKE TAHOE ACE HARDWARE

MINDEN LAWYERS, LLC

PAMELA JOANNE NANCE

PACIFIC STATES COMMUNICATIONS

PACIFIC STATES COMMUNICATIONS

QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC.

ROUND HILL GENERAL IMPR DIST

SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES

SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES

SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES

SHRED-IT

SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE

SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION
SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION
SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION
SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION
SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

OPS YARD FUEL STATION
HINGE CONT 1X12IN &
HILLMAN FASTENERS

LEGAL FEES, KIMBERLY
FLOOD CLAIMS 17.9%
HRS, KEMPER A/R

298 KINGSBURY GRADE 4
CLEANINGS 10/25

CONVERT PDF TO
SEARCHABLE DOC &
WINDOW ACCESS

NEW EMAIL SET UP
SIMAS, BITLOCKER ON
LAPTOP OFFICE

ACCT. 00250606
FOLDING MACHINE
12/1/25 TO 02/2026

COMMERCIAL
CONSUMPTION DORLA CT
9/30 TO 10/30/25

COLIFORMS-P/A &
COLIFORMS-QT

COLIFORMS-QT

SUB DRINKING WATER TO
WETLAB

SUB-SOC SET, DIOXIN
DRINKING WATER, VOC
BY EPA 524

ACCT. 3001186388
OFFICE SHRED

ACCT. 10-32535 6 801
KINGSBURY GRADE TRASH
SEVICE 10/16/25

ACCT. 10-41521 5 160
PINERIDGE/298
KINGSBURY COMM BIN
10/25

910000322763 3
BUCHANAN RD PUMP

910000561117 698
KINGSBURY GRADE

910000561180 5
KIMBERLY BROOKE LN
PUMP

910000561274 4 ANDRIA
DR (384) PUMP

910000561387 2
TERRACE VIEW DR PUMP

910000799713 160 PINE
RIDGE DR

910000799716 298
KIGNSBURY CIR

910000799717 298
KINGSBURY CIR UP

Check Amount

13.

7,691.

800.

185.

1,128.

549.

351.

54.
81.

2,280.

37.

80.

692.

34.

70.

49.

40.

64.

139.

63.

32.

59

50

00

00

.50

59

40

00

00
00

00

00

36

10

75

44

48

95

24

96

59

44

Page:

3



Check Number Check Date

65919 11/18/2025
65920 11/18/2025
65820 11/18/2025
65921 11/18/2025
65922 11/18/2025
65923 11/18/2025
65924 11/18/2025
65925 11/18/2025
65926 11/28/2025
65927 11/28/2025
65928 11/28/2025
65929 11/28/2025
65830 11/28/2025
65931 11/28/2025
65932 11/28/2025
65933 11/28/2025
65934 11/28/2025
65935 11/28/2025
65936 11/28/2025
65937 11/28/2025
65938 11/28/2025
65939 11/28/2025
65939 11/28/2025

Date: 12/10/25 09:07:19 AM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/14/2025 Through 12/10/2025

Payee

Transaction
Description

Check Amount

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SPRINGBROOK SOFTWARE COMPANY

SPRINGBROOK SOFTWARE COMPANY

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG

TAHOE BASIN CONTAINER

THUNDERBIRD COMMUNICATIONS INC

VERIZON WIRELESS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG

JUDITH BREWER

DERREK DORNBROOK

MICHAEL E. EDWARDS, JR

BRANDY JOHNS

MICHELLE M. MCCOY

SHANE T. MORTENSEN

BYRAN D. MOSS

TIMOTHY E. ROBERTS

JEFF M. SIMAS

LEIGH C. STANTON

JEFF T. WOOD

MICHAEL E. EDWARDS, JR

JUSTYN ANDREW BREWER

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS

910000799718 298
KINGSBURY CIR DOWN

ADD-ONS PLANNING
1.5HRS

GL + AP
IMPLEMENTATION 1 HR

ACCT. 360 MEDICAL
INSURANCE BREWER,
DORNBROOK, MOSS

ACCT. 50-6791 3 801
KIGNSBURY GRADE BEAR
PROOF RENT 10/25

SCADA IMPROVEMENT
COMMUNICATION TANKS
10 & 6 STATIONS 7 & 5

MONTHLY GPS SERVICES
& SNOW REMOVAL

EQUIPMENT

ACCT. 841
INSURANCE
RUNTZEL &

Employee:

10/5

MEDICAL
MCKAY,
VOSBURG

BREWER; Pay

Date: 11/28/2025

Employee:

DORNBR; Pay

Date: 11/28/2025

Employee:

EDWARD; Pay

Date: 11/28/2025

Employee:

JOHNS; Pay

Date: 11/28/2025

Employee: MCCOY; Pay
Date: 11/28/2025

Employee: MORTEN; Pay
Date: 11/28/2025

Employee: MOSS; Pay
Date: 11/28/2025

Employee: ROBERT; Pay
Date: 11/28/2025

Employee: SIMAS; Pay
Date: 11/28/2025

Employee: STANTO; Pay
Date: 11/28/2025

Employee: WOOD; Pay
Date: 11/28/2025

Employee: EDWARD; Pay
Date: 11/28/2025

TRUCK #0808 REPLACE
REAR BRAKE
ROTOR/PADS/PLATE
ASSEMBLEY

ACCT.
8411100140031448 169
TERRACE VIEW DR

ACCT.
8411100140098488 97
BEACH CLUB DR

104.

262.

189.

4,188.

30.

1,240.

227.

1,253.

2,306.

3,832.

2,872.

2,024,

1,590.

2,989,

3,427.

1,758,

1,609.

1,451

1,824.

2,111.

1,738.

150.

160.

89

50

00

69

00

00

40

53

75

47

69

29

35

22

71

34

.23

04

05

47

00

00

Page:

4



Check Number Check Date

65939 11/28/2025
65940 11/28/2025
65941 11/28/2025
65942 11/28/2025
L5943 VoD

65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65244 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025
65944 11/28/2025

Date: 12/10/25 09:07:1% AM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/14/2025 Throucgh 12/10/2025

Payee

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS

HYDRO SPECIALTIES COMPANY

STATIONARY ENGINEERS LOCAL 39

IUOE STATIONARY ENGINEERS LO33

hb\) Ez(ﬂ €,(SYY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY
NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

Transaction
Description

ACCT.
8411100140191184 160
PINERIDGE DR

TANK 10 HEAVENLY SNOW
MAKING 8IN BADGER
M-2000 MAG METER

LOCAL 39 EMPLOYEE
HEALTH/LIFE PREMIUMS
1/2026

EMPLOYEE UNION DUES
12/2025

1000044046%07329692
399 EUGENE DR

1000044086803270814
801 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT LIGHTS

1000044086803274204
GALAXY LN PUMP

1000044086803294236
160 PINERIDGE DR UNIT
LIGHTS

1000044086803297452
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT ADOWN

1000044086803297460
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT B-UP

1000044086803297478
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT CDOWN

1000044086803297486
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT DDOWN

1000044086803297718
403 KIMBERLY BROOKE LN

1000044086803301502
504 LAUREL LN UNIT

PMPSTA

1000044086803301940
EASY ST UNIT N/T134

1000044086803304290
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
Fl

1000044086803305073
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
PMPPLS

1000044086803320205
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
PMPHS2

1000044086803320221
314 ANDRIA WAY UNIT
BRADBU

1000044086803320239
698 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT NTFRS

Check Amount

154.

5,212,

21,440.

658.

577.

33.

82.

11.

75.

61.

75.

232.

36.

38.

19.

43.

2,429.

1,221

1,456.

99

94

00

86

01

28

33

08

91

.86

49

06

15

64

99

18

92

59

.64

20

Page!:

5



Check Number

65944

65944

65944

65944

65944

65944

65944

65945

65946

65947

65948

65948

65948

65949

65950

65951

65951

65951

65951

Check Date

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/14/2025 Through 12/10/2025

Payee

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

11/28/2025

Date: 12/10/25 09:07:19 AM

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

PACIFIC STATES COMMUNICATIONS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES

PERCISION DOCUMENT IMAGING

PYE-BARKER FIRE & SAFETY

PYE-BARKER FIRE & SAFETY

PYE-BARKER FIRE & SAFETY

SAFEGUARD BUSINESS SYSTEMS

SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES

SUMMIT PLUMBING LLC

SUMMIT PLUMBING LLC

SUMMIT PLUMBING LLC

SUMMIT PLUMBING LLC

Transaction
Description

Check Amount

1000044086803320247
176 BUCHANAN RD UNIT
PMPHS3

1000044086804621577
801 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT B

1000044086805221187
180 LAKE PRKWY UNIT
PUMP

1000044086807006297
97 BEACH CLUB DR

1000044086808604306
160 PINERIDGE DR

1000044087003270836
801 KINGSBURY GRADE

1000044771003320176
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
DISPMP

LIEGH ERROR MESSAGE
WHEN LOGGING IN ON
COMPUTER

EMPLOYEE AND
EMPLOYERS PERS
CONTRIBUTION 11/25

SCANNING DOCUMENTS
QTY 126,051

ACCT. 209120 160 PINE
RIDGE ALARM
MONITORING 12/1 TOQ
2/28/26

ACCT. 209120 399
KAHLE ALARM
MONITORING 12/1 TO
2/28/26

ACCT. 2089120 97 BEACH
CLUB ALARM MONITORING
12/1 TO 2/28/26

DEPOSIT TICKETS US
BANK QTY 300

COLIFORMS-P/A &
COLIFORMS-QT

6 MONTH MAINTANANCE
SEWER LINES
N18-1-N19, 7-2 TO
7-3, 6-2 T

GALAXY PUMP STATION
AC POWER FAIL STARTED
GENERATOR

GALAXY, PALISADES &
EASY PUMP STATION AC
POWER FAIL TURNED O

TAHOE VILLAGE & GP5
HYDRO FLUSHING

1,731.

69.

751.

5,080.

170.

36.

854.

46.

27,544

29,004.

105.

196.

151.

135.

479.

148

27,056.

94

71

52

38

53

64

30

25

.13

13

00

20

.98

52

00

43

.00

.20

37

Page:

3



Check Number

65952

65953

65954

65955

65956
65956
65956
65957

65958

65959

65960

65961

65962

65963
65964
bo96s
65966

65966

65966

65966

65966

65966

Date:

Check Date

11/28/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025
12/10/2025
12/10/2025
12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025
12/10/2025
NOTO

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/2025

12/10/25 09:07:19 AM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/14/2025 Through 12/10/2025

Payee

TAHOE BASIN CONTAINER

AIRGAS

BARTON

JUSTYN

FLYERS

FLYERS

USA,

ENERG

LLC

ANDREW BREWER

ENERGY LLC

Y LLC

FLYERS ENERGY LLC
BEATRIZ HERNANDEZ

HEALTHCARE SYSTEM

JUVET FAMILY LIVING TRUST 2017

DIMITRY KUSHELEVSKY

MEEKS BUILDING CENTER

PYE-BARKER FIRE & SAFETY

TIMOTHY ROBERTS

SPRINGBROOK SOFTWARE COMPANY

SUMMIT PLUMBING LLC
0s Ranlc Uisa

us

Us

us

us

Us

Us

BANK VISA

BANK VISA

BANK VISA

BANK VISA

BANK VISA

BANK VISA

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

eve rol <

Transaction
Description

ACCT. 50-9256 4 160
PINERIDGE/298
KINGSBURY BEAR PROOF
RENTA

NITROGEN LIQ FG
265LTRS 350 PSI

ACCT. 800002207 VISIT
47354683 ROBERTS
11/17/25

TRUCK #1726 REPLACE
FRONT BRAKE ROTORS &
PADS

FUEL REGULAR 140 GAL
DIESEL 7 GAL

FUEL REGULAR 30 GAL
FUEL REGULAR 50 GAL

160 PINERIDGE 5
CLEANINGS 11/2025

REFUND ACCT. 1281 373
ANDRIA
OVERPAID/CLOSED
ESCROW 11/21/25

REFUND ACCT. 2044 758
MILKY WAY #H
OVERPAID/CLOSED ESCROW

STATION 2 READY MIX
CONCRETE QTY 49

97 BEACH CLUB ANNUAL
FIRE TEST AND
INSPECTION REPLACED
BATTE

REIMBURSE AMAZCN
RECEIPT INSULATE
WATERPROOF WINTER
BOOTS

COMPUTER EXP/ACH & CC
CHARGES 11/2025

SEWER PUMP STATION
MAINTENANCE 12/25

BM AMAZON POLY SCOCP
SHOVEL

BM AMAZON POLY SCOOP
SHOVEL QTY 4

BM AMAZON POLY SCOOP
W/HARDWOOD HANDLE QTY
2

BM LOWES STATION 3 &
5 KETEK LIQUID
CHLORINE & 12FT
RACHET 3

BM MIKES CHEVERON ICE
FOR RAW WATER SAMPLES

JB HONEY BAKED HAM
THANKSGIVING LUNCHEON

Check Amount

32.

542

165.

790.

636.

140.
223.
.00

2,500

52.

68.

400.

65.

267

1,763.

7,694

104.

125.

131.

182.

50

.92

00

48

11

89

84

91

98

76

80

.75

00

77

99

.96

12

84

.00

98

Page:

7



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/14/2025 Through 12/10/2025

Transaction
Check Number Check Date Payee Description Check Amount
65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS JB SAFEWAY OFFICE 37.99
HOLLOWEEN CANDY
65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS JB SUMMIT PEST 87.71
CONTROL 160 PINERIDGE
DR
65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS JW GRAINGER HEAD CAP 62.69
SCREWS & HEX NUT FOR
GUIDE POST
65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS JW LANGENFIELD 36.51

RECEIPT ROAD 7/16IN
NUT DRIVER, BRUSH,
THROTL

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS JW LOWES STATIONS 3&5 111.84
KEMTEK LIQUID
CHLORINE QTY 8

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS LS AMAZON BILLING 77.89
PAPER, RUBBER BANDS &
SHIPPING ADDRESS LAB

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS LS AMAZON CYBERPOWER 513.98
CP 1500PFCLCD BATTERY
BACKUP FOR SERVER

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS LS LV ALL IN SHUTTLE 30.00
TO HOTEL SPRINGBROOK
CONFERENCE 10/27/2

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS LS SAFEWAY 15.98
THANKSGIVING POTLUCK
ROLLS & CHEESE PLATE

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS LS SPRINGBROOK CONF 62.00
PARKING RENO/TAHOE
ATIRPORT

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS L5 SUGAR PINE BAKERY 21.72
SCONES FOR TRAINING
POOL PACT

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS LS VDARA HOTEL LV 327.67
SPRINGBROCK CONF
MICHELLE 10/28/25

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS LS VDARA HOTEL LV 327.67
SPRINGBROOK
CONFERENCE 10/28/25

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS ME AMAZON INNER TUBES 10.70
FOR THE PIPE THAWER,
AIR FILTER

65566 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS SM HACH CHLORINE 96.15
50-75MG/L PK 20

65966 12/10/2025 US BANK VISA REWARDS SM LOWES STATIONS 3&5 67.08
KEMEK LIQUID CHLORINE
QTY 6

65967 12/10/2025 NEXTIVA, INC. ACCT. 3680856 259.84
DISTRICT OFFICE PHONE
LINES

Report Total 781,802.96

Date: 12/10/25 09:07:19 AM Page: 8B



MISSING OR VOIDED CHECKS

DATE CHECKS PAYEE MISSING/VOIDED

11/28/25 65943 NV ENERGY VOIDED
12/10/25 65965 US BANK VISA REWARDS VOIDED






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #13

TITLE: FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING TRUSTEE
TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

MEETING DATE: 16 December 2025
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends that the Board approve participation in the listed POOL/PACT training courses and
direct the General Manager to coordinate completion by all trustees.

The following training courses are available and recommended for KGID trustees:

Open Meeting Law

Dealing with Difficult Board or Chair Member
Ethics in Nevada Government

Robert’s Rules of Order

=

These courses are available in both eLearning and instructor-led formats. Trustees may complete them
individually or as part of a scheduled workshop. Training helps ensure compliance, improves meeting
efficiency, and strengthens organizational governance.

Staff seeks guidance regarding desired training format and timeline for completion.

BACKGROUND:

Effective governance requires board members to maintain familiarity with Nevada’s Open Meeting Law,
ethics requirements, and parliamentary procedure. Additionally, interpersonal and communication skills
contribute to productive board operations. POOL/PACT offers several relevant training modules and
facilitator-led sessions designed specifically for public agency boards in Nevada.

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund ()Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM #14

TITLE: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING THE TIMING OF
BOARD PACKET DISTRIBUTION

MEETING DATE: 16 December 2025
PREPARED BY: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
That the Board of Trustees discuss the timing of Board packet distribution and provide direction to staff.

Possible actions may include:

1. Maintaining the existing packet distribution practice.
2. Providing guidance or expectations for earlier distribution when feasible.
3. Directing staff to prepare a draft policy or resolution for Board consideration.

BACKGROUND:

At the November 18, 2025 Board meeting, the Board held an informal discussion regarding the timing
of distribution of Board meeting packets. The district’s longstanding practice has been to distribute
packets on the Friday preceding the Tuesday Board meeting.

During the discussion, some Board members expressed interest in receiving the materials earlier to
allow additional time for review. Other members expressed reluctance to formalize a rigid distribution
requirement by resolution, noting that the current practice has generally worked well and that flexibility
is often necessary to ensure accurate and complete information.

At that meeting, one Board member requested that the topic be formally agendized for discussion and
possible action. The Board Chair subsequently directed the General Manager to place this matter on a
future agenda.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends maintaining the existing practice and providing non-binding guidance that staff
should continue working toward earlier packet distribution whenever feasible, without adopting a formal
resolution that would limit necessary operational flexibility.

Staff acknowledges and supports the Board’s desire for timely access to agenda materials and is
committed to improving early distribution whenever practicable.

However, several operational and procedural factors influence the timing of packet preparation,
including:



e Receipt of final information from consultants, vendors, and partner agencies.

e Completion of internal and legal review.

¢ Last-minute updates or corrections required to ensure accuracy.

o Staff workload and competing deadlines during certain times of the month or year.

These variables can make it challenging to meet a formally defined distribution date. A fixed date
established by resolution would reduce staff’s ability to adapt to circumstances and may result in
incomplete packets which can complicate Board review.

The current practice—distribution on the Friday before the meeting, or earlier when possible—generally
balances the need for Board review time with the practical realities of assembling complete materials.

That said, staff is committed to continued improvement and earlier distribution when feasible.

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund ()Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



DOWL MEMORANDUM

TO: Derek Dornbrook, General Manager, Kingsbury GID
FROM: Travis Marshall, PE, Project Manager, DOWL
DATE: December 10, 2025

SUBJECT: Engineering Report for the Meeting of December 16, 2025

GENERAL
Assisted with General Service tasks requested and general correspondence:
e Discussion with the General Manager on the steel structure and preparation of task order
to determine project cost and geotechnical findings impact to the project.
e Tahoe Beach Club plan review and coordination with the TBC Engineer for Phase |I and
Il water design and Backflow Prevention Devices.
e Coordination with outside Engineering firm to coordinate a water model within the KGID
Service area.

PROJECTS
Task Order #61: FY23 Water Main and Road Improvement Project
o Final retention release payment to contractor withheld until Contractor provides DOWL
lien releases from paving sub-contractor.
o DOWL to continue coordination with Contractor and General Manager and District staff to
receive final documentation and close out project.

Task Order #64: FY24 Water Main and Road Repair/Replacement Project:

e Project Closeout expected to be completed November 2025 with final pay application and
administrative items for retention release.

e DOWL has coordinated and adjusted the construction scope, provided change order
documentation to the General Manager, and total expected construction costs with project
completion.

e Project Closeout expected to be completed December 2025.

Task Order #66: 25-26 Water Replacement Project: Maryanne, Barreft, and Panorama
e Project on hold until further analysis and information known from Rate Study to determine
if outside funding is required based on proposed Capital Improvement plan.
e Replacement of approximately 9,200 LF of water main with ductile iron for Maryanne,
Barrett, and Panorama. Minor streets include Carol Cir, Drew Ct, and Vista Dr.

Task Order #67: 2025 Road Rehabilitation & Replacement Project
e DOWL has requested closeout documentation form the Contractor to release final
payment. ‘
¢ Project Closeout expected to be completed December 2025.

775-851-4788 = 5510 Longley Lane = Reno, Nevada 89511 = www.dowl.com



MEMORANDUM

Task Order #70: Water & Sewer Ulility Rate Analysis

e Rate Study is ongoing. DOWL has received multiple District finance and Sewer/Water
operation documents and is in the process of inputting data into the rate model.

e DOWL has incorporated the latest CIP and will perform a revenue requirement analysis
on projected expenses.

o DOWL met with the General Manager in a client workshop meeting to review data and
assumptions.

¢ Workshop with the General Manager and GID Staff will include review of data and
assumptions and a 5 — 10 year cash flow analysis and the results of the revenue
requirement.

Task Order #71: Market Street Preliminary Engineering Report (PER)

o PER will consolidate the multiple studies into a single comprehensive planning document
that will follow the requirements for SRF and USDA-RD funding to provide the District
options.

o DOWL has put together the framework for the PER using the previous reports, identified
data gaps, and revised the approach for discussion and review with the General Manager.

¢ The General Manager and DOWL met to discuss the project alternatives and general
matrix evaluation for the project PER

o DOWL to set up meeting with Stakeholders (Sewer Authority and TRPA) with the General
Manager and KGID Staff to discuss project and provide input.

Task Order #72: Water Rights Support FY 2026
o DOWL to support KGID in water rights permitting efforts with the Nevada Division of Water
Resources (NDWR).
o Efforts include extension of time applications for three permits, a potential change
application for two permits for surface water rights to move point of diversion, and expand
the use to the Districts current service area.

TASK ORDERS ON AGENDA

Task Order #73: KGID — TDEPD Operations Yard Storage Building
o DOWL to support KGID in construction of a proposed steel structure for the shared vehicle

storage with Tahoe Douglas Fire protection District.
e Task order includes a preliminary design and probable construction cost estimate for
General Manager and Board review and direction on project.

Page 2 of 2



General Manager’s Report
DATE: December 16, 2025

IT Services Transition

Techtastic is nearing completion of the onboarding process. Pac-States, our
former IT contractor, has provided helpful support to ensure a smooth
transition.

Public Records Requests
Work on this project remains in the preliminary phase.
e A public access link for meeting records will be added to the
District’s website to improve transparency and ease of access.
e A formal Public Records Policy compliant with NRS 239 is being
drafted and is expected to be presented to the Board for review and
adoption at the January meeting.

By-Laws Update Project
e The goal is to produce a cohesive, modernized by-laws document
that eliminates inconsistencies and incorporates relevant
resolutions.
e A draft consolidated version has been completed for consideration
at the January 17 meeting.

Douglas County Grant Coordination
Met with Debbie Swickard, Douglas County Grants Administrator, on
November 19 for an introductory discussion regarding potential grant
opportunities and funding strategies.

Market Street Lift Station Alternatives

A project kickoff meeting was held on November 20 with the DOWL team
(Alex Stodtmeister and Travis Marshall) to evaluate alternatives for the
Market Street Lift Station.

Rate Study



A workshop meeting was conducted on December 3 with the DOWL team
(Courtney Dunn and Luke Tipton) to continue development of the District’s
rate study.
Vehicle Storage Facility — Shared
Task Order presented at tonight’s meeting
Tahoe Water for Fire Suppression Partnership — Intertie Project
e Coordinated with the Partnership on the Sewer Plant Road—-to—
Dorla Court intertie project aimed at improving regional fire flow
and overall system resiliency.
e The project submission template was submitted on November 26,
2025s.
e This project would establish a critical intertie with Round Hill
GID, enhancing fire protection for key facilities and strengthening
mutual water supply capabilities.

e Project review and ranking meeting Thursday, December 11.
KGID project initially scored well.

e Several key items missing from initial application submitted by
Mitch

e The project is NOT identified in KGID’s CIP or Water System
Master Plan.
e A Preliminary Engineering Report has NOT been completed.
The items were identified as complete last year, and TWFSP

wants to be sure that our project receive the correct score if they
have been completed.

Proposed Round Hill Campground (Globetrotters Properties) - Impact
Met with Brandon Garden (RHGID GM) on December 1 to discuss the
proposed 53-site developed campground on a 9-acre private parcel in
Round Hill. Water service to Dorla Court (KGID water customers) is
provided by Round Hill GID and sold to KGID. Discussed capacity
considerations and long-term ability to continue service if the campground
proceeds. Potential for intertie funding.



Mize/Welch v KGID
Documents requested — Please refer to legal counsel — Mid-January

SR

Goals for 2026-To be detailed at January Meeting:

Develop analytics for measuring system water loss and perform
monthly performance reports — establish target benchmarks to
systematically reduce water losses beyond water main replacements
currently underway — this also justifies rate adjustments

Leak detection program

Water Master Plan for 2026 and beyond

Organizational Review — determine optimal staffing levels and make
recommendations for appropriate changes, address staff shortages
through potential reorganization — other staff strategies

Staff career development

Social Media Presence

Website Improvements

Customer Satisfaction Survey

Intertie project — involve DOWL -Explore funding options beyond the
matching federal grant as administered by Tahoe Water for Fire '
Suppression Partnership (TWFSP)

Determine status of Logging Road property — Owned by KGID?

During my first eight months as General Manager, a significant number
of action items were placed on Board agendas as we initiated and
advanced a variety of projects. With many of those efforts now
underway, I believe it is appropriate to scale back the volume of action
items and shift toward implementation, follow-through, and refinement
of existing initiatives rather than introducing new ones. However, please
feel free to suggest action items moving forward.



BE CEBEe -

[T U A VO W O P W S |
= O 00NN WN O

22,
23.
. Contingency planning
25.
26.

Long Range Calendar/Parking Lot

Water Master Plan

Emergency power for SCADA

Emergency power for Server and office

Market Street Lift Station options with Dowt {gravity vs. re-routing or bypassing)
Shared Vehicle Storage Facility with TDFPD

Rate Study

Intertie with Round Hill GID

Easement for 510 Laurel (Access to property)

CPI rate increase with DOWL

. Logging Road, if we take on the property will the state clean it up? NDOT owned

. Status of flooded houses lawsuit from plow hitting fire hydrant (Legal proceeding update)
. Social media presence-improve existing, including website, create new platforms

. Update the Capital improvement Plan

. G.M. to review allocation of costs across different funds

. Obtain current water usage data from the existing Barton facility

. Bill Far West $5,788.60 for sewer lateral repair costs

. Total paid out for fire hydrant clearing issues to Minden Lawyers

. Status of EPOKE, per Mitch “In total disrepair”

. Create a storm water master pian, mfrastructure failing {e.g.-retaining walls)

L EStablishicanhecon: Wit BoUElEs Coun
. Prepare discussion for Kahle Complete Street pro;ect water line replacement, including

e

potential grant applications
Water Filtration Plant?
Strategic Plan

Preventative and predictive modeling for disasters
5-year plan to take over snow removal-equipment and build/purchase facility and fuel

tank

Goaineed

Underway



FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION PARTNERSHIP

U)Tahoe Water

Meeting Mptes

Thursday, December 11, 2025
2—-4pm

ONLINE: ;
Meeting ID: 299 922 498 9350
Passcode: Yf9Cy677

DIAL BY PHONE: +1 332-249-0500
Phone conference ID: 821 297 764#

Purpose: A meeting with the Tahoe Water for Fire Suppression Partnership to review and rank FY2026
Projects for the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act Priority List.

Attendees: Shelly Thomsen (STPUD), Donielle Morse (STPUD), Jennifer Marshall (STPUD), Brad Johnson
(NTPUD), Derek Dornbrook (KGID), Hudson Klein {IVGID), Beth Vollmer (TRPA), Kat Mcintyre {TRPA)

Environmental Improvement Program (EIP)

Purpose and history of the EIP, importance of reporting, and how to add and update projects in the
EIP Portal

(Beth Volimer and Kat Mcintyre, TRPA)

Kat Mcintyre provided an overview of the Environmental improvement Program (EIP), established in
1997 and its evolution into a basin-wide initiative supporting watershed restoration, forest health, and
infrastructure improvements. Beth Vollmer explained the EIP Tracker, highlighting the importance of
accurate and timely project reporting to support accountability, funding requests, and demonstration of
program success. STPUD can provide more information to the partnership members who are not
familiar with the EIP. All projects added to the list provided to TRPA should be added to the EIP.
Expenditures should be reported by calendar year, but if that’s not feasible, a fiscal year report is

acceptable.

FY2025 Project Funding

The group reviewed fiscal year 2025 funding allocations totaling approximately $2.1 million. Following
Round Hill GID’s decision to decline its grant, partners discussed reallocating the remaining $500,000 to
partially funded projects from Tahoe City PUD and Tahoe Park Water Company. There was general
support for redistribution, provided federal funding requirements and timelines are met. STPUD will
revise the funding allocations and the subrecipient agreements and share them with Tahoe Park and

TCPUD.

Reviewing and Ranking of projects submitted for FY2026

A significant portion of the meeting addressed project ranking criteria, particularly how “under-resourced
communities” are defined and applied. The group agreed to continue using this criterion and to rely on
census-based median household income data for consistency and compliance with federal guidelines. Clear
communication and standardized data submission were identified as essential for fair scoring and defensible
funding decisions. STPUD will distribute instructions to members who submitted projects outlining how to
identify whether a project is in an under-resourced community using census data.

Lake Tahoe Basin Management Unit Update



@Tahoe Water

FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION PARTNERSHIP

Eric Walker will be retiring within the next month. He has been a strong advocate at the local and regional levels
and a key point of contact for advance notice on funding opportunities. We will continue working with our
congressional delegation to pursue funding for the Basin. At this time, it is unclear who will serve in an acting
role until a permanent replacement is appointed.

Lobbying

On December 12, we have scheduled phone calls with our Washington, DC delegation and our lobbyist.
Meetings are confirmed with staff for Senators Schiff, Padilla, Masto, and Rosen, as well as Representatives Kiley
and hopefully Amodei.

Project Proposals
Project Ranking — All Years
1. 1IVGIDI1 Incline Court Waterline Replacement
KGID1 Sewer Plant Road to Dorla Court
NTPUD1 Brook, Salmon, Yacht and Dip Fire Protection Water Infrastructure
NTPUD2 Lake Forest #3 Fire Protection Water infrastructure
NTPUD3 Brockway Fire Protection Water Infrastructure
STPUD1 Park Avenue Waterline Fire Suppression Improvements
STPUD2 Lake Tahoe Boulevard Waterline Fire Protection Project
STPUD3 Glenwood-Rancho Waterline Fire Protection Project
TCPUD1 Tahoe Cedars Water System Fire Flow Capacity Improvements, Phase 1
10 TCPUD2 Waest Shore Shortage Augmentation {One tank)
The group discussed project readiness, engineering status, potential earmark funding, and how these factors
may affect prioritization. Scoring was conducted based on available information, with the understanding that
adjustments may be made as additional documentation becomes available. STPUD will follow up with projects
that were unsure on some of the scoring responses.

CENDW L WN

Next steps
STPUD will:
e Confirm project details, readiness, and engineering status for all submitted projects to ensure accurate
scoring and prioritization.
e Send partnership instructions about how to determine if their project lies within an under-resourced
community.
» Finalize project scoring and rankings for FY 2026, incorporating consistent application of under-
resourced community criteria using census-based median household income data.
s Redistribute the remaining FY 2025 funding from the declined Round Hill funds, pending confirmation
that federal requirements and timelines can be met.
Partnership members will:
+ Add and update projects in the EiP tracker as prompted by TRPA.
» Respond to request for designation of under-resourced community.
* Respond to additional requests for information to finalize the project ranking and ratings.

Adjourn



Proposed Project

Globetrotters Properties, LLC (the applicant) is requesting approval of a
developed campground (“Talaz”) with:

+ 53 camp sites (18 dome structures, 9 treehouses, and 23 sleeping shelters).
« 18 dome sites would be in operation from May 1%t to October 15th-

« 35 units (treehouses & sleeping shelters) would be operational year-round.
* No units would have kitchens.

* Seven sleeping shelters would have ensuite bathrooms.

« Accessory uses (main lodge/clubhouse/kitchen, 3 comfort stations

(bathrooms/showers), barbecue pavilion, and one accessory dwelling unit for
employees). n

A m<m>a.ﬂ_

TAHOE
REGIONAL
PLANNING
AGENCY




176 US Hwy 50, Douglas County, Nevada




Location
176 US Hwy 50, Douglas County, Nevada

et 7] ' o s d




Sleeping Structures

Treehouse
(not attached to
Sleeping Shelter trees)
Dome -

VHETEH L P,
=1gapep
t




Memo to: Board of Trustees
From: Byran Moss, Utilities Operations Superintendent
Subject:  Operations report for the meeting of December 16, 2025
Working on daily operations.
State reports.
Mike Edwards Resigned, and was also put on administrative leave.
Made arrangements to have: 1. Rear brakes replaced on the 2008 Ford F-350.
2. Front brakes replaced on the 2017 Ford F-350.
3. Muitiple repairs on the 2013 GMC
a. replace the radiator
b. repair exhaust manifold leaks
c. replace spark plugs
d. solve engine stalling and driveability issues
Water crew: 1. Working on annual small equipment maintenance.
2. Helped with two manhole ring replacements on Tina Court.
3. Working on reinstalling the repaired valve actuator on the Ozone Injection
System at the plant.
4. Repaired the leak on the 6" watermain the runs between Drew Court and
Aspen Way.

5. Cleaned up mud and debris from the Chart House leak in the drive way at 151

Palisades Drive.



Road Crew: 1. Replaced two broken sewer manhole rings on Tina Court.
2. Working on small equipment maintenance.
3. Moved dirt and rocks from buried drain pipe at the Operations Yard.
4. Removed loose boulders from the hillside on Bonnie Drive.
5. Cleaned and swept mud and debris from the Chart house leak in the driveway

at 151 Palisades Drive.



Administrative & H.R. Manager’s Report — December 2025

Administrative & Operational Support

Conducted one-on-one training with Rural Water for the KGID website.
Reviewed, approved, and distributed escrow reads.
Double-checked the board packet prior to distribution.

Covered phones and customer service during staff absences.
Assisted customers with the permit acquisition process.

Coded checks and prepared deposits.

Updated and distributed the internal employee contact list.
Adjusted phone voicemail settings for the holiday office closure.
Organized and updated HR files.

Assisted TechTastic with employee onboarding.

Processed, sorted, and mailed December customer bills.
Addressed and organized holiday cards to be mailed to vendors.

Recruitment, Personnel & HR

Interviewed Mike Edwards, Byran Moss and Todd Poth for the Utility Operations
Supervisor position.

Created and distributed offer letters and declination letters for the Operations
Superintendent position.

Conducted one-on-one meetings with administrative staff to review job descriptions
and to see if any concerns needed to be addressed.

Completed an exit interview with Edwards and collected all assigned KGID property.
Posted the Water Treatment/Distribution job opening on multiple platforms and
reviewed incoming résumés.

Followed up with applicants regarding recruitment status.

Researched compensation comparisons for lead position salary review.

Updated an employee’s beneficiary information for a union member.

Legal, Compliance & Regulatory

Gathered information and coordinated with legal counsel regarding the F&B lawsuit.
Completed research and compiled materials for discovery responses related to the F&B
lawsuit.

Researched AB301 and NRS 318.085 requirements for posting documents to the
website.

Contacted State of Nevada mechanical compliance regarding elevator inspections then
scheduled an inspection.

Researched and resolved an unemployment claim for Jerron Pierson.

Completed CJIS online training for system security and privacy compliance.



Approved invoices for payment.

Audited payroll and provided approval.

Audited and approved journal entries, cash positions, and general ledger items for audit.
Reviewed the Warren Reed NPAIP insurance renewal application for 2025-2026.

Met with Jim Norton of Warren Reed regarding insurance renewal planning.

Resolved issues related to FirstNet billing delays (two-hour call).

Returned a customer call regarding a vehicle damaged by the snowplow.

Wrote and entered service requests for customers.

Researched and provided a customer address lists of the entire district for Dowl’s
Marketplace project.

Updated the KGID website, including posting revisions to minutes and adding past
meeting recordings.

Set up Zoom meetings for board interviews.

Assisted new IT company with employee data and system setup.

Researched issues with Michelle not receiving Nextiva voicemail emails.

Attended Springbrook meeting regarding the transition from Abila.

Coordinated service for the Konica copier.

Contacted United Rentals regarding an unresolved refund.

Reached out to FirstNet regarding procurement of heavy-duty devices for field crews.
Researched catering options for the KGID Christmas Lunch (Qdoba selected).

Printed minutes on legal paper for signature before board distribution.
Typed November board meeting minutes.

Posted meeting agenda on Government and KGID websites.

Updated Derek on union negotiations and past practices.

Escrow Reads: 2025 - 130 | 2024 - 185

Service Requests Completed: 2025 - 535 ($9,348 income) | 2024 - 509 ($7,822 income)
Hours Worked: 2025 - 18,386 hours (15/2 temps) | 2024 - 19,487 hours (14/3 temps)
Liens Outstanding:

- 759 Boulder Court, Q — $93,361 (Tax Lien)

- 495 Tramway #12 — $93,776.84 (Tax Lien)

- 165 Irwin A&B — $63,993 (Lien)



